

December 18, 2019

National Stock Exchange of India Limited Exchange Plaza, Plot No. C/1, G Block, Bandra - Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051. **BSE Limited** Corporate Relations Department, 1<sup>st</sup> Floor, New Trading Ring, P. J. Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001.

Symbol: L&TFH

Security Code No.: 533519

#### Kind Attn: Head - Listing Department / Dept of Corporate Communications

Dear Sir / Madam,

Sub: Issue of up to 300,00,000 Cumulative Compulsorily Redeemable Non-Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 100 face value at par and aggregating up to Rs. 300,00,00,000 on a private placement basis ("Issue")

Pursuant to the requirements of provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and listing of Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013 and further to our letter dated December 18, 2019 sent earlier today, please find enclosed the information memorandum dated December 18, 2019, in connection with the Issue.

We request you to take the aforesaid on record.

Thanking you,

Yours faithfully,

For L&T Finance Holdings Limited

Apurva Rathod Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Encl: as above

L&T Finance Holdings Limited Registered Office Brindavan, Plot No. 177, C.S.T Road Kalina, Santacruz (East) Mumbai 400 098, Maharashtra, India CIN: L67120MH2008PLC181833

**T** +91 22 6212 5000 **F** +91 22 6212 5553 **E** igrc@ltfs.com

www.ltfs.com



#### L&T FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED

CIN L67120MH2008PLC181833

A public limited company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 whose equity shares are listed on the BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited and existing preference shares are listed on the BSE Limited.

Registered Office: Brindavan, Plot No. 177, C.S.T Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East) Mumbai 98

Tel: (+91 22) 6212 5000 Fax: (+91 22) 6212 5553

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer: Ms. Apurva Rathod; Tel: (+91 22) 6212 5000;

Fax: (+91 22) 6212 5553; Email: igrc@ltfs.com; Website: www.ltfs.com

INFORMATION MEMORANDUM DATED DECEMBER 18, 2019

LISTING BY L&T FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ("ISSUER" OR "COMPANY") OF LISTED CUMULATIVE NON-CONVERTIBLE REDEEMABLE PREFERENCE SHARES WITH A FACE VALUE OF INR 100 EACH (THE "NCRPS"), OF INR 150,00,000 (INDIAN RUPEES ONE HUNDRED AND FIFTY CRORES) AT PAR ("BASE ISSUE"), WITH AN OPTION TO RETAIN OVERSUBSCRIPTION BY WAY OF GREEN SHOE OPTION UP TO 150,00,000 (INDIAN RUPEES ONE HUNDRED AND FIFTY CRORES), AGGREGATING TO INR 300,00,000 (INDIAN RUPEES THREE HUNDRED CRORES) ON A PRIVATE PLACEMENT BASIS (THE "ISSUE"). THIS ISSUE WILL BE UNDER THE ELECTRONIC BOOK MECHANISM FOR ISSUANCE OF DEBT SECURITIES ON A PRIVATE PLACEMENT BASIS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SEBI CIRCULAR JANUARY 05, 2018 BEARING REFERENCE NUMBER SEBI/HO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/05, AND SEBI CIRCULAR DATED AUGUST 16, 2018 BEARING REFERENCE NUMBER SEBI/HO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/122, EACH AS AMENDED ("SEBI EBP CIRCULARS"), TOGETHER WITH THE UPDATED OPERATIONAL GUIDELINES "FOR ISSUANCE OF SECURITIES ON PRIVATE PLACEMENT BASIS THROUGH AN ELECTRONIC BOOK MECHANISM" ISSUED BY BSE BY THEIR NOTICE NUMBER 20180928-24 DATED 28 SEPTEMBER 2018 ("BSE EBP GUIDELINES"). THE COMPANY INTENDS TO USE THE BSE'S BID PLATFORM FOR THIS ISSUE ("BSE EBP PLATFORM"). THE NCRPS WILL BE LISTED ON BSE LIMITED. THIS DOCUMENT PROVIDES DISCLOSURES IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SEBI (ISSUE AND LISTING OF NON-CONVERTIBLE REDEEMABLE PREFERENCE SHARES) REGULATIONS, 2013, AS AMENDED ("SEBI NCRPS REGULATIONS") AND PROVIDES CERTAIN ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES.

GENERAL RISK

INVESTORS ARE ADVISED TO READ THE SECTION TITLED "*RISK FACTORS*" CAREFULLY BEFORE TAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION IN THIS ISSUE. FOR THE PURPOSES OF TAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION, INVESTORS MUST RELY ON THEIR OWN EXAMINATION OF THE ISSUER AND OF THE ISSUE INCLUDING, THE RISKS INVOLVED. PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS SHOULD CONSULT THEIR OWN LEGAL, REGULATORY, TAX, FINANCIAL AND/OR ACCOUNTING ADVISORS ABOUT RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH AN INVESTMENT IN SUCH NCRPS AND THE SUITABILITY OF INVESTING IN SUCH NCRPS IN LIGHT OF THEIR PARTICULAR CIRCUMSTANCES. INVESTMENT IN THESE NCRPS INVOLVES A DEGREE OF RISK AND INVESTORS SHOULD NOT INVEST ANY FUNDS IN THIS ISSUE UNLESS THEY CAN AFFORD TO TAKE THE RISK OF LOSING THEIR INVESTMENT. IDENTIFIED INVESTORS ARE ADVISED TO READ THIS INFORMATION MEMORANDUM CAREFULLY BEFORE TAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION IN THIS ISSUE. FOR TAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION, INVESTORS MUST USE THEIR OWN JUDGMENT AND RELY ON THEIR OWN EXAMINATION OF THE COMPANY AND THE ISSUE INCLUDING THE RISKS INVOLVED. **INSTRUMENTS OFFERED THROUGH THE OFFER DOCUMENT ARE NON-CONVERTIBLE REDEEMABLE PREFERENCE SHARES AND** 

INSTRUMENTS OFFERED THROUGH THE OFFER DOCUMENT ARE NON-CONVERTIBLE REDEEMABLE PREFERENCE SHARES AND NOT DEBENTURES/BONDS. THEY ARE RISKIER THAN DEBENTURES/BONDS AND MAY NOT CARRY ANY GUARANTEED COUPON AND CAN BE REDEEMED ONLY OUT OF THE DISTRIBUTABLE PROFITS OF THE COMPANY OR OUT OF THE PROCEEDS OF A FRESH ISSUE OF SHARES MADE, IF ANY, BY THE COMPANY, OR OTHERWISE AS PERMITEED UNDER APPLICABLE LAWS, FOR THE PURPOSE OF REDEMPTION.

LISTING

THE NCRPS ARE PROPOSED TO BE LISTED ON THE WHOLESALE DEBT MARKET SEGMENT OF BSE ("**STOCK EXCHANGE**") AND BSE SHALL BE THE DESIGNATED STOCK EXCHANGE FOR THE ISSUE. THE ISSUER SHALL COMPLY WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015, AS AMENDED (THE "**SEBI LODR REGULATIONS**") TO THE EXTENT APPLICABLE TO IT ON A CONTINUOUS BASIS.

CREDIT RATINGS

The NCRPS have been rated "CRISIL AAA/Stable (Triple A rating with Stable outlook)" by CRISIL Limited pursuant to the revalidation letter dated December 13, 2019. CRISILS's ratings are opinions on credit quality and are not recommendations to sanction, renew, disburse or recall the concerned bank facilities or to buy, sell or hold any security. CRISIL has based its ratings on information obtained from sources believed by it to be accurate and reliable. CRISIL does not, however, guarantee the accuracy, adequacy or completeness of any information and is not responsible for any errors or omissions or for the results obtained from the use of such information. Most entities whose bank facilities/instruments are rated by CRISIL have paid a credit rating fee, based on the amount and type of bank facilities/instruments.



# **LINK**Intime

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. C 101, 247 Park L.B.S Marg, Vikhroli (West) Mumbai 400 083 Tel: +91 22-4918 6000 Fax: +91 22-49186060 Email: ganesh.jadhav@linkintime.co.in

ISSUE PROGRAMME				
Issue Opening Date	Issue Closing Date	Pay-In Date	Date of Allotment	
December 20, 2019	December 20, 2019	December 23, 2019	December 23, 2019	
The Issue shall be subject to the provisions of the Companies Act (as defined below), the rules notified thereunder, the SEBI NCRPS Regulations, the				
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Issuer, the terms and conditions of the Information Memorandum filed with the Stock Exchange and other documents in relation to the Issue.				

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

DISCLAIMERS	2
DEFINITIONS/ ABBREVIATIONS/ TERMS USED	7
RISK FACTORS	
GENERAL INFORMATION	50
INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY	
DISCLOSURES RELATING TO WILFUL DEFAULT	74
DIVIDEND POLICY	
STATEMENT OF TAX BENEFITS	78
TERMS OF THE ISSUE	81
INFORMATION RELATING TO TERMS OF OFFER	89
REGULATIONS AND POLICIES	
INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS	
DECLARATION	
ANNEXURE A	
ANNEXURE B	
ANNEXURE C	
ANNEXURE D	
ANNEXURE E	
ANNEXURE F	194
ANNEXURE G	197
ANNEXURE H	198
ANNEXURE I	
ANNEXURE J	
ANNEXURE K	

#### DISCLAIMERS

THIS INFORMATION MEMORANDUM ("IM" or "INFORMATION MEMORANDUM") IS NEITHER A PROSPECTUS NOR A STATEMENT IN LIEU OF PROSPECTUS. THIS IM DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AND SHALL NOT BE DEEMED TO CONSTITUTE AN OFFER OR AN INVITATION TO SUBSCRIBE TO THE NCRPS TO THE PUBLIC IN GENERAL. APART FROM THIS IM, NO OFFER DOCUMENT OR PROSPECTUS HAS BEEN PREPARED IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFERING OF THIS ISSUE OR IN RELATION TO THE COMPANY NOR IS THIS IM REQUIRED TO BE REGISTERED UNDER THE APPLICABLE LAWS. ACCORDINGLY, THIS IM HAS NEITHER BEEN DELIVERED FOR REGISTRATION NOR IS IT INTENDED TO BE REGISTERED. MULTIPLE COPIES HEREOF GIVEN TO THE SAME ENTITY SHALL BE DEEMED TO BE GIVEN TO THE SAME PERSON AND SHALL BE TREATED AS SUCH. IT DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AND SHALL NOT BE DEEMED TO CONSTITUTE AN OFFER OR AN INVITATION TO SUBSCRIBE TO THE NCRPS TO THE PUBLIC IN GENERAL.

THIS IM HAS BEEN PREPARED TO PROVIDE GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY AND TERMS AND CONDITIONS. INCLUDING THE NATURE OF THE NCRPS. TO IDENTIFIED INVESTORS TO WHOM IT IS ADDRESSED AND WHO ARE WILLING AND ELIGIBLE TO SUBSCRIBE TO THE NCRPS. THIS IM HAS BEEN PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THE SEBI NCRPS REGULATIONS AND APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT AND THE RULES THEREUNDER. THIS IM DOES NOT PURPORT TO CONTAIN ALL THE INFORMATION THAT ANY IDENTIFIED INVESTOR MAY REQUIRE. NEITHER THIS IM NOR ANY OTHER INFORMATION SUPPLIED IN CONNECTION WITH THE NCRPS IS INTENDED TO PROVIDE THE BASIS OF ANY CREDIT OR OTHER EVALUATION NOR SHOULD ANY RECIPIENT OF THIS IM CONSIDER SUCH RECEIPT A RECOMMENDATION TO SUBSCRIBE TO ANY NCRPS. EACH INVESTOR CONTEMPLATING THE SUBSCRIPTION OF ANY NCRPS SHOULD MAKE ITS OWN INDEPENDENT INVESTIGATION OF THE FINANCIAL CONDITION AND AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY, AND ITS OWN APPRAISAL OF THE CREDITWORTHINESS OF THE COMPANY. IDENTIFIED INVESTORS SHOULD CONSULT THEIR OWN FINANCIAL, LEGAL, TAX AND OTHER PROFESSIONAL ADVISORS AS TO THE RISKS AND INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS ARISING FROM AN INVESTMENT IN THE NCRPS AND SHOULD POSSESS THE APPROPRIATE RESOURCES TO ANALYSE SUCH INVESTMENT AND THE SUITABILITY OF SUCH INVESTMENT TO SUCH INVESTOR'S PARTICULAR CIRCUMSTANCES. IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE INVESTORS TO ALSO ENSURE THAT THEY WILL SELL THESE NCRPS IN STRICT ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS IM AND APPLICABLE LAWS, SO THAT THE SALE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN OFFER FOR SALE TO THE PUBLIC WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE COMPANIES ACT. NONE OF THE INTERMEDIARIES OR THEIR RESPECTIVE AGENTS OR ADVISORS ASSOCIATED WITH THIS ISSUE UNDERTAKE TO REVIEW THE FINANCIAL CONDITION OR AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY OR THE FACTORS AFFECTING THE NCRPS OR HAVE ANY RESPONSIBILITY TO ADVISE ANY PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR OR IDENTIFIED INVESTOR IN THE NCRPS OF ANY INFORMATION AVAILABLE WITH OR SUBSEQUENTLY COMING TO THE ATTENTION OF THE INTERMEDIARIES OR THEIR RESPECTIVE AGENTS OR ADVISORS.

NO PERSON HAS BEEN AUTHORIZED TO GIVE ANY INFORMATION OR TO MAKE ANY REPRESENTATION NOT CONTAINED IN THIS IM OR IN ANY MATERIAL MADE AVAILABLE BY THE COMPANY TO ANY IDENTIFIED INVESTOR PURSUANT HERETO AND, IF GIVEN OR MADE, SUCH INFORMATION OR REPRESENTATION MUST NOT BE RELIED UPON AS HAVING BEEN AUTHORIZED BY THE COMPANY. THE INTERMEDIARIES AND THEIR RESPECTIVE AGENTS OR ADVISORS ASSOCIATED WITH THIS IM HAVE NOT SEPARATELY VERIFIED THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN. ACCORDINGLY, NO REPRESENTATION, WARRANTY OR UNDERTAKING, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, IS MADE AND NO RESPONSIBILITY IS ACCEPTED BY ANY SUCH INTERMEDIARY, AGENT OR ADVISOR AS TO THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS IM OR ANY OTHER INFORMATION PROVIDED BY THE COMPANY. ACCORDINGLY, ALL SUCH INTERMEDIARIES AND THEIR RESPECTIVE AGENTS OR ADVISORS ASSOCIATED WITH THIS ISSUE SHALL HAVE NO LIABILITY IN RELATION TO THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS IM OR ANY OTHER INFORMATION PROVIDED BY THE COMPANY IN CONNECTION WITH THIS ISSUE.

THIS INFORMATION MEMORANDUM AND THE CONTENTS HEREOF ARE RESTRICTED FOR PROVIDING INFORMATION UNDER SEBI NCRPS REGULATIONS. AN OFFER OF PRIVATE PLACEMENT SHALL BE MADE BY THE ISSUER BY WAY OF ISSUE OF THE PPOAL (DEFINED BELOW) TO THE SUCCESSFUL BIDDERS WHO HAVE BEEN ADDRESSED THROUGH A COMMUNICATION BY THE ISSUER, AND ONLY SUCH RECIPIENTS ARE ELIGIBLE TO APPLY TO THE NCRPS. ALL ELIGIBLE PARTICIPANTS ARE REQUIRED TO COMPLY WITH THE RELEVANT REGULATIONS/ GUIDELINES APPLICABLE TO THEM FOR INVESTING IN THIS ISSUE. THE CONTENTS OF THIS INFORMATION MEMORANDUM AND ANY OTHER INFORMATION SUPPLIED IN CONNECTION WITH THIS INFORMATION MEMORANDUM OR THE NCRPS ARE INTENDED TO BE USED ONLY BY THOSE ELIGIBLE PARTICIPANTS TO WHOM IT IS DISTRIBUTED. IT IS NOT INTENDED FOR DISTRIBUTION TO ANY OTHER PERSON AND SHOULD NOT BE REPRODUCED OR DISSEMINATED BY THE RECIPIENT.

THE CONTENTS OF THIS IM ARE INTENDED TO BE USED ONLY BY THOSE INVESTORS TO WHOM IT IS SPECIFICALLY BEEN ADDRESSED. IT IS NOT INTENDED FOR DISTRIBUTION TO ANY OTHER PERSON AND SHOULD NOT BE REPRODUCED BY THE RECIPIENT.

THE PERSON TO WHOM A COPY OF THIS IM IS SENT IS ALONE ENTITLED TO APPLY FOR THE NCRPS.

THE PERSON WHO IS IN RECEIPT OF THIS IM SHALL NOT REPRODUCE OR DISTRIBUTE IN WHOLE OR PART OR MAKE ANY ANNOUNCEMENT IN PUBLIC OR TO A THIRD PARTY REGARDING ITS CONTENTS, WITHOUT THE PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF THE COMPANY.

EACH PERSON RECEIVING THIS IM ACKNOWLEDGES THAT SUCH PERSON HAS BEEN AFFORDED AN OPPORTUNITY TO:

- A. REQUEST AND TO REVIEW AND HAS RECEIVED ALL ADDITIONAL INFORMATION CONSIDERED BY AN INVESTOR TO BE NECESSARY; AND
- B. VERIFY THE ACCURACY OF OR TO SUPPLEMENT THE INFORMATION HEREIN; AND
- C. UNDERSTAND THE NATURE OF THE NCRPS AND THE RISKS INVOLVED IN INVESTING IN THEM INCLUDING FOR ANY REASON HAVING TO SELL THEM OR BE MADE TO REDEEM THEM BEFORE THE REDEMPTION DATE

NO PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR HAS RELIED ON ANY INTERMEDIARY OR THEIR RESPECTIVE AGENTS OR ADVISORS THAT MAY BE ASSOCIATED WITH THE ISSUE IN CONNECTION WITH ITS INVESTIGATION OF THE ACCURACY OF INFORMATION OR ITS INVESTMENT DECISION.

NO OFFER IS BEING MADE TO "PERSON RESIDENT OUTSIDE INDIA" AS SUCH TERM IS DEFINED IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE MANAGEMENT ACT, 1999.

THE IM IS MADE AVAILABLE TO INVESTORS ON THE STRICT UNDERSTANDING THAT IT IS CONFIDENTIAL.

THE NCRPS HAVE NOT BEEN RECOMMENDED OR APPROVED BY THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA ("**SEBI**") NOR DOES SEBI GUARANTEE THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS DOCUMENT. THIS IM HAS NOT BEEN SUBMITTED, CLEARED OR APPROVED BY SEBI.

THE NCRPS HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE REGISTERED UNDER THE U.S. SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "SECURITIES ACT"), AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD WITHIN THE UNITED STATES (AS DEFINED IN REGULATION S ("REGULATION S") UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT) OR TO, OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OR BENEFIT OF, U.S. PERSONS. THE NCRPS WILL ONLY BE OFFERED AND SOLD TO PERSONS RESIDENT IN INDIA AND WILL NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD TO INVESTORS IN ANY JURISDICTION OUTSIDE INDIA.

#### DISCLAIMER STATEMENT FROM THE COMPANY

THE COMPANY ACCEPTS NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR STATEMENTS MADE, OTHER THAN IN THIS IM AND ANY OTHER MATERIAL EXPRESSLY STATED TO BE ISSUED BY OR AT THE INSTANCE OF THE COMPANY IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUE OF NCRPS, AND THAT ANYONE PLACING RELIANCE ON ANY OTHER SOURCE OF INFORMATION, MATERIAL OR STATEMENT WOULD BE DOING SO AT THEIR/ITS OWN RISK.

#### **RBI DISCLAIMER**

1. (A) RESERVE BANK OF INDIA DOES NOT ACCEPT ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR GUARANTEE ABOUT THE PRESENT POSITION AS TO THE FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS OF THE COMPANY OR FOR THE CORRECTNESS OF ANY OF THE STATEMENTS OR REPRESENTATIONS MADE OR OPINIONS EXPRESSED BY THE COMPANY AND FOR DISCHARGE OF LIABILITY BY THE COMPANY

(B) NEITHER IS THERE ANY PROVISION IN LAW TO KEEP, NOR DOES THE COMPANY KEEP ANY PART OF THE PUBLIC FUNDS WITH THE RESERVE BANK AND BY ISSUING THE CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION TO THE COMPANY, THE RESERVE BANK NEITHER ACCEPTS ANY RESPONSIBILITY NOR GUARANTEE FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE PUBLIC FUNDS TO ANY PERSON/BODY CORPORATE

2. THE COMPANY IS HAVING A VALID CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION DATED SEPTEMBER 11, 2013 ISSUED BY THE RESERVE BANK OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 45 IA OF THE RESERVE BANK OF INDIA ACT, 1934 REGISTERING THE COMPANY AS A NON-BANKING FINANCIAL INSTITUTION - CORE INVESTMENT COMPANY. HOWEVER, THE RBI DOES NOT ACCEPT ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR GUARANTEE ABOUT THE PRESENT POSITION AS TO THE FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS OF THE COMPANY OR FOR THE CORRECTNESS OF ANY OF THE STATEMENTS OF REPRESENTATIONS MADE OR OPINIONS EXPRESSED BY THE COMPANY AND FOR REPAYMENT OF DEPOSITS OR DISCHARGE OF LIABILITIES BY THE COMPANY.

#### DISCLAIMER OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE

IT IS TO BE DISTINCTLY UNDERSTOOD THAT SUBMISSION OF THE INFORMATION MEMORANDUM WITH THE STOCK EXCHANGE OR HOSTING THE SAME ON THE WEBSITE OF STOCK EXCHANGE SHOULD NOT IN ANY WAY BE DEEMED OR CONSTRUED THAT THE INFORMATION MEMORANDUM HAS BEEN CLEARED OR APPROVED BY THE STOCK EXCHANGE: NOR DOES IT IN ANY MANNER WARRANT, CERTIFY OR ENDORSE THE CORRECTNESS OR COMPLETENESS OF ANY OF THE CONTENTS OF THIS INFORMATION MEMORANDUM; NOR DOES IT WARRANT THAT THIS ISSUER'S SECURITIES WILL BE LISTED OR CONTINUE TO BE LISTED ON THE STOCK EXCHANGE; NOR DOES IT TAKE RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL OR OTHER SOUNDNESS OF THIS ISSUER, ITS MANAGEMENT OR ANY SCHEME OR PROJECT OF THE ISSUER. EVERY PERSON WHO DESIRES TO APPLY FOR OR OTHERWISE ACOUIRE ANY SECURITIES OF THIS ISSUER MAY DO SO PURSUANT TO INDEPENDENT INQUIRY, INVESTIGATION AND ANALYSIS AND SHALL NOT HAVE ANY CLAIM AGAINST THE STOCK EXCHANGE OR ANY AGENCY WHATSOEVER BY REASON OF ANY LOSS WHICH MAY BE SUFFERED BY SUCH PERSON CONSEQUENT TO OR IN CONNECTION WITH SUCH SUBSCRIPTION OR ACQUISITION WHETHER BY REASON OF ANYTHING STATED OR OMITTED TO BE STATED HEREIN OR ANY OTHER REASON WHATSOEVER.

#### DISCLAIMER OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA

PURSUANT TO RULE 14 (3) OF THE COMPANIES (PROSPECTUS & ALLOTMENT OF SECURITIES) RULES, 2014, A COPY OF THIS INFORMATION MEMORANDUM SHALL BE FILED WITH THE REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES, MUMBAI ALONG WITH FEE AS PROVIDED IN THE COMPANIES (REGISTRATION OFFICES & FEES) RULES, 2014, WITHIN A PERIOD OF THIRTY DAYS OF CIRCULATION OF THIS INFORMATION MEMORANDUM. THIS INFORMATION MEMORANDUM SHALL ALSO BE FILED WITH SEBI IN ACCORDANCE WITH EXTANT PROVISIONS. THE NCRPS HAVE NOT BEEN RECOMMENDED OR APPROVED BY SEBI NOR DOES SEBI GUARANTEE THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS INFORMATION MEMORANDUM. IT IS TO BE DISTINCTLY UNDERSTOOD THAT THIS INFORMATION MEMORANDUM SHOULD NOT, IN ANY WAY, BE DEEMED OR CONSTRUED THAT THE SAME HAS BEEN CLEARED OR VETTED BY SEBI. THE SEBI DOES NOT TAKE ANY RESPONSIBILITY EITHER FOR THE FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS OF ANY SCHEME OR THE PROJECT FOR WHICH THE ISSUE IS PROPOSED TO BE MADE, OR FOR THE CORRECTNESS OF THE STATEMENTS MADE OR OPINIONS EXPRESSED IN THIS INFORMATION MEMORANDUM. HOWEVER SEBI RESERVES THE RIGHT TO TAKE UP AT ANY POINT OF TIME, WITH THE ISSUER, ANY IRREGULARITIES OR LAPSES IN THIS INFORMATION MEMORANDUM.

#### CAUTIONARY NOTE

WHEN INVESTING IN THE NCRPS, THE ELIGIBLE PARTICIPANTS ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THEY: (I) ARE KNOWLEDGEABLE AND EXPERIENCED IN FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS MATTERS, HAVE EXPERTISE IN ASSESSING CREDIT, MARKET AND ALL OTHER RELEVANT RISK AND ARE CAPABLE OF EVALUATING, AND HAVE EVALUATED, INDEPENDENTLY THE MERITS, RISKS AND SUITABILITY OF PURCHASING THE NCRPS, (II) HAVE NOT REQUESTED THE ISSUER TO PROVIDE IT WITH ANY FURTHER MATERIAL OR OTHER INFORMATION, (III) HAVE NOT RELIED ON ANY INVESTIGATION THAT ANY PERSON ACTING ON THEIR BEHALF MAY HAVE CONDUCTED WITH RESPECT TO THE NCRPS, (IV) HAVE MADE THEIR OWN INVESTMENT DECISION REGARDING THE NCRPS BASED ON THEIR OWN KNOWLEDGE (AND INFORMATION THEY HAVE OR WHICH IS PUBLICLY AVAILABLE) WITH RESPECT TO THE NCRPS OR THE ISSUER, (V) HAVE HAD ACCESS TO SUCH INFORMATION AS DEEMED NECESSARY OR APPROPRIATE IN CONNECTION WITH PURCHASE OF THE NCRPS, (VI) ARE NOT RELYING UPON, AND HAVE NOT RELIED UPON, ANY STATEMENT, REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY MADE BY ANY PERSON, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, THE ISSUER, AND (VII) UNDERSTAND THAT, BY PURCHASE OR HOLDING OF THE NCRPS, THEY ARE ASSUMING AND ARE CAPABLE OF BEARING THE RISK OF LOSS THAT MAY OCCUR WITH RESPECT TO THE NCRPS, INCLUDING THE POSSIBILITY THAT THEY MAY LOSE ALL OR A SUBSTANTIAL PORTION OF THEIR INVESTMENT IN THE NCRPS, AND THEY WILL NOT LOOK TO THE LEGAL ADVISOR TO THE ISSUE FOR ALL OR PART OF ANY SUCH LOSS OR LOSSES THAT THEY MAY SUFFER.

Term	Full Form / Meaning		
AGM	Annual general meeting of the Issuer.		
Applicable Law	Any statute, national, state, provincial, local, municipal, foreign, international, multinational or other law, treaty, code, regulation, ordinance, rule, judgment, order, decree, bye-law, approval of any Governmental Authority, directive, guideline, policy, requirement or other governmental restriction or any similar form of decision of or determination by, or any		
	interpretation or administration having the force of law of any of the foregoing by any Governmental Authority having jurisdiction over the matter in question, whether in effect as of the date of this Information Memorandum or at any time thereafter in India		
Application Form	Application form forming part of the PPOAL to be issued by the Issuer, after completion of the bidding process.		
Application Money	The money credited by an applicant to the Designated Bank Account of the Issuer for the purpose of subscription to the NCRPS		
Articles of Association / Articles	The Articles of Association of the Issuer		
Beneficial Owners	Those persons whose names appear on the beneficiary details provided by the Depositories (NSDL and/or CDSL) as on the Record Date		
Business Day	Means all days on which the money market is functioning in the city of Mumbai		
Business Day Convention	Should any of the dates defined above or elsewhere in the Information Memorandum, excepting the Date of Allotment and the Redemption Date, fall on a Saturday, Sunday or a Public Holiday in Mumbai, the next business day shall be considered as the effective date. In case the Redemption Date falls on a Saturday, Sunday or a Public Holiday in Mumbai, the previous business day shall be considered as the Redemption Date and the Date of Allotment		
BSE	BSE Limited		
BSE EBP Platform	Electronic bidding platform of the BSE for issuance of eligible securities on private placement basis		
Board	The board of directors of the Issuer		
CDSL	Central Depository Services (India) Limited		
CIN	Corporate Identification Number		
CIC	Core Investment Company		
Companies Act	The Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder, as applicable, as may be amended or modified or substituted from time to time		
Company / LTFHL / Issuer	L&T Finance Holdings Limited		
CRAR	Capital to Risk Assets Ratio		
CRISIL	CRISIL Limited		
Date of Allotment	Has the meaning set out in the section headed "Terms of the Issue"		
Depository Participant / DP	A depository participant as defined under Depositories Act, 1996, as amended		

## DEFINITIONS/ ABBREVIATIONS/ TERMS USED

Term	Full Form / Meaning		
Designated Bank Account	Has the meaning set out in the section headed " <i>Terms of the</i>		
C	Issue"		
Designated Stock Exchange	BSE Limited		
Director	A Director on the Board of the Company		
Dividend Payment Date	Has the meaning set out in the section headed "Terms of the		
5	Issue"		
EBP	Electronic book platform		
ECS	Electronic clearing system		
Eligible Participants / Eligible	Has the meaning set out in the section headed "Terms of the		
Investors	Issue"		
Face value	Has the meaning set out in the section headed "Terms of the		
	Issue"		
FCNR	Foreign currency non-resident		
FY/Financial Year	Means each financial year ending on 31 March in each year		
Governmental Authority	Any (a) government (central, state or otherwise) or sovereign		
	state; (b) any governmental agency, semi-governmental or		
	judicial or quasi-judicial or administrative entity, department or		
	authority, or any political subdivision thereof; and (c)		
	international organisation, agency or authority, or including,		
	without limitation, any stock exchange or any self-regulatory		
	organization, established under any Applicable Law		
GOI	Government of India		
GST	Goods and services tax		
HFC	Housing Finance Company		
ICCL	Indian Clearing Corporation Limited		
Identified Investors	Persons who are Eligible Participants and have been identified		
	by the Issuer pursuant to a resolution of the Board/ resolution		
	of a committee of the Board and to whom this Information		
	Memorandum is specifically addressed		
India Ratings	India Ratings & Research Private Limited		
Ineligible Investor	Has the meaning set out in the section headed "Terms of the		
	Issue"		
Information Memorandum / IM	This Information Memorandum dated December 18, 2019		
INR/Rupees	The lawful currency of the Republic of India		
IPO	Initial public offering		
IT	Information technology		
Issue	Private placement of NCRPS, being Rs. 150,00,000 (Rupees		
	One Hundred and Fifty Crores) with option to retain		
	oversubscription, up to a total Rs. 150,00,000 (Rupees One		
	Hundred and Fifty Crores) with an aggregate issue amount of		
	Rs. 300,00,000 (Rupees Three Hundred Crore) constitutes		
	the "Issue"		
Issue Opening Date	Has the meaning set out in the section headed " <i>Terms of the</i>		
Issue Closing Data	Issue"		
Issue Closing Date	Has the meaning set out in the section headed " <i>Terms of the</i>		
LAT	Issue"		
L&T	Larsen & Toubro Limited		
L&T Financial Services Group	Issuer and its direct and indirect Subsidiaries		
MCA Memorandum of Association	Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India		
Memorandum of Association	The Memorandum of Association of the Issuer		
NBFC	Non-banking financial company		

Term	Full Form / Meaning		
NBFC-CIC-ND-SI	Systemically important non deposit taking core investment		
	company NBFC		
NEFT	National electronic funds transfer		
NHB	National Housing Board		
NHB Act	National Housing Bank Act, 1987, as amended		
NPA	Non-Performing Assets		
NSDL	National Securities Depository Limited		
Promoter	L&T		
Pay–In Date	Has the meaning set out in the section headed "Terms of the		
-	Issue"		
PAS Rules	Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules,		
	2014, as amended from time to time		
PPOAL	Private placement offer and allotment letter issued to successful		
	Eligible Investors in accordance with this Information		
	Memorandum		
RBI	Reserve Bank of India		
RBI Act	Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, as amended		
Record Date	Has the meaning set out in the section headed "Terms of the		
	Issue"		
Redemption Amount	Has the meaning set out in the section headed "Terms of the		
	Issue"		
Redemption Date	Has the meaning set out in the section headed "Terms of the		
	Issue"		
Register of NCRPS Holders	The register of members holding NCRPS maintained by the		
	Company and/or the RTA		
RTA	Registrar and transfer agent		
RTGS	Real time gross settlement		
SEBI	Securities and Exchange Board of India		
SEBI EBP Circulars	Has the meaning as set out in the cover page		
SEBI LODR Regulations	Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations		
	and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, as amended		
SEBI NCRPS Regulations	SEBI (Issue and Listing Of Non-Convertible Redeemable		
	Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013, as amended		
Stock Exchange	BSE Limited		
Subsidiary	Has the meaning set out in the section headed "Information		
	About the Company"		
TDS	Tax deducted at source		
Tenor	Has the meaning set out in the section headed "Terms of the		
	Issue"		
UTR	Unique transaction reference		

### **RISK FACTORS**

An investment in NCRPS involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider each of the following risk factors and all other information set forth in this Information Memorandum, before making an investment in NCRPS. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only risks that we currently face. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently believe to be immaterial may also adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. If any or some combination of the following risks, or other risks that are not currently known or believed to be adverse, actually occur, our business, financial condition and results of operations could suffer, the trading price of, and the value of your investment in, our NCRPS could decline and you may lose all or part of your investment.

In making an investment decision with respect to this Issue, you must rely on your own examination of our Company and the terms of this Issue, including the merits and risks involved. Unless otherwise indicated, the financial information included herein is based on our Audited Consolidated Financial Statements as of and for the Financial Years ended March 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017 and the Limited Review Consolidated Financial Information for the quarter and half yearly ended September 30, 2019. Unless the context otherwise requires, in this section, reference to "we", "us" "our" or "Our Group" refers to our Company together with our Subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis.

### **INTERNAL RISK FACTORS**

1. Restrictions on payment of dividend and redemption

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, the dividends payable on the NCRPS can only be out of distributable profits of the company for that year, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act or out of the distributable profits of the company for any previous fiscal year(s) arrived at as laid down by the Companies Act. Further, where the profits (including accumulated profits standing in the profit or loss account) are inadequate, dividends can be paid out of free reserves, in accordance with the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder. Redemption of the NCRPS can only be made out of the distributable profits of the Company or fresh issue of shares. In case the Company does not have adequate distributable profits, the Company will not be able to pay the dividends on the NCRPS. Further, in case the Company does not have adequate distributable profits, the Sompany does not have adequate distributable profits, the Company does not have adequate distributable profits or the Company is unable to raise money by fresh issue of shares, the Company may be unable to redeem the NCRPS.

2. The Company's primary source of revenue is the dividend declared by each of its Subsidiaries

The Company is the holding company for the L&T Financial Services Group and has only limited operations. As a result, the revenues of the Company are derived mainly from the dividends that the Subsidiaries companies declare from time to time. Consequently, in the event that if one or more of the Subsidiaries companies are unable to or do not declare dividends for whatsoever reasons including but not limited to any macroeconomic situation or other factors generally affecting the industry in which such Subsidiaries operate, the Company may have lesser, significantly lower or no revenues. In such a situation, the profits of the Company may be affected which would affect the Company's ability to declare and pay dividend on the NCRPS.

3. Company and its Subsidiaries have undertaken covenants which may affect the Company's ability to pay dividend

The Company and its Subsidiaries are party to certain financing documents under which the Company or its Subsidiaries are restricted from declaring a dividend if in relation to the Company or such Subsidiary an event of default has occurred including defaults on payments and breach of financial covenants and is continuing. While, the Company is not a party to the financing arrangements entered into by its Subsidiaries, any continuing breach of financial covenants by the Company itself for its Subsidiaries could impact the Company's ability to declare dividends on the NCRPS or the profits of the Company may be affected on account of the inability of the Subsidiaries /s to pay dividend which would in turn affect the Company's ability to declare and pay dividend on the NCRPS. Further, the Company has independently entered into financing arrangements and this risk factor shall be applicable on the occurrence of any events of default under such financing arrangements. As of the date of the Information Memorandum, there is no event of default subsisting in the Company or its Subsidiaries.

4. Downgrading of rating

In case the Company is unable to pay the dividend in accordance with the terms of the NCRPS for any reason whatsoever, including for reasons of inadequate profit, the rating for the NCRPS as well as other rated instruments of the Company may be downgraded which may adversely impact the business, profitability and financing abilities of the Company.

5. Any disruption in our sources of funding or increase in costs of funding could adversely affect our liquidity and financial condition.

The liquidity and profitability of our business depends, largely, on our timely access to, and the costs associated with, raising funds. Our funding requirements historically have been met from various sources, including funds raised from borrowings from banks, issuance of retail non-convertible debentures (invested in by debt market participants including Mutual Funds, Pension Funds, Scheduled Commercial Banks, Retirement Funds, National Pension Scheme, Insurance Players, Corporates, Foreign Portfolio Investors and other Debt Market Participants allowed by SEBI) commercial papers (invested in by mutual funds, banks, and other debt market participants allowed by SEBI), equity and preference shares, inter-corporate deposits from corporates, collateralized borrowing and lending obligations under the CCIL platform, and corporate bond repo transactions entered into with banks. Our business thus depends and will continue to depend on our ability to access a variety of funding sources. Further, our

ability to compete effectively will depend, in part, on our ability to maintain or increase our margins. Our margins are affected in part by our ability to continue to secure lowcost funding at rates lower than the interest rates at which we lend to our customers. Our ability to raise funds at competitive rates depends on various factors including our current and future results of operations and financial condition, corporate governance, our risk management policies, the shareholding of our Promoter in our Company, , our asset quality, our capital position, our liquidity planning and execution thereof, our credit ratings, our brand equity, the regulatory environment and policy initiatives in India and developments in the international markets affecting the Indian economy. If we are unable to access funds at an effective cost that is comparable to or lower than that of our competitors, our net interest margins, income and market share may be adversely affected.

Certain regulatory developments have affected NBFC's access to select funding sources, and have affected their costs of borrowings including through funding from banks, capital markets and securitization and assignment transactions. For example, pursuant to the RBI circular dated May 3, 2011, loans extended by commercial banks to NBFCs after April 1, 2011, are not considered priority sector loans. While scheduled commercial banks may still choose to lend to NBFCs, they may charge higher rates to do so as these loans no longer count towards their priority sector lending requirements. However, pursuant to the RBI circular on "Priority sector lending – lending by banks to NBFCs for on lending" dated August 13, 2019, bank credit extended to registered NBFC's (other than Micro Finance Institutions) for on-lending to the categories of agriculture and micro and small enterprises will now be classified as priority sector lending; further, this circular has also increased the existing limits for on-lending by HFCs from Rs. 10 lakh per borrower to Rs. 20 lakh per borrower in housing category.

Further, the restrictions imposed on NBFCs by the RBI through a Master Circular – Bank Finance to Non- Banking Financial Companies dated July 1, 2015, as amended (the "**Master Circular**") may restrict our ability to obtain bank financing for specific activities. Under this Master Circular, certain activities by NBFCs are ineligible for financing by banks, including certain types of discounting and rediscounting of bills; current and long term investments in shares, debentures, loans and advances by NBFCs to their subsidiaries and group companies; lending by NBFCs to individuals for subscribing to public offerings and purchasing shares from the secondary market; unsecured loans; inter-corporate deposits provided by NBFCs; and subscription to shares or debentures by NBFCs. In addition, the Master Circular prohibits:

- banks from granting bridge loans of any nature, provide interim finance against capital or debenture issues or in the form of loans of a temporary nature pending the raising of long term funds from the market by way of capital, deposits, or other means to any category of NBFCs;
- banks from accepting shares and debentures as collateral for secured loans granted to NBFCs; and

• banks from executing guarantees covering inter-company deposits or loans that guarantee refund of deposits or loans accepted by NBFCs. The Master Circular also requires that guarantees not be issued by banks for the purpose of indirectly enabling the placement of deposits with NBFCs.

Changes in economic conditions, regulatory policies or lack of liquidity in the market could adversely affect our ability to access funds at competitive rates, or at all, which could adversely affect our liquidity and financial condition.

6. We operate in a highly competitive industry and our inability to compete effectively may adversely affect our business.

We operate in a highly competitive industry. Given the diversity of our businesses, and the products and services offered by us, we face competition from the full spectrum of public sector banks, private sector banks, foreign banks, financial institutions, captive finance affiliates of players in various industries, small finance banks and other NBFCs who are active in infrastructure, rural, and housing business. Some of our competitors have greater resources than we do, may be larger in terms of business volume and may have significantly lower cost of funds compared to us. Some of them may also have greater geographical reach, long-standing partnerships and may offer their customers other forms of financing that we may not be able to provide. Competition in our industry depends on, among other things, the ongoing evolution of government and regulatory policies, the entry of new participants and the extent to which there is consolidation among banks and financial institutions in India.

In relation to the asset management, wealth management, advisory and syndication services we offer, we also face competition from banks, asset management companies and consulting organizations. The Company has agreed to sell its entire shareholding (including shares held by our nominee directors) in its wholly owned subsidiary L&T Capital Markets Limited ("LTCM") to IIFL Wealth Finance Limited ("IWFL") or its affiliates. LTCM provides wealth management services for individuals and institutional clients in India. The transaction is subject to regulatory approvals. The Company has agreed to sell its entire shareholding in its wholly owned subsidiary in Dubai, UAE, L&T Capital Markets (Middle East) Limited ("LTCM (ME))" to Proud Securities and Credits Private Limited ("PSCPL"). LTCM (ME) provides offshore wealth management services. The transaction is subject to regulatory approvals. For further information, please refer to the section on "material developments" on page 71 of this Information Memorandum.

Potentially, other banks and NBFCs could compete with us for business as well as procurement of funds at competitive rates. Further, in relation to our farm equipment and two wheeler finance businesses, we rely on tie-ups with equipment manufacturers and are a preferred financier to them and their dealers. We rely on these relationships to procure customers and effectively sell our services. In the event such equipment manufacturers set up their own in-house financiers or expand their in-house financing capabilities, they may terminate or reduce the extent of their relationship with us, and such in-house financiers may compete with us in providing loans under these businesses. We cannot assure you that we will be able to react effectively to these or other market developments or compete effectively with new and existing players in our increasingly competitive industry and our inability to compete effectively may adversely affect our business.

7. We may not be able to maintain our current levels of profitability due to increased costs or reduced spreads between the interest rates at which we borrow and lend.

Our business strategy involves a high level of ongoing interaction with our customers. We believe that this involvement is an important part of developing our relationship with our customers, identifying new cross-selling opportunities and monitoring our performance. However, this level of involvement also entails higher levels of operating costs and also requires a relatively higher gross spread, or margin, on the finance products we offer in order to maintain profitability. There can be no assurance that we will be able to maintain our current levels of profitability if the gross spreads on our finance products were to reduce substantially, which could adversely affect our results of operations.

8. We are affected by volatility in interest rates for both our lending and treasury operations, which could cause our net interest income to decline and adversely affect our results of operations and profitability.

A significant component of our revenue is the interest on term loans and other financing activity (net of reversal) we receive from the loans we disburse, which comprised  $\mathbb{R}$  3,294.38 crore or 88.75 % of our total income of  $\mathbb{R}$  3,711.85 crore for the quarter ended September 30, 2019 and  $\mathbb{R}$  6,607.15 crore or 89.27 % of our total income of  $\mathbb{R}$  7,401.35 crore for the half year ended September 30, 2019.

Our net interest margins are affected by any volatility in interest rates in our lending operations. Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors beyond our control, including competition from other banks and NBFCs, the monetary policies of the RBI, deregulation of the financial sector in India, domestic and international economic and political conditions and other factors, which have historically generated a relatively high degree of volatility in interest rates in India. Persistently high inflation in India may discourage the Government from implementing policies that would cause interest rates to decrease. Moreover, if there is an increase in the interest rates we pay on our borrowings that we are unable to pass to our customers, we may find it difficult to compete with our competitors, who may have access to funds at a lower cost or lower cost deposits. To the extent our borrowings are linked to market interest rates, we may have to pay interest at a higher rate than lenders that borrow only at fixed interest rates.

Further, our ability to pass on any increase in interest rates to borrowers may also be constrained by regulations implemented by the Government or the RBI.

Fluctuations in interest rates may also adversely affect our treasury operations. In a rising interest rate environment, particularly if the rise is sudden or sharp, we could be adversely affected by the decline in the market value of our securities portfolio and other fixed income securities. In addition, the value of any interest rate hedging instruments we may enter into in the future would be affected by changes in interest rates, which could adversely affect our ability to hedge against interest rate volatility. There can be no assurance that we will continue to enter into such interest rate hedging instruments or that we will be able to enter into the correct amount of such instruments to adequately hedge against interest rate volatility in the future. Our inability to effectively and efficiently manage interest rate variations and our failure to pass on increased interest rates on our borrowings may cause our net interest income to decline, which would decrease our return on assets and could adversely affect our business, future financial performance and result of operations.

9. The risk of non-payment or default by borrowers may adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

	Adjusted Total Loans and Advances	Gross NPAs		
	₹ crore	₹ crore	% of total loans*	
Infrastructure finance	39,472	3,494	9.24%	
Housing finance	26,986	212	0.79%	
Rural finance	26,597	941	3.61%	
Defocused business	7,203	1,099	19.92%	
Adjusted Total Loans and advances	100,258	5,746	5.98%	

As of September 30, 2019, our total loans outstanding were ₹ 100,258 crore. The table below sets out a breakdown of our total loans and NPAs by business segments:

%tage is derived based on principal outstanding

Our wholesale finance business primarily provides debt, equity or hybrid financing, and financial advisory and syndication services related to infrastructure projects in India. Infrastructure projects are characterized by project - specific risks as well as general risks. These risks are generally beyond our control, and include:

- interruptions or disruption in domestic or international financial markets, whether for equity or debt funds;
- changes in government and regulatory policies;
- time and cost overruns in the construction and operation of infrastructure projects;

- adverse changes in market demand or prices for the products or services that the project, when completed, is expected to provide;
- the unwillingness of consumers to pay for infrastructure services;
- the inability of consumers to pay for infrastructure services;
- the inability of infrastructure developers to pass on additional costs to government infrastructure utilities under contractual arrangements with them;
- shortages of, or adverse price developments in respect of raw materials and key project inputs such as oil and natural gas;
- potential defaults under financing arrangements with lenders and investors;
- failure of third parties to perform on their contractual obligations;
- adverse developments in the overall economic environment in India;
- interest rate or currency exchange rate fluctuations or changes in tax regulations; and
- economic, political and social instability or occurrences such as natural disasters, armed conflict and terrorist attacks, particularly where projects are located or in the markets they are intended to serve.

Our inability to effectively and efficiently manage interest rate variations and our failure to pass on increased interest rates on our borrowings may cause our net interest income to decline, which would decrease our return on assets and could adversely affect our business, future financial performance and result of operations.

Further, we provide construction finance loans through our housing finance segment and construction finance loans may be exposed to risks related to time and cost overruns and related increases. Factors such as third party performance risks, delays in obtaining the requisite approvals, environmental risks, changes in market conditions, changes in government or regulatory policies, permits, licenses or certifications from the relevant authorities as well as shortages of, or material increases in prices of, construction materials, equipment, technical skills and labor, or other unforeseeable problems and circumstances may lead to delays in, or prevent the completion of, real estate development projects and result in costs substantially exceeding those originally budgeted, which may affect real estate developers' ability to repay their loans.

In addition, real estate developers may be impacted by the passing of the Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016, as amended ("**Real Estate Act**"). The Real Estate Act sets forth a reporting, compliance regime governing real estate projects, including mandating developers to disclose details of registered projects including with respect to the land status, approvals and other such details, and requiring developers to pay interest in case of delays in project completion. Further, the Real Estate Act also makes it mandatory for real estate developers to put 70.00% of the amount collected from buyers for a real estate project into a separate bank account, which amount may only be

used for land costs and costs for construction of such real estate projects and sets forth a separate resolution mechanism for real estate disputes.

For our rural finance business, our NPAs are impacted by the difficulty to carry out precise credit risk analysis on borrowers as they typically do not have formal credit histories supported by tax returns and other documents that would enable us to assess their creditworthiness. In addition, we may not receive updated information regarding any change in the financial condition of these borrowers or may receive inaccurate or incomplete information as a result of any fraudulent misrepresentation by these borrowers or our employees. Borrowers in our rural finance segment are also typically less sophisticated and may be particularly susceptible to adverse economic conditions, adverse environmental factors such as weak monsoons or flooding and other natural calamities.

Our borrowers may also default on their obligations to us as a result of their bankruptcy, competition within their respective sectors, lack of liquidity, time and cost overrun, operational failure, breach of contract, government or other regulatory intervention and other reasons such as their inability to adapt to changes in the macro business environment. As of September 30, 2019, our total loans outstanding were  $\gtrless$  93,374.24 crore and we expect that the size of our loan assets will grow as a result of our expansion strategy in existing as well as new products, which may expose us to an increase in NPAs and an increased risk of defaults. Non-payment or default by borrowers in the future may adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

10. Any adverse developments in the industries in which we operate, may adversely affect our business and results of operations.

We operate under five principal business segments: rural finance, housing finance and wholesale finance under our lending business, and investment management and wealth management under our non-lending business. As described above in risk factor no 6, we have agreed to sell our wealth management business in India to IWFL and our wealth management business in Dubai, UAE to PSCPL. The transactions are subject to regulatory approvals. For further information, please refer to the section on "material developments" on page 71 of this Information Memorandum. Any adverse developments in the industries we operate in, may adversely affect our business and results of operations. Our asset portfolios include, and will likely continue to include, a high concentration of the foregoing business lines and the success of our lending business is thus dependent on, amongst others:

• the demand for two-wheelers, farm equipment and micro loans in India, including the factors affecting such demand (e.g. changes in Indian regulations and policies affecting utility vehicles, tractors and commercial vehicles, demand for transportation services in India, fuel price and consumer access to financing in the rural market);

- the demand for housing in India and developments in the real estate sector in India, including movement in real estate prices and changes in the legal and regulatory framework governing real estate transactions;
- the demand for infrastructure projects in India;
- any adverse developments in the microfinance industry, such as the microfinance crisis of 2010 in India and the impact of currency demonstization in 2016 on microloans generally;
- monsoons, failed rains, droughts, natural disasters and calamities;
- political events such as loan waivers, subsidies and other schemes announced by central and state governments; and
- other macroeconomic conditions in India and globally.
- 11. We have significant exposure to certain sectors. Any negative trends in these sectors may affect the ability of our borrowers to perform their obligations under their existing financing agreements with us and increase the level of non-performing assets in our portfolio, adversely affecting our business, financial performance and results of operations.

As at September 30, 2019, with 20.71%, 15.84%, 9.34%, 7.73%, 5.99% and 2.62% of our total adjusted loans and advances comprising loans towards renewable energy projects, construction finance, transportation projects, farm equipment, two-wheelers and power transmission projects, respectively, we have significant exposure in renewable energy, roads, transportation projects, power transmission, housing, construction and rural sectors in India and may continue to have significant concentration of loans in these sectors. Any significant negative trends in these sectors may affect the business of our borrowers, which in turn may affect their ability to perform their obligations under their existing financing agreements with us. Consequently, this may increase the level of non-performing assets in our portfolio and may adversely affect our business, financial performance and results of operations.

12. We have significant exposure to certain borrowers. Any negative developments impacting the ability of such borrowers to perform their obligations under their existing financing agreements with us and increase in the level of non-performing assets in our portfolio, may adversely affect our business, financial performance and results of operations.

Our top 20 borrowers in terms of adjusted loans and advances represented 12.34%, 11.54%, 15.99%, and 9.82% of our total adjusted loans and advances as of September 30, 2019, March 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively. We may continue to have significant concentration of loans to such borrowers or other large corporate groups in India. Any negative developments impacting the ability of such borrowers to perform their obligations under their financing agreements with us, including any defaults on their obligations as a result of their bankruptcy, competition within their respective sectors, lack of liquidity, operational failure, government or other regulatory intervention,

among others, may increase the level of non-performing assets in our portfolio and may adversely affect our business, financial performance and results of operations.

13. Our Company is a holding company and all our company's business operations are conducted through our Subsidiaries and the performance of our Subsidiaries may adversely affect our results of operations.

We are a holding company and all our business operations are conducted through our Subsidiaries, primarily L&T Infrastructure Finance Company Limited, L&T Finance Limited, L&T Housing Finance Limited, L&T Infra Debt Fund Limited, L&T Capital Markets Limited and L&T Investment Management Limited. The financial condition and results of operations of our Company are thus dependent upon the performance of our Subsidiaries and the dividends our Company receives from them. Our financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected should our equity stake in our Subsidiaries be diluted or in the event they cease to be our subsidiaries. The ability of our Subsidiaries to make dividend payments is subject to applicable laws and regulations in India relating to payment of dividends. In addition, loans obtained by these Subsidiaries may contain restrictions on the payment of dividends, including, among others, financial covenants being met and certain debt service accounts being adequately funded prior to the declaration or payment of dividends by these Subsidiaries. Further, in the event of a bankruptcy, liquidation or re-organisation of a Subsidiary, our Company's claim in the assets of such Subsidiary as a shareholder remains subordinated to the claims of lenders and other creditors of such Subsidiary.

14. We are subject to laws and regulations governing the banking and financial services industry in India as well as those for companies having listed securities in India. Changes in laws and regulations governing us could adversely affect our business, results of operations and prospects.

As an NBFC, we are subject to regulation by Government authorities, including the RBI and SEBI. For example, we are subject to the RBI's guidelines on regulation of NBFCs, including capital adequacy, exposure and other master directions. The RBI also regulates the credit flow by banks to NBFCs and provides guidelines to commercial banks with respect to their investment and credit exposure norms for lending to NBFCs. Additionally, we are required to make various filings with the RBI, the Registrar of Companies and other relevant authorities pursuant to the provisions of RBI regulations, the Companies Act and other regulations. As we have equity, debt and other securities listed on Indian stock exchange, we are also required to comply with the regulations of SEBI from time to time. If we fail to comply with these requirements, or a regulator claims we have not complied with these requirements, we may be subject to penalties and legal proceedings.

Certain of our Subsidiaries are similarly subject to regulation by Government authorities. For example, our Subsidiary, L&T Housing Finance Limited, is registered as a housing finance company ("**HFC**") with the NHB under the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 ("NHB Act"). Pursuant to the NHB Act and various regulations, circulars and guidelines issued by the NHB, HFCs are currently required to comply with, among others, limits on borrowings, investments, interest rates and tenure on deposits, prudential norms for income recognition, asset classification and provisioning for standard and non-standard assets, norms for creation of special reserves and provision for demand and time liabilities as well as minimum capital adequacy and liquidity requirements. The regulations applicable to us also address issues such as our conduct with customers and recovery practices, market conduct and foreign investment. NHB regulations also require HFCs to maintain a minimum capital adequacy ratio, consisting of tier I capital and tier II capital of not lower than (i) 13% on or before March 31, 2020; (ii) 14% on or before March 31, 2021 and (iii) 15% on or before March 31, 2022 and thereafter of its aggregate risk weighted assets and risk adjusted value of off-balance sheet items, as applicable. Further the Tier I Capital, at any point of time, shall not be less than 10% and the total tier II capital at any point of time shall not exceed 100% of the tier I capital. Pursuant to Finance Act (No. 2) Act, 2019, Government of India has transferred the regulation of HFC's from NHB to Reserve Bank of India ("RBI"). Subsequently RBI, through a press release dated August 13, 2019, has informed that till the revised framework is issued, HFCs shall comply with the directions and instructions issued by NHB. RBI through a notification titled "Withdrawal of exemptions granted to Housing Finance Institutions" bearing no. RBI/2019-20/98 DOR NBFC (PD) CC.No.105/03.10.136/2019-20 dated November 11, 2019, as amended, has withdrawn the exemptions available to HFC's from the provisions of Chapter IIIB of RBI Act except provisions of section 45IA of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. All the provisions as applicable to non-banking finance institutions under chapter IIIB of the RBI Act will also be applicable to HFC's except provisions of section 45IA of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Compliance with many of the regulations applicable to our operations in India, including any restrictions on investments and other activities currently being carried out by us, involves a number of risks, particularly in markets where applicable regulations may be subject to varying interpretations. If the interpretation of the regulators and authorities varies from our interpretation, we may be subject to penalties and our business could be adversely affected. Further, the legal, regulatory and policy environment in which we operate is evolving and subject to change. The laws, regulations and policies applicable to us may be amended, supplemented or changed at any time such that we may be required to restructure our activities and incur additional expenses to comply with applicable laws and regulations. Such changes may also adversely affect our business, results of operations and prospects, to the extent that we are unable to suitably respond to and comply with any such changes in applicable law, regulations and policies. 15. We are subject to supervision by regulatory authorities and non-compliance with observations made by regulatory authorities during their periodic inspections could expose us to penalties and restrictions.

As an NBFC, we are subject to periodic inspection by the RBI under Section 45N of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 ("**RBI Act**"), pursuant to which the RBI inspects our books of accounts and other records for the purpose of verifying the correctness or completeness of any statement, information or particulars furnished to the RBI. Certain of our Subsidiaries are similarly subject to periodic inspection by the relevant Government authorities governing them. For example, our Subsidiary, L&T Housing Finance Limited, is registered as an HFC with the NHB and is subject to periodic inspections by the NHB with respect to the controls, laws and regulations applicable to it as an HFC. Any irregularities found during such investigations by such regulatory authorities could similarly, expose us to warnings, penalties and restrictions.

During the course of finalization of inspection, regulatory authorities share their findings and recommendations with us and give us an opportunity to provide justification and clarifications. Further, such regulatory authorities also seek certain clarifications and share their findings in the ordinary course of business. We have responded to observations made by such authorities and addressed them, however we cannot assure you that these authorities will not find any deficiencies in future inspections or otherwise, or, the authorities will not make similar or other observations in the future. In the event we are unable to resolve such deficiencies to the satisfaction of the relevant authority, we may be restricted in our ability to conduct our business as we currently do. While we seek to comply with all regulatory provisions applicable to us, in the event we are unable to comply with the observations made by the authorities, we could be subject to penalties and restrictions which may have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and reputation.

16. We may be exposed to potential losses due to a decline in value of assets secured in our favour, and due to delays in the enforcement of such security upon default by our borrowers.

As at September 30, 2019, a large percentage of our total loan portfolio (excluding intercorporate deposits), is secured by a mix of both movable and immovable assets or other forms of collateral, depending on the nature of the transaction. The value of certain types of assets may decline due to inherent operational risks, the nature of the asset secured in our favour and adverse market and economic conditions (both global and domestic). For example, in relation to our wholesale finance business, our collateral is typically the assets and cash-flows from infrastructure projects such as renewable energy generation projects, power distribution projects and operational road projects. Any decrease in the value of such projects, including due to deterioration in the quality of such projects, inadequate development or maintenance or as a result of decreased demand, may result in diminishing the value of our collaterals. In the event of default by our customers, we cannot assure you that we will be able to sell our collateral including machinery, stock, two-wheelers or agricultural equipment or properties provided as security, due to among other things, unforeseen delays in our ability to take immediate action, winding up and foreclosure proceedings, defects in title, defects in perfection of the collateral or documentation relevant to the assets, stock market downturns, fraudulent transfers by our customers, difficulty in locating movable assets and the necessity of obtaining regulatory approvals and/or court orders for the enforcement of our collateral over those assets.

In addition, as the underlying security on our housing loans is primarily mortgages or other form of security over the other real property of the borrower, a substantial portion of our loan portfolio is exposed to fluctuations in real estate prices and any negative events affecting the real estate sector. The value of real estate properties secured under our loans is largely dependent on prevalent real estate market conditions, as well the quality of the construction and the pedigree of the relevant developer. The value of the collateral on the loans disbursed by us may decline due to adverse market conditions including an economic downturn or a downward movement in real estate prices. Any developments or events that adversely affect the real estate sector, including without limitation, changes in government policies, introduction of any stringent norms regarding construction, floor space index or other compliances, may also result in diminishing the value of our collaterals. If any of the projects which form part of our collateral are delayed for any reason, it may affect our ability to enforce our security, thereby effectively diminishing the value of such security.

Similarly, for the asset-backed loans of our rural finance segment, the equipment and vehicles purchased by our customers are hypothecated in our favor as security for the loans provided by us. The value of the equipment or vehicles, however, is subject to depreciation, deterioration, or a reduction in value on account of a number of external factors (such as wear and tear), over the course of time. Consequently, the realizable value of the collateral for the loan provided by us, when liquidated, may be lower than the outstanding loan from such customers. Any default in repayment of the outstanding credit obligations by our customers may expose us to losses. Further, in the case of a default, we typically repossess the asset financed and sell such vehicles through auctions. The hypothecated vehicles, being movable property, may be difficult to locate or seize in the event of any default by our customers.

Further, certain ownership documents of the immovable properties that are mortgaged to us may not be duly registered or adequately stamped. Failure to adequately stamp and register a document renders the document inadmissible in evidence. Consequently, should any default arise in relation to the corresponding loans, we may be unable to, or may incur additional expenses to, enforce our rights in relation to such mortgaged properties. Further, if any of our borrowers take recourse of arbitration or litigation against our repayment claims or if a specialized regulatory agency gains jurisdiction over any of our borrowers, it may cause a further delay in our recovery process leading to depreciation of the secured asset. A failure or delay in recovering the expected value from sale of collateral security could expose us to a potential loss. Any such losses could adversely affect our business prospects, financial condition and results of operations. As a result, if our customers default, we may receive less money from liquidating collateral than is owed under the relevant financing facility, and, in turn, incur losses, even where we successfully repossess and liquidate the collateral, thereby adversely affecting our business, future financial performance and results of operations.

17. Micro loans poses unique risks not generally associated with other forms of lending in India, and, as a result, we may experience increased levels of non-performing loans and related provisions and write-offs that could have an adverse effect on our business, future financial performance and results of operations.

Our micro loans customers typically belong to economically weaker segments of society in India, who have limited sources of income, savings and credit records, and who typically cannot provide us with any collateral or security for their borrowings. As a result, our micro loans customers present a higher credit risk of default than the customers of the other segments of our business (who have greater financial resources and more established credit histories) and other borrowers living in urban areas with better access to education, employment opportunities, and social services. In addition, we rely on non-traditional guarantee mechanisms in connection with our loan products, which are generally secured by informal individual and joint liability group guarantees, rather than tangible assets. There can however be no assurance that such joint liability arrangements will ensure repayment by the other members of the joint liability group in the event of default by any one of them. Such joint liability arrangements are likely to fail if there is no meaningful personal relationship or bond among members of such group, if inadequate risk management procedures have been employed to verify the group members and their ability to repay such loans, or as a result of adverse external factors such as natural calamities or forced migration. Further, while we have our own customized due diligence and credit analysis procedures, there can be no assurance that we will be able to ensure a lower delinquency rate. As a result, our customers potentially present a higher risk of loss in case of a credit default compared to that of borrowers in other asset-backed financing products. In addition, repayment of micro loans is susceptible to various political and social risks, including any adverse publicity relating to the micro loans sector, public criticism of the micro loans sector, the introduction of a stringent regulatory regime, or religious beliefs relating to loans and interest payments. As a result, our micro loans pose a higher degree of risk than loans secured with physical collateral.

As at September 30, 2019, adjusted loans and advances for our micro loans segment were ₹ 12,841 crore, which accounted for 12.81 % of our total adjusted loans and advances. As at September 30, 2019, the Gross NPAs for our micro loans segment was ₹ 297 crore. The gross NPAs as a percentage of the gross loans and advances for our micro loans segment were 2.34%, 2.91%, 4.68%, and 4.06% as at September 30, 2019, March 31,

2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively, while the net NPAs as a percentage of net loans and advances were 0.14%, 0.24%, 0.58%, and 0.00% as at September 30, 2019, March 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Due to the underlying financial and social circumstances of our micro loans customers and our non-traditional lending practices we may, in the future, experience increased levels of non-performing loans and related provisions and write-offs that could have an adverse effect on our business, future financial performance and results of operations.

18. We may be unable to sell or reduce the size of loans under our other financing businesses which may adversely affect our business and results of operations.

Commencing on April 1, 2016, we have streamlined and reorganized our financing businesses and employees under three primary financing business segments, i.e., rural finance, housing finance and wholesale finance. Correspondingly, we have divested certain part of, and are in the process of running-down, non-core business assets. These businesses include commercial vehicle financing, construction equipment financing, receivable discounting, small and medium enterprise term loans, car financing, loyalty and personal loans among others. Additionally, we have defocused our structured finance and debt capital markets business. Our other financing businesses comprised 7.18%, 0.86%, 1.84%, and 4.01%, of our total adjusted loans and advances as of September 30, 2019, March 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively. We may also consider divesting certain of our existing investments. In the event we are unable to further reduce the amount of loans outstanding under our other financing businesses or sell these loans to third parties at acceptable rates, or at all, or if we have to write-off these loans or classify them as NPAs, our business, asset quality and results of operations may be adversely affected.

19. If our provisioning requirements are insufficient to cover our existing or future levels of non-performing loans or if future regulation requires us to increase our provisions, our ability to raise additional capital and debt funds as well as our results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected.

We adhere to provisioning requirements related to our loan assets pursuant to applicable RBI and NHB regulations, as are relevant to us and our various Subsidiaries. If our provisioning requirements are insufficient to cover our existing or future levels of non-performing loans or if future regulation requires us to increase our provisions, our ability to raise additional capital and debt funds as well as our results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected.

20. Part of our collections from customers is in cash, exposing us to certain operational risks.

Part of our collections, specifically collections in our rural finance business segments, is in cash. Large cash collections expose us to the risk of theft, fraud, misappropriation or unauthorized transactions by employees responsible for dealing with such cash collections. These risks are exacerbated by the high levels of responsibility we delegate to our employees and the geographically dispersed nature of our network. Certain of our customers are from the rural and semi-urban markets, which carry additional risks due to limitations on infrastructure and technology. While we obtain insurance for our cash in transit and safes for storage of cash, we cannot assure you that the insurance obtained by us adequately covers all risks involved or will be paid in relation to the entire amount involved, or at all.

While we have implemented technology that tracks our cash collections, taken insurance policies, including coverage for cash in safes and in transit, and undertaken measures to detect and prevent unauthorized transactions, fraud or misappropriation, this may not be sufficient to prevent or deter such activities in all cases, which may adversely affect our operations and profitability. Further, we may be subject to regulatory or other proceedings in connection with any unauthorized transactions, fraud or misappropriation by our representatives and employees, which could adversely affect our goodwill. We may also be party to criminal proceedings and civil litigation related to our cash collections.

Our business is also susceptible to fraud by dealers, distributors and other agents through the forgery of documents, multiple financing of the same vehicle and unauthorized collection of instalments on behalf of us. Given the high volume of transactions involving cash processed by us in our rural finance business, certain instances of fraud and misconduct by our representatives or employees may go unnoticed for some time before they are discovered and successfully rectified. Even when we discover instances of fraud and other misconduct and pursue legal recourse or file claims with our insurance carriers, there can be no assurance that we will recover any amounts lost through such fraud or other misconduct. Our dependence upon automated systems to record and process transactions may further increase the risk that technical system flaws or employee tampering or manipulation of such systems will result in losses that are difficult to detect or rectify.

21. We depend on the accuracy and completeness of information about borrowers and counterparties for our credit assessment and risk management. Any misrepresentation, errors in or incompleteness of such information could adversely affect our business and financial performance.

In deciding whether to extend credit or enter into other transactions with customers, we rely on information furnished to us by or on behalf of borrowers (including in relation to their financial transactions and past credit history). We may also rely on certain representations from borrowers as to the accuracy and completeness of that information. For ascertaining the creditworthiness and encumbrances on collateral we may depend on the respective registrars and sub-registrars of assurances, credit information companies or credit bureaus such as TransUnion CIBIL Limited and Equifax, and on independent valuers in relation to the value of the collateral, and our reliance on any misleading information given may affect our judgment of credit worthiness of potential

borrowers, and the value of and title to the collateral, which may affect our business, prospects, results of operations and financial condition. We may receive inaccurate or incomplete information as a result of negligence or fraudulent misrepresentation on the part of our customers or employees. In addition, customers may misrepresent information in the loan application forms including in relation to the intended end use of the loans and may apply the loans disbursed for end uses different from those mentioned in the loan application form. Our risk management measures may not be adequate to prevent or deter such activities in all cases, which may adversely affect our business prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

Moreover, the availability of accurate and comprehensive credit information on retail customers and small businesses in India is more limited than for larger corporate customers, which reduces our ability to accurately assess the credit risk associated with such lending. Although as part of our credit policy, we are required to conduct credit checks of all our customers, including with credit bureaus, and conduct site-visits (wherever relevant) and personal discussions, there can be no assurance that such credit information will be accurate or comprehensive. There may be relatively less financial and credit information available on retail and rural individual borrowers, micro, small and medium enterprises and in relation to the possibility of double-financing obtained by any such clients, than may have been available in a more developed economy, and the availability of such financial and credit information in India may be considered to suffer from an absence of competitive pressure at present. Difficulties in assessing credit risks associated with our day- to-day lending operations may lead to an increase in the level of our non-performing and restructured assets, which could adversely affect our business prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

22. We are in the process of upgrading our information technology systems and any failure to achieve intended results from such upgrades may adversely affect our operations and reputation.

Our business is dependent upon increasingly complex and interdependent information technology systems and as part of our emphasis on data analytics and increasing use of electronic processes in our businesses, we are in the process of upgrading such systems. We have commenced utilizing the loan management system capabilities of a reputed third party and have migrated our data from our previous loan management systems. We have also entered into agreements with third parties such as IT companies to upgrade our IT infrastructure and are in the process of establishing new technology enabled centralized processing units. If our IT vendors are unable to fulfill their contractual obligations or if we encounter any failure in the timely implementation, performance or integration of such systems, we may not be able to recover the expenses we incurred, experience interruptions in our operations, loss of customers, damaged reputation and weakening of our competitive position.

Further, our ability to operate and remain competitive will depend in part on our ability to maintain and upgrade our information technology systems on a timely and costeffective basis, including adopting and implementing new technologies before our competitors. We may experience difficulties in upgrading, developing and expanding our systems quickly enough to accommodate our growing customer base and range of products. Any failure to effectively maintain or improve or upgrade our technology systems in a timely manner could adversely affect our competitiveness, financial position and results of operations.

23. Any downgrade in our credit ratings could increase borrowing costs and adversely affect our access to capital and lending markets and could also affect our interest margins, business, results of operations and financial condition.

The cost and availability of capital depends in part on our short-term and long-term credit ratings. Credit ratings reflect the opinions of rating agencies on our financial strength, operating performance, strategic position and ability to meet our obligations. Certain factors that influence our credit ratings may be outside of our control. For example, our credit ratings may depend on the financial performance and business prospects of our Promoter and its majority shareholding in our Company. CRISIL, CARE, India Ratings & Research and ICRA have rated our Company's NCDs at CRISIL AAA/Stable, CARE AAA/Stable, IND AAA / Stable and ICRA AAA/Negative, respectively. The rating on our Company's short-term debt by ICRA, CRISIL and CARE are at ICRA A1+, CRISIL A1+ and CARE A1+, respectively.

Credit ratings across the industries we operate may also depend on the underlying circumstances and economic environment around such industries. For instance, in 2016, as a result of a number of factors, such as the Government of India's demonetization measures, the credit ratings of a number of NBFCs were downgraded.

India Ratings & Research vide rating rationale dated November 15, 2019 has opined in its rating sensitivities that dilution of support expectations from L&T group is either on account of the Company's inability to manage asset quality (especially in view of the high loan growth strategy), resulting in higher-than-expected losses or diminished business prospects, materially weakened financial parameters, lack of improvement in standalone as well as overall liquidity position, inadequate improvement in leverage in the opinion of the agency or decreased importance of the Company or financial services to the L&T group, or otherwise could lead to a rating downgrade. The lack of timely support in terms of equity capital for growth or a liquidity event would also lead to a negative rating action. Also, any material deterioration in the credit profile of the L&T group or a change of ownership outside of the group could also lead to a negative rating action.

Further, CRISIL vide rating rationale dated November 14, 2019, has listed out the following downward factors for Company's rating (a) Decline in the credit risk profile of Larsen and Toubro Limited by one notch could lead to a similar rating change for the

Company's Promoter and its subsidiaries; (b) Any material change in the shareholding or support philosophy of Larsen and Toubro Limited for our Promoter, its subsidiaries and its associates; (c) Weakening in the capital structure of the our Promoter, its subsidiaries and its associates, with gearing exceeding 7.5 times on a steady-state basis, and/or deterioration in asset quality leading to a substantial decline in profitability.

Also, CARE in its rating rationale dated November 19, 2019 has mentioned key negative factors as (a) Weakening of our parent company's credit profile; (b) Material deterioration in asset quality for L&T Finance Holdings Limited group; and (c) Increase in gearing (Debt/Net-worth) beyond 9x levels at L&T Finance Holdings Limited group level. Any downgrade in our credit ratings could increase borrowing costs and adversely affect our access to capital and debt markets, which could in turn adversely affect our interest margins, our business and results of operations. In addition, any downgrade in our credit ratings or refinancing arrangements we enter into in the future. However, these ratings are not recommendations to buy, sell or hold securities and prospective investors should take their own decisions.

24. We may require additional financing for our business operations, including for our Subsidiaries, and the failure to obtain additional financing on terms commercially acceptable to us may adversely affect our ability to grow and our future profitability.

We may require additional capital for our business operations. The actual amount and timing of our future capital requirements may differ from estimates as a result of, among other things, unforeseen delays or cost overruns in developing our products, changes in business plans due to prevailing economic conditions, unanticipated expenses and regulatory changes, including any changes to RBI's monetary policies which are applicable to us. To the extent our planned expenditure requirements exceed our available resources; we will be required to seek additional debt or equity financing. Additional debt financing could increase our interest costs and require us to comply with additional restrictive covenants in our financing agreements.

Our ability to obtain additional financing on favourable terms, if at all, will depend on a number of factors, including our future financial condition, results of operations and cash flows, the amount and terms of our existing indebtedness, security, our track record of compliance of the covenants contained in our financial agreements, general market conditions and market conditions for financing activities and the economic, political and other conditions.

We cannot assure you that we will be able to raise additional financing on acceptable terms in a timely manner or at all. Our failure to renew arrangements for existing funding or to obtain additional financing on acceptable terms and in a timely manner could adversely impact our ability to incur capital expenditure, our business, results of operations and financial condition.

# 25. We may experience difficulties in expanding our business into new regions and markets in and outside India.

As part of our growth strategy, we continue to evaluate opportunities to expand our business into new markets in and outside India. For our rural finance business we intend to expand our branch network services in the rural and semi- urban markets of India, as well as additional districts in the states in which we are present. Further, we seek to expand our business to locations outside of India. Factors such as competition, customer requirements, regulatory regimes, business practices and customs in these new markets may differ from those in our existing markets, and our experience in our existing markets may not be applicable to these new markets. For instance, a number of states in India have enacted laws to regulate money lending transactions. These laws establish a maximum rate of interest that can be charged. There is ambiguity on whether or not NBFCs are required to comply with the provisions of these state money lending laws. There are severe civil and criminal penalties for non-compliance with the relevant money lending statutes. If it is judicially determined or clarified in law that such statutes apply to NBFCs, our expansion in such states could be hindered.

In addition, as we enter new markets and geographical regions, we are likely to compete with not only other banks and financial institutions but also the local unorganized or semi-organized private financiers, who are more familiar with local regulations, business practices and customs, and have stronger relationships with target customers.

As we plan to expand our geographic footprint, our business may also be exposed to additional challenges, including obtaining necessary governmental approvals, identifying and collaborating with local business partners with whom we may have no existing relationship; successfully marketing our products in markets in which we have no familiarity; attracting customers in a market in which we do not have significant experience or visibility; being subject to additional local and/or foreign taxes; attracting and retaining new employees; expanding our technological infrastructure; maintaining standardized systems and procedures; and adapting our marketing strategy and operations to new markets in and outside of India, in which different languages are spoken. To address these challenges, we may have to make significant investments that may not yield desired results or incur costs that we may not be able to recover. Our inability to expand our current operations may adversely affect our business, financial conditions, and results of operations.

# 26. Accounts for the quarter and half yearly ending September 30, 2019 for our Company have been subject to limited review by statutory auditors, and have not been audited.

This Information Memorandum includes limited review financial results in relation to our Company for the half year ended September 30, 2019 in respect of which the auditors have issued their limited review report dated October 18, 2019. Limited review financials included in this Information Memorandum have not been subject to audit.

The actual audited performance may be materially different from the limited review results and the financials included in this Information Memorandum may not present the accurate picture of the present financial status of the Company. Accordingly, prospective investors should rely on their independent examination of our financial position and results of operations, and should not place undue reliance on, or base their investment decision solely on the financial information included in this Information Memorandum. Potential investors should note that information in various sections of the information memorandum may contain information as the last financial year end, being March 31 2019, unless otherwise required to be updated under law or regulation. For further information, please refer to the Annexure C of this Information Memorandum.

27. We undertake certain business operations outside of India and it is possible that we find it difficult to maintain our operations in such jurisdictions.

We currently provide wealth management services to clients outside of India, through our wholly owned subsidiary in Dubai, UAE. Operating in such jurisdictions presents additional difficulties including:

- lack of equivalent experience in operating in these jurisdictions as compared to our experience in operating in India;
- operations in such jurisdictions are subject to different competitive environments and regulatory regimes in respect of which we have less knowledge and expertise; and
- the client base in such jurisdictions that may be interested in our wealth management services is more limited than in India.

Therefore, we may not be able to grow our business outside of India at the same rate as we grow our domestic business, or at all, and it is possible that we find it difficult to maintain our operations in such jurisdictions.

28. We may make acquisitions of, or investments in, complementary businesses or products, or seek to engage in strategic transactions which may be on terms that may not be commercially advantageous, may require additional debt or equity financing, and may not yield intended results.

We periodically review potential acquisition of products, product rights and complementary businesses and intend to continue to evaluate, potential product or business acquisitions including to expand our geographic presence and product portfolio. Further, we may seek to engage in strategic transactions with third parties, such as tie-ups, joint ventures, restructuring, business combinations, among others. We cannot assure you that we will be able to identify suitable acquisition, strategic transactions or investment opportunities. To the extent that we do identify opportunities that we believe to be suitable, we cannot assure you that we will be able to reach an agreement, that the terms we may agree to will be commercially advantageous to us, or that we will be able to successfully consummate such investments, acquisitions or transactions even after definitive documents have been signed.

If we require financing in order to fund such transaction, we cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain required financing when needed on commercially acceptable terms, or at all. Further, any such transactions may require us to incur non-recurring and other charges, increase our near and long-term expenditures, pose significant integration challenges, require additional expertise, result in dilution of our existing shareholders and disrupt our management and business, which may adversely affect our business, financial position and results of operations. We also may face significant competition in seeking appropriate investments or acquisitions. We cannot assure you that, following the consummation of such investments or acquisitions, these transactions will yield intended results.

29. We depend on the services of our management team and employees and our inability to recruit and retain them may adversely affect our business.

Our future success depends substantially on the continued service and performance of members of our management team, and in particular, our Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer and key managerial personnel and also upon our ability to manage key issues relating to human resource such as selecting and retaining key employees, developing managerial experience, addressing emerging challenges and ensuring a high standard of client service. There is intense competition for experienced senior management and other qualified personnel, particularly office managers, field executives and employees with local knowledge in client procurement, loan disbursement and instalment collections. If we cannot hire additional or retain existing management personnel and employees, our ability to expand our business will be impacted and our revenue could be adversely affected. Failure to train and motivate our employees properly may result in an increase in employee attrition rates, require additional hiring, divert management resources, adversely affect our origination and collection rates, increase our exposure to high-risk credit and impose significant costs on us. While we have an incentive-based remuneration structure, employee stock option schemes and training and development programs designed to encourage employee retention, our inability to attract and retain talented professionals, or the resignation or loss of senior personnel, may have an adverse impact on our business, future financial performance.

As of September 30, 2019, we employed 23,580 permanent employees. Though we believe that we maintain good relationship with our employees, we cannot assure you that we will not experience future disruptions to our operations due to disputes or other problems with our work force, which may adversely affect our business and result operations.

30. Our business is heavily dependent on our operations in certain regions in India, and any adverse changes in the conditions affecting these regions can adversely impact our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our housing finance business has the highest contribution from the Mumbai Metropolitan Region and the National Capital Region with 64 %, 67%, 74%, and 59% of our outstanding housing finance loans as of September 30, 2019, March 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively, arising from these regions. Further, our farm equipment finance business is dependent on the state of Madhya Pradesh, with 14%, 13.80%, 17.81% of our outstanding farm equipment finance loans as of September 30, 2019, March 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, arising from this state. In the event of a regional slowdown in the economic activity in these regions or factors such as a slowdown in sectors such as real estate or agriculture in these states, we may experience more pronounced effects on our financial condition and results of operations. Our business, financial condition and results of operations have been and will continue to be largely dependent on the performance of, and the prevailing conditions affecting, the economy in these regions. Therefore, any significant social, political or economic disruption, or natural calamities or civil disruptions in these regions, or changes in the policies in these regions may affect our business operations, require us to incur additional expenditure and change our business strategies.

31. We have presented in this Information Memorandum certain financial measures and other selected statistical information relating to our financial condition and operations which is not prepared under or required by Ind AS or erstwhile Indian GAAP. These financial measures and statistical information may vary from any standard methodology that is applicable across the financial services industry, and therefore may not be comparable with financial or statistical information of similar nomenclature computed and presented by other financial services companies.

We compute and disclose such non-GAAP financial information relating to our financial condition and operations as we consider such information to be useful measures of our business and financial performance. Such non-GAAP financial information is based on management accounts and internal financial information systems of our Company and is prepared by adjusting, based on management estimates, the financial measures in the audited or reviewed consolidated financial statements of our Company. Non-GAAP information should not be considered in isolation from, or as a substitute for, financial information presented in the audited or reviewed consolidated financial statements of our Company.

Further, the non-GAAP financial information may be different from financial measures and statistical information disclosed or followed by other NBFCs and HFCs. The non-GAAP financial information relating to our operations and financial performance may not be computed on the basis of any standard methodology that is applicable across the industry and therefore may not be comparable to financial measures and statistical information of similar nomenclature that may be computed and presented by other NBFCs, HFCs or other financial services companies. Accordingly, investors should not place undue reliance on the non-GAAP financial information included in this Information Memorandum.

All the financial numbers and ratios provided in the Information Memorandum pertaining to March 2019 are in accordance with applicable IndAS and previous financial numbers are stated in erstwhile IGAAP.

32. We enter into assignment transactions to transfer certain receivables from our outstanding loan portfolio. If such assignment of receivables is held to be unenforceable under applicable law, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected.

From time to time we novate or assign receivables from our outstanding loan portfolio to other NBFCs and banks for a consideration to, among other reasons, improve our liquidity and financial ratios. As of September 30, 2019, our portfolio of assigned outstanding loans was ₹ 264.70 crore. In January 2009, the High Court of Gujarat held that the provisions of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 do not permit banks to assign debt due to them, including the assignment of debt between two banks. However, on appeal, the Supreme Court of India reversed the decision of the High Court of Gujarat and held that assignment of debts by the banks inter-se is not barred by law. If in the future, one or more of the assignment transactions entered into by us is held to be unenforceable by a court of law, we may be required to terminate such assignment transactions. Such events may adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

33. We face difficulties and incur additional expenses in operating in rural and semiurban markets, where infrastructure may be limited.

Certain of our customers are from the rural and semi-urban markets, which may have limited infrastructure, particularly for transportation and electricity. At offices in remote markets, we may face difficulties in conducting operations, such as accessing power facilities, transporting people and equipment, implementing technology measures. We may also face increased costs in conducting our business and operations and implementing security measures. There can be no assurance that such costs will not increase in the future as we expand our network in rural and semi urban markets, which could adversely affect our profitability.

34. *A decline in our Company's capital ratio or capital adequacy requirement could restrict our future business growth.* 

As a NBFC-CIC-ND-SI, our Company is required to maintain a capital ratio requirement of at least 30% of our aggregate risk-weighted assets of our balance sheet (on-balance sheet and of risk adjusted value of off balance sheet items) on an ongoing basis. In addition, our Subsidiaries, being financial institutions regulated by the RBI and/or NHB, are subject to certain capital adequacy ratios. The minimum capital requirement or capital adequacy ratios required to be maintained by us and our Subsidiaries, as well as the

Name of Company	Category	Minimum capital requirement/ adequacy ratio	Capital Adequacy Ratio			
			30 September 2019	31 March 2019	31 March 2018	31 March 2017
L&T Finance Holdings Ltd	NBFC-CIC-ND-SI	30%	89.20%	88.19%	95.08%	82.17%
L&T Infrastructure Finance	NBFC-ND-SI- IFC	15%	22.97%	24.26%	20.67%	19.69%
L&T Finance Ltd	NBFC-ND-SI -ICC	15%	18.02%	16.98%	17.92%	16.42%
L&T Infra Debt Fund Ltd	NBFC-ND – SI - IDF	15%	27.22%	27.05%	28.39%	39.32%
L&T Housing Finance Ltd	HFC	13%	20.11%	17.69%	17.74%	15.39%

respective capital adequacy ratios of us and our Subsidiaries as at September 30, 2019 are as follows:

If we continue to grow our loan assets and asset base, we will be required to raise additional capital in order to continue to meet applicable capital adequacy ratios with respect to our business. We cannot assure you that we will be able to raise adequate additional capital in the future on terms favorable to us.

35. Our risk management measures may not be fully effective in mitigating our risks in all market environments or against all types of risks, which may adversely affect our business and financial performance.

We are exposed to a variety of risks, including liquidity risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, operational risk and legal risk. The effectiveness of our risk management is limited by the quality and timeliness of available data. Our hedging strategies and other risk management techniques may not be fully effective in mitigating our risks in all market environments or against all types of risk, including risks that are unidentified or unanticipated such as the risk of employee or human error. Some methods of managing risks are based upon observed historical market behaviour. As a result, these methods may not predict future risk exposures, which could be greater than the historical measures indicated. Other risk management methods depend upon an evaluation of information regarding markets, customers or other matters. This information may not in all cases be accurate, complete, current, or properly evaluated. Management of operational, legal or regulatory risk requires, among other things, policies and procedures to properly record and verify a number of transactions and events.

Some of our borrowers may not have any credit history supported by tax returns, bank or credit card statements, statements of previous loan exposures, or other related documents, have limited formal education, and may only be able to furnish limited information for us to assess their creditworthiness accurately. In addition, we may not receive updated information regarding any change in their financial condition or may receive inaccurate or incomplete information as a result of any fraudulent misrepresentation. It is therefore, difficult to carry out credit risk analysis on our borrowers. Our future success will depend, in part, on our ability to respond to new technological advances and evolving NBFCs, standards and practices in the sectors we cater to, on a cost-effective and timely basis. The development and implementation of standards and practices entails significant technical and business risks. We cannot assure you that we will successfully implement new technologies or adapt our transaction-processing systems to customer requirements or evolving market standards.

36. Any failure, inadequacy and security breach in our information technology systems may adversely affect our business.

Our operations depend on our ability to process a large number of transactions on a daily basis across our network of offices, most of which are connected through computer systems and servers to our head office. Our financial, accounting or other data processing systems may fail to operate adequately or become disabled as a result of events that are beyond our control, including a disruption of electrical or communications services, particularly in the rural and semi-urban markets in which we primarily operate. Our business is particularly susceptible to such disruptions because of our reliance on technology systems and processes, our mobility solutions and the higher cost of installation and implementation of technology in the rural and semi-urban markets for our rural finance business. For example, our two-wheeler finance business is conducted entirely through our mobile based technology relying on electronic customer checks, electronic data capture, online income assessment and automated processes. Any failure in these systems may adversely affect our business.

Our operations also rely on the secure processing, storage and transmission of confidential and other information in our computer systems and networks. Our computer systems, servers, software, including software licensed from vendors and networks may be vulnerable to unauthorized access, computer viruses or other malicious code and other events that could compromise data integrity and security and result in identity theft including customer data, know your customer documents (including identity proofs, income and tax statements and bank account details), employee data and propriety business data, trade secrets or other intellectual property, for which we could potentially be liable. In addition, our systems are potentially vulnerable to data security breaches, whether by employees, who may have a lack of experience with our newer information technology systems, or others, that may expose sensitive data to unauthorized persons. Although we have not experienced any significant disruptions to our information technology systems in the past, we cannot assure you that we will not encounter disruptions in the future. Any such security breaches or compromises of technology systems could result in institution of legal proceedings against us and potential imposition of penalties. Moreover, if there are other shortcomings or failures in our technology systems, it could affect our operations or result in financial loss, disruption of our businesses, regulatory intervention or damage to our reputation.

37. We utilize the services of certain third parties for our operations. Any deficiency or interruption in their services could adversely affect our business and reputation.

We engage third party service providers from time to time for services including the valuation of assets and legal services, direct selling agents and as collection agents. Such third parties are typically proprietorships or professionals. Our agreements with them typically do not provide for any exclusivity, and accordingly, they can work with other lenders, including our competitors. There can be no assurance that our direct selling agents will continue to provide a significant number of leads for loans to us in comparison with our competitors, or at all. Some third-party vendors may also be small companies which are likely to experience financial or operational difficulties than larger, well established companies due to limited financial and other resources. This may result in a delay of services or products delivered to us and we may be unable to find alternative vendors.

In addition, we utilize third party vendors for our information technology systems and rely on such vendors for adequate and timely delivery of services, providing support and troubleshooting advice and maintaining adequate resources and bandwidth for the smooth running of our operations. Our ability to control the manner in which services are provided by third party service providers is limited and we may be held liable on account of any deficiency of services on the part of such service providers. We cannot assure you that we will be successful in continuing to receive uninterrupted and quality services from our third-party service providers. Any disruption or inefficiency in the services provided by our third-party service providers could affect our business and reputation.

38. We may face asset-liability mismatches, which could affect our liquidity and consequently may adversely affect our operations and profitability.

We may face potential liquidity risks because our assets and liabilities mature over different periods. As is typical for NBFCs, we meet a portion of our funding requirements through short-term funding sources, such as by issuing commercial paper, short-term loans from banks. The majority of our loan assets, however, mature over the medium term. Consequently, our inability to obtain additional credit facilities or renew our existing credit facilities in a timely and cost-effective manner or at all may lead to mismatches between our assets and liabilities, which in turn may adversely affect our operations and profitability.

39. There are outstanding litigation pending against us, which, if determined adversely, could affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our Company, Promoter, our Directors and Subsidiaries are party to various legal proceedings. These legal proceedings are pending at different levels of adjudication before various courts, tribunals and statutory, regulatory and other judicial authorities in India, and, if determined against us, could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. We can give no assurance that these legal proceedings

will be decided in our favour or that no further liability may arise from these claims in the future.

Should any new developments arise, such as any change in applicable Indian law or any rulings against us by appellate courts or tribunals, we may need to make provisions in our financial statements that could increase expenses and current liabilities, which could adversely affect our results of operations.

40. We benefit from our relationship with our Promoter. Our Promoter will continue to retain majority shareholding in us after the Issue, which will allow it to exercise significant influence over us.

Our Promoter shall continue to exercise significant influence over our business policies and affairs and all matters requiring ordinary shareholder approval. This concentration of ownership also may delay, defer or even prevent a change in control of our Company and may make some transactions more difficult or impossible without the support of our Promoter.

In addition, we operate in a competitive environment, and we believe that our brand recognition is a significant competitive advantage to us. We leverage on the goodwill of the L&T group. We believe that this goodwill ensures a steady inflow of business. In the event L&T significantly dilutes its shareholding in our Company, withdraws the use of its trademark and logo for our operations, is unable to maintain the quality of its services or brand name or its goodwill deteriorates for any reason whatsoever, our business and results of operations may be adversely affected. L&T has also provided corporate guarantees in relation to certain borrowings availed of by us. In the event that any of these guarantees are revoked, the lenders for such facilities may require alternate guarantees, repayment of amounts outstanding under such facilities, or may even terminate such facilities.

In addition, in the event of any change of control, merger, consolidation, takeover or other business combination involving us, a transfer of shares by our Promoter, or actions such as a preferential allotment to any investor or a conversion of any convertible instruments, our ability to leverage the "Larsen & Toubro" brand may be adversely affected and the benefits of being a Larsen & Toubro group company, which includes access to capital and human resources, various operational synergies and our ability to leverage business from other Larsen & Toubro group companies, may no longer be possible and as a result of which, could adversely affect our business, future financial performance and results of operations.

41. We have entered into, and may continue to enter into, related party transactions and we cannot assure you that we could not have achieved more favorable terms had such transactions not been entered into with related parties.

We have entered into transactions with several related parties, including our Promoter and companies in the L&T Group. We can give no assurance that we could not have achieved more favorable terms had such transactions been entered into with parties that were not related parties. Furthermore, it is likely that we may enter into related party transactions in the future. We cannot assure you that such transactions, individually or in the aggregate, will not have an adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. The transactions we have entered into and any future transactions with our related parties have involved or could potentially involve conflicts of interest.

42. Fluctuations in the market values of our investments and other asset portfolio could adversely affect our result of operations and financial condition.

We maintain a portfolio of investments, which includes government securities, certificates of deposits and various mutual fund units. Any financial turmoil in the financial markets has the ability to adversely impact the economic activity in India and globally. Continued deterioration of the credit and capital markets could result in volatility of our investment earnings and impairments to our investment and asset portfolio, which could adversely affect our reported income and financial condition.

43. Any failure or significant weakness of our internal controls system could cause operational errors or incidents of fraud, which would materially and adversely affect our profitability and reputation.

We are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal measures commensurate with the size and complexity of operations. Our internal or concurrent audit functions are equipped to make an evaluation of the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls on an ongoing basis to ensure that business units adhere to our internal risk policies, compliance requirements and internal circular guidelines. While we periodically test and update, as necessary, our internal controls systems, we are exposed to operational risks arising from the potential inadequacy or failure of internal processes or systems, and our actions may not be sufficient to guarantee effective internal controls in all circumstances. Given the size of our operations, it is possible that errors may repeat or compound before they are discovered and rectified.

Our management information systems and internal control procedures that are designed to monitor our operations and overall compliance may not identify every instance of non-compliance or every suspicious transaction. If internal control weaknesses are identified, our actions may not be sufficient to correct such internal control weakness. We face operational risks in our various businesses and there may be losses due to failures or inadequacies of our internal controls systems. Failures in our internal controls systems may lead to deal errors, pricing errors, inaccurate financial reporting, fraud and failure of critical systems and infrastructure. Such instances may also adversely affect our reputation, business and results of operations. Failures or material weaknesses in internal controls may also lead to incidents of fraud. There can also be no assurance that we would be able to prevent frauds in the future or that our existing internal mechanisms to detect or prevent fraud will be sufficient. Any fraud discovered in the future may have an adverse effect on our reputation, business, results of operations and financial condition.

44. We require certain statutory and regulatory approvals for conducting our business and our inability to obtain, retain or renew them in a timely manner, or at all, may adversely affect our operations.

We require certain statutory and regulatory approvals for conducting our business and may also need additional approvals from regulators in connection with other fee-based products to our customers. For example, we are required to obtain and maintain a certificate of registration for carrying on business as an NBFC. We are also required to comply with the prescribed requirements including exposure limits, classification of gross stage 3s, know your customer requirements and other internal control mechanisms. We also require licenses and approvals to operate our various lines of business under our Subsidiaries. In the future, we will be required to maintain such permits and approvals and obtain new permits and approvals for any proposed expansion strategy or diversification into additional business lines or new financial products. We may not be able to obtain such approvals in a timely manner or at all.

In addition, our various offices, meeting centres and customer care centres are required to be registered under the relevant shops and establishments laws of the states and also require a trade license in municipal limits of certain states which are subject to periodic renewals, which we may not be able to obtain in a timely manner. The shops and establishment laws regulate various employment conditions, including working hours, holidays and leave and overtime compensation. A court, arbitration panel or regulatory authority may in the future find that we have not complied with applicable legal or regulatory requirements. We may also be subject to lawsuits or arbitration claims by customers, employees or other third parties in the different state jurisdictions in India in which we conduct our business. If we fail to obtain or retain any of these approvals or licenses, or renewals thereof, in a timely manner or at all, our business may be adversely affected.

If we fail to comply, or a regulator claims we have not complied, with any of these conditions, our certificate of registration may be suspended or cancelled, and we shall not be able to carry on such activities. We may also incur substantial costs related to litigation if we are subject to significant regulatory action, which may adversely affect our business, future financial performance and results of operations.

#### 45. Our insurance coverage may not adequately protect us against losses.

We maintain insurance coverage that we believe is adequate for our operations. Our insurance policies, however, may not provide adequate coverage in certain circumstances and are subject to certain deductibles, exclusions and limits on coverage. We cannot, however, assure you that the terms of our insurance policies will be adequate to cover any damage or loss suffered by us or that such coverage will continue to be available on reasonable terms or will be available in sufficient amounts to cover one or more large claims, or that the insurer will not disclaim coverage as to any future claim. A successful assertion of one or more large claims against us that exceeds our available insurance coverage or changes in our insurance policies, including premium increases or the imposition of a larger deductible or co- insurance requirement, could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

46. We do not own the "L&T" trademark and logo. In the event that we are unable to use the "L&T" trademark and logo or if there are any unauthorized usage which may result in the dilution of the trademarks recognized with our Company and loss of reputation, our business and results of operations may be adversely affected.

The "L&T" trademark is registered in favour of our Promoter. Pursuant to a trademark license agreement dated December 1, 2010, as amended from time to time (the "Trademark License Agreement"), with our Promoter, our Company and our Subsidiaries have been granted a global non-exclusive, non-transferrable license to use the "L&T" trademark and logo for a consideration payable by each of the licensees of up to 0.15% of the assets, or 1.5% of the profit after tax for the first year, 3.0% of the PAT for the second year or 5.0% of profit after tax for the third year onwards, of each of the licensees, whichever is lower, plus goods and service tax. The payment of such consideration is made on an annual basis, unless otherwise agreed amongst the parties. The Trademark License Agreement can be terminated by the parties thereto upon written notice in accordance with its terms. Furthermore, the Trademark License Agreement can also be terminated by any party upon change in management control of any of the licensees. In the event that the Trademark License Agreement is terminated, we may have to discontinue the use of the "L&T" trademark and logo.

Further, third parties may infringe our intellectual property, causing damage to our business prospects, reputation and goodwill. Our efforts to protect our intellectual property may not be adequate and any third party claim on any of our unprotected brands may lead to erosion of our business value and our operations could be adversely affected. We may need to litigate in order to determine the validity of such claims and the scope of the proprietary rights of others. Any such litigation could be time consuming and costly and a favorable outcome cannot be guaranteed. We may not be able to detect any unauthorized use or take appropriate and timely steps to enforce or protect our intellectual property. We cannot assure you that any unauthorized use by third parties of the

trademarks will not similarly cause damage to our business prospects, reputation and goodwill.

Our inability to use these trademarks and any unauthorized usage could result in the dilution of the trademarks recognized with our Company and loss of reputation, which may result in adverse effects to our business and results of operations.

47. Our home loans business is subject to certain tax and fiscal benefits which may be discontinued in the future by the GoI or state governments relating to financing of purchase or construction of property.

The rapid growth in the housing finance industry in India in recent periods has in part been due to tax and related fiscal benefits extended to homeowners by the Government of India or state governments. Interest and principal repayments on capital borrowed for the purchase or construction of housing have been tax deductible up to certain limits and tax rebates have been available for borrowers of such capital up to specified income levels. We cannot assure you that the Government of India will continue to offer such tax benefits to borrowers at the current levels or at all, which may adversely affect the demand for housing and consequently housing finance. The Government of India has also provided incentives to the housing finance industry by extending priority sector status to certain housing loans and making funds available to housing finance companies at lower rates. In addition, our Subsidiary, L&T Housing Finance Limited, being a housing finance company, is entitled for other tax benefits under the Income Tax Act which result in a reduction of our annual income tax rate. We cannot assure you that the Government of India will continue to make such tax or fiscal benefits available to housing finance companies such as us or that it will continue to offer us low cost funding on the same terms or at all. If such low cost funding is not made available to us, there may be an adverse effect on our cost of funds and consequently our operating margins and net interest margin.

48. Most of our offices and branches are located on leased premises and non-renewal of lease agreements or their renewal on terms unfavorable to us could adversely affect our operations.

As of September 30, 2019 all the 319 branches of our subsidiaries are housed on leased premises. Lease agreements entered into in relation to such premises have provisions which allow us to renew the agreement on mutually agreed terms and contain provisions for issuance of notices subject to a notice period in case of termination or non-renewal. In the event, any of the owners of these premises do not renew the agreements under which we occupy the premises, or if they seek to renew such agreements on terms and conditions unfavorable to us, or if they terminate the agreement, we may suffer a disruption in our operations or increased costs, or both, which may adversely affect our business and results of operations. All or any of the leases may not be renewed on similar terms or at all, or we may be evicted from all or a number of these premises and be required to pay damages to the landlord. This may adversely impact our business and financial condition.

49. Our Company has incurred significant indebtedness and may incur additional debt. The conditions and restrictions imposed by our financing agreements could adversely impede our flexibility in conducting our business.

As of September 30, 2019, our Company, at a consolidated level, had total borrowings of  $\gtrless$  90,049.88 crore. Most of our financing arrangements are secured by charge on receivables from our outstanding loans and other business operations. Certain of our financing agreements also include certain conditions and covenants requiring us to maintain stipulated financial ratios and obtain consents from lenders prior to carrying out certain activities and entering into certain transactions. For instance, certain entities forming part of our Group are required to obtain prior written consents from their respective lenders for, among others, the following matters:

- to declare or pay dividend to any of their shareholders whether equity or preference, during any Financial Year unless they have paid to the lender the dues payable by them in that year;
- to change their capital structure;
- to undertake or permit any merger, amalgamation or compromise with their shareholders, creditors or effect any scheme of amalgamation or reconstruction;
- to amend their MOA and AOA or alter their constitution;
- to undertake substantial change in general nature of business;
- to change their ownership or control; and
- to make any major investments by way of deposits, loans or share capital in any manner.

Compliance with the various terms of our loans is subject to interpretation and we cannot assure you that we have requested, received or will receive all consents from our lenders that would be advisable under our financing documents. As a result, it is possible that a lender could assert that we have not complied with certain terms under our financing documents. Any failure to service our indebtedness, comply with a requirement to obtain consent or perform any condition or covenant could impede our flexibility in conducting our business, which may have an adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

50. Certain loans and debt raised by us entail interest at variable rates and any increases in interest rates may adversely affect our results of operations.

There are certain loans and debt, including NCDs raised by us, aggregating to ₹ 35,294.93 crores as of September 30, 2019, interest rates for which are either fully floating or partially floating in nature, expressed as a base rate and interest spread, which is variable. Further, financing agreements in relation to such debt include provisions providing for interest rates to be periodically reset or changed based on the lender's internal policies. We are susceptible to fluctuations in interest rates and associated risks

for such debt. As such, any increase in interest rates may have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

50. We have experienced negative cash flows in relation to our operating activities and investment activities in recent years/periods. Any negative cash flows in the future could adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

We had a cash outflow from operating activities for Financial Years 2019, 2018, and 2017. No assurance can be made that this will not continue in the future.

51. We have certain contingent liabilities, which, if materialized, may adversely affect our financial condition.

As of September 30, 2019, we had certain contingent liabilities not provided for, amounting to  $\gtrless$  3,192.67 crores determined in accordance with our accounting policies as disclosed under our significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts. Further, the contingent liability of amounts disclosed in our audited financial statements represents estimates and assumptions of our management based on advice received. In the event that any of these contingent liabilities materialize, our financial condition may be adversely affected. In the event that any of these contingent liabilities materialize, our financial condition may be adversely affected.

52. Some of our Subsidiaries have incurred losses in the past.

Certain of our Subsidiaries have incurred losses in the last three Financial Years as indicated in the table below:

			in ₹ crores
Particulars	Financial	Financial	Financial
	Year 2019	Year 2018	Year 2017
	IndAS	IGAAP	IGAAP
L&T Investment Management Limited	-	-	25.81
L&T Capital Markets (Middle East) Limited	1.56	-	-
Mudit Cement Private Limited	6.88	5.68	5.49
L&T Access Distribution Services Limited (amalgamated with L&T Capital Markets Limited, appointed date being April 1, 2017)	-	-	0.94
L&T Mutual Fund Trustee Limited	0.10	0.06	-
L&T Infra Investment Partners Trustee Private Limited	-	0.01	-
L&T Infra Investment Partners Advisory Private Limited	4.26	-	-

We cannot assure you that our Subsidiaries will not continue to incur losses in future, that their net worth will be positive in the future or that any of the foregoing will not adversely affect our business, future financial performance and results of operations.

53. We are required to prepare our financial statements with effect from April 1, 2018 under the Ind AS. As Ind AS differs in various respects from Indian GAAP, our financial statements for the Financial Year 2019 may not be comparable to our historical financial statements.

The Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 ("IAS Rules"), as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016, enacted changes to Indian GAAP that are intended to align Indian GAAP with IFRS. The IAS Rules provide that financial statements of companies to which such rules apply shall be prepared and audited in accordance with Ind AS. Ind AS differs in various respects from Indian GAAP. We are required to prepare our financial statements in accordance with Ind AS with effect from April 1, 2018 with comparatives for prior periods. While we have not determined with any degree of certainty the impact that the adoption of Ind AS will have on our financial statements, we are aware that Ind AS will impact certain items in our financial statements such as income from loan and advances, finance cost, provision on non-performing assets and deferred tax. However, this summary may not contain all significant differences between Indian GAAP and Ind AS applicable to our Company and reliance by prospective investors on this summary should be limited. Accordingly, our financial statements for the period commencing from April 1, 2018 will not be comparable to our historical financial statements. Further, our financial statements for the Financial Year 2018 prepared under Ind AS will not be comparable to our financial statements prepared for such period under Indian GAAP.

In addition, our Promoter, L&T, currently prepares its consolidated annual and quarterly financial statements in Ind AS. As a result, and solely for the purposes of consolidation, our Company has been preparing and providing its financial information under Ind AS to L&T for periods prior to April 1, 2018. These results are used by L&T to prepare its consolidated results and are also disclosed by L&T as a part of its financial services segment. Our financial results under Ind AS will vary from the results currently published by L&T as part of its financial services segment since the date of transition to Ind AS shall be different under both the scenarios.

54. The introduction of GST effective July 1, 2017 has resulted in an increase in our tax expenses and future increases in our tax expenses may result in additional cost which may adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The introduction of the GST effective July 1, 2017 has resulted in increased administrative compliance for companies which is a consequence of increased registration and form filing requirements, as a result of the change to state-level tax compliance from centralized tax compliance pre-GST. The rate of GST on financial services, excluding interest revenue, is 18% compared to the 15% service tax rate that was payable before the implementation of GST. While certain companies are allowed 100% of the input tax credit, NBFCs, such as our Company, and banks are required to

reverse 50% of the input tax credit under GST, which was also the rule under the service tax regime. However, due to the increase in the tax rate, our input tax credit reversal has increased from 7.75% under service tax to 9.0% under GST for most of the services that we avail resulting in additional cost. Although this impact is partially offset due to the fact that we are entitled to avail input tax credit on the goods and services we purchase, the implementation of GST has resulted in an overall increase in our tax expenses. Also, as under GST, more than one adjudicating authority will be involved, each authority may hold a different opinion on the same underlying issue which will prolong the adjudication process and may lead to increase in pending litigations.

#### **RISK RELATING TO THE INSTRUMENT**

55. In case the Company does not have adequate profits, the Company will not be able to pay dividends on the NCRPS.

Under the provisions of the Companies Act, the dividends payable on the NCRPS can only be out of profits of the Company for that year, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act or out of the profits of the Company for any previous fiscal year(s) arrived at as laid down by the Companies Act. Further, where the profits (including accumulated profits standing in the profit or loss account) are inadequate, dividends can be paid out of free reserves, in accordance with the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder. Further, it is clarified that the dividend on NCRPS is required to be paid out of respective current year's profit only. In case the Company does not have adequate profits, the Company will not be able to pay the dividends on the NCRPS.

56. There could be adverse changes in the future to the credit rating assigned to the NCRPS, which will adversely affect the holders of the NCRPS.

The current issue has been rated "CRISIL AAA/Stable".

In the event of deterioration in the financial health of the Company, there is possibility that the rating agency may downgrade the ratings of the NCRPS. In such a case, a potential investor may incur losses on revaluation of the investments or may have to make provisions towards sub-standard / non-performing investment in accordance with their standard norms. The rating is not a recommendation to purchase, hold or sell the NCRPS in as much as the ratings do not comment on the market price of the NCRPS or its suitability to a particular investor. There is no assurance either that the rating will remain at the same level any given period of time or that the rating will not be lowered or withdrawn entirely by the rating agency.

57. There may not be an active secondary market for the NCRPS which will affect the tradability of NCRPS in the market.

While the NCRPS are being issued on a private placement basis, investors are requested to note that there may not be an active secondary market for NCRPS. There is no assurance that a trading market for the NCRPS will exist and no assurance as to the liquidity of any trading market. Further, the liquidity and market prices of NCRPS can be expected to vary with changes in market and economic conditions, our financial condition and prospects and other factors that generally influence market price of such instruments.

58. Failure to receive listing approval for issuance of NCRPS will affect the holders of NCRPS.

An issuer desirous of making an offer of NCRPS on a private placement basis shall make an application for listing to the Stock Exchanges. The Issuer is required to comply with conditions of listing of such NCRPS as specified in the listing agreement with the Stock Exchange where the NCRPS are sought to be listed. Failure to receive listing approval will adversely affect the holders of NCRPS.

#### EXTERNAL RISKS

#### **Risks Relating to India**

59. Our business is affected by prevailing economic, political and other prevailing conditions in India and the markets we currently service.

Our Company is incorporated in India, and the majority of our assets and employees are located in India. As a result, we are dependent on prevailing economic conditions in India and our results of operations are affected by factors influencing the Indian economy. Factors that may adversely affect the Indian economy, and hence our results of operations, may include:

- any increase in Indian interest rates or inflation;
- any exchange rate fluctuations;
- any scarcity of credit or other financing in India, resulting in an adverse impact on economic conditions in India and scarcity of financing of our developments and expansions;
- volatility in, and actual or perceived trends in trading activity on, India's principal stock exchanges;
- changes in India's tax, trade, fiscal or monetary policies, like application of GST;
- political instability, terrorism or military conflict in India or in countries in the region or globally, including in India's various neighboring countries;
- occurrence of natural or man-made disasters;
- infectious disease outbreaks or other serious public health concerns;
- prevailing regional or global economic conditions, including in India's principal export markets; and
- other significant regulatory or economic developments in or affecting India or its financial services sectors.

Any slowdown or perceived slowdown in the Indian economy, or in specific sectors of the Indian economy, could adversely impact our business, results of operations and financial condition. Our performance and the growth of our business depend on the performance of the Indian economy and the economies of the regional markets we currently serve. These economies could be adversely affected by various factors, such as political and regulatory changes including adverse changes in liberalization policies, social disturbances, religious or communal tensions, terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or war, natural calamities, interest rates, commodity and energy prices and various other factors. Any slowdown in these economies could adversely affect the ability of our customers to afford our services, which in turn would adversely impact our business and financial performance.

60. Any adverse change in India's credit rating by an international rating agency could adversely affect our Company's business and profitability.

In May 2013, Standard & Poor's, an international rating agency, reiterated its negative outlook on India's credit rating. It identified India's high fiscal deficit and heavy Government borrowing as the most significant constraints on its ratings and recommended the implementation of reforms and containment of deficits. In June 2013, Fitch, another international rating agency, returned India's sovereign outlook to "stable" from "negative" a year after its initial downgrade of the outlook, stating that the authorities had been successful in containing the upward pressure on the central Government budget deficit in the face of a weaker-than-expected economy and that the authorities had also begun to address structural factors that have weakened the investment climate and growth prospects. Similarly, Standard & Poor's upgraded its outlook on India's sovereign debt rating to "stable" in September 2014 and retained such rating in October 2015, while reaffirming the "BBB" long-term rating on bonds. Standard & Poor's stated that the revision reflects the view that India's improved political setting offers an environment which is conducive to reforms that could boost growth prospects and improve fiscal management. Further, Moody's raised the rating from the lowest investment grade of Baa3 to Baa2 and changed the outlook from stable to positive. Going forward, the sovereign ratings outlook will remain dependent on whether the Government is able to transition the economy out of a low-growth and high inflation environment, as well as exercise adequate fiscal restraint. Any adverse change in India's credit ratings by international rating agencies may adversely impact our Company's business and limit its access to capital markets.

61. The instability of economic policies and the political situation in India could adversely affect the Indian financing industry.

There is no assurance that the liberalisation policies of the government will continue in the future. Protests against privatisation could slow down the pace of liberalisation and deregulation. The Government of India plays an important role by regulating the policies and regulations that govern the private sector. The current economic policies of the government may change at a later date. The pace of economic liberalisation could change and specific laws and policies affecting the industry and other policies affecting investments in our Company's business could change as well. A significant change in India's economic liberalisation and deregulation policies could disrupt business and economic conditions in India and thereby affect our Company's business.

Unstable domestic and international political environment could impact the economic performance in the short term as well as the long term. The Government of India has pursued various economic liberalisation policies such as relaxing the restrictions in the private sector over the past few years.

The Government has traditionally exercised and continues to exercise a significant influence over many aspects of the Indian economy. As a result, our Company's business may be affected by changes in the interest rates, government policy and taxation. Furthermore, our Company's business may be adversely affected by social and civil unrest or other negative political, economic or other developments in or affecting India.

62. Any volatility in the exchange rate may lead to a decline in India's foreign exchange reserves and may affect liquidity and interest rates in the Indian economy, which could adversely impact our Company.

Capital inflows into India have remained extremely volatile responding to concerns about the domestic macroeconomic landscape and changes in the global risk environment. While the current account deficit ("**CAD**") remained a main area of concern over fiscal year 2012 and fiscal year 2013, it has shrunk sharply in fiscal year 2015 and fiscal year 2016. A substantial decline in the imports bill, mainly on account of lower crude oil prices led to a significant narrowing in the trade deficit that in turn reduced the size of the CAD. However, the primary challenge for the Indian Rupee was the volatile swings in capital flows. In fiscal year 2018, the Indian Rupee recorded a high of INR 74.72 and has been volatile in the past few months. Although the Indian Rupee is less vulnerable given the improvements in the CAD and visible moderation in inflation rates, there remains a possibility of needing to intervene in the foreign exchange market to control volatility of the exchange rate. The need to intervene at that point in time may result in a decline in India's foreign exchange reserves and subsequently reduce the amount of liquidity in the domestic financial system. This in turn could impact domestic interest rates.

63. Terrorist attacks, civil unrest and other acts of violence or war involving India and other countries could adversely affect the financial markets and our business.

Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or war may result in a loss of business confidence and as a result, these events may negatively affect our Company's business and the global financial markets. In addition, any deterioration in relations between India and its neighbouring countries might result in concerns by investors in relation to the stability in the Indian region, which may adversely affect our Company's business.

India has also witnessed civil disturbances in recent years and it is possible that future civil unrest as well as other adverse social, economic and political events in India could have a negative impact on our Company. Such incidents may also result in general perception that investment in Indian companies involves a higher degree of risk and may have an adverse impact on our Company's business.

64. Natural calamities could have a negative impact on the Indian economy and could adversely affect our Company's business.

India has experienced natural calamities such as earthquakes, a tsunami, floods and drought in the past few years. The extent and severity of these natural disasters determines their impact on the Indian economy. Further, prolonged spells of below normal rainfall or other natural calamities could have a negative impact on the Indian economy thereby, adversely affecting our Company's business.

#### **GENERAL INFORMATION**

#### **DETAILS OF THE COMPANY**

#### Name of the Company: L&T FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED

Date of Incorporation: May 1, 2008

A public limited company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956, having its equity shares listed on the BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited and existing preference shares listed on BSE Limited.

#### **Registered Office and Corporate Office:**

Brindavan, Plot No. 177, C. S. T. Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East) Mumbai 98

#### **Registration:**

Certification of incorporation dated May 1, 2008 issued by the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra, Mumbai

#### CIN: L67120MH2008PLC181833

Certificate of Registration as a core investment company under Section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 issued by the Department of Non-banking Supervision (Mumbai RO), Reserve Bank of India on September 11, 2013

Registration No: N-13.02052

#### **Income-Tax Registration:**

PAN : AABCL5046R

#### **Compliance Officer:**

Name	:	Ms. Apurva Rathod
Designation	:	Company Secretary
Address	:	Brindavan, Plot No. 177, C.S.T. Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East) Mumbai 98
Telephone	:	+91 22 6212 5000
Fax	:	+91 22 6212 5553
E-Mail	:	igrc@ltfs.com

Investors can contact the Registrar & Share Transfer Agents (RTA) in case of any pre-issue or postissue related problems such as non-receipt of demat credit, refund orders or interest on Application Money.

#### **Registrar & Share Transfer Agents (RTA):**

#### Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.

C 101, 247 Park, L.B.S Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai 400 083. Tel: 022-49186000 Fax: 022-49186060 Email: ganesh.jadhav@linkintime.co.in

The investors can contact the RTA in case of any pre-issue/post-issue related problems such as non-receipt of demat credit, refund orders or interest on Application Money.

#### Legal Advisor to Issue:

#### ZBA

412, Raheja Chambers 213 Nariman Point Mumbai 400 021 Tel: +91 22 6743 5013

#### **Joint Statutory Auditors:**

#### M/s. B. K. Khare & Co.

706/708, Sharda Chambers New Marine Lines Mumbai – 400020 Tel: +91 22 2200 0607/7318/6360 +91 22 6631 5835/36 Fax: +91 22 22003476

#### M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells, LLP

Indiabulls Finance Centre Tower 3 27<sup>th</sup>-32<sup>nd</sup> Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg Elphinstone Road (W) Mumbai – 400013 Tel: +91 22 6185 4000 Fax: +91 22 6185 4000

#### **Chief Financial Officer of the Issuer:**

#### Mr. Sachinn Joshi

Brindavan, Plot No. 177, CST Road, Kalina Santacruz (East) Mumbai 98 Tel: +91 22 6212 5000 Fax: +91 22 6212 5553 E-mail: igrc@ltfs.com

#### **Credit Rating Agency:**

#### **CRISIL Limited**

CRISIL House, Central Avenue, Hiranandani Pusiness Park Powai Mumbai – 400 076, India Tel: +912233423000 Fax: +912240405800 E-mail: malvika.bhotika@crisil.com

#### **Credit Ratings**

#### CRISIL

By its letter dated December 13, 2019, CRISIL has reaffirmed a rating of 'CRISIL AAA/Stable' (Triple A rating with Stable outlook) to this issue of NCRPS by the Issuer to the extent of INR 2000 crores. Instruments with this rating are considered to have high degree of safety regarding timely servicing of financial obligations. Such instruments carry very low credit risk. Set out as <u>Annexure A</u> is the rating letter and the rating rationale.

Kindly note that the above ratings are not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold the NCRPS and subscribers should take their own independent decisions. The ratings may be subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the rating agency and the rating agency has a right to suspend or withdraw the rating(s) at any time on the basis of new information, etc.

#### **Issue Programme**

ISSUE OPENING DATE	DECEMBER 20, 2019
ISSUE CLOSING DATE	<b>DECEMBER 20, 2019</b>
PAY IN DATE	<b>DECEMBER 23, 2019</b>
DATE OF ALLOTMENT	<b>DECEMBER 23, 2019</b>

#### **INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY**

## (i) BRIEF SUMMARY OF THE BUSINESS/ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS LINE OF BUSINESS.

#### (a) *Overview and Corporate Structure*

We are one of the leading private non-banking financial services companies in India in terms of total loans outstanding, with ₹ 1,00,258 crore of total loans outstanding as of September 30, 2019. We had ₹ 69,213 crore of average assets under management in our investment management (mutual funds) business as of September 30, 2019 averaged over three months and ₹ 26,309 crore of assets under service in our wealth management business, as of September 30, 2019. Our primary businesses are wholesale finance, housing finance, rural finance, investment management and wealth management.

Our Company is registered with the RBI as a NBFC-CIC-ND-SI and has received a certificate of registration as a core investment company dated September 11, 2013 under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, registering the Company as a non-deposit taking, non-banking financial institution, core investment company. The equity shares of our Company are listed on the BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited. In April 2016, we streamlined and reorganized our financing businesses under three primary business segments, i.e., wholesale finance, housing finance and rural finance, and re-allocated capital towards these business segments, with return on equity as an important performance metric. Post this reorganization, we have divested or are in the process of running-down certain non-core business assets, i.e. our defocused businesses.

Our Promoter, L&T is one of the leading business conglomerates in India, with presence across infrastructure, power, heavy engineering, electrical and automation, hydrocarbons, IT and technology services, financial services, project development, metallurgical and material handling, realty, shipbuilding, construction equipment, machinery and industrial products sectors. L&T entered into the financial services business in 1994. In 2008, our Company was incorporated as a holding company for L&T's financial services businesses and in 2011, our Company became a publicly listed company.

Our network of offices has been established to cater to the business needs of our diverse customer base, which includes individual retail customers as well as large companies, banks, multinational companies and small and medium-enterprises, and to provide them with satisfactory customer service according to their varying requirements.

Our wholesale business initially comprised of infrastructure finance, supply chain finance and structured corporate finance. Earlier in Financial Year 2018-19, our Company, by way of a slump sale, had agreed to transfer its supply chain financing business to Centrum Financial Services Ltd ("**Centrum**") by way of a business transfer agreement dated September 4, 2018. The supply chain financing business was effectively transferred to Centrum through a deed of assignment dated December 31, 2018. However, to support the transfer of a large portfolio, our Company in terms of a transition services agreement ("**Transition Services Agreement**") had agreed to provide certain transition support services to Centrum till March 31, 2019, where our Company would assist them with certain portfolio maintenance activities regarding the supply

chain financing business transferred to Centrum. This Transition Services Agreement was effective from December 31, 2018.

In the first quarter of Financial Year 2020, the Company has decided to classify structured finance group, and debt capital markets business as part of its defocused business and with the balance being classified as infrastructure finance.

The table below sets forth total adjusted loans and advances broken down by defocused businesses, for the periods indicated:

Defocused Business		(₹ in crores)
Delocused Busilless	September 2019	March 19
Structured Corporate Finance*	5161	-
Debt Capital Markets*	1533	-
Others	509	848
Total	7203	848

\*In the first quarter of Financial Year 2020, the Company has decided to classify structured finance group, and debt capital markets business as part of its defocused business.

As of September 30, 2019, our total adjusted loans and advances under our infrastructure finance business were ₹39,472 crore.

Our housing finance business comprises home loans and loans against property, and real estate finance. As of September 30, 2019, our adjusted total loans and advances under our housing finance business were  $\gtrless$  26,986 crore; with  $\gtrless$  11,101 crore and  $\gtrless$  15,885 crore of adjusted loans and advances under our home loans and loans against property and real estate finance businesses, respectively.

Our rural finance business comprises farm equipment finance, two-wheeler finance and micro loans. As of September 30, 2019, our adjusted total loans and advances under our rural finance business were  $\gtrless$  26,597 crore, with  $\gtrless$  7,747 crore,  $\gtrless$  6,009 crore and  $\gtrless$  12,841 crore of adjusted loans and advances under our farm equipment finance, two-wheeler finance and micro loans businesses, respectively.

Our investment management business had average assets under management of  $\gtrless$  69,213 crore as of September 30, 2019 averaged over three months and our wealth management business had assets under service of  $\gtrless$  26,309 crore as of September 30, 2019.

We have a professional and experienced management team, led by our Managing Director and CEO, which is supported by a capable and motivated pool of employees. Each of our businesses are led by senior executives who are, generally, also responsible for certain organizational functions for our Issuer. Together, they have demonstrated an ability to manage and grow our operations. Our senior managers have diverse experience in various financial services businesses across functions related to our business. Our senior managers have an in-depth understanding of the specific industry, products and geographic regions they cover, which enables them to appropriately lead and provide guidance to our employees. Our Board, including the independent directors, also has extensive experience in the financial services and banking industries in India. Further, we have instituted several training and mentorship programs for our junior and mid-management employees. We have successfully recruited and

retained talented employees from a variety of backgrounds, including credit evaluation, risk management, treasury, technology and marketing.

Pursuant to a group outsourcing agreement dated October 5, 2018 (made effective from April 1, 2018) executed between our company, L&T Infrastructure Finance Company Limited, L&T Infra Debt Fund Limited, L&T Housing Finance Limited and L&T Finance Limited ("**Group Function Companies**") read with an amendment agreement dated June 10, 2019 (made effective from May 08, 2019), the Group Function Companies have sought to maximise their utilisation by sharing certain resources which include various personnel (staff, employees, representatives, agents, advisors, counsels, retainers and other manpower), infrastructure, space, fixed and movable assets owned, hardware and software applications leased or belonging to any of the Group Function Companies. The outsourcing of resources is limited to the scope of work as agreed upon between inter alia the Group Function Companies.

#### **Customer Base of Primary Businesses**

Business	Key Customers
Rural finance	
Farm equipment finance	Farmers
Two-wheeler finance	Salaried and self-employed individuals across all age groups
Micro loans	Women micro entrepreneurs (through a joint liability group
Housing finance	
Home loans and loans against	Self-employed non-professionals and salaried professionals,
Real estate finance	Real estate developers
Infrastructure Finance business	
Infrastructure finance	Infrastructure project developers
Investment management	Retail and corporate investors
Wealth management*	High net worth individuals and families

The table below illustrates our key customers for our primary businesses:

\*\*\* We have agreed to sell our wealth management business in India to IWFL and our wealth management business in Dubai, UAE to PSCPL. For further information, please refer to the section on "material developments" on page 71 of this Information Memorandum.

#### Branches or Units of the Issuer and its Subsidiaries

Sr.	Name of the Entity	Number of Branches
No.		
1.	L&T Finance Holdings Limited	1
2.	L&T Infrastructure Finance Company Limited	5
3.	L&T Finance Limited	220
4.	L&T Investment Management Limited	52
5.	L&T Mutual Fund Trustee Limited	-
6.	L&T Infra Investment Partners Advisory Private Limited	-
7.	L&T Infra Investment Partners Trustee Private Limited	-
8.	L&T Infra Debt Fund Limited	-
9.	L&T Financial Consultants Limited	2
10.	L&T Housing Finance Limited	31
11.	L&T Capital Markets Limited*	12**
12.	Mudit Cement Private Limited	-

	13.	L&T Cap	oital M	Iarket	s (N	ſidd	le East)	Limited***										-
* 0	C	1	1.	11 .	. 1	•	1.1	. 1	•	•	T	1.	mur	1 71		•	1.	

\* Our Company has agreed to sell its stake in the wealth management business in India to IWFL. The transaction is subject to regulatory approvals. For further information, please refer to the section on "material developments" on page 71 of this Information Memorandum.

\*\* One branch of L&T Capital Markets Limited is located at the Dubai International Finance Centre. However, the same is not in operation and is in the process of deregistration.

\*\*\* Our Company has agreed to sell its stake in the wealth management business in Dubai, UAE to PSCPL. The transaction is subject to regulatory approval till the conclusion of sale. For further information, please refer to the section on "material developments" on page 71 of this Information Memorandum.

Our Company is registered with the RBI as a NBFC-CIC-ND-SI conducting business through our wholly-owned Subsidiaries, as detailed below:

Ι	Holding Company
	Larsen and Toubro Limited
II	Subsidiary Companies ("Subsidiaries")
1.	L&T Infrastructure Finance Company Limited
2.	L&T Investment Management Limited
3.	L&T Mutual Fund Trustee Limited
4.	L&T Financial Consultants Limited
5.	L&T Housing Finance Limited
6.	L&T Finance Limited
7.	L&T Capital Markets Limited
8.	L&T Infra Investment Partners Advisory Private Limited*
9.	L&T Infra Investment Partners Trustee Private Limited*
10.	L&T Infra Debt Fund Limited**
11.	Mudit Cement Private Limited***
12.	L&T Capital Markets (Middle East) Limited

\* indirectly wholly-owned Subsidiary of our Company, with L&T Infrastructure Finance Company Limited holding 100% of outstanding share capital.

\*\* indirectly wholly-owned Subsidiary of our Company, with L&T Infrastructure Finance Company Limited holding 48.36%, L&T Finance Limited holding 28.28% and our Company holding 23.36%, of its outstanding share capital.

\*\*\* indirectly wholly-owned Subsidiary of our Company, with L&T Financial Consultants Limited holding 100% of outstanding share capital.

#### (b) Key Operational and Financial Parameters for the last 3 audited years on a consolidated basis

	()	INR In Crore)
	FY 20 (details up to	March
Parameters	September 30, 2019)	FY 19
	IndAS	IndAS
Net worth	13,980.84	13,448.60
Non-controlling interest	221.05	222.26
Total debt	90,049.88	91,506.98
Other financial liabilities	631.39	705.39
Other non-financial liabilities	123.00	171.87
Net fixed assets	516.39	527.04
Cash and bank balance	3,374.10	1,874.15
Investments	3,903.71	8,640.81
Loans	93,374.24	91,324.63
Other financial assets	864.62	250.49

Other non-financial assets	2,973.10	3437.98
Interest income	6,607.15	11,637.90
Interest expense	3,820.89	6,860.03
Impairment on financial instruments	1,011.08	700.88
Net loss on fair value changes	67.81	383.16
Net loss on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category	80.10	384.01
Profit after tax	722.99	2,226.30
Gross NPA (%) (Consolidated)*	5.98	6.53
Net NPA (%) (Consolidated)*	2.83	2.58
Tier I Capital Adequacy Ratio (%)(Standalone)	74.52	77.88
Tier II Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) (Standalone)	14.68	10.33

\* Stage 3 EAD is considered as NPA.

		(INR in crore)
Parameters	March FY18	March FY17
	IGAAP	IGAAP
For Financial Entities		
Networth	12,549.88	7,893.94
Preference Share Capital	1,034.40	1,213.40
Total Debt	71,577.05	59,811.05
Of which – Non Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowing	51,043.24	43,230.35
- Short Term Borrowing	10,802.96	11,764.10
- Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowing	9,730.85	4,816.61
Net Fixed Assets	531.14	618.85
Non Current Assets	65,441.11	51,670.35
Non Current Investments	2,562.81	2,176.02
Non Current Liabilities	706.96	998.27
Cash and cash equivalents	1,063.31	594.38
Current Investments	2,280.52	3,835.51
Current Assets	17,351.68	13,618.48
Current Liabilities	3,239.13	2,478.36
Assets under Management	61,603.00	40,775.50
Off Book Assets	_	-
Interest Income including other income	10,499.94	8,572.31
Interest Expense	5,326.11	4,627.03
Provisioning & write – offs	1,896.75	1,589.90
Profit after tax	1,459.49	1,042.19
Gross NPA (%)	4.80%	4.94%
Net NPA (%)	2.34%	2.89%

Tier I Capital Adequacy Ratio (%)* (Standalone)	83.65%	62.94%
Tier II Capital Adequacy Ratio (%)* (Standalone)	11.42%	19.23%

\* Preference shares issued by the Company have been calculated as part of the borrowing base.

#### (c) Gross Debt: Equity Ratio of the Company on a consolidated basis

Before the issue of non-convertible redeemable preference shares	6.45%*
After the issue of non-convertible redeemable preference shares	6.47%*

\* Preference shares issued by the Company have been calculated as part of the borrowing base.

#### (d) Interest coverage ratio for last three years

			(.	INR in crore)
	FY 20 (details upto September 30, 2019)	FY 19	FY 18	FY 17
	IndAS	IndAS	IGAAP	IGAAP
Cash profit	1,914.58*	3,749.70*	3,698.87	2,736,82
Interest cost	3,820.89	6,860.03	5,326.10	4,627.03
Tax expense	774.99	819.95	274.83	36.44
Cash profit after tax plus interest paid	4,960.48	9,789.78	8,750.14	7,327.42
Interest Coverage Ratio (Cash profit	1.30	1.43	1.64	1.58
after tax plus interest paid / Interest paid)				

\*Cash profit: Profit after Tax+Net loss on fair value changes+Net loss on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category+Impairment on financial instruments+Depreciation, amortization and impairment.

#### (i) BRIEF HISTORY OF THE ISSUER SINCE ITS INCORPORATION

#### (a) Details of the share capital as on September 30, 2019

	(in INR)
SHARE CAPITAL	
Authorized Share Capital	
5,00,00,000 equity shares of face value of ₹ 10/- each	50,00,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital	
2,00,04,80,460 equity shares of face value of ₹10/- each	20,00,48,04,600
Size of the Offer	300,00,00,000*
Paid up Capital of the Issuer after the Issue	
2,00,04,80,460 equity shares of face value of ₹10/- each	20,00,48,04,600
SHARE PREMIUM ACCOUNT	
Before the Issue (In Crore)	5,101.32
After the Issue (In Crore)	5,101.32

\*Preference share will be part of liability instead of share capital in accordance with IndAS.

...

Date of Change (AGM/EGM)	Authorised Capital (INR)	Reason for Change
March 12, 2013 (Postal Ballot)	60,00,00,00,000	Increase in Authorised Share
		Capital from ₹ 50,00,00,00,000
	50,00,00,00,000 consisting of	to ₹ 60,00,00,00,000
	5,00,00,00,000 Equity Shares of	
	face value of ₹ 10 each	
	10,00,00,00,000 consisting of	
	10,00,00,000 Preference Shares	
	of face value of ₹ 100 each	
April 4, 2014 (Postal Ballot)	80,00,00,00,000	Increase in Authorised Share
		Capital from ₹ 60,00,00,00,000
	50,00,00,00,000 consisting of	to ₹ 80,00,00,00,000
	5,00,00,00,000 Equity Shares of	
	face value of ₹10 each	
	30,00,00,00,000 consisting of	
	30,00,00,000 Preference Shares	
	of face value of ₹ 100 each	
September 8, 2015 (Annual	1,00,00,00,00,000	Increase in Authorised Share
General Meeting)		Capital from ₹ 80,00,00,00,000
	50,00,00,00,000 consisting of	to ₹ 1,00,00,00,00,000
	5,00,00,00,000 Equity Shares of	
	face value of ₹10 each	
	50,00,00,00,000 consisting of	
	50,00,00,000 Preference Shares	
	of face value of ₹100 each	

#### (b) Changes in its (authorized) Capital Structure in the last five years upto September 30, 2019.

#### (c) Share Capital History of the Company for the last five years

Date of allotment	No. of Equity Shares	Face value (INR)	Issue price (INR)	Nature of Allotment	Cumulative No. of Equity Shares	Cumulative paid-up share capital (INR)	Cumulative share premium	Consid eration	Remar ks
May 1, 2008	50,000	10	10	Subscription to Memorandu m of Association	50,000	5,00,000	0	Cash	N/A
January 13, 2009	20,00,000	10	10	Preferential allotment to L&T	20,50,00 0	2,05,00,000	0	Cash	N/A
April 25, 2009	1,07,65,41,5 91	10	10	Preferential allotment to L&T	1,07,85,9 1,591	10,78,59,15, 910	0	Cash	N/A
Novem ber 18, 2009	27,50,00,00 0	10	10	Preferential allotment to L&T	1,35,35,9 1,591	13,53,59,15, 910	0	Cash	N/A

<sup>(</sup>*i*) Equity Share Capital History of the Company as on September 30, 2019

Date of allotment	No. of Equity Shares	Face value (INR)	Issue price (INR)	Nature of Allotment	Cumulative No. of Equity Shares	Cumulative paid-up share capital (INR)	Cumulative share premium	Consid eration	Remar ks
Septem ber 20, 2010	6,34,32,835	10	67	Preferential allotment to L&T	1,41,70,2 4,426	14,17,02,44, 260	3,61,56,71,595	Cash	N/A
July 7, 2011	5,77,68,000	10	55	Pre-IPO Placement	1,47,47,9 2,426	14,74,79,24, 260	6,21,52,31,595	Cash	N/A
July 7, 2011	22,32,000	10	55	Pre-IPO Placement	1,47,70,2 4,426	14,77,02,44, 260	6,31,56,71,595	Cash	N/A
August 6, 2011	2,73,30,300	10	56	IPO Allotment (Anchor)	1,50,43,5 4,726	15,04,35,47, 260	7,57,28,65,395	Cash	N/A
August 6, 2011	1,00,00,000	10	50	IPO Allotment (Employees)	1,51,43,5 4,726	15,14,35,47, 260	7,97,28,65,395	Cash	N/A
August 6, 2011	20,03,75,06 1	10	52	IPO Allotment (Public)	1,71,47,2 9,787	17,14,72,97, 870	16,38,86,17,95 7	Cash	N/A
January 25, 2012	31,825	10	44.2	ESOP	1,71,47,6 1,612	17,14,76,16, 120	16,38,97,06,37 2	Cash	N/A
Octobe r 19, 2012	51,913	10	44.2	ESOP	1,71,48,1 3,525	17,14,81,35, 250	16,39,14,81,79 7	Cash	N/A
Decem ber 14, 2012	13,74,665	10	44.2	ESOP	1,71,61,8 8,190	17,16,18,81, 900	16,43,84,95,34 0	Cash	N/A
January 28, 2013	3,65,929	10	44.2	ESOP	1,71,65,5 4,119	17,16,55,41, 190	16,45,10,10,11 1	Cash	N/A
March 21, 2013	2,06,413	10	44.2	ESOP	1,71,67,6 0,532	17,16,76,05, 320	16,45,80,69,43 6	Cash	N/A
April 25, 2013	81,831	10	44.2	ESOP	1,71,68,4 2,363	17,16,84,23, 630	16,46,08,68,05 6	Cash	N/A
July 23, 2013	90,699	10	44.2	ESOP	1,71,69,3 3,062	17,16,93,30, 620	16,46,39,69,96 2	Cash	N/A
Octobe r 21, 2013	6,64,799	10	44.2	ESOP	1,71,75,9 7,861	17,17,59,78, 610	16,48,67,06,08 8	Cash	N/A
January 23, 2014	8,51,114	10	44.2	ESOP	1,71,84,4 8,975	17,18,44,89, 750	16,51,58,14,18 7	Cash	N/A
April 23, 2014	2,22,845	10	44.2	ESOP	1,71,86,7 1,820	17,18,67,18, 200	16,52,34,35,48 6	Cash	N/A
July 16, 2014	4,49,704	10	44.2	ESOP	1,71,91,2 1,524	17,19,12,15, 240	16,53,88,15,36 2	Cash	N/A
Octobe r 22, 2014	3,35,537	10	44.2	ESOP	1,71,94,5 7,061	17,19,45,70, 610	16,55,02,90,72 8	Cash	N/A
January 21, 2015	8,28,839	10	44.2	ESOP	1,72,02,8 5,900	17,20,28,59, 000	16,57,86,37,02 2	Cash	N/A
April 23, 2015	4,13,411	10	44.2	ESOP	1,72,06,9 9,311	17,20,69,93, 110	16,59,27,75,67 8	Cash	N/A
July 23, 2015	365,283	10	44.2	ESOP	1,721,06 4,594	17,210,645,9 40	16,60,52,68,35 6	Cash	N/A
Octobe r 21, 2013	296,499	10	44.2	ESOP	1,721,36 1,093	17,213,610,9 30	16,61,54,08,62 2	Cash	N/A

Date of allotment	No. of Equity Shares	Face value (INR)	Issue price (INR)	Nature of Allotment	Cumulative No. of Equity Shares	Cumulative paid-up share capital (INR)	Cumulative share premium	Consid eration	Remar ks
January 23, 2014	31,836,971	10	74	Preferential Issue	1,753,19 8,064	17,531,980,6 40	18,65,29,74,76 6	Cash	N/A
April 23, 2014	200,487	10	44.2	ESOP	1,753,39 8,551	17,533,985,5 10	18,65,98,31,42 2	Cash	N/A
July 16, 2014	391,450	10	44.2	ESOP	1,753,79 0,001	17,537,900,0 10	18,67,32,19,01 2	Cash	N/A
Octobe r 22, 2014	331,524	10	44.2	ESOP	1,754,12 1,525	17,541,215,2 50	18,68,45,57,13 2	Cash	N/A
January 21, 2015	825,074	10	44.20	ESOP	1,754,94 6,599	17,549,465,9 90	18,71,27,74,66 3	Cash	N/A
January	255,762	10	44.20	ESOP – 2010 –	1,755,20 2,361	17,552,023,6 10	18,72,15,21,72 4	Cash	N/A
24, 2017	519,500	10	67.85	ESOP – 2013 –	1,755,72 1,861	17,557,218,6 10	18,75,15,74,79 9	Cash	N/A
May 4,	575,146	10	44.20	ESOP – 2010 –	1,756,29 7,007	17,562,970,0 70	18,77,12,44,79 2	Cash	N/A
2017	1,097,000	10	67.85	ESOP – 2013 –	1,757,39 4,007	17,573,940,0 70	18,83,47,06,24 2	Cash	N/A
May 17, 2017	63,820,990	10	74	Preferential Issue*	1,821,21 4,997	18,212,149,9 70	22,91,92,49,60 2	Cash	N/A
July 26,	198,125	10	44.20	ESOP – 2010 –	1,821,41 3,122	18,214,131,2 20	22,92,60,25,47 7	Cash	N/A
2017	299,000	10	67.85	ESOP – 2013 –	1,821,71 2,122	18,217,121,2 20	22,94,33,22,62 7	Cash	N/A
Octobe r 26,	784,462	10	44.20	ESOP – 2010 –	1,822,49 6,584	18,224,965,8 40	22,97,01,51,22 7	Cash	N/A
2017	1,114,500	10	67.85	ESOP – 2013 –	1,823,61 1,084	18,236,110,8 40	23,03,46,25,05 2	Cash	N/A
January 25,	133,275	10	44.20	ESOP – 2010 –	1,823,74 4,359	18,237,443,5 90	23,03,91,83,05 7	Cash	N/A
2018	1,070,000	10	67.85	ESOP – 2013 –	1,824,81 4,359	18,248,143,5 90	23,10,10,82,55 7	Cash	N/A
March 8, 2018	107,810,899	10	185.5 1	Preferential allotment to L&T	1,932,62 5,258	19,326,252,5 80	42,02,29,73,44 1	Cash	N/A
March 15, 2018	63,051,702	10	158.6 0	Qualified Institutions Placement	1,995,67 6,960	19,956,769,6 00	51,39,24,56,35 8	Cash	N/A
May 3,	27,750	10	44.20	ESOP – 2010 –	1,995,70 4,710	19,957,047,1 00	51,39,34,05,40 8	Cash	N/A
2018	50,000	10	67.85	ESOP – 2013 –	1,995,75 4,710	19,957,547,1 00	51,39,62,97,90 8	Cash	N/A
	20,975	10	44.20	ESOP – 2010 –	1,995,77 5,685	19,957,756,8 50	51,39,70,15,25 3	Cash	N/A
July 19, 2018	60,000	10	67.85	ESOP – 2013 –	1,995,83 5,685	19,958,356,8 50	51,40,04,86,25 3	Cash	N/A
	1,214,100	10	75.35	ESOP – 2013 –	1,997,04 9,785	19,970,497,8 50	51,47,98,27,68 8	Cash	N/A
Octobe r 23, 2018	1,39,075	10	44.20	ESOP – 2010	1,997,18 8,860	19,971,888,6 00	51,48,45,84,05 3	Cash	N/A
	15,000	10	67.85	ESOP – 2013	1,997,20 3,860	19,972,038,6 00	51,48,54,51,80 3	Cash	N/A
	1,28,000	10	75.35	ESOP – 2013	1,997,33 1,860	19,973,318,6 00	51,49,38,16,60 3	Cash	N/A

Date of allotment	No. of Equity Shares	Face value (INR)	Issue price (INR)	Nature of Allotment	Cumulative No. of Equity Shares	Cumulative paid-up share capital (INR)	Cumulative share premium	Consid eration	Remar ks
January 21,	1,98,000	10	44.20	ESOP – 2010	1,997,52 9,860	19,975,298,6 00	51,50,05,88,20 3	Cash	N/A
2019	11,06,000	10	67.85	ESOP – 2013	1,998,63 5,860	19,986,358,6 00	51,56,45,70,30 3	Cash	N/A
	1,76,500	10	75.35	ESOP – 2013	1,998,81 2,360	19,988,123,6 00	51,57,61,04,57 8	Cash	N/A
April 26,	3,34,500	10	44.20	ESOP – 2010	1,999,14 6,860	19,991,468,6 00	51,58,75,44,47 8	Cash	N/A
2019	2,84,000	10	67.85	ESOP – 2013	1,999,43 0,860	19,994,308,6 00	51,60,39,73,87 8	Cash	N/A
	1,04,000	10	75.35	ESOP – 2013	1,999,53 4,860	19,995,348,6 00	51,61,07,70,27 8	Cash	N/A
July 19, 2019	14,500	10	44.20	ESOP – 2010	1,999,54 9,360	1,999,549,36 00	51,61,12,66,17 8	Cash	N/A
	9,31,100	10	75.35	ESOP – 2013	2,000,48 0,460	2,000,480,46 00	51,67,21,13,56 3	Cash	N/A

\*Pursuant to conversion of warrants.

(ii) Preference Share Capital History of the Company as on September 30, 2019

Date of	No. of	Face	Issue	Nature	Cumul	Cumula	Cumulat	Conside	Remar
allotme	Prefere	value	price	of	ative	tive	ive share	ration	ks
nt	nce	(INR)	(INR)	Allotme	No. of	paid-up	premiu	ration	K.S
ш	Shares			nt	Prefere	share	m		
	Shares			ш					
					nce	capital			
I	2 (2 40	100	100	Deinste	Shares	(INR)	NII	C 1	
June 30,	2,63,40,	100	100	Private	12,63,4	12,63,4	NIL	Cash	N/A
2014	000			Placeme	0,000	0,00,00			
				nt		0			
August	1,00,00,	100	100	Private	13,63,4	13,63,4	NIL	Cash	N/A
13, 2014	000			Placeme	0,000	0,00,00			
				nt		0			
May 6,	60,000,	100	100	Private	196,34	19,634,	NIL	Cash	N/A
2015	000			Placeme	0,000	000,000			
				nt					
October	2,50,00,	100	100	Private	221,34	22,134,	NIL	Cash	N/A
12,2018	000			Placeme	0,000	000,000			
*				nt	·	*			
May 17,	1,45,40,	100	100	Private	235,88	23,588,	NIL	Cash	N/A
2019	000			Placeme	0,000	000,000			
				nt	- ,	,			
June 03,	63,70,0	100	100	Private	242,25	24,225,	NIL	Cash	N/A
2019	00	100	100	Placeme	0,000	000,000		Cush	1011
-017	00			nt	0,000	000,000			
Septem	1,00,00,	100	100	Private	252,25	25,225,	NIL	Cash	N/A
ber 16,	000	100	100	Placeme	0,000	000,000		Cush	1,111
2019	000			nt	0,000	000,000			
Septem	1,50,00,	100	100	Private	267,25	26,725,	NIL	Cash	N/A
ber 20,	1,50,00,	100	100	Placeme	0,000	000,000		Cash	11/11
2019	000			nt	0,000	000,000			
	1 50 00	100	100	Private	282,25	28,225,	NIL	Cash	N/A
Septem	1,50,00,	100	100				TALL	Casn	1N/A
ber 27,	000			Placeme	0,000	000,000			
2019				nt					

#### (d) Details of allotments made by the Company in the last one year

Date of allotment	No. of Equity Shares	Face value (INR)	Issue price (INR)	Reasons for allotment	Details of Consideration
May 4, 2017	575,146	10	44.20	ESOP - 2010	Cash
	1,097,000	10	67.85	ESOP – 2013	Cash
May 17, 2017	63,820,990	10	74.00	Preferential Issue*	Cash
Lube 26, 2017	198,125	10	44.20	ESOP - 2010	Cash
July 26, 2017	299,000	10	67.85	ESOP - 2013	Cash
0 ( 1 - 26 2017	784,462	10	44.20	ESOP - 2010	Cash
October 26, 2017	1,114,500	10	67.85	ESOP - 2013	Cash
1 05 0019	133,275	10	44.20	ESOP - 2010	Cash
January 25, 2018	1,070,000	10	67.85	ESOP - 2013	Cash
March 8, 2018	107,810,899	10	185.51	Preferential allotment to L&T	Cash
March 15, 2018	63,051,702	10	158.60	Qualified Institutions Placement	Cash
May 3, 2018	27,750	10	44.20	ESOP - 2010	Cash
May 5, 2018	50,000	10	67.85	ESOP - 2013	Cash
	20,975	10	44.20	ESOP - 2010	Cash
July 19, 2018	60,000	10	67.85	ESOP - 2013	Cash
	1,214,100	10	75.35	ESOP - 2013	Cash
October 23, 2018	1,39,075	10	44.20	ESOP - 2010	Cash
	15,000	10	67.85	ESOP – 2013	Cash
	1,28,000	10	75.35	ESOP - 2013	Cash
January 21, 2019	1,98,000	10	44.20	ESOP - 2010	Cash
	11,06,000	10	67.85	ESOP - 2013	Cash
	1,76,500	10	75.35	ESOP – 2013	Cash
April 26, 2019	3,34,500	10	44.20	ESOP - 2010	Cash
-	2,84,000	10	67.85	ESOP - 2013	Cash
	1,04,000	10	75.35	ESOP - 2013	Cash
July 19, 2019	14,500	10	44.20	ESOP - 2010	Cash
-	9,31,100	10	75.35	ESOP - 2013	Cash
October 18, 2019	27,500	10	44.20	ESOP - 2010	Cash

#### *(i) Details of allotment of Equity Shares*

\*Pursuant to conversion of warrants.

#### (ii) Details of allotment of Preference Shares

Date of allotment	No. of Preference Shares	Face value (INR)	Issue price (INR)	Reasons for allotment	Details of Consideration
October 12, 2018	2,50,00,000	100	250,00,00,000	Private	Cash
				Placement	
May 17, 2019	14,54,00,000	100	145,40,00,000	Private	Cash
				Placement	

June 03, 2019	63,70,000	100	63,70,00,000	Private	Cash
				Placement	
September 16, 2019	1,00,00,000	100	100,00,00,000	Private	Cash
				Placement	
September 20, 2019	1,50,00,000	100	150,00,00,000	Private	Cash
				Placement	
September 27, 2019	1,50,00,000	100	150,00,00,000	Private	Cash
-				Placement	
December 05, 2019	60,00,000	100	60,00,00,000	Private	Cash
				Placement	

#### (e) Details of any Acquisition or Amalgamation in the last one year

During the last one year, the Company has not undertaken any acquisition or amalgamation.

#### (f) Details of any Reorganization or Reconstruction, in the last one year

The Company has not undertaken any reorganization or reconstruction in the last one year.

#### (ii) DETAILS OF SHAREHOLDING OF THE COMPANY AS ON SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

#### (a) Shareholding Pattern of the Company as on September 30, 2019:

Please refer to Annexure J.

(b) Top Ten Equity Shareholders of the Company as on September 30, 2019:

Sr.	Name of Shareholders	Total Number of	% to Equity Capital
No.		Equity Shares	Shareholding as % of
			<b>Total No. of Equity Shares</b>
1.	Larsen And Toubro Limited	1,27,75,20,203	63.8607
2.	BC Asia Growth Investments	6,38,20,990	3.1903
3.	Citigroup Global Markets Mauritius Private		
	Limited	5,78,69,992	2.8928
4.	ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company		
	Limited	5,74,38,289	2.8712
5.	BC Investments Vi Limited	3,18,36,971	1.5915
6.	Smallcap World Fund, Inc	2,79,26,500	1.396
7.	Kuwait Investment Authority - Fund No. 208	1,33,47,954	0.6672
8.	East Bridge Capital Master Fund I Ltd	1,16,56,026	0.5827
9.	Massachusetts Institute Of Technology	94,64,294	0.4731
10.	Vanguard Total International Stock Index Fund	79,29,765	0.3964
	TOTAL	1,55,88,10,984	77.9219

#### (iii) DETAILS REGARDING MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY

#### (a) Details of the current Directors of the Company

Name & DIN	Designation and Occupation	Age	Address	Date of Appointment	Other Directorships
Mr. S. V. Haribhakti	Independent Director	63	10 &11, Sahil	September 25, 2010	<ul><li>Torrent Pharmaceuticals Ltd</li><li>ACC Limited</li></ul>
00007347			Apartments, 14		<ul><li>Ambuja Cements Limited</li><li>Blue Star Limited</li></ul>

Name	Designation	Age	Address	Date of	Other Directorships
& DIN	and Occupation			Appointment	
	Occupation           Chartered           Accountant		Altamount Road, Aiiravat Co- operative Housing Society Ltd, Cumbala Hill Mumbai - 400026		<ul> <li>Bajaj Electricals Limited</li> <li>Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited</li> <li>Bennett Coleman and Company Limited</li> <li>Gaja Trustee Company Private Limited</li> <li>L&amp;T Mutual Fund Trustee Limited</li> <li>Mentorcap Management Private Limited</li> <li>NSDL E-Governance Infrastructure Limited</li> <li>Intuit Consulting Private Limited</li> <li>Planet People and Profit Consulting Private Limited</li> <li>Cloud Infosolutions Private Limited</li> <li>Epigeneres Biotech Private Limited</li> <li>Bluevine Technologies Private Limited</li> </ul>
Mr. Dinanath Dubhashi 03545900	Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer	53	9, Prabhat, PM Road, Vile Parle East, Mumbai 400057	April 14, 2016	<ul> <li>Private Limited</li> <li>L&amp;T Infra Debt Fund Limited</li> <li>L&amp;T Housing Finance Limited</li> <li>L&amp;T Finance Limited</li> <li>L&amp;T Investment Management Limited</li> <li>L&amp;T Infrastructure Finance Company Limited</li> <li>L&amp;T Infra Investment Partners Advisory Private Limited</li> <li>L&amp;T Capital Markets Limited</li> </ul>
Mr. R. Shankar Raman 00019798	Non- Executive Director Company Executive for Larsen & Toubro Limited and its group companies	60	Flat No 123, 12 <sup>th</sup> Floor, Kalpataru Royale, Plot No. 110, Road No. 29, Sion (E), Mumbai 400 022	May 1, 2008	<ul> <li>Larsen &amp; Toubro Infotech Limited</li> <li>Larsen and Toubro Limited</li> <li>L&amp;T Hydrocarbon Engineering Limited</li> <li>L&amp;T Seawoods Limited</li> <li>L&amp;T Metro Rail (Hyderabad) Limited</li> <li>L&amp;T Investment Management Limited</li> <li>L&amp;T Infrastructure Development Projects Limited</li> <li>L&amp;T Realty Limited</li> <li>Mindtree Limited</li> </ul>
Mr. P. V. Bhide 03304262	Independent Director IAS (Retd.)	69	H. No. D – 1/48, 1 <sup>st</sup> Floor, Vasant	March 22, 2011	Glaxosmithkline     Pharmaceuticals Limited

Name &	Designation and	Age	Address	Date of Appointment	Other Directorships
DIN	Occupation		Vihar, Near D Block Market, Delhi – 110057		<ul> <li>Glaxosmithkline Consumer Health Care Limited</li> <li>Tube Investments of India Limited</li> <li>NOCIL Limited</li> <li>Gujarat Borosil Limited</li> <li>L&amp;T Housing Finance Limited</li> <li>L&amp;T Finance Limited</li> <li>A.P.I.D.C. Venture Capital Private Limited</li> <li>Shiksha Financial Services India Private Limited</li> </ul>
Mr. Thomas Mathew T. 00130282	Independent Director former Managing Director of Life Insurance C orporation of India	66	19A011, Kohinoor City, Phase- 2, Kirol Road, Off. LBS Marg, Kurla West Mumbai 400070	July 23, 2015	<ul> <li>L&amp;T Infra Debt Fund Limited</li> <li>Larsen and Toubro Limited</li> <li>Canara HSBC Oriental Bank of Commerce Life Insurance Company Limited</li> <li>L&amp;T Infrastructure Finance Company Limited</li> <li>PTC India Financial Services Limited</li> </ul>
Ms. Nishi Vasudeva 03016991	Independent Director	63	21 A Land Breeze 52 Pali Hill, Bandra Mumbai 400050	June 15, 2017	<ul> <li>L&amp;T Infra Debt Fund Limited</li> <li>HCL Technologies Limited</li> <li>L&amp;T Infrastructure Finance Company Limited</li> <li>Atria Convergence Technologies Limited</li> </ul>
Mr. Pavninder Singh 03048302	Nominee Director	43	703, Taj Wellington Mews, 33 Nathalal Parekh Marg, Colaba, Mumbai 400001	June 15, 2017	Bain Capital Advisors (India) Private Limited
Dr. Rajani Gupte 03172965	Independent Director	64	<ul> <li>10, Dream</li> <li>Residency,</li> <li>128, Anand</li> <li>Park</li> <li>Near Hotel</li> <li>Seasons,</li> <li>Aundh</li> <li>Pune</li> <li>Maharashtra</li> <li>411007</li> </ul>	June 28, 2018	<ul> <li>L&amp;T Housing Finance Limited</li> <li>L&amp;T Finance Limited</li> <li>National Securities Depository Limited</li> <li>Symbiosis Centre For Entrepreneurship and Innovation</li> </ul>
Mr. Prabhakar B 02101808	Non- Executive Director	66	333/13, Halagevader ahalli BEML Layout, V-	June 28, 2018	<ul> <li>Canara HSBC Oriental Bank of Commerce</li> <li>Life Insurance Company Limited</li> <li>ASREC (India) Limited</li> </ul>

Name & DIN	Designation and Occupation	Age	Address	Date of Appointment		Other Directorships
			Stage, Raja Rajeshwari Nagar Bengaluru 560098		•	National Securities Depository Limited

None of the above directors appears in RBI defaulter list and/or ECGC defaulter list. For brief particulars of our management, please refer to Annexure F.

#### (b) Details of change in Directors since last three years

Name	Designation	Date of	Date of	DIN
		Appointment	Cessation	
Mr. Pavninder Singh	Nominee Director	June 15, 2017	-	03048302
Ms. Vaishali Kasture	Independent Director	June 15, 2017	May 29, 2018	01837395
Ms. Nishi Vasudeva	Independent Director	June 15, 2017	-	03016991
Mr. B. V. Bhargava	Independent Director	April 1, 2014	August 31, 2017	00001823
Mr. Amit Chandra	Nominee Director	December 23, 2015	June 15, 2017	00009797
Mr. Y. M. Deosthalee	Non-Executive Director and Chairperson	-	May 31, 2017	00001698
Ms. Kamakshi Rao	Independent Director	April 1, 2014	March 21, 2017	03631768
Mr. Dinanath Mohandas Dubhashi	Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer	April 14, 2016	-	03545900
Mr. N. Sivaraman	Whole-time Director	-	April 12, 2016	00001747
Mr. Thomas Mathew T	Independent Director	July 23, 2015	-	00130282
Mr. Shailesh Vishnubhai Haribhakti	Independent Director	April 1, 2014	-	00007347
Mr. P. V. Bhide	Independent Director	April 1, 2014	-	03304262
Mr. Harsh Charandas Mariwala	Independent Director	April 1, 2014	April 1, 2019	00210342
Mr. R. Shankar Raman	Non - Executive Director	May 1, 2008	-	00019798
Dr. Rajani R Gupte	Independent Director	June 28, 2018	-	03172965
Mr. Prabakar B.	Non - Executive Director	June 28, 2018	-	02101808

#### (c) Details of change in auditor since the last three years

Name	Address	Date of Appointment/ Resignation	Auditor of the Company since (in case of resignation)	Remarks
Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP	Indiabulls Finance Centre Tower 3, 27 <sup>th</sup> - 32 <sup>nd</sup> Floor, Senapati	August 23, 2016	2016	-

Name	Address	Date of Appointment/ Resignation	Auditor of the Company since (in case of resignation)	Remarks
	BapatMarg,ElphinstoneRoad(W),Mumbai400013			
B. K. Khare & Co.	706/708,ShardaChambers,NewMarineLines,Mumbai - 400 020	August 23, 2016	2016	-

#### (d) Remuneration of directors

(u) Remaneration of				(Rs. in lakhs)
Name of Director	FY 20 (details upto November 30, 2019)	FY 19	FY 18	FY 17
Mr. Dinanath Dubhashi	242.03	604.36*	856.95*	472.51*
Mr. Shailesh Vishnubhai Haribhakti	5.30**	57.00	56.87	23.10
Mr. R. Shankar Raman	-	-	-	-
Mr. Pradeep Vasudeo Bhide	3.50**	15.75	24.60	20.35
Mr. Thomas Mathew T.	4.40**	19.67	25.60	15.60
Ms. Nishi Vasudeva	2.60**	15.22	11.70	-
Mr. Pavninder Singh	2.40**	2.50	14.85	-
Dr. Rajani R. Gupte	0.50**	7.75	-	-
Mr. Prabhakar B.	1.80**	8.00	-	-

\*includes variable pay paid in the next year

\*\* figures reflect the sitting fees paid to the respective directors.

#### (e) Details of Key Managerial Personnel

Name	Designation		
Mr. Dinanath Dubhashi	Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer		
Mr. Sachinn Joshi	Chief Financial Officer		
Ms. Apurva Rathod	Company Secretary		

#### (f) Interest of Directors, Promoter and Key Managerial Personnel in the Issue

The Promoter, Directors and the Key Managerial Personnel may be regarded as interested in the NCRPS, if any NCRPS, are subscribed by or allotted to them or their relatives or the companies, firms, trusts in which they are interested as directors, members, partners, trustees and promoters, pursuant to this Issue.

## (g) Contribution made by the Promoter or the Directors either as part of the Issue or separately in furtherance of the objects of the Issue

The Promoter and the Directors may contribute to the Issue, to the extent of the NCRPS that are subscribed by or allotted to them.

#### (iv) DETAILS OF BORROWINGS OF THE COMPANY, SEGREGATING THE RUPEE DENOMINATED BORROWINGS AND BORROWINGS MADE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY, AS ON SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

#### 1. Details of Secured Loan Facilities

The Company does not have any secured loan facilities as on September 30, 2019.

#### 2. Details of Unsecured Loan Facilities

The Company does not have any unsecured loan facilities as on September 30, 2019 other than as set out in points 5 and 6 below.

#### 3. Details of Non Convertible Debentures

The Company has not issued any non convertible debentures as on September 30, 2019.

#### 4. Corporate guarantee issued by the Company

The Company has not issued any corporate guarantee as of September 30, 2019.

#### 5. Details of Commercial Paper outstanding as on September 30, 2019

Particulars	Lender Name	Type of facility/ Instrument	Principal Amount outstand ing (INR in Crores)	Repayment Date/ Schedule	Credit Rating	Secured/ Unsecured	Security
Commercial Paper	SBI MF	Short Term Borrowing – CP	300.00	14-Oct-19	Care A1+ ICRA A1+	Unsecured	N.A.
Commercial Paper	TATA MF	Short Term Borrowing – CP	300.00	31-Oct-19	Care A1+ ICRA A1+	Unsecured	N.A.
Commercial Paper	Birla MF	Short Term Borrowing – CP	200.00	30-Oct-19	Care A1+ ICRA A1+	Unsecured	N.A.
Commercial Paper	Aditya Birla Sunlife Mutual Fund	Short Term Borrowing – CP	300.00	23-Dec-19	Care A1+ ICRA A1+	Unsecured	N.A.

6. Details of Rest of the Borrowing as on September 30, 2019 (if any including hybrid debt like FCCB, Optionally Convertible Debentures)

Partic ulars	Lende r Name	Type of facility/ Instrument	Amount sanctione d (INR in Crores)	Lender Name	Principal Amount outstandin g (INR in Crores)	Repaym ent Date/ Schedule	Credit Rating	Secured/ Unsecur ed	Secu rity
Cash Credit	City Union Bank	Cash Credit	5	City Union Bank	4.99	01-Oct- 19	-	Unsecur ed	N.A.

## 7. Details of default / Delays in payments of statutory dues, interest and principal of any kind of term loans, debt securities, debentures, deposits and other financial indebtedness in the past five years.

The Company has never defaulted or delayed in payments of statutory dues, interest and principal of any kind of term loans, debt securities, deposits and other financial indebtedness in the last five years.

8. Details of any outstanding borrowings taken/debt securities issued where taken/issued (i) for consideration other than cash, whether in whole or part, (ii) at a premium or discount, or (iii) in pursuance of an option.

The Company until date has not issued any debt security for consideration other than cash either at premium or at discount.

#### (v) Details of the Promoter of the Company

#### Details of the Promoter holding in the Company as on September 30, 2019

Name of the Shareholders	Details of Shares Held		Encumbered Shares	
	Number of Shares	% to	Number of	% to
	Held*	Equity	Shares Held	Equity
Larsen & Toubro limited	1,27,75,20,203	63.8607	-	-
Total	1,27,75,20,203	63.8607	-	-

\*All Shares are held in demat form

#### (vi) Abridged version of Latest Audited Consolidated (wherever available) and Standalone Financial Information (like Profit & Loss Statement, Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement) for the last the last three years and summary of auditor qualifications for the last three years, if any.

The abridged audited consolidated and standalone financial information for last three years is annexed herewith as Annexure B. The auditors have not made any adverse remarks or qualifications on their reports on the financial statements of the Company for the last five years.

# (vii) Abridged version of Latest Audited / Limited reviewed Half Yearly Consolidated (wherever available) and Standalone Financial Information (like Profit & Loss Statement, and Balance Sheet) and auditors qualification for the last the last three years and summary of auditor qualifications for the last three years, if any.

The limited review half yearly consolidated and standalone financial information is annexed herewith as Annexure C. The auditors have not made any adverse remarks or qualifications on their reports on the financial statements of the Company for the last three years.

### (viii) Any change in accounting policies during the last three years and their effect on the profits and the reserves of the Company.

The Group has adopted Indian Accounting Standards ("**Ind AS**") notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 from April 1, 2018 and the effective date of such transition is April 1, 2017. Such transition has been carried out from the erstwhile Accounting Standards notified under the Companies Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India ("**RBI**") and National Housing Bank ("**NHB**"). The figures have been presented in accordance with the format prescribed for financial statements for a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) whose financial

statements are drawn up in compliance of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, in Division III of Notification No. GSR 1022 (E) dated 11th October, 2018, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India.

# (ix) Any material event/development or change having implications on the financials/credit quality at the time of Issue which may affect the Issue or the Investor's decision to invest/continue to invest in the non-convertible redeemable preference shares.

Except as provided below, to the best of our knowledge there is no material event/development or change at the time of issue or subsequent to the issue which may affect the Issue or the Investor's decision to invest/continue to invest in the non-convertible redeemable preference shares.

The Company has agreed to sell its entire shareholding (including shares held by our nominee directors) in its wholly owned subsidiary LTCM to IWFL or its affiliates. LTCM provides wealth management services for individuals and institutional clients in India. The transaction is subject to regulatory approvals. The Company has also agreed to sell its entire shareholding in its wholly owned subsidiary in Dubai, UAE, LTCM (ME) to PSCPL. LTCM (ME) provides offshore wealth management services. The transaction is subject to regulatory approvals.

#### (x) The credit rating letter issued by the rating agencies.

The credit rating letter issued by CRISIL dated December 13, 2019 along with the rating rationale is annexed herewith as Annexure A.

# (xi) Names of all the recognized stock exchange where the NCRPS are proposed to be listed clearly indicating the designated stock exchange.

The NCRPS are proposed to be listed on BSE. BSE shall be the designated stock exchange.

- (xii) Details of any litigation or legal action pending or taken by any ministry or department of the government or a statutory authority against any Promoter of the Issuer during the last three years immediately preceding the year of the circulation of this Information Memorandum and any direction issued by such ministry or department or statutory authority upon conclusion of such litigation or legal action. Please refer to Annexure K.
- (xiii) Any material event/ development or change having implications on the financials/credit quality (e.g. any material regulatory proceedings against the Issuer/promoters, tax litigations resulting in material liabilities, corporate restructuring event etc) at the time of issue which may affect the issue or the investor's decision to invest / continue to invest in the non convertible redeemable preference shares.

Apart from the litigations disclosed in Annexure J, there are no material developments/ events that may impact the financials / credit quality of the non convertible redeemable preference shares.

#### (xiv) Related party transactions entered during the last three Financial Years

Sr.		2019-18	2018-17	2017-16
No.	Nature of Transactions	(INR in	(INR in	(INR in
110.		Crore)	Crore)	Crore)
1	Subscription to Equity shares of			

			1	1
	L&T Capital Markets Limited	-	-	2.00
	L&T Housing Finance Limited	-	600.00	75.00
	L&T Infra Debt Fund Limited	-	16.35	-
	L&T Finance Limited	-	1,400.00	-
	L&T Infrastructure Finance Company Limited	1,300.39	450.00	220.00
	L&T Access Distribution Services Limited	_	_	15.35
-	L&T Capital Markets (Middle East) Limited	5.41		15.55
2	Inter corporate deposits given	5.41	-	-
4	Inter corporate deposits given			
	L&T Finance Limited	8,036.51	7,421.03	7,656.06
	L&T Infrastructure Finance Company Limited	2,754.75	4,224.65	2,701.35
	L&T Capital Markets Limited	-	16.52	-
•	L&T Access Distribution Services Limited	-	-	5.81
	L&T Financial Consultants Limited	371.29	392.68	381.80
	L&T Housing Finance Limited	1,917.72	2,340.07	1,843.25
	L&T Investment Management Limited	36.22	-	-
	L&T Infra Investment Partners Advisory Private			
	Limited	0.15	-	-
	L&T Capital Markets (Middle East) Limited	15.66	-	-
3	Professional fees expense			
	Larsen & Toubro Limited	0.04	0.04	0.04
4	Rent and maintenance expenditure			
	L&T Financial Consultants Limited	1.42	1.37	0.75
	L&T Finance Limited	_	_	0.08
5	Reimbursement of Expense to			
	Larsen & Toubro Limited	0.11	0.08	0.16
	L&T Finance Limited		_	0.09
	L&T Financial Consultants Limited	0.03	-	-
6	Interest income on NCD			
	L&T Financial Consultants Limited	-	-	50.86
7	Reimbursement of expense from			
	L&T Infrastructure Finance Company Limited	_	0.08	-
	L&T Investment Management Limited	-	0.08	-
	L&T Housing Finance Limited	_	0.08	_
	L&T Capital Markets Limited	-	0.08	-

	L&T Finance Limited		0.08	
8	ESOP charges recovered	-	0.08	-
0				
	L&T Finance Limited	25.91	15.39	0.08
	L&T Infrastructure Finance Company Limited	8.11	5.49	-
	L&T Housing Finance Limited	1.33	0.69	-
	L&T Financial Consultants Limited	0.37	0.13	-
	L&T Infra Debt Fund	0.38	0.13	-
	L&T Capital Market Limited	3.51	2.35	-
	L&T Investment Management Limited	20.88	11.57	-
10	Interest expense on inter corporate borrowings			
	L&T Infrastructure Finance Company Limited	0.44	-	-
	Larsen & Toubro Limited	17.95	-	-
11	Interest Income on Inter Corporate Deposit			
		05.00	21.20	21.40
-	L&T Finance Limited	95.08	31.29	21.49
	L&T Infrastructure Finance Company Limited	4.36	6.71	3.34
	L&T Investment Management Limited L&T Capital Markets Limited	0.09	0.02	
	L&T Housing Finance Limited	3.58	0.03	-
	L&T Financial Consultants Limited	34.65	2.86 32.12	5.98 19.22
	L&T Infra Investment Partner Advisory Pvt Ltd.	54.05	32.12	19.22
	L&T Capital Markets (Middle East) Limited	0.16	-	-
12	Interest Income on NCD	0.10	_	_
12	L&T Financial Consultants Limited	_	-	0.51
13	Management fees income			0.01
	L&T Finance Limited	1.31	2.62	4.97
	L&T Infra Debt Fund Limited	0.82	0.33	-
	L&T Infrastructure Finance Company Limited	4.09	1.96	4.34
	L&T Investment Management Limited	0.82	0.65	-
	L&T Capital Markets Limited	0.82	0.33	-
	L&T Housing Finance Limited	2.45	0.65	1.27
	L&T General Insurance Company Limited	-	-	1.02
14	Repayment of Security Deposit by			
	L&T Financial Consultants Limited	0.06	-	-
15	Dividend income			
		191.90		
	L&T Finance Limited		-	140.33
	L&T Housing Finance Limited	114.93	173.44	-
	L&T Infrastructure Finance Company Limited	-	151.54	86.00
	L&T Financial Consultants Limited	6.75	52.03	-
	L&T Investment Management Limited	30.22	_	_
	Deputation cost recovered	50.22	-	-
16				
16	Deputation cost recovered			
16	•	_	-	1.65
16 17	L&T General Insurance Company Limited	-	-	1.65
	•	_	-	1.65
	L&T General Insurance Company Limited Subscription to equity shares of the company by Larsen & Toubro Limited	-	2,000.00	1.65
	L&T General Insurance Company Limited Subscription to equity shares of the company by	-	2,000.00	1.65
17	L&T General Insurance Company Limited Subscription to equity shares of the company by Larsen & Toubro Limited		2,000.00	5.6

Mr. Y.M. Deosthalee	-	-	1.58

# (xv) Details of acts of material frauds committed against the Company in the last three years, if any, and if so, the action taken by the Company

No act of material fraud has been committed against the Company in the last three years.

#### (xvi) List of Authorised Signatories

Pursuant to the resolution passed by the Committee of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on December 18, 2019, certain persons were severally authorized to issue the IM.

#### (xvii) Documents Submitted to the Stock Exchange

The Issuer shall submit the following documents to the Stock Exchange:

- i. Memorandum and Articles of Association and necessary resolution(s) for the allotment of NCRPS;
- ii. Copies of last three years audited annual reports;
- iii. Statement containing particulars of dates of, and parties to all material contracts and agreements;
- iv. Copy of the Board or committee of the Board resolution authorizing the borrowing and its list of authorised signatories.

#### DISCLOSURES RELATING TO WILFUL DEFAULT

Name of Bank declaring entity to be wilful defaulter	Year in which entity is declared as wilful defaulter	Outstanding amount at the time of declaration	Name of entity declared as wilful defaulter	Steps taken for removal from list of wilful defaulters	Other disclosures	Any other disclosures
NIL	NIL	NIL	NIL	NIL	NIL	NIL

#### **OTHER DETAILS**

#### Capital Redemption Reserve Creation – Relevant Regulations and Applicability

Adequate capital redemption reserve will be created by the Company, in accordance with applicable statutory provisions.

#### Issue and Instrument Specific Regulations - Relevant Details (Companies Act, RBI guidelines etc.)

The NCRPS offered are subject to provisions of the Companies Act, SEBI NCRPS Regulations, SEBI LODR Regulations, Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, as amended, the Depositories Act, 1996, as amended, and rules and regulations made under these enactments.

#### **Future Borrowings**

The Company shall be entitled to borrow or raise loans or avail of financial assistance in whatever form as also issue NCRPS, debentures, notes or other securities in any manner with ranking pari passu or

otherwise and to change its capital structure, including issue of shares of any class or redemption or reduction of any class of paid up capital, on such terms and conditions as the Company may think appropriate, without the consent of, or intimation to the NCRPS Holders in this connection.

#### **Business Day Convention / Effect of Holidays**

If any of the Dividend Payment Date(s), other than the ones falling on the Redemption Date, falls on a day that is not a Business Day, the payment shall be made by the Issuer on the immediately succeeding Business Day, which becomes the Dividend Payment Date for that coupon. However, the future coupon payment date(s) would be in accordance with the schedule originally stipulated at the time of issuing the NCRPS. In other words, the subsequent Dividend Payment Date(s) would not be changed merely because the payment date in respect of one particular coupon payment has been postponed earlier because of it having fallen on a non-Business Day.

If the Redemption Date of the NCRPS falls on a day that is not a Business Day, the Redemption Amount shall be paid by the Issuer on the immediately preceding Business Day, which becomes the new redemption date, along with interest accrued on the NCRPS until but excluding the date of such payment.

	Particulars	Disclosures
А	Details of Branches and Units	Provided in the IM
В	Details of default, if any, including present status, in repayment of –	ng therein the amount involved, duration of default and
i)	statutory dues;	None
ii)	debentures and interest thereon;	None
iii)	deposits and interest thereon; and	None
iv)	loan from any bank or financial institution and interest thereon.	None
C	Details of default in annual filing of the Company, if any, under the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder	There are no defaults in annual filing of the Company under the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder as on date.
D	The change in control, if any, in the Company, that would occur consequent to the private placement	N.A.
E	The number of persons to whom allotment on preferential basis/private placement/rights issue has already been made during the year, in terms of number of securities as well as price	NIL
F	Contribution being made by the promoters or directors either as part of the offer or separately in furtherance of such objects	Not applicable

#### ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

G	The details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators, courts and tribunals impacting the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.	There are no material orders passed by the regulators, courts and tribunals which impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.
Н	The pre-issue and post-issue shareholding pattern of the Company	As provided in Annexure D
I	Any financial or other material interest of the directors, promoters or key managerial personnel in the offer/issue and the effect of such interest in so far as it is different from the interests of other persons.	None of the directors, promoters or key managerial personnel has financial or material interests in the offer.
J	Summary of reservations or qualifications or adverse remarks of auditors in the last five financial years immediately preceding the year of circulation of this Information Memorandum and of their impact on the financial statements and financial position of the company and the corrective steps taken and proposed to be taken by the company for each of the said reservations or qualifications or adverse remark.	Not applicable
K	The proposed time within which the allotment shall be completed	On the Date of Allotment
L	Purposes and objects of the offer	Subject to compliance with Applicable Laws and regulations, the Company intends to use the proceeds for redemption of preference shares, repayment of loans of the Company or to invest in its Subsidiaries in the form of Tier I and Tier II capital to enhance their capital adequacy.
М	Interim utilisation of proceeds	Pending utilisation of the proceeds towards the objects of the Issue, in the interim, the Company intends to invest in its subsidiaries in the form of inter-corporate deposits (" <b>ICDs</b> ") or in money market instruments, mutual funds, or deposits with banks/ corporates or other securities. Such investments would be in accordance with the investment policies as approved by our Board from time to time and Applicable Laws.

# **DIVIDEND POLICY**

Our Company has adopted dividend distribution policy effective from October 25, 2016. The declaration and payment of dividends, if any, will be recommended by our Board and approved by the shareholders of our Company, in their discretion, subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association and the Companies Act. The declaration of dividends will be dependent on a number of internal and external factors, including, but not limited to, cash flow required to meet contingencies, borrowings outstanding, present and future capital requirements of the business, funding of business acquisitions, regulatory environment, and past dividend trends. There is no guarantee that any dividends will be declared or paid or that the amount thereof will not be decreased in the future.

At the Eleventh Annual General Meeting of the Company held on July 29, 2019, the Company had declared final dividend of INR 1 per Equity Share of face value INR 10 each. The Company had, on March 26, 2019 also declared interim dividend at the rates mentioned below on Cumulative Compulsorily Redeemable Preference Share of face value INR 100 each:

Issuance	Rate of Dividend (% per annum)
CRPS FY15 A*	8.50%
CRPS FY15 B**	8.35%
CRPS FY16	8.15%
CRPS FY 19 A	8.95%

\* Redeemed on June 28, 2019

\*\* Redeemed on August 13, 2019

The dividend declared by the Company in the last three Financial Years is provided below:

			(INR in crore)
	FY19	FY 18	FY 17
Dividend on Equity Shares	200.05	199.70	145.74
Dividend on Preference Shares	88.62	93.07	106.77
Total Dividend	288.67	292.77	252.51

The Issuer and its subsidiaries have not been prohibited or restricted in payment of dividends by virtue of any default of its contractual obligations or otherwise.

The Company shall pay dividends to the NCRPS Holders in accordance with the terms of this Issue and Applicable Law. In the event the dividend is not paid in a particular year, the same shall be accumulated and paid along with the dividend payout in the next year.

#### STATEMENT OF TAX BENEFITS

December 17, 2019

The Board of Directors L&T Finance Holdings Limited Brindavan, 2nd Floor Plot No. 177, C.S.T Road Kalina, Santacruz (East) Mumbai 400 098

Dear Sirs,

Sub: Statement of possible special tax benefits available to L&T Finance Holdings Limited and its shareholders in connection with the proposed private placement of listed Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of face value Rs. 100 each (the "Securities") of INR 150 Crore with an option to retain over-subscription by way of a green shoe option up to INR 150 Crore, with an aggregate issue size of up to INR 300 Crore, of L&T Finance Holdings Limited (the "Offering" or "Issue")

We refer to the proposed Offering by L&T Finance Holdings Limited (the "Company") and enclose the Statement of possible special tax benefits available to the Company and its preference shareholders under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (the "Statement") showing the current position of taxation applicable to the Company and its shareholders as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (the "Act") for inclusion in the "Information Memorandum". Several of these benefits are dependent on the Company or its shareholders fulfilling the conditions prescribed under the relevant provisions of the Act. Hence, the ability of the Company or its shareholders to derive these direct tax benefits is dependent upon their fulfilling such conditions.

The benefits discussed in the enclosed statement are neither exhaustive nor conclusive. The contents stated in the Statement are based on the information and explanations obtained from the Company. This statement is only intended to provide general information to guide the investors and is neither designed nor intended to be a substitute for professional tax advice. In view of the individual nature of the tax consequences and the changing tax laws, each investor is advised to consult their own tax consultant with respect to the specific tax implications arising out of their participation in the Offering. We are neither suggesting nor are we advising the investor to invest money based on this statement.

We do not express any opinion or provide any assurance as to whether:

- the Company or its shareholders will continue to obtain these benefits in similar manner in future;
- the conditions prescribed for availing the benefits have been / would be met with; and
- the revenue authorities/courts will concur with the views expressed herein.

We hereby give our consent to include the Statement in the Information Memorandum in connection with the Issue to be filed by the Company with the Stock Exchanges, the Securities and Exchange Board of India, and the Registrar of Companies, and any other authority in relation to the Issue and such other documents as may be prepared in connection with the Issue.

# Limitations

Our views expressed in the Statement enclosed are based on the facts and assumptions indicated above. No assurance is given that the revenue authorities/courts will concur with the views expressed herein. Our views are based on the existing provisions of law and its reasonable interpretation, which are subject to change from time to time. We do not assume responsibility to update the views consequent to such changes.

This Statement is addressed to you solely for the use of the Company in relation to the Offering and, except with our prior written consent, is not to be transmitted or disclosed to or used or relied upon by any other person or used or relied upon by you for any other purpose.

For B. K. KHARE & CO. Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No. 105102W)

H P Mahajani Partner (Membership No. 030168) (UDIN 19030168AAACWW6691)

# STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO THE COMPANY AND ITS CUMULATIVE NON-CONVERTIBLE REDEEMABLE PREFERENCE SHAREHOLDERS

# UNDER THE INCOME TAX ACT 1961 ("THE ACT")

L&T Finance Holdings Limited ("the Company") is an Indian Company, subject to tax in India. The Company is taxed on its profits and gains. Profits are computed after claiming of applicable exemptions and allowing deduction for all reasonable business expenditure, laid out wholly and exclusively for the purpose of the business, and allowances including depreciation.

The statement of Special Tax Benefits (captured below) is as per the Finance (No. 2) Act, 2019 relevant for the Financial Year 2019-20.

# I. SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO THE COMPANY

Considering the activities and the business of the Company, there are no special benefits available to the Company under the provisions of the Act.

# **II. SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS**

There are no special benefits available to the Preference Shareholders under the provisions of the Act.

# Notes:

- a. This statement is only intended to provide general information to the investors and is neither designed nor intended to be substitute for professional tax advice. In view of the individual nature of the tax consequences, the changing tax laws, each investor is advised to consult his or her own tax consultant with respect to the specific tax implications arising out of their participation in the issue.
- b. We have not commented on the taxation aspect under any law for the time being in force, as applicable of any country other than India. Each investor is advised to consult its own tax consultant for taxation in any country other than India.

# TERMS OF THE ISSUE

Issuer/ Company	L&T Finance Holdings Limited
Date of special resolution passed by the shareholders authorising the Issue	July 29, 2019 at their annual general meeting
Instrument Name	Rated, listed, cumulative compulsorily redeemable non-convertible preference shares of a face value of INR 100 each ("NCRPS") being issued by the Issuer on a private placement basis
Type of Instrument	Rated, listed, cumulative, compulsorily redeemable, non-convertible preference shares ("NCRPS")
Nature of Instrument	<ul> <li>a) The NCRPS shall not be convertible into equity shares;</li> <li>b) The NCRPS shall be redeemable at the end of the Tenor;</li> <li>c) Dividend on the NCRPS shall be payable on a cumulative basis;</li> <li>d) The NCRPS shall be non-participating in the surplus assets and profits which may remain after the entire capital has been repaid, on winding up of the Company.</li> </ul>
Seniority	Claims of the NCRPS Holder shall rank senior to claims by any holder of equity shares of the Company and shall rank <i>pari passu</i> with all other preference shares issued by the Company. Claims of the NCRPS Holder shall be subordinate to the both secured and unsecured creditors of the Company.
Mode of Issue	Private placement
Rating of the instrument	"CRISIL AAA/Stable" by CRISIL Limited ("CRISIL"). Instruments with this rating are considered to have highest degree of safety regarding timely servicing of financial obligations. Such instruments carry lowest credit risk
Issue Size	Up to 150,00,000 NCRPS, aggregating up to INR 150,00,000
Option to retain oversubscription	Up to 150,00,000 NCRPS, aggregating up to INR 150,00,000
Objects of the Issue	Subject to compliance with Applicable Laws and regulations, the Company intends to use the proceeds for redemption of preference shares, repayment of loans of the Company or to invest in its Subsidiaries in the form of Tier I and Tier II capital to enhance their capital adequacy
Interim utilisation of proceeds	Pending utilisation of the proceeds towards the objects of the Issue, in the interim, the Company intends to invest in its subsidiaries in the form of inter-corporate deposits ("ICDs") or in money market instruments, mutual funds, or deposits with banks/ corporates or other securities. Such investments would be in accordance with the investment policies as approved by our Board from time to time and Applicable Laws.
Details of Utilization of Proceeds	The Company shall utilize the proceeds of the Issue solely for meeting the objects of the Issue as stated in the Information Memorandum
Face Value	INR 100 per NCRPS

Issue Price		INR 100 per NCRPS					
Tenor		40% i.e. INR 40 per NCRPS shall be redeemed after 1278 days from the					
		Date of Allotment and balance 60% i.e. INR 60 per NCRPS shall be redeemed after 1460 days from the Date of Allotment.					
Redemption Dat	e	40% i.e. INR 40 pe	er NCRPS shall b	be redeemed	on June 2	3, 2023 and	
		balance 60% i.e. IN 2023					
Dividend/Divide		7.50% per annum					
Dividend Payme	nt Frequency	First Dividend on 2 Redemption Date b			•		
Redemption Pres		Nil					
Redemption Price	e	At par i.e. INR 100 in clause "Tenor" al		ccordance wit	h schedule	e mentioned	
Redemption Am	ount	INR 100 per NCRP "Tenor" above plus Dividend Payment I	any Dividend acc				
Put / Call Option	l	None					
Put Option Date		Not applicable					
Put Option Price		Not applicable					
Put Notification	Time	Not applicable					
Call Option Date		Not applicable					
Call Option Pric	e	Not applicable					
Call Notification	Time	Not applicable					
Minimum Applie multiples theread	cation and in Iter	Rs. 1.00 crore (1,00,000 NCRPS) and in multiples of Rs. 10 lakh (10,000 NCRPS) thereafter					
Dividend Payme	nt Dates and Redemp	tion Dates					
Scheduled	Modified	Dividend for	the Period	For the	No. of	Amount	
Dividend Payment Date	Dividend Payment Date and			Financial year	Days	Payable	
and	Redemption Date	<b>-</b> -		ycai		per NCRPS	
Redemption Date	in accordance withholiday convention	From and including	Up to and including			(Rs.)	
Monday, 23 December,	-						
2019						-100	
Thursday, 26 March, 2020	Thursday, 26 March, 2020	Monday, 23 December, 2019	Tuesday, 31 March, 2020	2019-20	100	2.0492	
Friday, 26 March, 2021	Friday, 26 March, 2021	Wednesday, 1 April, 2020	Wednesday, 31 March, 2021	2020-21	365	7.5000	
Saturday, 26	Monday, 28	Thursday, 1 April,	Thursday, 31	2020 21	505	,.5000	
March, 2022	March, 2022	2021	March, 2022	2021-22	365	7.5000	
Sunday, 26 March, 2023	Monday, 27 March, 2023	Friday, 1 April, 2022	Friday, 31 March, 2023	2022-23	365	7.5000	
Friday, 23 June, 2023	Friday, 23 June, 2023	Saturday, 1 April, 2023	Friday, 23 June, 2023	2023-24	83#	40.6822*	
Friday, 22 December,	Friday, 22 December, 2023	Saturday, 1 April, 2023	Friday, 22 December,				
2023	1		2023	2023-24	265##	63.2671**	

The above cash flows are based on assumption of pay-in date and date of allotment being December 23, 2019. In case of any change in date of allotment, the cash flow schedule shall change accordingly.

# Redemption date has not been included while calculating number of days in the period Saturday, April 01, 2023 and Friday, June 23, 2023.

## Redemption date has not been included while calculating number of days in the period Saturday, April 01, 2023 and Friday, December 22, 2023.

\* Inclusive of redemption amount of Rs. 40 per NCRPS.

\*\* Inclusive of redemption amount of Rs. 60 per NCRPS.

- a) Dividend amount has been calculated at the rate of 7.50% p.a. rounded off to four decimals per NCRPS.
- b) In pursuance of clause on "Business Day Convention", all days (other than Saturdays and Sundays) on which the banks are open for business in Mumbai, have been considered as "Business Days".
- c) Under the Business Day Convention, if any Dividend Payment Date falls on a day that is not a Business Day, payment shall be made on the immediately succeeding Business Day without any obligation for paying dividend for the intervening period.
- d) For the purpose of the above illustration, it has been assumed that only Saturdays and Sundays are non-Business Days. The notified/ gazette/ other bank holidays cannot be ascertained as of now and therefore their impact has not been captured in the above illustration.

Change in Tax Laws	No indemnity in case of change in any tax laws.
Listing	The NCRPS shall be listed on the BSE Limited. In case delay in listing of NCRPS beyond 20 days from the Date of Allotment, the Company shall pay an additional interest at the rate of 2.00% per annum over the Rate of Dividend on the Face Value of NCRPS for the defaulting period i.e., the period from expiry of 30 days from the Date of Allotment until the day prior to the actual listing of NCRPS on the BSE Limited.
Rights of Instrument Holders	<ul> <li>Pursuant to section 47(2) of the Companies Act, every member of a Company and holding any NCRPS shall, in respect of such capital, have a right to vote only on resolutions placed before the Company which directly affect the rights attached to their NCRPS and, any resolution for the winding up of the Company or for the repayment or reduction of its equity or preference share capital and their voting right on a poll shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up preference share capital of the Company. Provided that the proportion of the voting rights of equity shareholders to the voting rights of the holders of NCRPS shall be in the same proportion as the paid-up capital in respect of the equity shares bears to the paid-up capital in respect of NCRPS has not been paid for a period of two years or more, such NCRPS Holders shall have a right to vote on all the resolutions placed before the Company.</li> </ul>
Mode of Redemption	In accordance with Section 55 of the Companies Act

Capital Redemption Reserve	Pursuant to Section 55 of the Companies Act, in the event that the Company decides to redeem the NCRPS otherwise than out of proceeds realized from issuance of fresh shares, i.e. out of profits of the Company which would otherwise be available for dividend, the Company shall, out of such profits, transfer a sum equal to the nominal amount of the NCRPS to be redeemed, to the capital redemption reserve account, and the provisions of the Companies Act, relating to reduction of share capital of the Company shall apply as if the capital redemption reserve account were paid-up share capital of the Company. The capital redemption reserve account may also be applied by the Company, in paying up unissued shares of the Company to be issued to members of the Company as fully paid bonus shares.
Cumulative/ Non-Cumulative	Cumulative
Discount at which non- convertible redeemable preference share is issued and the effective yield as a result of such discount.	Not applicable
Issuance Mode of the Instrument	Demat only
Trading Mode of the Instrument	Demat only
Mode of Payment	NEFT / RTGS / any other electronic mode / any other permissible mode
Mode of Repayment	NEFT / RTGS / any other electronic mode / any other permissible mode
Settlement Mode of the Instrument	<ul> <li>a) Payment of Dividend</li> <li>Payment of Dividend on the NCRPS(s) shall be made to those NCRPS</li> <li>Holders whose name(s) appear in the Register of NCRPS Holder(s) (or to the first holder in case of joint holders) as on Record Date fixed by the Company for this purpose and/or in accordance with the list provided by NSDL/ CDSL to the Company of the beneficiaries who hold NCRPS in demat form on such Record Date, and are eligible to receive Dividend.</li> <li>Payment will be made by the Company after verifying the bank details of the Investors by way of direct credit through Electronic Clearing Service (ECS), Real Time Gross Settlement (RTGS) or National Electronic Funds Transfer (NEFT) and where such facilities are not available, the Company shall make payment of all such amounts by way of cheque(s)/ demand draft(s)/ dividend warrant(s), which will be dispatched to the NCRPS Holder(s) by registered post/ speed post/courier or hand delivery on or before the Dividend Payment Dates at the sole risk of the NCRPS Holders. For holders of NCRPS in demat format, payment of the Dividend shall be directly credited through ECS, RTGS or NEFT to the bank account available from the Depositories' record and where such facilities are not available the Company shall make payment of all such amounts by way of cheque/demand draft.</li> </ul>

 F
b) Payment on Redemption
The NCRPS shall be redeemed by the Company, on the Redemption Date. The Company shall pay the principal amount of the NCRPS along with the accrued dividend on the Redemption Date.
(a) In case of NCRPS held in physical form, the NCRPS certificate(s), duly discharged by the sole/all the joint holders (signed on the reverse of the NCRPS certificate(s)) to be surrendered for redemption should be sent by the NCRPS Holder(s) by registered post with acknowledgement due or by hand delivery to the Company or RTA or to such persons at such addresses as may be notified by the Company from time to time at least 15 days prior to the Redemption Date.
The Company may, at its discretion, redeem the NCRPS without the requirement of surrendering of the certificates by the NCRPS Holder(s). Redemption Amounts shall be paid to those NCRPS Holders whose names stand in the Register of NCRPS Holders maintained by the Company on the Record Date fixed for the purpose of redemption.
Hence, the transferee(s), if any, should ensure deposit of the transfer documents with the Company or RTA before the Record Date. In case the transfer documents are not deposited before the Record Date and the Company dispatches the Redemption Amount to the transferor, claims in respect of the Redemption Amount should be settled amongst the parties inter se and no claim or action shall lie against the Company or the RTA.
Further, the Company shall not be required to verify the bank account details of each NCRPS Holder and make payment of Redemption Amount by way of direct credit through ECS, RTGS or NEFT and where such facilities are not available the Company shall make payment of all such amounts by way of cheque/demand draft(s) to the first/sole NCRPS Holder. Direct credit or dispatch of cheques/pay order etc., in respect of such payment will be made on the Redemption Date/ or within a period of 30 days from the date of receipt of the duly discharged NCRPS certificate. The Company's liability to the NCRPS Holder(s) towards all rights including payment or otherwise shall stand extinguished on and from the due date of redemption in all events and on the Company dispatching the Redemption Amount to the NCRPS Holder(s).
The Company will not be liable to pay any dividend, interest, income or compensation of any kind beyond the Redemption Date. In case of any delay in surrendering the NCRPS for redemption, the Company will not be liable to pay any dividend, interest, income or compensation of any kind for the late redemption due to such delay.

	<ul> <li>(b) In case of NCRPS held in dematerialized form, no action is required on the part of the NCRPS Holder(s) at the time of redemption of the NCRPS. The Redemption Amount would be paid by cheque to those NCRPS Holder(s) whose name(s) appear on the list of Beneficial Owners given by the Depositories to the Company. The name(s) would be in accordance with the Depositories' records on the Record Date fixed for the purpose of redemption.</li> <li>All such NCRPS will be simultaneously redeemed through appropriate debit corporate action. The Company shall compute the Redemption Amount shall be directly credited through ECS, RTGS or NEFT to the bank account available from the Depositories' record and where such facilities are not available the Company shall make payment of all such amounts by way of cheque/demand draft. The cheque/demand draft for the Redemption Amount, will be dispatched by courier or hand delivery or registered post at the address provided in the application or at the address as notified by the NCRPS Holder(s) or at the address with the Depositories' record at the sole risk of the NCRPS Holder. Once the Redemption Amount have been credited to the account of the NCRPS Holder(s) or the cheque/demand draft for the RCRPS Holder(s) at the addresses provided or available from the Depositories' necord at the sole risk of the NCRPS Holder. Once the Redemption Amount have been credited to the account of the NCRPS Holder(s) or the cheque/demand draft for the Redemption Amount is dispatched to the hocRPS Holder(s) at the addresses provided or available from the Depositories' record, the Company's liability to redeem the NCRPS on the date of redemption shall stand extinguished and the Company will not be liable to pay any interest, income or compensation of any kind from the date of redemption of the NCRPS(s).</li> </ul>
Depositories	National Securities Depository Limited ("NSDL") Central Depository Services (India) Limited ("CDSL")
Transferability	The NCRPS shall be freely transferrable in accordance with Applicable Laws
Business Day Convention	<ul> <li>All days on which the banks are open for business in Mumbai other than a Saturday or a Sunday.</li> <li>If any Dividend Payment Date falls on a day that is not a Business Day, the payment shall be made by the Issuer on the immediately succeeding Business Day without any obligation for paying interest or Dividend for the intervening period.</li> <li>If the Redemption Date falls on a day that is not a Business Day, the Redemption Amount shall be paid by the Issuer on the immediately preceding Business Day.</li> <li>In the event the Record Date falls on a day which is not a Business Day, the immediately succeeding Business Day will be considered as the Record Date.</li> </ul>
Record Date	15 days prior to each Dividend Payment Date and the Redemption Dates
Interest on Application Money	N.A.

Day Count Convention	"Actual/ Actual" basis
	All dividend, penal amounts, interest on Application Money, delay or default interest shall be computed on an "actual/actual basis" rounded off to the nearest Rupee. Where the period for which such amounts are to be calculated (start date to end date) includes February 29, dividend shall be computed on 366 days-a- year basis.
Default Interest RateIn case of default in payment of Dividend and/or principal redemption on the due dates, additional dividend of @ 2% per annum over the Dividend Rate will be payable by the Company for the defaulting period. Who can apply ("Eligible Investors")	<ul> <li>a) Resident individuals</li> <li>b) Hindu undivided family through its Karta</li> <li>c) Partnership firms including limited liability partnership firms</li> <li>d) Scheduled commercial banks</li> <li>e) Non-banking financial companies</li> <li>f) Co-operative banks</li> <li>g) Regional rural banks</li> <li>h) Mutual funds</li> <li>i) Companies, bodies corporate, statutory corporations</li> <li>j) Public financial institutions, as defined in section 2(72) of the Companies Act</li> <li>k) Private trusts or public charitable trusts</li> <li>l) Insurance companies</li> <li>m) Societies registered under the Societies Registration Act, 1860</li> <li>n) Provident fund, gratuity fund, superannuation fund and Pension fund</li> <li>The eligibility of the above classes of investors is subject to compliance with their respective investment norms, eligibility norms and applicable rules, regulations or guidelines laid down by Government of India, RBI or any other statutory body/ regulator, from time to time.</li> </ul>
Who Cannot Apply (" <b>Ineligible</b> <b>Investors</b> ")	<ul> <li>a) Foreign nationals</li> <li>b) Overseas corporate bodies ("OCBs")</li> <li>c) Any other person restricted by law to apply to an issue of NCRPS or any other instrument of like nature</li> <li>d) Foreign institutional investors ("FIIs")</li> <li>e) Qualified foreign investors ("QFIs")</li> <li>f) Foreign portfolio investors ("FIIs")</li> <li>g) Long term investors registered with SEBI - sovereign wealth funds ("SWFs")</li> <li>h) Multilateral agencies</li> <li>i) Non-resident Indians ("NRIs")</li> <li>j) Person resident outside India (as defined in the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999</li> <li>k) Alternate investment funds</li> <li>l) Venture capital funds</li> <li>m) Applicants who are minors unless applying through guardian or trustee</li> </ul>
Transaction Documents	Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter, Credit Rating together with the rating rationale, Registrar Agreement

Conditions Precedent to Disbursement	<ol> <li>from the Issue Opening Date;</li> <li>All corporate and other appr approvals from the Board or constareholders of the Company;</li> <li>Evidence that the Transact subsisting;</li> <li>Each of the representations a Company being true and correct</li> </ol>	tion Documents are valid and and warranties made by the
Conditions Subsequent to Disbursement	<ol> <li>Credit of demat account(s) of the allottee(s) by number of NCRPS allotted within 2 (two) working days from the Date of Allotment;</li> <li>Make payment of the Dividend on the NCRPS on the Dividend Payment Date(s);</li> <li>Make payment of the Redemption Amount of the NCRPS on the Redemption Date; and</li> <li>Meet compliance with Companies Act and rules framed thereunder for issuance of NCRPS.</li> <li>Besides, the Company shall perform all activities, whether mandatory or otherwise, as mentioned in the Transaction Documents.</li> </ol>	
Events of Default	Not applicable	
Provisions related to Cross Default Clause	Not applicable	
Governing Law and Jurisdiction	Indian Law and Mumbai	
Electronic Bidding Mechanism	The Issue shall be made through EBP as specified by SEBI and the Stock Exchange and applicable for issuance of NCRPS on a private placement basis.	
Issue Schedule.	Issue Opening Date	December 20, 2019
	Issue Closing Date	December 20, 2019
	Pay-In Date	December 23, 2019
	Date of Allotment	December 23, 2019

# INFORMATION RELATING TO TERMS OF OFFER

The NCRPS are subject to the provisions of the Companies Act (to the extent in force on the date of this Information Memorandum), the SEBI NCRPS Regulations, the SEBI LODR Regulations, the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Issuer and the terms of this Information Memorandum.

The Issuer or any of its promoters or directors is not a wilful defaulter as at the date of filing of this Information Memorandum and neither the Issuer or any of its promoters or its directors have been categorized as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

#### Issue Size

Private placement by the Issuer of listed, cumulative, non-convertible, redeemable preference shares of face value of Rs. 100 each, for an amount of Rs. 150,00,000 (Rupees One Hundred and Fifty Crore) ("**Base Issue**") with an option to retain oversubscription up to Rs. 150,00,000 (Rupees One Hundred and Fifty Crore) ("**Green Shoe Amount**"), together with the "**Base Issue**" aggregating to Rs. 300,00,000 (Rupees Three Hundred Crores) shall hereinafter be referred to as the "**Issue**", on the terms and conditions as set out hereunder.

# THE NCRPS CAN ONLY BE APPLIED FOR IN DEMATERIALIZED FORMAT.

#### **Applications under Power of Attorney**

In case of an application made under a power of attorney or resolution or authority, a certified true copy thereof along with the memorandum of association and articles and/or bye-laws must be attached to the Application Form, failing which, the Issuer reserves the full, unqualified and absolute right to accept or reject any application in whole or in part and in either case without assigning any reason thereto. Names and specimen signatures of all the authorised signatories must also be lodged along with the submission of the completed application. Further modifications/ additions in the power of attorney or authority should be notified to the Issuer at its registered office.

#### Who Cannot Apply

Ineligible Investors are not permitted to apply under this Issue.

#### **DISCLAIMER:**

PLEASE NOTE THAT ONLY THOSE IDENTIFIED INVESTORS TO WHOM THIS INFORMATION MEMORANDUM HAS BEEN SPECIFICALLY ADDRESSED ARE ELIGIBLE TO APPLY. THE COMPANY MAY, BUT IS NOT BOUND TO REVERT TO ANY IDENTIFIED INVESTOR FOR ANY ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS OR INFORMATION. INVESTMENT BY IDENTIFIED INVESTORS FALLING IN THE CATEGORIES MENTIONED IN THIS INFORMATION MEMORANDUM ARE MERELY INDICATIVE AND THE COMPANY DOES NOT WARRANT THAT THEY ARE PERMITTED TO INVEST IN ACCORDANCE WITH EXTANT LAWS, REGULATIONS, ETC. EACH OF THE ELIGIBLE INVESTORS ARE REQUIRED TO CHECK AND COMPLY WITH EXTANT RULES OR REGULATIONS OR GUIDELINES, ETC. GOVERNING OR REGULATING THEIR INVESTMENTS AS APPLICABLE TO THEM AND THE COMPANY IS NOT, IN ANY WAY, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY STATUTORY OR REGULATORY BREACHES BY ANY IDENTIFIED INVESTOR, NEITHER IS THE COMPANY REQUIRED TO CHECK OR CONFIRM THE SAME. NON RESIDENT INDIANS AND OVERSEAS CORPORATE BODIES CANNOT APPLY FOR OR HOLD THESE NCRPS.

#### **Governing Law and Provisions**

The NCRPS are governed by and shall be construed in accordance with the existing laws of India. Any dispute arising thereof will be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts at Mumbai (Maharashtra) in India.

#### **IMPORTANT:**

#### PLEASE NOTE FOR APPLICANTS APPLYING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MODE SUCH AS RTGS, THE NAME OF THE APPLICANT AND THE APPLICATION FORM NUMBER MUST BE INCLUDED IN THE RTGS INSTRUCTION SLIP/INSTRUCTION SLIP FOR TRANSFER OF FUNDS.

#### Eligibility to effect the Issue

The Issuer and persons in control of the Issuer have not been restrained, prohibited or debarred by SEBI from accessing the securities market or dealing in securities and no such order or direction is in force.

#### Minimum Subscription

As the current issue of NCRPS is being made on private placement basis, the requirement of minimum subscription shall not be applicable and therefore the Issuer shall not be liable to refund the issue subscription(s)/ proceed(s) in the event of the total issue collection falling short of the Base Issue or a certain percentage of the Base Issue.

#### Underwriting

The present Issue of NCRPS is on private placement basis and is not underwritten.

#### **Registrar and Transfer Agent and Depository Arrangements**

The Issuer has appointed Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd as Registrar and Transfer Agent for the NCRPS. The Issuer has made necessary depository arrangements with NSDL and CDSL issue and holding of NCRPS in dematerialised form. In this context the Issuer has signed two tripartite agreements as set out below:

- Tripartite agreement between the Issuer, Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd and NSDL for offering depository option to Eligible Investors.
- Tripartite agreement between the Issuer, Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd and CDSL for offering depository option to Eligible Investors.

Eligible Investors can hold the NCRPS only in dematerialised form and deal with the same in accordance with the provisions of the Depositories Act. However, pursuant to section 8(1) of the Depositories Act, the Issuer, at the request of the Eligible Investors who wish to hold the NCRPS in physical form, will rematerialize the NCRPS. However, trading in the NCRPS shall be compulsorily in dematerialized form.

#### **Fictitious Applications**

Attention of Eligible Investors is specifically drawn to the provisions of section 38(1) of the Companies Act, set out below:

"Any person who: (i) makes or abets making of an application in a fictitious name to a company for acquiring, or subscribing for, its securities; or (ii) makes or abets making of multiple applications to a

company in different names or in different combinations of his name or surname for acquiring or subscribing for its securities; or (iii) otherwise induces directly or indirectly a company to allot, or register any transfer of, securities to him, or to any other person in a fictitious name, shall be liable for action under Section 447 (of the Companies Act)."

#### **Interest on Application Money**

As the Pay-In Date and the Date of Allotment fall on the same date, interest on Application Money shall not be applicable. Further, no interest on Application Money will be payable in case the Issue is withdrawn by the Issuer in accordance with the BSE EBP Guidelines.

#### **Tax Benefits**

The NCRPS Holders are advised to consider in their own case, the tax implications in respect of subscription to the NCRPS after consulting their own tax advisor or counsel.

#### **Currency of Payment**

All obligations under the NCRPS, are payable in Indian Rupees only.

#### How to Bid

This IM is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of prospectus and does not constitute an offer to the public generally to subscribe for or otherwise acquire the NCRPS issued by the Issuer. All Eligible Investors are required to register themselves as a one-time exercise (if not already registered) with the BSE EBP Platform for participating in electronic book building mechanism. Eligible Investors should refer the operating guidelines for issuance of securities on private placement basis through an electronic book mechanism as available on the website of BSE. Eligible Investors will also have to complete the mandatory know your customer verification process. Eligible Investors should refer to the BSE EBP Guidelines in this respect.

- i. The details of the Issue shall be entered on the BSE EBP Platform by the Issuer at least 2 (two) Business Days prior to the Issue Opening Date, in accordance with the BSE EBP Guidelines.
- ii. The Issue will be open for bidding for the duration of the bidding window that would be communicated through the Issuer's bidding announcement on the BSE EBP Platform, at least 1 (one) Business Day before the start of the Issue Opening Date.

All Eligible Investors should note that the bidding mechanism for this Issue is a fixed price mechanism.

Some of the key guidelines in terms of the current BSE EBP Guidelines on issuance of securities on private placement basis through an EBP mechanism, are as follows:

#### (i) Modification of Bid

Eligible Investors may note that modification of bid is allowed during the bidding period or window. However, in the last 10 minutes of the bidding period or window, revision of bid is only allowed for upward revision of the bid amount placed or to improve the yield by the Eligible Investor.

#### (ii) **Cancellation of Bid**

Eligible Investors may note that cancellation of bid is allowed during the bidding period or

window. However, in the last 10 minutes of the bidding period or window, no cancellation of bids is permitted.

#### (iii) Multiple Bids

Investors are permitted to place multiple bids on the BSE EBP Platform in line with the BSE EBP Guidelines and the SEBI EBP Circulars.

#### (iv) Manner of bidding

The Issue will be through closed bidding on the BSE EBP Platform in line with the BSE EBP Guidelines and the SEBI EBP Circulars.

#### (v) Manner of allotment

The allotment will be done on uniform yield basis in line with the BSE EBP Guidelines and the SEBI EBP Circulars.

#### (vi) Manner of settlement

Settlement of the Issue will be done through ICCL and the account details are given in the section on Payment Mechanism of this Information Memorandum.

#### (vii) Settlement cycle

The process of pay-in of funds by investors and pay-out to Issuer will be done on T+1 day, where T is the Issue Closing Date.

#### (viii) Offer or Issue of executed PPOAL to successful Eligible Investors

The PPOAL along with the Application Form will be issued to the successful Eligible Investors, who are be required to complete and submit the Application Form and part B of the PPOAL to the Issuer in order to accept the offer of NCRPS.

No person other than the successful Eligible Investors to whom the PPOAL has been issued by Issuer may apply for the Issue through the PPOAL and any Application Form received from a person other than those specifically addressed will be invalid.

However, Eligible Investors should refer to the BSE EBP Guidelines prevailing on the date of the bid.

#### Documents to be provided by Eligible Investors at the time of application

In order to be able to bid under the BSE EBP Platform, Eligible Investors must have provided the requisite documents (including but not limited to know your customer) in accordance with the BSE EBP Guidelines or Applicable Law. The Issuer is entitled at any time to require an Eligible Investor to provide any know your customer or other documents as may be required to be maintained by it or delivered to a third party by it in accordance with Applicable Laws.

#### Withdrawal of Issue

The Issuer may, at its discretion, withdraw the issue process on the following conditions:

(i) Non receipt of bids up-to the Issue size;

- (ii) The bidder has defaulted on payment towards the allotment, within the stipulated time frame, due with which the Issuer is unable to fulfil the Issue size;
- (iii) The cut-off yield entered by the bidder is higher than the estimated cut-off yield disclosed to the EBP.

Provided that the Issuer shall accept or withdraw the Issue of the EBP within 1 (one) hour of the closing of the bidding window, and not later than 6 pm on the Issue Closing Date.

However, Eligible Investors should also refer to the SEBI EBP Circulars read with the BSE EBP Guidelines, as prevailing on the date of the bid.

#### **Basis of Allocation or Allotment**

Allocation shall be made as approved by the Issuer in accordance with applicable SEBI regulations, BSE EBP Guidelines, and Applicable Laws.

Post completion of bidding process, the Issuer will upload the provisional allocation on the BSE EBP Platform. Post receipt of details of the successful Eligible Investors, the Issuer will upload the final allocation file on the BSE EBP Platform.

#### Acknowledgements

No separate receipts will be provided by the Issuer for the Application Money.

#### **Payment Mechanism**

Payment of subscription money for the NCRPS should be made by the successful Eligible Investor as notified by the Issuer (to whom the Issuer has issued given the offer by issue of PPOAL).

Successful Eligible Investors should do the funds pay-in to the following bank account of ICCL ("**Designated Bank Account**"):

Bank: HDFC Bank

Beneficiary Name: INDIAN CLEARING CORPORATION LTD

Account Number: ICCLEB

*IFSC Code*: HDFC0000060

#### Mode: NEFT/RTGS

The Designated Bank Account information shall be displayed in the front end of BSE EBP Platform and the same shall also be available in the obligation file downloaded to Eligible Investors.

Successful Eligible Investors must do the subscription amount payment to the Designated Bank Account on or before 10:30 a.m. on the Pay-in Date ("**Pay-in Time**"). Successful Eligible Investors should ensure to make payment of the subscription amount for the NCRPS from their same bank account which is updated by them in the BSE EBP Platform while placing the bids. In case of mismatch in the bank account details between BSE EBP Platform and the bank account from which payment is done by the successful bidder, the payment would be returned.

**Note**: In case of failure of any successful bidders to complete the subscription amount payments by the Pay-in Time or the funds are not received in the ICCL's Designated Bank Account by the Pay-in Time

for any reason whatsoever, the bid will liable to be rejected and the Issuer shall not be liable to issue the NCRPS to such successful bidders.

Subscription monies will be paid out from the ICCL Designated Bank Account to the Issuer's account. The transfer will be done in accordance with the procedure prescribed by the SEBI EBP Circulars and the BSE EBP Guidelines.

#### **Settlement Process**

Upon final allocation by the Issuer, the Issuer or the Registrar and Transfer Agent on behalf of the Issuer shall instruct the Depositories on the Pay-in Date, and the Depositories shall accordingly credit the allocated NCRPS to the demat account of the successful Eligible Investor.

The Issuer shall give the instruction to the Registrar and Transfer Agent for crediting the NCRPS by 12:00 p.m. on the Pay-In Date. The Registrar shall provide corporate action file along with all requisite documents to Depositories by 12:00 p.m. on the Pay-In Date. On the Pay-In Date, the Depositories shall confirm to ICCL the transfer of NCRPS in the demat account(s) of the successful Eligible Investors.

#### Post-Allocation Disclosures by the EBP

Upon final allocation by the Issuer, the Issuer shall disclose the Issue size, coupon rate, ISIN, number of successful bidders, category of the successful bidder(s), etc., in accordance with the SEBI EBP Circulars and BSE EBP Guidelines. The EBP shall upload such data, as provided by the Issuer, on its website to make it available to the public.

#### **Date of Allotment**

All benefits relating to the NCRPS will be available to the Eligible Investor(s) from the Date of Allotment. The actual allotment of NCRPS may take place on a date other than the Date of Allotment. The Issuer reserves the right to modify allotment date or Date of Allotment at its sole and absolute discretion without any notice. In case if the Issue Closing Date is changed (pre-poned or postponed), the Date of Allotment may also be changed (pre-poned or postponed) by the Issuer at its sole and absolute discretion.

#### **Allotments or Refunds**

Allotment of the NCRPS shall be made in dematerialized form to the demat accounts in accordance with the details provided in the Application Form. Pending allotment, all monies received for subscription of the NCRPS shall be kept by the Issuer and be utilized only for the purposes permitted under this Information Memorandum or Applicable Law. In case no demat details are provided in the Application Form or such details are incomplete or insufficient, the Issuer reserves the right to hold the Application Money until such details are provided accurately.

In case the Issuer has received money from applicants for NCRPS in excess of the aggregate of the Application Money relating to the NCRPS in respect of which allotments have been made, the RTA shall upon receiving instructions in relation to the same from the Issuer repay the moneys to the extent of such excess, if any.

If any application is rejected in full, the whole of the Application Money received, and if the application is rejected in part, the excess Application Money, after adjustment of allotment money if any, will be refunded to the applicants in its bank account mentioned with depositories. In the event the RTA is unable to retrieve the applicant's bank account details from the depositories or is unable to credit the amount to the applicant's bank account as above, the Issuer shall make the refund to the

applicant's bank account as mentioned in the Application Form. If no bank account details are provided on the Application Form, then refund through demand draft/pay order/bankers cheques or such other similar mode shall be dispatched by registered post/speed post.

However, the Issuer shall not be liable to pay any interest on any Application Monies or refunds, except as required by Applicable Law.

In terms of Section 42(6) of the Companies Act, if the NCRPS is not allotted within 60 days from the date of receipt of the payments from the applicants, the Issuer shall repay such monies to the applicants within 15 days from the date of completion of the aforesaid 60 days. If the Issuer fails to repay the payments within the aforesaid period, it shall be liable to repay that money with interest at the rate of 12% per annum from the expiry of the sixtieth day. The NCRPS will be allotted within 2 working days from the Date of Allotment to the relevant demat account of each allottee in accordance with the SEBI LODR Regulations and the SEBI NCRPS Regulations.

#### **Force Majeure**

The Issuer reserves the right to withdraw the issue prior to the closing date in the event of any unforeseen development adversely affecting the economic and regulatory environment. The Issuer reserves the right to change the Issue schedule.

#### **Right to Accept or Reject Applications**

The Issuer, where applicable and if permitted, reserves its full, unqualified and absolute right to accept or reject the application, in part or in full, without assigning any reason thereof. The rejected applicant will be intimated along with the refund warrant, if applicable. No interest on Application Money will be paid on rejected applications. The Application Form that is not complete in all respects is liable to be rejected and would not be paid any interest on the Application Money.

Application would be liable to be rejected on one or more technical grounds, including but not restricted to:

- a. Number of NCRPS applied for is less than the minimum application size;
- b. Applications are not duly signed by the sole/joint applicants;
- c. The amount paid does not tally with the NCRPS applied by the Eligible Investor;
- d. An application is made by a person other than an Eligible Investor;
- e. PAN or GIR and IT Circle or Ward or District not given;
- f. Application exceeding the size of the Issue;
- g. Applications by persons/entities who have been debarred from accessing the capital markets by the SEBI;
- h. Applications by persons who are not eligible to apply to this Issue;
- i. Applicant's details are not provided in the Application Form;
- j. Bank account details not given, or are incomplete, or inadequate;
- k. Relevant documents not submitted in cases where the application is under a power of attorney or by limited companies, corporate, trust etc.;
- 1. Application Forms are not accompanied by UTR confirmation for receipt or payment of Application Money.
- m. The subscription amount is paid in any other manner than as mentioned in this IM;
- n. Complete demat details not provided or is incorrect or inadequate; and
- o. Application forms are incomplete in any respect.

For further instructions regarding the application for the NCRPS, Eligible Investors are requested to read the instructions provided in the Application Form.

In the event, if any NCRPS applied for is or are not allotted in full, the excess application monies of such NCRPS will be refunded, as may be permitted.

#### Signatures

Signatures should be made in English or in any of the Indian Languages. Thumb impressions must be attested by an authorized official of a bank or by a magistrate or notary public under his or her official seal.

#### **Nomination Facility**

Nomination facility is available in accordance withprovisions under Companies Act.

#### **Terms of Redemption**

The NCRPS shall be redeemed in accordance with Section 55 of the Companies Act.

#### Dematerialisation

The Company is issuing the NCRPS only in the dematerialized form and hence there is no physical holding of the NCRPS being issued in terms of the Information Memorandum. The Company undertakes that it shall use a common form/ procedure for transfer of the NCRPS issued under the terms of the Information Memorandum, if at a later stage there is some holding in the physical form due to the Depository giving the re-materialisation option to any investor.

#### **Payment of Dividend**

Payment of dividend on the NCRPS(s) will be made to those of the NCRPS Holders whose name(s) appear in the Register of NCRPS Holder(s) (or to the first holder in case of joint holders) as on the Record Date fixed by the Company for this purpose and/or in accordance withthe list provided by NSDL / CDSL to the Company of the Beneficial Owners who hold NCRPS in demat form on such Record Date, and are eligible to receive dividend. Payment will be made by the Company after verifying the bank details of the Investors by way of direct credit through Electronic Clearing Service (ECS), Real Time Gross Settlement (RTGS) or National Electronic Funds Transfer (NEFT) and where such facilities are not available the Company shall make payment of all such amounts by way of cheque(s)/demand draft(s)/dividend warrant(s), which will be dispatched to the NCRPS Holder(s) by registered post/ speed post/courier or hand delivery on or before the Dividend Payment Dates at the sole risk of the NCRPS Holder. For holders of NCRPS in demat format, payment of dividend shall be directly credited through ECS, RTGS or NEFT to the bank account available from the Depositories' record and where such facilities are not available the Company shall make payment of all such amounts by way of cheque/demand draft.

#### **Computation of dividend**

Dividend for each of the dividend periods, shall be computed on the face value of the NCRPS at the rate specified in this IM.

#### **Record Date**

The Record Date for payment of dividend or redemption of principal will be 15 calendar days prior to each Dividend Payment Date or the Redemption Date.

#### **Payment of Redemption**

The NCRPS shall be redeemed by the Company, on the Redemption Date. The Company shall pay the principal amount of the NCRPS along with the accrued dividend on the Redemption Date.

#### **Buy-Back of NCRPS**

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act and other applicable regulatory provisions, if any, the Company may from time to time buyback the NCRPS(s) at a discount, at par, or at a premium.

# **Rights of NCRPS Holders**

The NCRPS Holders shall have such rights as specified in the Articles and the Companies Act. In pursuance of sub-section (2) of section 47 of the Companies Act every member of a Company and holding any NCRPS shall, in respect of such capital, have a right to vote only on resolutions placed before the Company which directly affect the rights attached to his NCRPS and, any resolution for the winding up of the Company or for the repayment or reduction of its equity or preference share capital and his voting right on a poll shall be in proportion to his share in the paid-up preference share capital of the Company. Provided that the proportion of the voting rights of equity shareholders to the voting rights of the holders of NCRPS shall be in the same proportion as the paid-up capital in respect of the equity shares bears to the paid-up capital in respect of the NCRPS. However, in case where the dividend in respect of the NCRPS have not been paid for a period of two years or more, such holder(s) of NCRPS shall have a right to vote on all the resolutions placed before the Company.

# **Modification of Rights**

The rights, privileges, terms and conditions attached to the NCRPS may be varied, modified or abrogated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act.

#### Mode of Transfer / Transmission of NCRPS

The NCRPS issued under the IM shall be transferable freely to all classes of Eligible Participants. The NCRPS(s) shall be transferred and/or transmitted in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act. The provisions relating to transfer and transmission and other related matters in respect of shares of the Company contained in the Articles of the Company and the Companies Act shall apply, mutatis mutandis (to the extent applicable to NCRPS) to the NCRPS as well. In respect of the NCRPS held in certificate form, a suitable instrument of transfer as may be prescribed by the Company may be used for the same. The NCRPS held in dematerialised form shall be transferred subject to and in accordance with the rules/procedures as prescribed by NSDL/CDSL/DP of the transferor/transferee and any other Applicable Laws and rules notified in respect thereof. The transferee(s) should ensure that the transfer formalities are completed prior to the Record Date. In the absence of the same, dividend will be paid/redemption will be made to the person, whose name appears in the Register of NCRPS Holders/records of the Depository. In such cases, claims, if any, by the transferee(s) would need to be settled with the transferor(s) and not with the Company. The Company confirms that the forms of transfer as set out hereinabove are common forms of transfer as applicable to all NCRPS issued by the Company. Transfer cannot be made to the following persons, as the same is prohibited by Applicable Law:

- (a) Overseas Corporate Bodies (OCBs);
- (b) Any other person restricted by law to hold the NCRPS or any other instrument of like nature; and

(c) "Person Resident Outside India" As such term is defined in the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999

#### Succession

Where NCRPS are held in joint names and one of the joint holders dies, the survivor(s) will be recognized as the holder(s) of the said NCRPS. It would be sufficient for the Company to delete the name of the deceased NCRPS Holder after obtaining satisfactory evidence of his death. Provided, a third person may call on the Company to register his name as successor of the deceased holder after obtaining evidence such as probate of a will for the purpose of proving his title to the NCRPS.

In the event of demise of the sole/first holder of the NCRPS(s), the Company will recognize the Executors or Administrator of the deceased NCRPS Holder, or the holder of the Succession Certificate or other legal representative as having title to the NCRPS only if such executor or administrator obtains and produces Probate or Letter of Administration or is the holder of the Succession Certificate or other legal representation, as the case may be, from an appropriate Court in India. The Directors of the Company in their absolute discretion may, in any case, dispense with production of Probate or Letter of Administration or other legal representation.

#### **Register of NCRPS Holders**

Register of NCRPS Holders means the register maintained by the Registrar and Transfer Agent and/or the Company.

#### Sharing of Information

The Issuer may, at its option, but subject to Applicable Laws, use on its own, as well as exchange, share or part with any financial or other information about the NCRPS Holders available with the Issuer, with its subsidiaries and affiliates and other banks, financial institutions, credit bureaus, agencies, statutory bodies, as may be required and neither the Issuer nor its subsidiaries and affiliates nor their agents shall be liable for use of the aforesaid information.

#### Notices

All notices to the NCRPS Holder(s) required to be given by the Company shall have and shall be deemed to have been given if sent by ordinary post or by e-mail to the original sole/first allottees of the NCRPS(s) or if notification and mandate has been received by the Company, pursuant to the provisions contained herein above, to the sole/first transferees. All notices to be given by the NCRPS Holder(s), including notices referred to under "Payment of Dividend" and "Redemption" shall be sent by Registered Post/Courier or by e-mail(s) or by hand delivery to the Company or to such persons at such address as may be notified by the Company from time to time.

#### **Obligations of Investors**

Notwithstanding anything contained hereinabove, every potential investor of the NCRPS must read, understand and accept, and shall be deemed to have read, understood and accepted, the terms and conditions of this IM prior to investing in the NCRPS.

As a NCRPS Holder, every initial investor undertakes by virtue of this IM, that if the initial investor as the NCRPS Holder sells the NCRPS to subsequent investors, the initial investor as the NCRPS Holder shall ensure that such subsequent investors receive from the NCRPS Holder, a copy of this IM, and shall sell the NCRPS to a subsequent investor only if such subsequent investor has read, understood and accepted all the terms and conditions referred to above and is an investor who falls within the specified

categories. Any such subsequent investor shall be deemed to have read, understood and accepted the terms and conditions in the documents referred to above prior to investing in the NCRPS.

Any person selling these NCRPS would be responsible for ensuring full and prior disclosure of the terms and conditions of the NCRPS to the person(s) to whom they are selling these NCRPS and shall sell the NCRPS only if the subsequent investor has read, understood and accepted all the terms and conditions. The Company would presume full knowledge of the contents of this IM and a full understanding of the NCRPS, their nature and the applicable terms and conditions on the part of any person holding/buying these NCRPS, and no claim to the contrary shall be entertained.

#### Undertaking by the Company

The Company undertakes that:

- (a) it shall attend to the complaints received in respect of the Issue expeditiously and satisfactorily;
- (b) the funds required for making refunds, if any, shall be made available on time; and
- (c) that necessary co-operation shall be extended to credit rating agency in providing true and adequate information till the debt obligations in respect of the instruments are outstanding.

# **REGULATIONS AND POLICIES**

The regulations set out below are not exhaustive and are only intended to provide general information to investors and is neither designed nor intended to be a substitute for professional legal advice in relation to the NCRPS. Laws applicable to the Company in general have not been included below. The statements below are based on the current provisions of Indian law and the judicial and administrative interpretations thereof, which are subject to change or modification by subsequent legislative, regulatory, administrative or judicial decisions.

#### **Regulations relating to the NCRPS**

#### Issuance and Redemption

The provisions of Section 55 of the Companies Act govern the issuance of NCRPS and the redemption of the NCRPS is subject to the conditions set out in the proviso to Section 55 of the Companies Act.

#### Payment of Dividends

Dividends payable by the Company in respect of the NCRPS for any particular year shall be paid or declared only out of the profits of the Company for that year, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act or out of the profits of the Company for any previous fiscal year(s) and shall be subject to the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act and the Articles of Association of the Company. Further any dividend payout is subject to a dividend distribution tax (to the account of the Company) at the then prevailing rate on the dividend declared, distributed or paid in accordance withthe Applicable Law.

#### Voting Rights

The NCRPS carry no voting rights other than in respect of matters directly affecting the rights attached to the NCRPS and resolutions in relation to winding up of the Company or for the repayment or reduction of the Company's preference share capital. In the event any due and payable dividends remain unpaid for a period 2 years prior to the start of any general meeting of the equity shareholders then the NCRPS Holders shall have voting rights in respect of all matters placed before the Company at a general meeting of its shareholders in accordance with the provisions of section 47 of the Companies Act and the Articles of Association of the Company.

#### Liquidation Preference

The NCRPS shall, on a winding up or repayment of capital, carry a preferential right vis-à-vis equity shareholders to be repaid the amount of capital paid up and shall include any unpaid dividends and any fixed premium (if applicable) in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act and the Articles of Association.

# **INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS**

- 1. Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.
- 2. Certificate of Incorporation dated May 1, 2008.
- 3. Certificate of Registration no. N-13.01925 dated March 31, 2009 issued by RBI, under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
- 4. Certificate of Registration (CIC) No. N-13.02052 dated September 11, 2013 issued by RBI, under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India, 1934.
- 5. Certified true copy of resolution passed by the Board of Directors on March 19, 2019 approving the private placement of NCRPS on a private placement basis, as provided in Annexure G.
- 6. Certified true copy of the resolutions passed by the committee of Directors at its meeting held on December 18, 2019, according approval for issue of NCRPS on a private placement basis, and authorizing finalization and adoption of this IM as provided in Annexure H.
- 7. Certified true copy of the shareholder's resolution passed in the eleventh annual general meeting held on July 29, 2019 approving the private placement of NCRPS, as provided in Annexure I.
- 8. Annual Reports of the Company for last three Financial Years.
- 9. Copy of letter dated December 13, 2019 received from CRISIL granting credit rating to the NCRPS issued in pursuance of this IM.
- 10. Copies of the agreements executed with NSDL and CDSL.

The above material documents and contracts were available for inspection between 9.30 a.m. and 5.00 p.m. on all working days, except holidays in Mumbai, till the Issue Closing Date, at the Administrative Office of the Company mentioned below:

L&T Finance Holdings Limited Brindavan, Plot No. 177, CST Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East) Mumbai 98 Tel: +91 22 6212 5000; Fax: +91 22 6212 5553

#### Confidentiality

The information and data contained herein is submitted to each recipient of this IM on a strictly private and confidential basis. By accepting a copy of this IM, each recipient agrees that neither it nor any of its employees or advisors will use the information contained herein for any purpose other than evaluating the specific transactions described herein or will divulge to any other party any such information. This IM must not be photocopied, reproduced, extracted or distributed in full or in part to any person other than the recipient without the prior written consent of the Company. If at any time any such reproduction or disclosure is made and the Company suffers any loss, damage or incurs liability of any kind whatsoever arising out of or in connection with any such reproduction or disclosure, the recipient of this IM breaching the restriction on reproduction or disclosure agrees to hold harmless and indemnify the Company from and against any such loss, damage or liability.

# DECLARATION

I am authorized by the Committee of Directors vide resolution dated December 18, 2019 read with the resolution of the Board of the Company dated March 19, 2019, to sign this Information Memorandum and declare that all the requirements of Companies Act and the rules made thereunder in respect of the subject matter of this Information Memorandum and matters incidental thereto have been complied with. Whatever is stated in this Information Memorandum and in the attachments thereto is true, correct and complete and no information material to the subject matter of this form has been suppressed or concealed and is in accordance with the original records maintained by the promoters subscribing to the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association.

It is further declared and verified that all the required attachments have been completely, correctly and legibly attached to this Information Memorandum.

Signed:

X

Authorized Signatory

P

Place: Mumbai Date: December 18, 2019

# ANNEXURE A

# **Rating Letter from CRISIL**

# Ratings



CONFIDENTIAL

LTFNCH/235112/PS/14112019/1 December 13, 2019

Mr. Sachin Joshi Group CFO L&T Finance Holdings Limited 2nd Floor, Brindawan, Plot 177, CST Road Kalina, Santacruz (E) Mumbai 400098

Dear Mr. Sachin Joshi,

#### Re: CRISIL Rating for the Rs.2000 Crore Preference Shares of L&T Finance Holdings Limited

All ratings assigned by CRISIL are kept under continuous surveillance and review. Please refer to our rating letters dated November 14, 2019 bearing Ref. no.: LTFNCH/235112/PS/14112019

Please find in the table below the ratings outstanding for your company.

S.No.	Instrument	Rated Amount (Rs. in Crore)	Rating Outstanding
1	Preference Shares	2000	CRISII. AAA/Stable

In the event of your company not making the issue within a period of 180 days from the above date, or in the event of any change in the size or structure of your proposed issue, a fresh letter of revalidation from CRISIL will be necessary.

As per our Rating Agreement, CRISIL would disseminate the rating along with outlook through its publications and other media, and keep the rating along with outlook under surveillance for the life of the instrument. CRISIL reserves the right to withdraw, or revise the rating / outlook assigned to the captioned instrument at any time, on the basis of new information, or unavailability of information, or other circumstances which CRISIL believes may have an impact on the rating.

Should you require any clarifications, please feel free to get in touch with us.

With warm regards,

Yours sincerely,

Subly by

Subha Sri Narayanan Director - CRISIL Ratings



Nivedita Shibu Associate Director - CRISIL Ratings

A CRISIL miting velocits CRISIL's current operior on the likelihood of timely payment of the ubligations under the rated instrument and does not constitute an audit of the rated entry by CRISIL. CRISIL ratings are based on information provided by the issuer or obtained by CRISIL from sources it consistences are constitute an audit of the rated entry by CRISIL. CRISIL ratings are based on information provided by the issuer or obtained by CRISIL from sources it constitutes related. CRISIL does not guarantee the comparisonneet, it does not constitute an audit of the information on which the rating is based. A CRISIL rating is not a recommendation to buy, soll, or hold the rated instrument; it does not comment on the market price or auditability for a particular investor. All CRISIL ratings are revised as and when circumstances so warrant. CRISIL is not responsible for any errors and especially strates that it has no frauncial bibly whatever to the subarcheer's rusmantary. J does not provide for any errors and especially strates that it has no frauncial bibly whatever to the subarcheer's rusmantary. J doesdoes, For the table rating information on any instrument of any company rated by CRISIL please contact Customer Service Helpdesk at 1000-207-1301.

**CRISIL** Limited

Corporate Identity Number: LE7120MH19B7PLC042363

CRISIL, House, Central Avenue, Hiranandani Business Park, Powai, Mumbai - 400076. Phone: +91 22 3342 3000 | Fax: +91 22 4040 5800 www.orisiL.com

#### ANNEXURE B

Abridged version of Audited Consolidated (wherever available) and Standalone Financial Information (like Profit & Loss Statement, Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement) for the last the last three years and summary of auditor qualifications for the last three years, if any

DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP Chartered Accountants Indiabulls Finance Centre, Tower 3 27th – 32nd Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg Elphinstone Road (West)

Mumbai 400013.

B. K. KHARE & CO. Chartered Accountants 706/708, Sharda Chambers New Marine Lines Mumbal 400004.

#### INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF L&T FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED

- We have audited the accompanying Statement of Consolidated Financial Results of L&T FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ("the Parent") and its subsidiaries (the Parent and its subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group") for the year ended March 31, 2019 ("the Statement"), being submitted by the Parent pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as modified by Circular No. CIR/CFD/FAC/62/2016 dated July 5, 2016.
- 2. This Statement, which is the responsibility of the Parent's Management and approved by the Board of Directors, has been compiled from the related consolidated financial statements which has been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with relevant rules issued thereunder ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement based on our audit of such consolidated financial statements.
- 3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statement is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the Statement. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Statement, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Parent's preparation and fair presentation of the Statement in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Parent's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Statement.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in paragraph 5 below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

ww

104

4. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of the subsidiaries referred to in paragraph 5 below, the Statement:

Sr. No.	Name of the Company	Nature of relationship
1	L&T Finance Limited	Subsidiary
2	L&T Infrastructure Finance Company Limited	Subsidiary
3	L&T Housing Finance Limited	Subsidiary
4	L&T Infra Debt Fund Limited	Subsidiary
5	L&T Infra Investment Partners Advisory Private Limited	Subsidiary
6	L&T Infra Investment Partners Trustee Private Limited	Subsidiary
7	L&T Investment Management Limited	Subsidiary
8	L&T Mutual Fund Trustee Limited	Subsidiary
9	L&T Capital Markets Limited	Subsidiary
10	L&T Financial Consultants Limited	Subsidiary
11	Mudit Cement Private Limited	Subsidiary
12	L&T Infra Investment Partners	Subsidiary
13	L&T Capital Market (Middle East) Limited (with effect from July 1, 2018)	Subsidiary

a. includes the results of the following entities:

- b. is presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as modified by Circular No. CIR/CFD/FAC/62/2016 dated July 5, 2016; and
- c. gives a true and fair view in conformity with the aforesaid Indian Accounting Standards and other accounting principles generally accepted in India of the net profit, Total comprehensive income and other financial information of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2019.
- 5. We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of 7 subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial results, whose financial statements / financial information reflect total assets of ₹1,238.80 crore as at March 31, 2019, total revenues of ₹797.41 crore, total net profit after tax of ₹122.31 crore and total comprehensive income of ₹122.22 crore for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial results. These financial statements / financial information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial results, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the Statement is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

UN

- 6. The Statement includes the results for the Quarter ended March 31, 2019 being the balancing figure between audited figures in respect of the full financial year and the published year to date figures up to the third quarter of the current financial year which were subject to limited review by us.
- 7. The comparative financial information for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2018 in respect of 7 subsidiaries, prepared in accordance with the Ind AS and included in this Statement have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and in so far as it relates to the comparative amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries made in this Statement, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. Our report is not modified in respect of this matter.

#### For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

-Jaup 1.

 Sanjiv V. Pilgaonkar (Partner) (Membership No. 39826) Mumbai, April 28, 2019

For B. K. KHARE & CO. Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No. 105102W)

Padmini Khare Kaicker (Partner) (Membership No. 044784) Mumbai, April 28, 2019

# L&T FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED CIX. L67120MH2008PLC181633 Regd. Office : Brindavas, Flet No. 117, C.S.T. Read, Kalina, Santacrox (Esot), Manthai - 400 095, Maharashtra, India Webile: www.Hts.com Email: great/Blucom Phone: +91 22 6212 5000 Fas: +91 22 6621 7569

	STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED FINA	NCIAL RESULTS FOR	THE QUARTER AND	VEAR ENDED MARCH		
Sr.	Particulars	(2)	Quarter ended		Vear en	
Ne.	A SCHOOL ST	Marsh 31, 2014 (Unaudited)	(Unaudited)	March 31, 2018 (Unaudited)	March 31, 2019 (Audited)	March 31, 2918 (Audited)
1	Revenue from operations					
00	Interest incose	3.058.32	5.080.08	2,437,30	11.637.90	8.869.2
(4)	Dividend income	0.02	0.17	+	0.21	0.7
(60.)	Rantal income	3,91	4.30	8.25	18.84	33.2
	Fees and contraining income	234,37	246,42	327.66	1.277.11	1,219,9
	Net gain on fair value changes	7.54	23.93	(92.61)	55.65	85.5
	Total revenue from operations	3,304,23	3,362.90	2,740.68	12,989.72	10,212.7
	Other income	79.69	89.34	22.41	311.85	53.5
(111)	Total income (1+11)	3,383,92	3,452.24	2.762.71	13,301,52	10,200,1
14	Expenses Finance areas	1,932,50	1.865.93	1,463.05	6,860.07	5,449.3
		1.3.72.50	18.30	127.75	325.71	295.5
	Fees and commission expenses	132.37	28.13	13.91	383.16	36.6
	Net loss on fair value changes Net loss on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost	\$5.78	34.32	34.64	384.01	529.7
(W)	category	82.12	34.36		20101	- 34 - 5 - F
2.4	Impairment on francial instructions	191.58	367.47	413.28	706.88	1.418.1
(4)	Employee benefits expense	215.36	229.89	122.07	824.73	-208-3
	Depreciation, amonisation and impairment	13.16	12.34	13.19	49.62	51.9
	Other expenses	202.31	129.76	163.57	731.40	330.9
	Tistal expenses	2,634.56	2,676.43	2,396.53	10.349.54	8,820.5
	Profit before exceptional items and tax (III-IV)	749,36	775.81	356.18	3.051.98	1,445(7
	Exceptional items				Page and	
	Profit before tax (V-V1)	149.36	775.81	355.18	3,051,98	1.445.75
	Tax exercise	10,00			11.57.573	
	(1) Current tax	263.56	341.04	341.15	749.49	518.4
	(2) Deferred tax	(66.32)	145 191	(163.24)	30.46	(362.23
	(3) Short/(Excess) provision relating to earlier years	(and the second s	100.2	18.67	1 ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) (	.11.9
ax)	Net profit after tax (VII-VIII)	\$\$2.12	580.96	276.99	2,232,43	1,277.5
	Add. Share in profit of associate company		783	11.511	2022	0.8
	Net prufit after tax and share in prefit of associate company (IX+X) Profit/last) for the period attributable to:	552.12	580.96	268.49	2,232.03	1,278.3
	Dwners of the company	547.38	596.97	282.07	2.226.30	1,254.6
	Non-controlling interest	4.54	1.01	(13.58)	5.73	23.6
	Other comprehensive income	(34.47)	61.98	(4.86)	(2.41)	14.9
Ang	A (i) from that will not be reclassified to grafit or less	124/4/10	20.00 B	1 court	1.11	100
	(a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (not of tax)	00.895	0.221	(0.35)	(1.50)	10.9
	(b) Exchange differences in translating the financial statements of foreign	(0.23)		1	(0.23)	22
	operations, net					
	B (i) Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss	1.000	10000	(450)	(0.685	(4.0)
	(a) Debt instruments through other comprehensive income (set of tax)	(22.32)	65.20	14.511	02/082	10.0
	(b) The effective portion of gains and loss on hedging instruments in a craft flow hedge			7	10	10.0
	Other congrehensive income for the period attributable to:	04471	261.98	- (4.865	(24))	14.9
	Owners of the company	0440	n1.98	14.305	(40	14.31
1.1	Nets-controlling interest	517.65	642.94	263.63	2.229.62	1.273.3
xiii	(Total comprehensive income (XI+XII)	517,02	EAC'NA	263.63	2.227.00	414.000
	Tetal comprehensive income for the period attributable to:	\$13.11	641.91	377.313	1.225.89	1,249.6
	Owners of the company	4.54	1.03	(13.51)	8.73	23.6
	Non-controlling interest Paid-up equity share capital (fare value of 7 10 each) (Refer note 5)	1.995.51	1,997,33	1,995.67	1.998.81	1.998.6
		1,398,81	1.041.51	1.379.92	1.449.79	9,411.0
	Other equity Earnings per share (*not annualised): (Refer note 5)				Cleaners	100000
	(a) Basic (C)	+2.74	*2.90	*1.51	11.15	0.8
	(b) Diard (C)	+2.73	*2.89	*1.50	11.10	6.8
	(i) Denor(c)	0.0012		1	2504	
		· · · · · ·		1000		vul
۰.						Yuu

Notes:

L

rolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities as at March 31, 2019

	Particulars	At at March 31, 2019	As at March 31, 2018
		(Audited)	(Audited)
	ASSETS:		
d)	Financial assets	0144865	
60	Cash and cash equivalents	1,826.65	1.049,39
(6)	Bask bulance other than (a) above	47.50	.19.14
(c)	Derivative financial instruments	7.20	(*)
(d) (	Receivables		
	(1) Trade Recovables	806.37	136-44
	(III) Other Receivables	10.63	3.33
	Loans	91.334.63	77,085.34
100	lovestments	8.640.81	5.301.49
(g)	Other financial assets	126.29	73.68
(2)	Non-Bauncial atsets	88204	
60.	Current tax assets (pet)	642.97	595.37
(b)	Deferred ray Assets (not)	1.777.13	1,346.40
(c)	Investment property	767.00	395.11
	Property, plant and equipment	67.69	97,05
	Capital work-m-programs	4-1	0.14
215.11	Intangible assets under development	35.65	19.20
	Goodwill	628.01	638.01
	Other intangible assets	23.84	19.63
	Other nen-financial assets	378-95	465.38
1	TOTAL - ASSETS	1.06.055.10	\$7,776.98
	A COMPANY AND POSITIVE	20+000-04400	
	LABILITIES AND EQUITY: 14ABILITIES		
m	Financial labilities		
10	Devivative financial instruments	22	0.90
01	Trade payables		
· .	(5) Tetal outstanding dues of micro unterprises and small enterprises		
	(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other then micro enterprises and smill emerprises	120.09	168.40
(cc)	Other payables		
	(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises		
	(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro-enterprises and usual enterprises	16.12	16.6.
10	Debt securities	91,298,31	48(299),13
(et	Borrowings (Other than deln securities)	35,785.12	29,853,96
	Subordinated Inbilities	4,493.92	4,946.63
200	Other financial liabilities	544.22	5761.07
63	Non Enancial liabilities	125	
	Current tax liabilities (nat)	33.51	318
- C - C - C - C - C - C - C - C - C - C	Proviniera	42.04	27.57
69	Deferred tas habilities (tet.)	5.19	4.96
00	Other non-francial liabilities	91.0	131.00
(3)	EQUITY'	0.56496	
(10)	Equity share capital	1,998,54	1,998,83
(9)	Other equity	11,449.79	9/481.07
10	Non-controlling interest	222.26	223.48
-	TOTAL - LIABILITIES AND EQUITY	1.06.055.18	\$7,776.98

The Group has adopted Indian Accounting Standards ("Indi AS") method under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (the Act) seed with the Companies Indian Accounting Standards ("Indi AS") method under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (the Act) seed with the Companies Indian Accounting Standards ("Indi AS") method indian decounting Standards (Indi AS") method indian decounting Standards (Indian Accounting Standards (Indian Accounting Standards (Indian Accounting Standards) (Indian Accounting Standards) (Indian (INDI)) and National Indian (INDI) and National Indi

3 The results have been reviewed by the Audit Constitute and subsequently approved by the Board of Directory or its meeting held on April 26, 2019. The Joint Statistical Auditors of the Company-have carried out audit of the alloresaid results.

The Company reports quarterly financial results of the group on a controlidated basis, particular to the option made available as per Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing, Obligations and Daclassate Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as anneoled read with circular dated July 5, 2016. The standalone francial results are available to the verbiate of the Company at vow. Africans, the verbiate of RSE United ("RSE") is seen instantiate and on the verbiate of National Socie Exchange of India Listing ("RSE") at vow standalons. The specified items of the standalone francial results of the Company for the quarter and gase reduct March 31, 2019 are given before.

(65)-516/45	Sector States and sector states	Quarter ended				
Particulars	March 31, 2019	December 31, 2018	March 31, 2018	March 3L 2019	March 38, 2018	
	(Unaudited)	(Unsudited)	(Unandited)	(Audited)	(Aadited)	
Total income from operations	310.55	62.75	402.22	526,45	477.83	
hofis/leas) before tas.	360.27	15.231	353.86	304.03	292.70	
rofii Closs) after tan	227.36	(4.24)	321.68	267,06	266.05	
Total comprehensive accome	226.65	(4.26)	322.38	200.74	266.67	

The Company, during the quarter and year ended March 31, 2019 has allowed 1.480.300 and 3.135.400 equally shares of \$10 each, fully paid up, on ensuring of options by employees, in accordance with the Company's Employee Stock Option Schemet(s). 5

(a) During the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company has paid dividend of 7 28.61 error (including: Dividend Distribution Tax of 7 2.19 error) on Cumulative Computative Redemande Preference Shares of 7 100 each fully paid. 6

(b) During the year ended March 31, 2014; 9:00% Campulative Computerily Redeemade Preference Shares (CRPS) anniunting to ₹ 250 core have been tedeored and \$ 95% Cumulative Computerily Redeemade Preference Shares (CRPS) annuunting to ₹ 250 core have been smaller. The Company has puid final dividend of ₹ 1221 crete on Redeemed Preference Shares during the year.

7 On April 25, 2019. L&T Infra Dete Food Linned, a subsidiary of L&T Finance Holdings Limited, has emerged into a commission for upter 25. Pla minority equity investment from Apis Growth Pard II, for

As on March 31, 2019, the Company's expensive as series secured financial conflicts to certain infratructure special purpose entries of IL/EPS Group are in the Stage 1 category and within the "Standard" classification of RBRs Productinal Nerma. However, pending resolution of the plan submitted by the IL/EPS Board to the NCLAT, recognition of interest of ₹ 64 cross on these lumn between 1a October, 2014 and the year and has been defended. 8

The figures for the quarter ended March 31, 2019 and March 34, 2018 are the balancing figures between audated figures in respect of full Financial year and the year to three figure sp to aim members of 9 correct financial year

10 The Beard of Directors have recommended a final dividend of C | per Equity Share of C 10 each (previous year C ) per abare) wheely a space of directors in forheorang Annual General Meeting. the to

108

m

11 Consolidated segment with revenue, result, total assess and total lubbilies in terms of Regulation 35 of the SEBI (Long, Obigations and Disclovare Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as anomaled.

-	1		Quarter ended		Year ended		
ir.	Particulars	Murch 31, 2619	December 31, 2018	March 31, 2018	March 31, 2019	March 34, 2018	
10.		(Unandited)	(Unaudited)	(Unaudited)	(Audited)	cAuditedu	
	Gross segment revenue from continuing operations	1			the second second		
ŧ)	Runal beareas	1:126:44	1.127.08	694.22	4.064.18	2,354.8	
6	Housing Ispinors	872.91	767.09	749.91	3,018,71	2,129.7	
3	Wholenaic hungers	1.174.79	1.304.87	+.093.00	5.063.93	4,505,3	
di.	Defocuted burgers	18.05	26.15	37.81	116.02	222.2	
61	Others	441.57	210.19	610-23	1,303.01	1.529.4	
Υ.	Segment revenue from continuing operations	3,636.74	3,435,78	3,185,67	13,565,85	19,794,6	
		(432.52)	(12.55)	1645.075	(576.13)	(581.9	
	Loss: Imor segment ervenue				12,989,72	16,212,7	
	Revenue as per the statement of profit and loss	3,394.23	3,362,90	2,748.68	42,989,72	(W.212.).	
	Segment result (Profit/Joss) before (ax)						
at	Raral busatest.	375 15	300.27	232.20	1.151.30	744.7	
64	Housing business	322.23	268.30	224.02	1.084.10	720.0	
0	Wholesale business	166.45	-200.46	45.99	912.20	291.5	
d)	Defocused business	(164.345	(43.99)	(111.57)	(243.45)	1394.4	
1	Others	36.87	\$0.77	(36.06)	147.63	82.9	
	Profit before (as	748.36	775.81	366.18	3,051,98	1,445.7	
	Segment assets						
a)	Baral havingo	25.317.39	24,759.02	16.527.68	25,517,291	16.527.6	
60. 161	Housing bearings	23,575,72	24.517.02	19,785,70	27,575,77	10,755.7	
1	Wholesale business		47,588,35	40,180,28	48,173,25	40,190.7	
(4) (4)	Defocuted factores	428.20	\$27.90	1.187.39	625.20	1,187,3	
47	Others	1166933	11.365.79	10,784.30	11,650,33	10,784.2	
82						94.465.3	
	Sub tetal	1.13.544.89	1,08,978.68	84,465,28	1,10,544,89	100 Co. 100 CO	
	Lain: Inter segment anoth	(9.909.91)	(9.423.98)	cf.128.000	(0.909.91)	(9,428.0	
	Segment assets	1,03,634.98	99,547.10	85,337,21	1,03.634.98	\$5,337,2	
60.	Unailocated	2,420.12	2,336:05	2,439,77	2.430.12	2,439.7	
	Total assets	1,06,955.10	1,01,865,15	87,776.95	1,06,055,14	\$7,776.9	
	Segment Fabilities						
(2)	Rural huminess	22,181,29	21.356.38	14.342.06	22.181.29	14,342.0	
(6)	Housing business	34,521.91	21,678.33	17,583.87	24331.31	17.583.8	
(2)	Wholesale business	43,447,79	43,128,20	42,444.11	43,447.78	42,444.1	
45	Defocused business	548.04	726.01	1.030.37	548.24	1.030.3	
a.	Oten	2,800,57	2,533,85	2,131.52	2,800,57	2.111.8	
~	Sub total	83,299,29	\$9,419,86	77,532,19	93,299,20	77,532.19	
	Loss fater segment kabilitien	(733.40)	(592.69)	(1.196.54)	(731.40)	(1,195.5	
	Segment Exhibities	82,567,88	88,827,47	76,335,65	92,567,80	76,335.6	
		38.70	74.94	34.99	38.70	34.5	
(D)	Unallocated		100 Aug 100 The		92.605.50	76.370.24	
	Total liabilities	82,696.50	88,901.81	76.370.24	92.605.50	19,370.34	

(i) The Group has reported segment information as per Indian Accounting Standard 108 "Operating Segments" (Ind AS 100) read with SEBI circular dated July 5, 2016. The identification of operating segments is consistent with performance assessment and resource allocation by the management.

(4) Segment composition : Reral Basiness comprises of Farm Equipment Finance, Two Wheeler Finance and Micro Loans Huming Basiness comprises of Borne Leans. Loan against Property and Real Entate Finance. Whaleaste Basiness comprises of Commercial Work: Finance, and Structured Composite Loans. Defenseed Basiness comprises of Commercial Work: Finance, Continuetion Equipment Finance. SME term Inamiand Leases. Others comprises of Asset Management, Workb Management in: Unadiscated represents tax essets and tax labilities.

12 (D Reconciliation of net profit after ray between Provides GAAP and but AS for the partner and year ended March 31, 2019

Sr. Ns.	Particulars	Ouarter ended March 31, 2018 (Unaudited)	Year ended March 31, 2018 (Audited)
-	Net profit after tax at per previous GAAP	406.00	1,459,48
(1)	Amorthanion of processing fee on corporate loans based on effective interest increase which was previously recognized as revenue in the period of accrual	26.49	1.33
(b)	incremental cost on far valuation of employer sock options plan previously recognised on the basis of termske value	(8.18)	(30.63
(c)	Chaoges in fair valuation of investments financial instruments previously recorded at cost less other than temporary designation	(92.99)	194.02
10	Incommutal provision on application on especied credit lass readel	(81.91)	(388.86
(10)	Increase in horrowing cost paramet to the application of effective intensi rate reshed as more expenses were providently adjusted against Securities Premium Account	(27.50)	(115.13
(1)	Reversal of amortised loss on sale of lian assets now being charged in your of sale. The past losses were adjusted against retained earnings	10	162.57
(a)	Impact of consolidation of a fund on evaluation of control in par Ind AS-110	(52.83)	21.83
(h)	Interest known recognition on stage 3 lows	36.88	143.65
(0)	Demognition of deferred tax fability on special inserve	11.60	11.60
-00	Otten	0.82	1.51
60	Deferred taxes	-19.41	96.93
	Net profit after tax as per lod AS	268,49	1,278,35
	Other comprehensive income (ner of tao) attributable to owners of the Company	(4.86)	(4.99
-	Tatal comprehensive income as per Ind AS	263.63	1,273.36
۱			、 、

(ii) Reconciliation of equity as reported under provides GAAP and heBAS as a March  $[1,\,2010]$  and as a April 1, 2017

Sr.	Particulars	As at March 31, 2018	As at April 1, 2017
	N MINNEY	(Audited)	(Audited)
	Equity as per provisors GAAP	13,584.28	9.107.34
(0)	Amortisation of protesting fee on corporate loans based on effective interest income which was previously recognised as revenue in the period of accrual	(100.46)	(107.83)
(b)	Charges in fair valuation of investmentarfinancial instruments providually recorded at cost less other than temportary diminution	205.44	-291.79
6	Incromental provision on application on expected credit loss model	(2,521,09)	(2,132,23)
d)	Increase in horrowing cost pursuant to the application of effective interest case method as ossae expenses were previously aduated against Securities Promean Account	35.78	42.71
e):	Impact of consolidation of a fixed on evaluation of control as per Ind AS 110	(2:04)	0.17
η.	Internet income recognition on stage 3 longs	+49.61	303.92
ŧ۴.	Redomable preference capital classified as liability	11.034.405	(1,7)=40
ħī.	Denecognition of deferred tax hability on special reserve-	32.62	21.02
40	Otiers	0.24	(0.68)
(i)	Deferred taxes	756:70	660.71
	Equity as per Ind AS	11,406.74	6,973,52

13 The previous year/periods Previous GAAP figures have been regrouped re-classified wherever recensary to make them extraparable with IndAS presentation

In terms of our report attached, For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP Characted Accountants

Sau Sanjiv V. Pi Parmer

me

Place : Manibal Date : April 28, 2019

In terms of our report attached. For B. K. KHARE & CO. Chartered Accountants FRN: 105102W

are 1 Padmini Khare Kaicker

Partner Membership no. 041781

Place : Marithii Date : April 28, 2019

For and on behalf of the floord of Directors L&T Finance Holdings Limited ſ Y

Dinanath Dubhashi Managing Director & Chief Essentiste Officer (DIN 101445900)

Place : Marthai Date : April 28, 2019 ×

#### DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants Indiabulls Finance Centre, Tower 3 27th – 32nd Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg. Elphinstone Road (West) Mumbai 400013.

### Independent Auditors' Report

#### To The Members of L&T Finance Holdings Limited

#### Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

#### Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of L&T Finance Holdings Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

#### **Basis for Opinion**

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant. to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to

B. K. KHARE & CO. Chartered Accountants 706/708. Sharda Chambers New Marine Lines. Mumbai 400004.

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

#### Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter	Auditor's Response
Impairment of Investments The	Principal audit procedures performed:
impairment review of unquoted equity instruments in subsidiaries, is considered to be a risk area due to the size of the balances as well as the judgmental nature of key assumptions, which may be subject to	<ul> <li>Benchmarking assumptions: Comparing the Company's assumptions to externally derived data in relation to key inputs such as long- term growth rates and discount rates.</li> </ul>
management override.	Our experience:
The carrying value of such unquoted equity	Assessing the appropriateness of the forecasted cash flows

instruments is at risk of recoverability. The net worth of the underlying entity has significantly eroded. The estimated recoverable amount is subjective due to the inherent uncertainty involved in forecasting and discounting future cash flows and there is limited headroom available.

- within the budgeted period based on our understanding of the business and sector experience.
- Sensitivity analysis: Performing sensitivity analysis in relation to the key assumptions.

#### Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis of Board's report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

#### Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act. with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equityof the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

#### Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.
- Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

100 60 LAT FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED 60 Annual Seport 1018 - 18

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (I) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (II) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

#### Other Matters

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018 and the related transition date opening balance sheet as at April 1, 2017 included in these standalone financial statements, have been prepared after adjusting previously issued the standalone financial statements prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 to comply with Ind AS. The previously issued standalone financial statements were audited by us and we expressed an unmodified opinion on those standalone financial statements. Adjustments made to the previously issued standalone financial statements to comply with Ind AS have been audited by us.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements is not modified in respect of this the above matters on the comparative financial information.

#### Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

- As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:
  - a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
  - In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
  - c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss Including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are In agreement with the books of account.
  - d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.
  - e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
  - f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness

LAT FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED 60 Annual Report 2018 - 10 60 101

of such controls, refer to our separate Report In "Annexure A". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report In accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our

#### For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Sanjiv V. Pilgaonkar (Partner) (Membership No. 39826)

Mumbai, April 28, 2019

opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

- The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.
- The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.
- There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
- As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure 8" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

#### For B. K. KHARE & CO. Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration No. 105102W)

#### Padmini Khare Kalcker

(Partner) (Membership No. 644784) Mumbai, April 28, 2019

10 00 LAT FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED 00 Annual Report 2018 - 19

### Annexure 'A' to the Independent Auditors' Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report of even date)

#### Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (I) of Subsection 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of L&T Finance Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date which includes internal financial controls over financial reporting.

#### Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of Chartened Accountants of India These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as requised under the Companies Act, 2013

#### Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's Internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with othical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed tisk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

#### Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

#### inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial

IAT HNANCI MULDINGS LIMITED 68 Annuar Report 2018 - 10 68 102

reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

#### Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such Internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2015, based on the otteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

#### For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants (Fitm's Registration No. 117365WW-100018)

Sanjiv V. Pilgəonkar (Partner) (Membership No. 39826)

Mumbal, April 28, 2019

(Firm's Registration No. 105102W) Padmini Khare Kaldker (Partner) (Membership No. 044784)

For B. K. KHARE & CO.

Chartered Accountants

Mumbal, April 28, 2019

### Annexure 'B' to the Independent Auditors' Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report of even date)

- (0 (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative dotalls and situation of fixed assets.
  - (b) The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.
  - (c) The Company does not have any immovable properties of freehold or leasehold land and building and hence reporting under clause (0 (c) of the Order is not applicable.
- (i) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause (ii) of the Order is not applicable.
- (iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.
- (iv) The Company has not granted any loans, made

investments or provide guarantees and hance reporting under dause (iv) of the Order is not applicable.

- (v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no order has been passed by the Company Law Boatd or the National Company Law Tribunal or the Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal.
- (vi) The matchenance of cest records has not been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.
- (vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues;
  - (a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Value Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Company was not required to deposit or pay any dues in respect of Custom Duty, Eacles Duty and corresponding cess during the year.
  - (b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees'

104:05 LET LINANES HOLDINGE LIMITED (0) Angest Report 2018 - 18

State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

- (c) There are no dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Goods and Service Tax and Value Added Tax as on March 31, 2019 on account of disputes.
- (viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions, banks and government. The Company has not issued any debentures.
- (b) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause (b) of the Order is not applicable.
- (e) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.
- (x) in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid/provided managerial remuteration in

#### For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartened Accountants (Rm/s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

#### Sanjiv V. Pilgaonkar (Partner)

(Membership No. 39826)

Mumbai, April 28, 2019

accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

- (xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.
- (x8) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is in compliance with Section 188 and 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.
- (xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv) of the Order is not applicable.
- (nd) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with him and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.
- (xv) The Company is required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and It has obtained the registration.

#### For B. K. KHARE & CO.

Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No. 105102W)

#### Padmini Khare Kaicker (Partner) (Membership No. 044784)

Mumbal, April 28, 2019

### Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

		Note	As at March	As at March	(f in crore) As at April 01,
Particulars		No.	31, 2019	31, 2018	2017
ASSETS: (a) Cash and cash equivalants (b) Bank balance other than (a) a (c) Receivables (i) Trade receivables (ii) Other receivables (d) Loans (e) Investments (f) Other financial assets (g) Non-financial assets (a) Current tax assets (net) (b) Deferred tax assets (net) (c) Property, plant and equipment (d) Other intangible assets		234 567 8910	0.49 1.87 9.17 563.98 9.146.19 290.62 1.21 33.66 0.79	11.26 1.00 57.63 1.014.08 7.840.39 224.01 1.54 34.76 0.01	0.53 1.69 26.99 585.58 5,644.75 86.26
(e) Other non-financial assets TOTAL ASSETS LIABILITIES AND EQUITY: LIABILITIES (a) Payables (b) Trade payables		11	0.90	2.18 9.186.86	0.69
unal enterprises (i) Total outstanding dues micro enterprises and s (ii) Other payables	of micro enterprises and of creditors other than mali enterprises of micro enterprises and	12	0.01	0.02	0.19
small enterprises (i) Total outstanding dues of crediton other than micro enterprises and small enterprises (b) Debt securities (c) Borrowings (other than debt securities) (d) Subordinated liabilities (e) Other financial liabilities			1,162,49 4,99 1,032,29 5,95	458,70 1,030,12 10,80	568.97 433.99 1,206.24 8.02
Non-financial liabilities     (a) Current tax fabilities (net)     (b) Provisions     (c) Other non-financial liabilities     (3) Equity		17 18 19	7.85 2.08 2.87	1.83	2.86 37.94
(a) Equity share capital (b) Other equity TOTAL UABILITIES AND EQUITY Significant accounting policies See accompanying notes forming part of	(the financial statements	20 21 1 2 to 52	1,996.81 5,831.54 10,048.88	1,995.68 5.678.01 9,186.86	1,755.72 2 388 59 6,402.52
n terms of our report attached or DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP frartered Accountants	in terms of our report alt. For B. K. KHARE & CO. Chartered Accountants	1.22	For and on behalf L&T Finance Holdi		f Directors of
anjiv V. Pligaonkar artner	Padmini Khare Kalcker Pariner Membership no. 044784		S. V. Harlbhakti Non-Executive Chair (DIN: 00007347)	man Manag Chief E	th Dubhashi Ing Director & xecutive Officer 3545900}
			Apurva Rathod Company Secretary		n Joshi Inancial Officer
Place : Mumbal Date : April 28, 2019	Place : Mumbali Date : April 28, 2019		Place : Mumbai Date : April 28, 201	9	

NO OD LAT FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED OD ARRUNI Report 2018 - 10

			Note	Year ended	Year ended
Particulars				March 31, 201	
Reve	nue from operations				
(9)	Interest income		22	197.5	94 73.01
010	Dividend income		23	343.	79 376.92
(81)	Net gain on fair value chang	285	24	0.	38 4.65
(1)	Total revenue from opera	tions		482.	11 454.58
010	Other Income		25	44	37 23.24
(111)	Total Income (I+II)			526.	48 477.82
Expe	nses				
00	Finance costs		26	202.	161.96
0.0	Impairment on financial inst	ruments	27	(3.9	1.98
0182	Employee benefit expenses		28	15.	10.03
0v)	Depreciation, amortization a	and impairment	10	0,	0.02
(v)	Other expensis		29		12 11,13
(IV)	Total expenses			222.	15 185.12
(V)	Profit before tax (III-IV)			304.	292.70
(11)	Tax expense:		30		
	(1) Current tax			35.	87 7.02
	(2) Deferred tax			10	10 7.15
	(3) Provision for tax relate	d to earlier years			- 12.44
(VII)	Profit for the year (V - VI)			267.	266.05
	Other comprehensive inc				
		of defined benefit plans (net)		(0.3	2) 0.62
(viiii)	Other comprehensive inc			(0.3	V245
( v m)	outer comprenensive and	oure		10.3	
(DC)	Total comprehensive inco	me for the year (VII+VIII)		266.	74 266.67
(X)	Earnings per equity share	- 0	40		
229	Basic (t)		(1422)	1.	34 1.46
	Diluted (?)			1.2	33 1.44
Signit	icant accounting policies		1		
		art of the financial statements	2 to 52		
In terms of our report attached For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP Chartered Accountants			i on behalf of the B ance Holdings Limi	oard of Directors of ted	
Partner Par		Padmini Khare Kalcker Partner Membership no. 044784	NOR-EXE	cutive Chairman 007347)	Dinanath Dubhashi Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer (DIN: 03545900)
					Sachinn Joshi Chief Financial Officer
Pace : Mumbai Place : Mumbai		Place : Munibal			

### Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019

181 I(WANES HOLDINGS LIMITED 00 Annua) Report 2018 - 19 00 107

Date : April 28, 2019

Date : April 28, 2019

Date : April 28, 2019

## Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2019

#### A. Equity share capital

	As at March	31, 2019	As at March 31, 2018		
Particulars	No. of Shares	(? In crore)	No. of Shares	(7 in crore)	
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year Add: Shares Issued during the year:	1,99,56,76,960	1,995.68	1,75,57,21,861	1,755.72	
<ul> <li>On a preferential basis</li> </ul>	5	-	17,16,31,889	171.64	
- On a qualified institutional placement			6,30,51,702	63.05	
- Against employee stock option	31,35,400	3.13	52,71,508	5.27	
issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity shares outstanding at the end of the year	1,99,88,12,360	1,998.81	1,99,56,76,960	1,995.68	

#### B. Other equity

Particulars	Securities premium account	General reserve	Reserve W's 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934	Employee stock option outstanding account	and the second second second	Money received against share warrants	Total
Balance as at April 01, 2017	1,800.35	1.60	294.29	32.07	142.21	118.07	2,388.59
Profit for the year (a)	100	8 5	1.7	0.07	266.05		266.05
Actuarial gain on defined benefit plan (gratuity) net of income tax (b)	-				0.62	8	0.62
Total comprehensive Income for the year (a+b)	1.5	8 8	2	8 8 <del>7</del>	266.67	8	266.67
Issue of equity shares.	3,273,29	÷ =		a 87	: 5	5	3,273.29
Share Issue expenses	(18.53)	8 4	2		) <u> </u>	-	(18.53)
Employee stock option (net)	- G	a – 5	1.1	31.80			31.80
Shares issued against share warrants	-	3 <del>,</del>	-			(118.07)	(118.07)
Transfer to general reserve	-	0.23		(0.23)	5		
Transfer from retained earnings	-	-	73.57	( ( <del>-</del>	(73.57)	2	
Dividend paid		2 - ¥	1.13	2 - 2 <del>2</del>	(145.74)		(145.74)
Balance as at March 31, 2018	5,055.11	1.83	367.86	63.64	189.57	5	5,678.01
Profit for the year (a)	1	8 - R	1	1 - E	267.06	8	267.06
Actuarial loss on defined benefit plan (gratuity) net of income tax (b)	1	2 3		9	(0.32)	3	(0.32)
Total comprehensive Income for the year (a+b)	17	8 8	( 27	s 85	266.74	Ξ	266.74
Issue of equity shares	28.15	й — <del>2</del>	2	9 G2	2	- 2	28.15

100 00 LAT FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED 00 Annual Report 2018 - 19

							(t in crote	
Particulars	Securities premium account	General reserve	Reserve u/s 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934	Employee stock option outstanding account	Retained earnings	Money received against share warrants	Total	
Share issue expenses	(0.02)		1. E		-	1 in	(0.02	
Employee stock option (net)	-	-		58.36	-		58.3	
Transfer to general reserve	-	0.06	5 E	(0.06)	-	-		
Transfer from retained earnings	Ċ	1	53.41		(53,41)			
Dividend paid	=			3	(199.70)	1	(199.70	
Balance as at March 31, 2019	5,083.24	1,89	421.27	121.94	203.20	1	5,831.5	
in terms of our report attached For DELOITTE HA SKINS & SELLS LU Chartered Accountants	P For B. H	In terms of our report attached For B. K. KHARE & CO. Chartered Accountants			5 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors L&T Finance Holdings Limited			
Sanjiv V. Pilgaonkar Pariner	Partner	el Kîhare Ka eship no. Ol		S. V. Harlbhak Non-Executive (DIN: 0000734	Chairman	Dinanath D Managing D Chief Execut (DIN: 03545)	irector & Ne Officer	

### Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2019

Place : Mumbal Date : April 28, 2019

Place : Munibal Date : April 28, 2019

Place : Mumbal Date : April 28, 2019

Apurva Rathod Company Secretary

Sachinn Joshi Chief Financial Officer

IST FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED (0 Annual Report 2018 - 10 (0 100

			(₹ in cróre)
Part	iculars	Year ended March 31, 2019	Year ended March 31, 2018
A.	Cash flow from operating activities		
	Profit before tax	304.03	292.70
	Adjustments for:		
	Depreciation and amortisation expense	0.11	0.02
	Impairment loss allowance	(3.91)	1.98
	Fair value (gain)/loss on Investment	2	0.57
	Expenses on employee stock options	7.66	5.25
	Contribution to gratuity	0.13	(0,42
	Contribution to superannuation fund	0.22	0.20
	Gain on sale of investments (net)	(0.38)	(5.22
	Operating profit before working capital changes	307.84	295.08
	Changes In working capital:		
	(Increase) / decrease in financial assets	435.86	(564.18
	(increase) / decrease in non-financial assets	1.28	(1,48
	Increase / (decrease) in financial liabilities	(3.78)	5.99
	Increase / (decrease) in non-financial liabilities	61.48	(0,48
	Cash generated from / (used in) operations	802.68	(265.07
	Net income tax paid	(27.69)	(6.96
	Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities (A)	774.99	(272.03
в.	Cash flow from investing activities		
	Purchase of property, plant and equipment	(0.90)	2
	investment in subsidiarles	(1,305.80)	(2,466.36
	Purchase of investments	(665.00)	(3,060.47
	Proceeds from sale of investments	665.38	3,335.83
	Net cash used in investing activities (B)	(1,306.32)	(2,191.00

### Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2019

10 00 LET FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED 00 Annual Report 2015 - 15

						(t in crore)
Part	ticulars			Year ended March 31, 201	9	Vear ended March 31, 2018
c.	Cash flow from financing activities					
	Proceeds from issue of equit	21.	50	3,385.97		
	Proceeds from Issue of prefe	250.	00	Versenion.		
	Payment on redemption of p	(250.0	00)	(179.00)		
	Share issue expenses	(0.0	12)	(18.53)		
	Dividend paid			(199.7	70)	(145.74)
	Repayment of borrowings			(463.7	(1)	(568.94)
	Proceeds from borrowings	1,162.	49	11189429404		
	Net cash generated from	520.	56	2,473.76		
	Net (decrease)/increase in	(10.7	(7)	10.73		
	Cash and cash equivalent	11.	26	0.53		
	Cash and cash equivalent	s at the end of the year		0.49		11.2
Not	tes:	an a				27-000
2.	specified in the Companies 2015. Net cash used in operating a	d AS 7 "Statement of Cash Fl (Indian Accounting Standard ctivity is determined after adju	s) Rules,			
	following:			(au) 10 a		
	interest received			133.	23	63.51
	Dividend received			277.46 261.85		2333
51. 100000	Interest paid		2014027	201,	dD.	123.48
For D	ms of our report attached DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP ered Accountants	In terms of our report attached For B. K. KHARE & CO. Chartered Accountants		on behalf of the I ance Holdings Lim		
Sanjiv V. Pilgaonkar Partner		ver Partner Non-Exe		ribhakti cutive Chairman 007347)	Ma	naging Director & naging Director & ef Executive Officer 4: 03545900)
				Rathod y Secretary	0.01	c <b>hinn Joshi</b> ef Financial Officer
Place : Mumbal Date : April 28, 2019		Place : Mumbal Date : April 28, 2019	Place : N Date : A	lumbal pril 28, 2019		

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2019

LAT TINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED 60 Annual Report 2018 - 18 60 111

#### DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants Indiabulis Finance Centre, Tower 3 27th – 32nd Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg Elphinstone Road (West) Mumbai 400013.

### Independent Auditors' Report

#### To The Members of L&T Finance Holdings Limited

#### Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

#### Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of L&T Finance Holdings Limited (the "Parent") and its subsidiaries, (the Parent and its subsidiaries together referred to as the "Group"), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended ('Ind AS') and other accounting principles generally accepted in india, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2019, and their consolidated profit, their consolidated total comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and their consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date. B. K. KHARE & CO.

Chartered Accountants 706/708, Sharda Chambers New Marine Lines Mumbal 400004.

#### **Basis for Opinion**

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143 (10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

#### Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

MA 69 LAT FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED 60 Annual Report 2018 - 15

#### Key Audit Matter

impairment of goodwill on consolidation:

There is a risk that the Group's Goodwill may be impaired due to the inherent uncertainty involved in forecasting and discounting future cash flows, determination of discount and terminal growth rates, which are the basis of the assessment of recoverability. These are the key judgement areas for our audit.

The Group annually carries out an impairment . Compared the Group's assessment of goodwill using a value-In-use model which is based on the net present value of the forecast earnings of the cash-generating units. This is calculated using certain assumptions around discount rates, growth rates and cash flow forecasts.

#### Auditor's Response

Principle procedures performed:

Besides obtaining an understanding of Management's processes and controls with regard to testing the goodwill for impairment the procedures included the following:

- Engaged internal fair valuation experts to challenge management's underlying assumptions and appropriateness of the valuation model used.
- assumptions with comparable benchmarks in relation to key inputs such as long-term growth rates and discount rates.
- · Assessed the appropriateness of the forecast cash flows within the budgeted period based on their understanding of the business and sector experience.
- Considered historical forecasting accuracy, by comparing previously forecasted cash flows to actual results achieved.
- Performed a sensitivity analysis in relation to key assumptions.

For Key Audit Matters identified by Component Auditors, refer "Annexure I" attached herewith.

#### Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Parent's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the management discussion and analysis included Director's report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor's report

#### thereon.

- Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
- In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information, compare with the financial statements of the subsidiaries audited by the other auditors, to the extent it relates to these entities and, in doing so, place reliance on the work of the other auditors and consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Other information so far as it relates to the subsidiaries is traced from their financial statements audited by the other auditors.
- If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

#### Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Parent's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance. of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for erisuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Parent, as aforesaid.

LET FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED 69 Annual Report 2018 - 19 60 165

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate or cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

#### Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Parent has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such branches or entitles or business activities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent and such other entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

ME 00 LAT FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED 00 Annual Report 2018 - 19

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

#### Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of 7 subsidiaries, whose financial statements / financial information reflect total assets of ₹ 1,238.80 crore as at March 31. 2019, total revenues of ₹ 797.41 crore and net. cash outflows amounting to ₹ 13.33 crore for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements / financial information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have c) been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, In so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

(b) The comparative financial statements/ information for the year ended March 31, 2018 in respect of 7 subsidiaries and the related transition date opening balance sheet as at April 01, 2017 prepared in accordance with the ind AS and included in these consolidated financial statements have been audited by other auditors, whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and in so far as it relates to the comparative amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, made in these consolidated financial statements, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements is not modified in respect of the above matters on the comparative financial information.

#### Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

- As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on the separate financial statements/ financial information of the subsidiaries referred to in the Other Matters section above we report, to the extent applicable that:
- a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.
- b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.
  - c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
- d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.
- e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent as on March 31, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, none of the directors of the Group companies, is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

LET TINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED (0 Annual Report 1918 - 19 (0 167

- f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A" which is based on the auditors' reports of the Parent and subsidiary companies. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial controls over financial reporting of those companies.
- g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Parent to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.
- With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
  - The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated financial position of the Group.
  - ii) The Group, did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.
  - III) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the investor Education and Protection Fund by the Parent and its subsidiary companies.

#### For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Sanjiv V. Pilgaonkar (Partner) (Membership No. 39826)

Mumbai, April 28, 2019

For B. K. KHARE & CO. Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No. 105102W)

Padmini Khare Kalcker (Partner) (Membership No. 044784) Mumbal, April 28, 2019

10 LAT FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED 00 Annual Report 2018 - 10

### Annexure 'A' to the Independent Auditors' Report

#### (Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report of even date)

#### Report on the internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (I) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated ind AS financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended March 31, 2019, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of L&T Finance Holdings Limited (hereinafter referred to as (the "Parent") and its subsidiary companies, as of that date.

#### Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent, its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective Companies considering the essential components of Internal control stated In the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)\*, These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013

#### Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Parent, its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Pinancial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act. 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of Internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively

#### in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors of the subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in india, in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Parent and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in india.

#### Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable. assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

#### Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud

INT FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED 69 Annual Report 2018 - 19 69 189

may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

#### Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, the Parent and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in india, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating

#### For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No. 117366WAW-100018)

Sanjiv V. Pilgaonkar (Partner)

(Membership No. 39826)

Mumbal, April 28, 2019

### Annexure I

effectively as at March 31, 2019, the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to 7 subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in india, is based solely on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in india.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

#### For B. K. KHARE & CO.

Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No. 105102W)

Padmini Khare Kaicker (Partner) (Membership No. 044784)

Mumbal, April 28, 2019

Sr. No.	Components	Key Audit Matter	Auditor's Response
	L&T Infrastructure Company Finance Limited; L&T Finance Limited and L&T Housing Finance Limited	Judgement using subjective assumptions over both when and how	<ul> <li>Audit procedure performed:</li> <li>We gained understanding of the Component's key credit processe: comprising granting, booking monitoring and provisioning and tested the operating effectiveness of key controls over these processes.</li> <li>We read the Component's ind AS 109 based impairment provisioning policy and compared it with the requirements of ind AS 109;</li> <li>We obtained an understanding of the Component's internal rating model for loans and advances and read the rating validation report prepared by the Component to gain comfort that the discrimination and calibration of the rating model is appropriate;</li> </ul>

170 00 LAT FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITES 00 Annuel Report 2014 - 10

Sr. No.	Components	Key Audit Matter	Auditor's Response
			<ul> <li>We understood the theoretical soundness and tested the mathematical integrity of the Models. Where relevant, we used information System specialists to gain comfort on data integrity;</li> </ul>
			<ul> <li>We checked consistency of various inputs and assumptions used by the Component's management to determine impairment provisions;</li> </ul>
			<ul> <li>We checked the appropriateness of the Component's determination of significant increase in credit risk and the resultant basis for classification of exposures into various stages;</li> </ul>
			<ul> <li>We checked and understood the key data sources and assumptions for data used in the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) models (the Models) used by the Component to determine impairment provisions;</li> </ul>
			<ul> <li>Forforward looking assumptions used by the Component's management in its ECL calculations, we held discussions with management and corroborated the assumptions using publicly available information;</li> </ul>
			<ul> <li>For a sample of exposures, we checked the appropriateness of the Component's staging appropriateness of determining Exposure at Default, including the consideration of prepayments and repayments in the cash flows and the resultant arithmetical calculations,</li> </ul>
			<ul> <li>For Probability of Default (PD) used in the ECL calculations we checked the Through the Cycle (TTC PDs calculation and checked the appropriateness of conversion of the TTC PDs to point in time (PIT) PDs;</li> </ul>
			<ul> <li>We checked the calculation of the Loss Given Default (LGD) used by the Component in the ECL calculations including the appropriateness of the use of collateral and the resultant arithmetical calculations;</li> </ul>

LET TINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED (0 Annual Report 2018 - 19 (0 176

Sr. Compon	ents Key Audit Matter	Auditor's Response
		<ul> <li>We checked the completeness of the loans, off balance sheet items investment securities, placements and other financial assets included in the ECL calculations as at the period end.</li> </ul>
		<ul> <li>For provision against exposure classified as Stage 1 and Stage 2 we obtained an understanding of the Component's provisioning methodology, assessed the reasonableness of the underlying assumptions and the sufficiency of the data used by the management.</li> </ul>
		<ul> <li>For exposures determined to be individually impaired, we tested a sample of loans and advances and examined managements estimate of future cash flows, assessed the reasonableness and checked the resultant provision calculations; and</li> </ul>
		<ul> <li>We checked the appropriateness of the opening balance adjustments.</li> </ul>
L&T Finance L	mited Multiple and discrete information Technology (IT) Systems:	ation Audit procedures performed: We have performed a range of aud
	The Component is highly dependent on technology due to the signific number of transactions that processed daily and discrete IT Systems and interfacing of these system with accounting system is critical as of audit. The audit approach relies automated controls and controls are critical as of audit. The audit approach relies automated controls and controls or systems. IT application controls are critical ensure that changes to application and are index in appropriate manner. Approprioritols controls controls are areas a result changes to applications and data. Management has implement the preventive and detective controls and infrastructor to reduce the risk over IT application the financial reporting process. Du the pervasive nature, we assessed risk of a material misstatement are from technology as significant for	dent icant are ems. uted i the the spect s on ound effore ver IT al to totom in an rate entsk uited i to totom s on ound effore ver IT al to totom manifications operating. Specifically, the tests were designed to cover the following. New access requests for new recruts were properly reviewed and authorised; User access rights were removed of a timely basis when an individual left or moved role: Access rights to applications operating systems and database were periodically monitored for appropriateness and Highly privileged access is restricter to appropriate personnel. b) Other procedures were performed. Where inappropriate access was identified, we understood the natur of the access, and, where possible obtained additional evidence or

12 09 LET FINANCE HELDINGS LIMITED 00 Annual Report 2018 - 18

Sr. No.	Components	Key Audit Matter	Auditor's Response
		3	c) Other areas that were independently assessed included password policies security configurations, controls over changes to applications and database and that business users, developer and production support did not hav access to change applications, the operating system or databases in the production environment. Testing of automated controls and interface testing was carried out.
	L&T Infra Debt Fund Limited and	Revenue recognition on loans and advances:	Audit procedures performed: Our audit procedures included considering
	L&T Infrastructure Finance Company Limited	Revenue recognition is considered to be a significant audit risk as it is a key driver of return to investors and there is a risk that there could be misstatement or omission of amounts recorded in the	the appropriateness of Component revenue recognition accounting policie and assessing compliance with the policie in terms of the applicable accountin standards.
		system. There is an inherent risk around the accuracy of the revenue recorded given the complexity of the IT system and impact of the terms of loan/debenture agreements to the revenue recognition. Revenue mainly comprises of interest income on term loans & debentures & financial advisory fee income forming part of other operating income. Interest income: interest income is recognised as per Effective interest Rate (EIR) model for the purpose of determining revenue recognition in accordance with the requirements of ind AS TO9. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.	As regards to the interest income: Performed test of controls, assisted b our IT specialists wherever required, over revenue recognition with specific focus of whether an interest income is recorded a per EIR model over the contract term on straight-line basis or other applicable basis as per the terms of the contract. We have performed tests of details, on sample basis, to review the case contract entered into, with the customers to asses whether interest income recorded is as per the contract terms. Reviewed the completeness of interest income recorded during the year b component's loan management syster with that of accounts. We also performed detailed substantiv analytical procedures for select period
		While recognising an interest income as per Effective Interest Rate (EIR) model in accordance with the requirements of ind AS 109, the significant judgements have been applied for inclusion/ exclusion of certain components from EIR methodology and also recognising interest on performing & under performing assets (till the period of 90 days past due: Stage 1 & 2) on gross carrying value of a loan asset and on non-performing assets (more than 90 days past due: Stage 3) on net carrying value of the asset	and gained more understanding on an variations / corroboration with the result drawn as per the process. As regards to the Fee based income: We have performed tests of details, or a sample basis, to review the underlyin agreement / executed memo alon with evidences of contractual service performed as stated per the agreed terms. Reviewed the management assessment or compliance with the conditions put under ind AS 109 for income recognition based on the principles of ind AS 115 in respect of certain items which did not form a par of EIR.

LAT FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED 40 Annual Report 2016 - 19 40 172

Sr. No.	Components	Key Audit Matter	Auditor's Response
		<ul> <li>Financial advisory fee based income: Such revenues are recognised when the certain criteria are met which includes persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, evidences of rendering of services available, the fee or commission is fixed or determinable, and collectability is reasonably assured.</li> </ul>	
	L&T Infra Debt Fund Limited and L&T Infrastructure Finance Company Limited	Transition to Ind AS: Pursuant MCA droular dated January 18, 2016, Component being an NBFC has been transitioned to ind AS wef. April 1, 2018, Application of ind AS requires an entity to make key changes in its significant accounting policy/ practices and thereby affecting recognition, measurement & disclosure requirements. Hence, this has been identified as a key audit matter.	the application of Ind AS framework per the requirements of Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 Inter-alia including:

174 65 LAT FINANCE HULDINGS LIMITED 60 Annual Report 2018 - 18

Sr. No.	Components	Key Audit Matter	Auditor's Response
	L&T Infrastructure Finance Company Limited	Valuation of unquoted shares/ debentures and the related diminution in value of investments: Component's investments mainly comprises of investments in quoted instruments, Subsidiaries/associates, unquoted instruments including invoked equity shares of some delinquent borrowers, and subscription to Securities Receipts (SRs) issued by Asset Reconstruction Companies (ARCs) etc. As per the policy adopted by the Component, investments have been fair valued as at the reporting date. Considering that these investments are unquoted and illiquid, the assessment of fair valuation is subjective and requires number of significant estimates and complex judgments to be made by management. The exit value will be determined by the market at the time of realisation and therefore despite the valuation policy adopted and judgments made by management, the final sales value may differ materially from the valuation at the yearend date. There is the risk that inaccurate judgments could be made in the assessment of fair value	<ul> <li>They are also an line with applicable accounting standards / regulations.</li> <li>Test of detail: Review of investment specific information provided including underlying working reports/ methodology/ assumption: provided by the Component for each type of Investment.</li> </ul>

LET FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED (0) Annual Report 1918 - 19 (0) 175

Particulars	Note	AS at March 31, 2019	As at March 31, 2018	As at April 01, 2017
ASSETS:		1071	1977184	277772
1 Finandal assets				
(a) Cash and cash equivalents	2	1,826.65	1,049.39	452.50
(b) Bank balance other than (a) abo	ve 3	47.50	59.14	163.59
(d) Demotive financial instruments	4	7.20		0.03
(d) Receivables	5			
Itade receivables		106.37	126.44	77.84
(0) Other receivables		10.63	3.33	1.17
(e) toars	6	91,324.63	77,088.34	60,308.69
(f) Invesments	7	8,640.81	5,301.49	6,565.90
(g) Other financial assets	8	126.29	73.66	65.63
		1,02,090.08	83,701.79	67,645.40
2 Non-finandal assets				
(a) Current tax assets (net)		642.97	593.37	450.17
(b) Celered tax zoets (net)		1,777.15	1,845.40	1,482.97
(c) investment property	9	367.66	395.11	401.04
(d) Property, plant and equipment	2000	67.69	97.05	184.89
(e) Capital work-in-progress	. 10	1	0.14	0.27
(7) Intangible assets under develop	nert. 10	38.65	19.20	1.2
(g) Goodwill on consolidation		638.91	638.91	638.9
(iv) Other Intangible assets	10	53.04	19.65	10.49
(i) Other non-financial assets	11	378.95	465.36	330.27
		3,965.02	4,075.19	3,500.28
Total assets		1,06,053.10	87,776.58	71,145.68

### Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

05 03 LET FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED 00 Annual Report 2018 - 19

lars Derivative financial instruments Payables (0) Trade payables (0) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and strail enterprises (0) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises (0) Other payables (0) Other pay	Note 4 12	As at March 31, 2019 - - 120.05	As at March 31, 2018 0.10 - 168.43	2017
Derivative financial instruments Payables (I) Trade payables (I) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and strail enterprises (II) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises (II) Other payables		- - 120.05	-	
Tayables     Tade payables     Tade payables     U total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and     strail enterprises     U) total outstanding dues of creditors other than     micro enterprises and small enterprises     Other payables		- - 120.05	-	
<ul> <li>10 Trade payables</li> <li>(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises</li> <li>(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises</li> <li>(c) Other payables</li> </ul>	12	- 120.05	-	
<ul> <li>(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises</li> <li>(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises</li> <li>(i) Other payables</li> </ul>	11845	- 120.05	-	
<ul> <li>(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises</li> <li>(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises</li> <li>(i) Other payables</li> </ul>		- 120.05	- 168.43	
micro enterprises and small enterprises (d) Other payables		120.05	168.43	00.5
Fig. A set of the state of the set of the				
<ul> <li>U tota outstanding dues or micro enterprises and small enterprises</li> </ul>				
<ul> <li>total outstanding dues of creditors other shan micro enterprises and small enterprises</li> </ul>		16.12	16.62	S113
Debt securities	13	51,268.31	40,995.13	34,977.9
Borrowings (other than debt securities)	14	35,785.15	29,853.50	23,545.0
Subordinated labilities	15	4,453.52	4,398.65	4,562.2
Other Imancial Rabitties	15	569.22	520.17	581.6
		92,212.37	75,953.60	63,775.3
on-Financial Uabilities				
Current tax labilities (net)		33.51	30.03	9,4
Provisions	17	42.04	27.57	75.8
Defened tax labilities (net)		5.19	4.56	2.3
Other non-financial labilities	18	91.13	131.00	106.1
		171.87	193.16	144.8
UITY				0.15.00
Equity share capital	19	1,996.81	1,995.68	1,755.73
Other equity	20	11,449.79	9,411.05	5,217.8
uity attributable to owners of the company		13,448.50	11,406.74	6,973.5
on-controlling interest		222.26	223,48	251.9
tal Itabilities and equity		1,06,055.10	87,775.98	71,145.6
prinkant accounting policies	1	1000		
	<ul> <li>(i) total outstanding dues of creditors ofter than micro enterprises and small enterprises</li> <li>Debt securities</li> <li>Borrowings (other than debt securities)</li> <li>Subordinated Tablities</li> <li>Other Triancial Tablities</li> <li>Other Triancial Tablities</li> <li>Current tax Tablities (net)</li> <li>Provisions</li> <li>Defened tax Tablities (net)</li> <li>Other non-financial Tablities</li> <li>Other equity</li> <li>Other equity</li> <li>Other second the company</li> <li>In-controlling Interest</li> <li>Tablities and equity</li> <li>Infrant accounting policies</li> </ul>	small enterprises (i) total outstanding dues of creditors often than micro enterprises and small enterprises Debt securities Subordinated liabilities Other financial liabilities Other financial liabilities Current tax liabilities (net) Provisions Current tax liabilities (net) Other non-financial liabilities Other non-financial liabilities (net) Other non-financial liabilities (net) Other equity Equity share capital Other equity in-controlling interest tal liabilities and equity	small enterprises     16.17       (i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises     13     51.268.31       Debt securities     13     51.268.31     35.725.15       Subordinated liabilities     15     4.453.52     01       Other financial liabilities     16     56922       Other financial liabilities (net)     17     42.04       Defered tas liabilities (net)     17     42.04       Defered tas liabilities (net)     13     91.13       Other non-financial liabilities     18     91.13       UTTY     19     1.998.81       Other equity     20     11.499.78       uity attributiable to owners of the company     13.448.50       on-controlling interest     2222.26       tal liabilities and equity     10.06.055.10       information accounting policies     1	small enterprises         16.12         16.62           0)         total outstanding dues of creditors ofter than micro enterprises and small enterprises         13         51,268,31         40,996,13           Debt securities         13         51,268,31         40,996,13         35,725,15         29,853,50           Subordinated liabilities         15         4,453,52         4,398,65         0         92,212,37         75,953,60           Other financial liabilities         16         569,222         520,177         92,212,37         75,953,60           Other financial liabilities         16         569,222         520,177         92,212,37         75,953,60           Other financial liabilities         16         599,221         37,017         42,04         27,57           Defered tax liabilities (net)         33,51         30,03         91,13         131,00           Provisions         17         42,04         27,57         19         4,56           Other non-financial liabilities (net)         13         131,00         174,87         193,156           UTY         Equity share capital         19         1,996,881         1,995,68         1,995,68           Other equity         20         11,449,379         9,411,06         222

### Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

In terms of our seport attached For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP Chartered Accountants	In terms of our report attached For B. K. KHARE & CO, Chartered Accountants	For and on behalf of the L&T Finance Holdings Lit	
Sanjiv V. Pilgaonikar Partner	Padmini Khare Kaicker Partner Membership no. 044784	S. V. Haribhakti Non-Executive Chairman (DIN: COCO7347)	Dinanath Dubhashi Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer (DN: 03545900)
		Apurva Rathod Company Secretary	Sachinn Joshi Chief Financial Officer
Place : Mumbai Date : April 28, 2019	Place : Mumbai Date : April 28, 2019	Place : Mumbai Date : April 28, 2019	

15T FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED 40 Annual Report 2018 - 19 40 177

				(t in crore
Parti	culars	Note	Year ended March 31, 2019	Year ended March 31, 2018
Reve	nue from operations			
Ø	Interest income	21	11,637.90	8,869.23
(1)	Dividend income	22	0.21	0.7
(11)	Rental income	23	18.84	37.2
(1)	Fees and commission income	24	1,277.11	1,219.9
(1)	Net gain on fair value changes	25	55.66	85.5
6	Total revenue from operations		12,989.72	10,212.7
1	Other income	26	311.80	53.5
m	Total income (I + II)		13,301.52	10,266.2
Expe	nses			
0	Finance costs	27	6,860.03	5,449.2
(1)	Fees and commission expense	28	325.71	395.12
1	Net loss on fair value changes	29	383.16	36.6
(M)	Net loss on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category	30	384.01	529.7
(v)	Impairment on financial instruments	31	700.88	1,418.1
(10)	Employee benefits expenses	32	824.73	408.7
(11)	Depreciation, amortization and impairment	33	49.62	51.9
(111)	Other expenses	34	721.40	530.9
IV	Total expenses (IV)		10,249.54	8,820.5
٧	Profit before exceptional items and tax (III - IV)		3,051.98	1,445.7
N	Exceptional items		-	
VII	Profit before tax (V - VI)		3,051.98	1,445.7
VIII	Tax expense			
0	Current tax	35	749,49	518.4
6	Deferred tax	35	70.46	(362.22
(1)	Provision for tax related to earlier year	35	-	11.9
IX	Net profit after tax (VII -VIII)		2,232.03	1,277.5
Х	Share in profit of associates			0.8
XI	Net profit after tax and share in profit of associate company (IX+X)		2,232.03	1,278.3
	Profit for the year attributable to: Owners of the company		2,226.30	1,254.6
	Non-controlling interest		2,226.30	23.6
	non-company merest		5./3	23.6

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019

IN 60 LAT FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED 60 Annual Report 2018 - 15

### Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019

				10000	(t in crore)
Parti	iculars		Note	Year ended March 31, 2019	Year ended March 31, 2018
XII	Other comprehensive inc	ome		CIPACIONIC CONTRO	
A	Items that will not be rec	lassified to profit or loss			
	<ul> <li>(a) Remeasurements of the tax)</li> </ul>	e defined benefit plans (net of		(1.5	0) (0.94)
	(b) Exchange differences in statements of foreign o			(0.2	3) -
8	Items that will be reclassi	ified to profit or loss			
	the second provide a second second second second second	debt instruments measured her comprehensive income		(0.6	5) (4.02)
	(b) The effective portion of instruments in a cash fi	gains and loss on hedging ow hedge			- (0.03)
	Other comprehensive inc attributable to:	ome for the year			
	Owners of the company			(2.4	1) (4.99)
	Non-controlling interest				물이 물
XIII	Total comprehensive inco	me (XI+XII)		2,229.6	2 1,273.36
	Total comprehensive income	e for the year attributable to:			
	Owners of the company			2,223.8	1,249.69
	Non-controlling interest			5.7	3 23.67
XIV		2	41		
	Basic (* )			11.1	5 6.88
	Diluted (t )			11.1	0 6.81
	Significant accounting polic		1		
	See accompanying notes to	the financial statements	2 to 54		
For D	rs of our report attached ELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP ered Accountants	In terms of our report attached For B. K. KHARE & CO. Chartered Accountants		on behalf of the B ance Holdings Limit	oard of Directors of ed
Sanjiv V. Pilgaonikar Partner		Padmini Khare Kalcker Partner Membership no. 044784	Non-Executive Chairman Mar (DN: 00007347) Chie		Dinanath Dubhashi Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer DIN: 03545900]
			Apurva Compan		Sachinn Joshi Chief Financial Officer
Place :	Munbai	Place : Mumbal	Place : M	Umbai	

Date : April 28, 2019

Place : Mumbal Date : April 28, 2019

Date : April 28, 2019

LET FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED 60 Annual Report 2018 - 19 60 59

# Consolidated Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2019

#### A. Equity share capital

brance.	As at March	31, 2019	As at March 31, 2018		
Particulars	No. of Shares	(? in crore)	No. of Shares	(7 in crore)	
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year Add: Shares issued during the year.	1,99,56,76,960	1,995.68	1,75,57,21,861	1,755.72	
- On a preferential basis		-	17,16,31,889	171.64	
- On a qualified institutional placement		-	6,30,51,702	63.05	
- Against employee stock option	31,35,400	3.13	52,71,508	5.27	
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity shares outstanding at the end of the year	1,99,88,12,360	1,998.81	1,99,56,76,960	1,995.68	

#### B. Other equity

										Acces
knuin	Searthe pankan accart	General Name	Jobertum nekuspten noare	Captal name or ansolitister	Rearies and Rearies Sofier Active Act	korn uhdidat sidata sidata	Ranne under sector 3X er Retarni Rassectori Act 360	Engloya nod spilen autoreling autourt		Manay nacited approticities warrants
Balance as at April 01, 2017	1,707,22	110	44.30	49.3		1,2348		15年	32.9	118.07
Part to par la									1249	
Other comprehenses monte, net of ital (5)				2 24		S 14			0.50	
Total comprohensiva income for the year 13-13-13	-	4	1		8 83	8	a - 14		1,252,74	
iour d'aquity state	123.2	9 E		3 3	19. 192	3 12				0.857
Thin kue poertes	-2121									1931
Employee share aptions hed						2 8		11.80		
Transfer to canveral reserve-		125	141-127	6 E			8 5	1000		
Terretien te resolute of 45-15 of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1954		1			1.5	15.6			(15.E)	
hander to make at 357 half of itcome tanker, 7551	-	1.122		1 13	89	a 12		1 5 -	45:63	
Yantaria karang Jili 28, di Natarat Havang Bani Jan, 1987						8	160		6年)	in 8
Tursile to ddentus redunption roune.	-	1 2	48.07	2 3	0.14		3 3		夜節	1
Declard padrilor previous year	-	1.12	-				3 5		145.76	
Acciliance tax on childred paid for the province. Not					19.942	10			派店	1.22
Ne gentland an tancetien with non-controlling microd		55			1.5	2				. 12
Salance as at, March 31, 2018 Roli: for the ease lat	1,99.3	8.1	12.6	40.3	97.5	1403	15.56	50	130.9	
Other comprehensive records not of tax bit							4 5	1.12	150	
Total comprehensive income for the year (ch-(s)-(b)	-	÷	9	1 Q4	( ) a	20 - 94	2 24	13	1224.80	1 84
tise of epply them	28.94		-					_		
Navigna poetse	0.25	1.12	3		1		8 G		1.1	
Englows way actions that				1 G	19.162	S 12		5237	-	1.22
Tantile to general marke		25.25	09.27	÷				0.50	CONT	
fransier to recents uit 45-15 of Recents Rank of India Act, 1954	-	110	0.00			1KI			(296.22)	14
kenferte vanwe uit 3573 wij di henne taa Ao, 1967					1143	1. 1.*	all wate		(1)4 第	
Tambér to noeme sé 24. d'Antomé Rosang Bank Act, 1987		8		6 18		8 8	11.27		印刷	
fumile to debetture reductprise more.		1.04	Q.2	8 = a	1.11		6 26		- <u>42</u> 40	1.1
Swidened paid for province year	-				11.124		8 - S		(199.75)	1.1.1
Nachtanal tax on dividant paid for the pravilies. Half				2.24	1.04	5			(0.2)	1
for gandless on transaction with non-controlling manual	-	1	3		N 18		3		1	1.1
Balance as at Month 31, 2019	196134	12.51	455.59	412.36	701.51	198.57	2.43	121.94	2771.8	124
Septêcant accurating policies. Sae accumptionaleg notice formining part of the	1054	1								
we wanted with your second that is use	2 10 26									

francial staturanto

180 00 LAT SINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED 00 Annual Report 2018 - 35

### Consolidated Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2019

#### B. Other equity (contd.)

	249029411	Tars of other comprised to boar				
Perioden	Foreign currency burslation receives	Fat wile cherge of thereof technist meaned of fat wile through other comprehension more	Shotse parties of such flow helps	losi Obw Lasty	Nes-Getteling Interest	366
Rolance as nt April 81, 2017	-	. 41	7 0.23	\$29.8b	Z1.91	5,469.2
tolt for the year fail	-			1,349	116	1,278,3
the comprehensive avons, net of tax bit	2. 1.67	143	613	(1)	0.5	10.9
lobil comprehensive income for the year ci-kel-bil	12	14.5	3 643	1,245,63	1347	1273.3
tak of epity state.			c) (3)	3,155.25	8	19247
hani suat aspirate.			-	(2131)		Q1-0
riplojas iture optom itvt)				25.30	8	318
ionster to ganeral revene	-				-	
ancher to nome all 45.45 d'Aleanne Barle d'Ardie Let, 1954			÷		e 19	
instante anama un 2016 il la la coma pa An					- R	
randur te manne als 790 d'Anteral Houang-Bank Iog 1967	-		4 B	-	-	
tante to ddentus relengtion rearse			a		5 22	
Swittenit pad for province year	-		-	045.74	S	(MS 74
Additional tax on Swidows paid for the provide year				04.73	1	057
let gerðad er tanatur eitt unorsteleg næst	-		10 10		0.13	52.5
Solance as at March 21, 2018	2	90	K	支机等	13.4	9,6345
to R to star gar (d)	· 22		-	2,235,30	18	2262
Ner comprehensive income, net of tax St	0.750	05	8	0.41		24
otal comprehensive income for the year CH264/bi	(123)	85		2.229.89	\$73	2,229.5
the of squay there.				建装	8 - H	(第)
has keya departial	-		-	0.29	5	62
replayee chere replaces (sec)			-	54.37	8	1915
and a to general ravine					-	
iselor to evene al 45-C of Reane Basi of Indo 10, 1954	-		51 - 3 <b>1</b>	1	-	
hander o name yk 347 heit d'home to Act. 1947				- ÷		
iondor is leaves at 210 of National Housey Bank Joy, 1967	1		fi i i		11	
fonde to deberture referance reserve						
Nidard pad to previous year			-	. (739.71)	2 52	(1996)5
editors to an destrict pad for the previou year				0267	5 	054
let ganflins) on transition with an controlling manuf			4 ii		后驾	6.9
Intercolas at March 31, 2019	9,23	86	Ð -	11,442万	222.35	11,672.0
ignificant annaning policies	3			101-0-0		- 05
er accorpanying solar forming part of the Internal Colomories	2:054					
n terms of our report attached For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP Chartered Accountants			nd on behalf of th inance Holdings L		irectors of	
Sanjiv V. Pilgaonkar Partner	Padmini Kha Patoer Membership	Non-B	<b>laribhakti</b> xecutive Chairman 00007347)	Dinaneth Dubhashi Maraging Director & Chief Executive Officer (DN: 03545900)		
			va Rathod Jany Secretary	Sachinn A Chiel Finar	oshi noal Officer	
Pace : Mumbai Date : April 28, 2019	Pace : Munit Date : April 2		Mumbai April 28, 2019			

LAT EINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED 60 Annual Report 2010 - 19 60 101

			(₹ in crore
Part	tculars	Year ended March 31, 2019	Year ended March 31, 2018
A.	Cash flow from operating activities		
	Profit before tax	3,051.98	1,445.76
	Adjustment for:		
	Depreciation and amortisation	49.62	51.93
	Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)	7.46	2.09
	Fair value change in loan asset	49.02	27.80
	Net loss arising on financial assets (investments)	257.27	(72.21
	Net loss on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category	384.01	529.70
	Provision for expected credit loss	700.88	1,418.10
	Expense on employee stock option plan	68.16	41.0
	Operating profit before working capital changes	4,568.40	3,444.3
	Changes in working capital		
	(Increase)/decrease in financial and non-financial assets	(21.04)	(369.41
	Increase/(decrease) in financial and non-financial Itabilities	(27.28)	619.43
	Cash generated from operations		
	Direct taxes paid	(795.60)	(649.14
	Loans disbursed (net of repayments)	(15,367.93)	(18,684.88
	Net cash flow generated from/(used) in operating activities (A)	(11,643.45)	(15,639.71
B.	Cash flows from investing activities		101004103014
	Add: inflow from investing activities		
	Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment	11.33	108.99
	Proceed from sale of Investments	123,016.63	134,161.76
	Less: Outflow from investing activities		
	Purchase of property, plant and equipment1	(91.20)	(83.25
	Purchase of investments	(126,524.17)	(132,638.72
	Net cash flow generated from/(used) in investing activities (B)	(3,587.41)	1,548.80

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2019

MD 60 LAT TINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED 60 Annual Report 2016 - 19

Decision and a second second

			(? in crore)
Part	Oculars	Year ended March 31, 2019	Year ended March 31, 2018
C,	Cash flows from financing activities Add: Inflow from financing activities		
	Proceeds from issue of share capital including security premium on account of employee stock options	21.50	3,385.97
	Proceeds from issue of preference share	250.00	2
	Proceeds from borrowings	43,173.22	48,492.11
	Less: Outflow from financing activities	1 A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	
	Payment to non-controlling interests	(6.95)	(52.10
	Share Issue expenses	(1.29)	(21.01
	Dividend paid (including dividend distribution tax)	(270.38)	(222.47
	Repayment of borrowing	(26,907.92)	(36,725.71
	Redemption of preference shares	(250.00)	(179.00
	Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities (C)	16,008.19	14,677.79
	Net Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)	777.33	586.89
	Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the year	1,049.39	462.50
	Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency cash and cash equivalents	(0.07)	-
	Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the year	1,826.65	1,049.39
No	tes:		
I.	Purchase of property, plant and equipment represents additions to property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets adjusted for movement of (a) capital-work-in-progress for property, plant and equipment and (b) intangible assets under development during the year.		
2	Net cash used in operating activity is determined after adjusting the following:		
	Interest received	11,051.55	8,561.40
	Interest paid	6,848.01	4,751.14

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2019

In terms of our report attached For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELES LLP Chartered Accountants	in terms of our report attached For B. K. KHARE & CO. Chartered Accountants	For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of L&T Finance Holdings Limited			
Sanjiv V. Pilgaonkar Parther	Padmini Khare Kaicker Partner Membership no. 044784	S. V. Harlbhakti Nor-Executive Chairman (DIN: 00007347)	Dinanath Dubhashi Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer (DIN: 03545900)		
		Apurva Rathod Company Secretary	Sachinn Joshi Chief Finandai Officer		
Place : Mumbal Date : April 28, 2019	Place : Mumbai Date : April 28, 2019	Place : Mumbal Date : April 28, 2019			
	LET FINANCE HOLDINGS IF	MITED 00 Annual Rep	ori 2018-19 (0) 182		

# Independent Auditors' Report

#### To The Members of L&T FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED

#### **Report on the Standalone Financial Statements**

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of **L&T FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED** (the "Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

#### Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as amended ("Accounting Standards"), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

#### Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit.

In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder and the Order issued under section 143(11) of the Act.

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the standalone financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

#### Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Accounting Standards and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018, and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

#### **Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements**

- As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, that:
  - a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

- b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
- c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
- In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act.
- e) On the basis of the written representations received from the director of the Company and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Director is disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
- f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's

### For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

#### Sanjiv V. Pilgaonkar

Partner (Membership No. 39826) MUMBAI, May 3, 2018 internal financial controls over financial reporting.

- g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
  - The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.
  - The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses which have not been provided for in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
  - There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
- As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (the "Order") issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure B" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

#### For B.K. KHARE & CO.

Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No. 105102W)

#### Ravi Kapoor

Partner (Membership No. 040404) MUMBAI, May 3, 2018 97

# Annexure 'A' to the Independent Auditors' Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of L&T FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED (the "Company") as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

#### Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

#### Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

#### Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

#### Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

#### For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Sanjiv V. Pilgaonkar Partner (Membership No. 39826) MUMBAI, May 3, 2018

#### Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

#### For B.K. KHARE & CO.

Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No. 105102W)

#### Ravi Kapoor

Partner (Membership No. 040404) MUMBAI, May 3, 2018

# Annexure 'B' to the Independent Auditors' Report

#### (Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report of even date)

100

- (i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.
  - (b) The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.
  - (C) The Company does not have any immovable properties of freehold or leasehold land and building and hence reporting under clause (i) (c) of the Order is not applicable.
- (ii) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause (ii) of the Order is not applicable.
- (iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.
- (iv) The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provide guarantees and hence reporting under clause (iv) of the Order is not applicable.
- (v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no order has been passed by the Company Law Board or the National Company Law Tribunal or the Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal.
- (vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.
- (vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

- (a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Value Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Company was not required to deposit or pay any dues in respect of Custom Duty, Excise Duty and corresponding cess during the year.
- (b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2018 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
- (c) There are no dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Goods and Service Tax and Value Added Tax as on March 31, 2018 on account of disputes.
- (viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions, banks and government. The Company has not issued any debentures.
- (ix) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause (ix) of the Order is not applicable.
- (x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.
- (xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid/provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

- (xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.
- (xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is in compliance with Section 188 and 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable Accounting Standards.
- (xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has made preferential allotment of shares during the year under review.

In respect of the above issue, we further report that:

- a) the requirement of Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable, have been complied with; and
- b) the amounts raised have been applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the funds were raised, other than temporary deployment pending application.
- (xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with him and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.
- (xvi) The Company is required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and it has obtained the registration.

### For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

#### Sanjiv V. Pilgaonkar Partner (Membership No. 39826)

(Membership No. 39826) MUMBAI, May 3, 2018

#### For B.K. KHARE & CO. Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No. 105102W)

inns negistration no.

#### Ravi Kapoor Partner

(Membership No. 040404) MUMBAI, May 3, 2018

# Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018

-				1.000 CO. 1000 CO.	1-2		100 - Colorador Andre	(₹ in Lakh
				Note No	As at Marc	h 31, 2018	As at Marc	h 31, 2017
10		AND LIABILITIES:						
1	123327	areholders' funds		2				
	20.5	Share capital		2	303,007.70		296,912.19	
		Reserves and surplus		3	562,149.65		223,653.58	
	(C)	Money received against sh	are warrants	4			11,806.88	F33 373 6
2	C	rent liabilities				865,157.35		532,372.6
2		Short term borrowings		5	40,496.06		97,390.14	
		Other current liabilities		6				
	0.00	Short term provisions		7	7,629.72		7,579.64 433.70	
	(0)	short term provisions		· ·	300.90	48,706.68	455.70	105,403.4
TO	TAL				2	913,864.03	a	637,776.1
0.023	SETS					515,004.05	6	037,770.1.
1		n current assets						
8		Property, plant and equipm	nent	8	0.67		1.00	
		Intangible assets		8	-		2.13	
		Non current investments		9	784,038.71		537,403.38	
	200	Deferred tax assets (net)		10	196.43		935.43	
	1000	Long term loans and advar	nces	11	3,434,39		4,684.03	
	1-1	Long term loans and bara		10000	3,131.25	787,670,20	1,001.00	543,025.9
2	Cur	rent assets						170.090 80.280.042
	(a)	Current investments		12	-		27,013.92	
	(b)	Cash and bank balances		13	1,226.65		221.57	
	(c)	Short term loans and adva	nces	14	100,613.37		58,367.40	
	(d)	Other current assets		15	24,353.81		9,147.27	
				20000		126,193.83		94,750.1
TO	TAL					913,864.03		637,776.13
		ompanying notes forming pa statements	art of the	1 to 22				
For	DELC	of our report attached DITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP d Accountants	In terms of ou For B. K. KHJ Chartered Acc Firm's registra by the hand o	ARE & CO. countants tion no. 1051	L&T Fina	on behalf of ance Holdings		Directors of
San Part	- 10 C - 10 C	Pilgaonkar	Ravi Kapoor Partner Membership r		S. V. Hai Non-Exe (DIN: 00	cutive Chairma	n Managing	Dubhashi Director & utive Officer (5900)
					<b>Apurva</b> Compan	Rathod y Secretary	Sachinn J Chief Fina	<b>oshi</b> ncial Officer
		umbai ay 3, 2018	Place : Mumb Date : May 3,		Place : N Date : M	lumbai ay 3, 2018		

# 103

						(₹ in Lakh
		Note No	Year er March 31		Year ei March 31	
RE	VENUE					
1	Revenue from operations	16	44,993.34		27,757.57	
2	Other income	17	2,843.77		3,731.42	
3	Total Revenue (1+2)			47,837.11		31,488.99
EXI	PENSES					
4	Employee benefits expense	18	472.00		1,156.99	
5	Finance costs	19	6,587.18		4,591.56	
6	Depreciation and amortisation	8	2.47		5.13	
7	Administration and other expen	nses 20	1,109.59		1,090.33	
8	Provisions and contingencies	21	197.52		134.25	
9	Total expenses (4+5+6+7+8)			8,368.76		6,978.20
10	Profit before tax (3-9)		-	39,468.35	-	24,510.73
11	Tax expense:					
	- Current tax		700.58		512.25	
	- MAT credit entitlement		ар С		(835.87)	
	- Deferred tax		739.00		(31.82)	
	- Short provision relating to earlier years Total provision for tax		1,244.94		25	(355.44)
				2,684.52		
12	Profit after tax (10-11)			36,783.83		24,866.17
Ear	nings per equity share:	22.5	-		-	
Bas	ic earnings per equity share (₹)			1.51		0.71
Dilu	uted earnings per equity share (₹	)		1.49		0.70
Fac	e value per equity share (₹)			10.00		10.00
	accompanying notes forming pancial statements	art of the 1 to 22				
For	erms of our report attached DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP artered Accountants	In terms of our report attach For B. K. KHARE & CO. Chartered Accountants Firm's registration no. 10510 by the hand of	L&T Fina	on behalf of th nce Holdings L		irectors of
	<b>ijiv V. Pilgaonkar</b> Iner	Ravi Kapoor Partner Membership no. 040404	S. V. Hari Non-Exec (DIN: 000	utive Chairman	Dinanath Managing I Chief Exect (DIN: 0354)	Director & Itive Officer
			Apurva I Company	Rathod / Secretary	Sachinn Jo Chief Finan	
	e : Mumbai	Place : Mumbai	Place : M			
112372	e : May 3, 2018	Date : May 3, 2018	Date : Ma	ay 3, 2018		

# Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2018

L&T Finance Holdings Limited

# Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2018

		Year ended	Year ended
	Call Handbarran	March 31, 2018	March 31, 2017
<b>A</b> .		70,150,75	24 540 77
	Profit before tax as per statement of profit and loss	39,468.35	24,510.73
	Adjustment for:		
	Provision on standard assets	197.52	115.64
	Provision and MTM (gain)/loss on current investments		18.61
	Provision for gratuity	(41.61)	39.07
	Provision for compensated absences	(54.39)	130.62
	Provision for superannuation fund	19.50	65.56
	Depreciation and amortisation	2.47	5.13
	Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment	-	(2.00
	Profit on sale of investments	(521.87)	(1,712.38)
	Expense on employee stock option scheme	41.93	63.63
	Operating profit before working capital changes	39,111.90	23,234.61
	Changes in working capital		
	Increase in current and non current assets	(56,457.63)	(37,549.74
	Increase in current and non current liabilities and provisions	2,249.16	2,423.74
	Net cash used in operations	(15,096.57)	(11,891.39
	Direct taxes paid (net)	(695.88)	(890.71
	Net cash used in operating activities (A)	(15,792.45)	(12,782.10)
3.	Cash flows from investing activities		
	Current investments not considered as cash and cash equivalents		
	- Purchased	(306,047.45)	(373,375.00
	- Proceeds from sale	333,583.23	398,487.57
	Purchase of long-term investments in subsidiaries	(246,635.33)	(31,235.00
	Proceed from sale of long term investments	-	500.00
	Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment, including capital advances	-	(0.43
	Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment	-	21.36
	Net cash used in investing activities (B)	(219,099.55)	(5,601.50)

104

105

				(₹ in lakh)
			Year ended March 31, 2018	Year ended March 31, 2017
C.	Cash flows from financing a	ctivities		
	Proceeds from issue of share ca	338,597.44	1,149.76	
	Proceeds from short term borro	wings (net)	(56,894.08)	37,630.97
	Share issue expenses	(1,853.13)	32	
	Dividend paid on equity shares	(14,573.70)	(14,032.97)	
	Dividend paid on preference sh	(9,306.55)	(10,338.95)	
	Dividend tax paid on cumulativ	(2,104.46)	15	
	Redemption of preference shar	(17,900.00)	302	
	Net cash generated from fin	235,965.52	14,408.81	
	Net increase/(decrease) in ca	1,073.52	(3,974.79)	
	Cash and cash equivalents as a	52.89	4,027.68	
	Cash and cash equivalents a	1,126.41	52.89	
	Components of cash and cas			
	Cash and bank balances		1,226.65	221.57
	Less: Earmarked accounts		100.24	168.68
	With banks - in current accoun	ts	1,126.41	52.89
	See accompanying notes formi	ng part of the financial statements		
No	tes:			
1.1	Net cash used in operating activit	ies includes:		
	Interest received		6,350.48	4,962.68
	Dividend received		23,920.35	22,633.20
	Interest paid		3,041.44	1,533.78
2.1	Previous year figures have been re	grouped/reclassified wherever applicable		
For	erms of our report attached DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP artered Accountants	The second se	n behalf of the Boar ce Holdings Limited	김 씨가 아가 잘 잘 즐거거지? 성격의

# Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2018

Chartered Accountants Sanjiv V. Pilgaonkar

Partner

Ravi Kapoor Partner Membership no. 040404

by the hand of

Firm's registration no. 105102W

S. V. Haribhakti Non-Executive Chairman (DIN: 00007347)

**Dinanath Dubhashi** Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer

(DIN: 03545900)

Sachinn Joshi

**Chief Financial Officer** 

### Apurva Rathod

Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai Date : May 3, 2018 Place : Mumbai Date : May 3, 2018 Place : Mumbai Date : May 3, 2018

# Independent Auditors' Report

# TO THE MEMBERS OF L&T FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED

# Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of L&T FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as the "Holding Company") and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as the "Group") which includes the Group's share of profit in its associate, comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the consolidated financial statements").

# Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as "the Act") that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its Associate in accordance with the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as amended ("Accounting Standards"), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group

and of its associate are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and its associate and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

### Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

137

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding Company's preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding Company's Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in sub-paragraphs (a)of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

### Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries and associate referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Accounting Standards and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2018, and their consolidated profit and their consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

### **Other Matters**

- (a) We did not audit the financial statements of 7 subsidiaries whose financial statements reflect total assets of ₹121,311.08 lakh as at March 31, 2018, total revenues of ₹79,748.83 lakh and net cash inflows amounting to ₹883.79 lakh for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and associate, and our report in terms of subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and associate is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.
- (b) The consolidated financial statements also include the Group's share of net profit of ₹83.39 lakh for the year ended March 31, 2018, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of an associate, whose financial information have not been audited by us. This financial information is unaudited and have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the

consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this associate, is based solely on such unaudited financial information. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the Management, this financial information is not material to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on other legal and regulatory requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

## Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements of subsidiaries, and associate, referred in the Other Matters paragraph above we report, to the extent applicable, that:

- (a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.
- (b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our

examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

- (c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
- (d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.
- (e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31, 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies and associate company, none of the directors of the Group companies, its associate company is disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
- (f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A", which is based on the auditors' reports of the Holding company, subsidiary companies and associate company. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy

139

and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and its associate company.

- (g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
  - The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated financial position of

### For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

### Sanjiv V. Pilgaonkar

Partner (Membership No. 39826) MUMBAI, May 3, 2018 the Group and its associate.

- The Group and its associate did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative contracts which have not been provided for in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
- There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies and associate company.

### For B.K. KHARE & CO.

Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No. 105102W)

#### Ravi Kapoor

Partner (Membership No. 040404) MUMBAI, May 3, 2018

# Annexure 'A' To the Independent Auditors' Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Subsection 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of **L&T FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED** (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company"), its subsidiary companies and its associate company as of that date.

### Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, its subsidiary companies and its associate company are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

### Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain from audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have Obtained from the other auditors of the subsidiary companies and associate company, in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate company.

### Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

### Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control

#### For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Sanjiv V. Pilgaonkar Partner (Membership No. 39826) MUMBAI, May 3, 2018 over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

### Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate company, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018. based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

#### **Other Matters**

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting in so far as it relates to 7 subsidiary companies and an associate company, is based solely on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

### For B.K. KHARE & CO.

Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No. 105102W)

#### Ravi Kapoor

Partner (Membership No. 040404) MUMBAI, May 3, 2018 142

# Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018

		N	ote No	As at March	1 31, 2018	As at Marc	(₹ in lak h 31. 2017
equ	ITY AND LIABILITIES:						
	reholders' funds						
а)	Share capital		2	303,007.70		296,912.20	
b)	Reserves and surplus		3	1,055,419.86		602,014.70	
	Money received against share warra	nts	4			11,806.88	
					1,358,427.56	17	910,733.78
/in	ority interest				12,314.01		11,856.64
	-current liabilities				12,011.01		11,000.01
3)	Long-term borrowings		5	5,104,324.48		4,323,034.62	
	Deferred tax liabilities (net)		6	261.75		238.87	
)	Other long-term liabilities		7			73,205.64	
í)	Long-term provisions		8	42,389.44 28,045.18		26,382.84	
1/	cong-term provisions		0	20,045.10	E 175 000 95	20,302.04	4 433 961 07
	ent liabilities				5,175,020.85		4,422,861.97
			9	1 000 305 51		1 176 400 02	
	Short-term borrowings	and the decision of the		1,080,295.51		1,176,409.93	
	Current maturities of long term borr	owings	5	973,085.39		481,660.93	
c)	Trade payables	2556 C24 C255 C C C C					
	- Total outstanding dues of micro en	terprises and		~		-	
	small enterprises	al at		100000		-	
	- Total outstanding dues of creditors		10	16,964.33		7,263.62	
20	micro enterprises and small enterprise	ses	122				
d)	Other current liabilities		11	295,302.50		232,382.50	
2)	Short-term provisions		12	11,646,43		8,189.83	
					2,377,294.16		1,905,906.81
OT					8,923,056.58		7,251,359.20
	ETS:						
on	-current assets						
)	Property, plant and equipment		13	46,657.46		58,046.39	
)	Intangible assets		13	1,964.95		1,049.31	
)	Capital work-in-progress			3,900.18		2,596.75	
i)	Intangible assets under developmen	t		591.43		192.42	
a)	Goodwill on consolidation			63,891.06		63,891.06	
5	Non-current investments		14	256,281.14		217,601.95	
1)	Deferred tax assets (net)		15	98,632.07		74,262.65	
n)	Long-term loans and advances		16	82,965.53		58,887.42	
5	Long-term loans and advances towards fi	nancing activities	17	6,269,418.07		4,933,479.05	
ý	Other non-current assets	nanoing acaviacs	18	29,204.01		36,514.74	
ñ., .	offer non editeric asses		10		6,853,505.90	20,214.74	5,446,521.74
	ent assets				0,000,000.00		5,440,521.74
2021	Current investments		10	220.051.02		202 551 16	
-201			19	228,051.92		383,551.16	
D)	Trade receivables		20	12,650.56		7,884.92	
c)	Cash and bank balances		21	106,330.61		59,438.28	
d)	Short-term loans and advances	1.6	22	20,116.20		11,840.71	
	Short-term loans and advances tow	ards financing	23	186,647.36		217,124.52	
2)						U.C.	
	activities					1,014,246.42	
	activities Current maturities of long term loan		17	1,373,856.57		1,011,210.12	
)	activities Current maturities of long term loar advances towards financing activitie					9.054.01.05355555600	
)	activities Current maturities of long term loan		17 24	141,897.46		110,751.45	
() 3)	activities Current maturities of long term loar advances towards financing activitie Other current assets			141,897.46	2,069,550.68	110,751.45	1,804,837.46
) 3) OT.	activities Current maturities of long term loar advances towards financing activitie Other current assets AL	S	24	141,897.46	2,069,550.68 <b>8,923,056.58</b>	110,751.45	1,804,837.46 <b>7,251,359.20</b>
) )) OT.	activities Current maturities of long term loar advances towards financing activitie Other current assets	S	24	141,897.46	2,069,550.68 <b>8,923,056.58</b>	110,751.45	1,804,837.46 7,251,359.20
) p) OT.	activities Current maturities of long term loar advances towards financing activitie Other current assets AL companying notes forming part of the fin	s ancial statements 1	24 to 31	<u>141,897.46</u>	8,923,056.58	<u>110,751.45</u>	7,251,359.20
) ot ee a	activities Current maturities of long term loar advances towards financing activitie Other current assets AL	S	24 to 31	141,897.46	8,923,056.58	110,751.45	7,251,359.20
) ot. ee a	activities Current maturities of long term loar advances towards financing activitie Other current assets AL companying notes forming part of the fin rms of our report attached	ancial statements 1 In terms of our r For B. K. KHAR Chartered Accoo	24 to 31 eport at E & CO. intants	141,897.46 	8,923,056.58	110,751.45	7,251,359.20
) OT. ee a	activities Current maturities of long term loar advances towards financing activitie Other current assets AL companying notes forming part of the fin rms of our report attached DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP	ancial statements 1 In terms of our r For B. K. KHAR Chartered Accou Firm's registratio	24 to 31 eport at E & CO. intants	141,897.46 	8,923,056.58	110,751.45	7,251,359.20
) ot. ee a or l	activities Current maturities of long term loar advances towards financing activitie Other current assets AL companying notes forming part of the fin rms of our report attached DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP	ancial statements 1 In terms of our r For B. K. KHAR Chartered Accoo	24 to 31 eport at E & CO. intants	141,897.46 	8,923,056.58	110,751.45	7,251,359.20
f) OT. ee a or l chan	activities Current maturities of long term loar advances towards financing activitie Other current assets AL accompanying notes forming part of the fin rms of our report attached DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP rered Accountants	ancial statements 1 In terms of our r For B. K. KHAR Chartered Accou Firm's registratio	24 to 31 eport at E & CO. intants	<u>141,897.46</u> tached <b>For a</b> <b>L&amp;T F</b> 15102W	8,923,056.58	110,751.45 of Board of th hgs Limited Dinanat	7,251,359.20 e Directors c h Dubhashi
) ot. or l har	activities Current maturities of long term loar advances towards financing activitie Other current assets AL accompanying notes forming part of the fin rms of our report attached DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP rered Accountants	ancial statements 1 In terms of our r For B. K. KHAR Chartered Accou Firm's registratio by the hand of Ravi Kapoor Partner	24 to 31 eport at E & CO. intants n no. 10	141,897.46 tached For ar L&T F 15102W S. V. I Non-E	8,923,056.58 nd on behalf inance Holdir Haribhakti xecutive Chain	110,751.45 of Board of th ngs Limited Dinanat Managin	7,251,359.20 e Directors of h Dubhashi g Director &
) ot. or l han	activities Current maturities of long term loar advances towards financing activitie Other current assets AL accompanying notes forming part of the fin rms of our report attached DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP rered Accountants	ancial statements 1 In terms of our r For B. K. KHAR Chartered Accou Firm's registratio by the hand of Ravi Kapoor	24 to 31 eport at E & CO. intants n no. 10	141,897.46 tached For ar L&T F 15102W S. V. I Non-E	8,923,056.58 nd on behalf inance Holdir Iarib <mark>ha</mark> kti	110,751.45 of Board of th ngs Limited man Dinanat Managin Chief Exe	7,251,359.20 e Directors of h Dubhashi g Director & ecutive Officer
f) OT. ee a or l chan	activities Current maturities of long term loar advances towards financing activitie Other current assets AL accompanying notes forming part of the fin rms of our report attached DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP rered Accountants	ancial statements 1 In terms of our r For B. K. KHAR Chartered Accou Firm's registratio by the hand of Ravi Kapoor Partner	24 to 31 eport at E & CO. intants n no. 10	141,897.46 tached For ar L&T F 15102W S. V. I Non-E	8,923,056.58 nd on behalf inance Holdir Haribhakti xecutive Chain	110,751.45 of Board of th ngs Limited Dinanat Managin	7,251,359.20 e Directors of h Dubhashi g Director & ecutive Officer
f) OT. ee a or l chan	activities Current maturities of long term loar advances towards financing activitie Other current assets AL accompanying notes forming part of the fin rms of our report attached DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP rered Accountants	ancial statements 1 In terms of our r For B. K. KHAR Chartered Accou Firm's registratio by the hand of Ravi Kapoor Partner	24 to 31 eport at E & CO. intants n no. 10	141,897.46 tached For at 15102W S. V. H Non-E (DIN: 1	8,923,056.58 nd on behalf inance Holdir Haribhakti xecutive Chain 20007347)	110,751.45 of Board of th ngs Limited man Dinanat Managin Chief Exe (DIN :035	7,251,359.20 e Directors of h Dubhashi g Director & coutive Officer 645900)
f) OT. ee a or l chan	activities Current maturities of long term loar advances towards financing activitie Other current assets AL accompanying notes forming part of the fin rms of our report attached DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP rered Accountants	ancial statements 1 In terms of our r For B. K. KHAR Chartered Accou Firm's registratio by the hand of Ravi Kapoor Partner	24 to 31 eport at E & CO. intants n no. 10	141,897.46 tached For ai L&T F 15102W S. V. I Non-E (DIN: 1	8,923,056.58 nd on behalf inance Holdir Haribhakti xecutive Chain 20007347) va Rathod	110,751.45 of Board of th ngs Limited man Dinanat Managin Chief Exe (DIN :03! Sachinn	7,251,359.20 e Directors of g Director & coutive Officer 645900) Joshi
() OT, ee a or l chai anti artr	activities Current maturities of long term loar advances towards financing activitie Other current assets AL accompanying notes forming part of the fin rms of our report attached DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP tered Accountants iv V. Pilgaonkar her	ancial statements <b>1</b> In terms of our r <b>For B. K. KHAR</b> Chartered Accou Firm's registratio by the hand of <b>Ravi Kapoor</b> Partner Membership no.	24 to 31 eport at E & CO. intants n no. 10	141,897.46 tached For ar 15102W S. V. I Non-E (DIN: 1 Comp	8,923,056.58 nd on behalf inance Holdir Haribhakti xecutive Chain 00007347) va Rathod any Secretary	110,751.45 of Board of th ngs Limited man Dinanat Managin Chief Exe (DIN :03! Sachinn	7,251,359.20 e Directors of h Dubhashi g Director & coutive Officer 645900)
n te or l har anj	activities Current maturities of long term loar advances towards financing activitie Other current assets AL accompanying notes forming part of the fin rms of our report attached DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP rered Accountants	ancial statements 1 In terms of our r For B. K. KHAR Chartered Accou Firm's registratio by the hand of Ravi Kapoor Partner	24 to 31 eport at E & CO. Intants n no. 10 040404	141,897.46 For al L&T F 15102W S. V. I Non-E (DIN: 1 Comp Place	8,923,056.58 nd on behalf inance Holdir Haribhakti xecutive Chain 20007347) va Rathod	110,751.45 of Board of th ngs Limited man Dinanat Managin Chief Exe (DIN :03! Sachinn	h Dubhashi g Director & cutive Officer 545900) Joshi

143

# Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2018

	Note No	Year e		Year en	
		March 3	1, 2018	March 31	, 2017
INCOME:					
Revenue from operations	25	1,002,103.36		834,058.85	
Other income	26	47,890.72		23,172.16	
Total Income			1,049,994.08		857,231.01
EXPENSES:					
Finance costs	27	532,610.70		462,703.21	
Employee benefits expense	28	50,344.14		49,352.16	
Administration and other expenses	29	98,189.31		71,565.74	
Allowances and write offs	30	189,674.89		158,989.73	
Depreciation and amortisation		5,192.65		6,729.98	
Total expenses			876,011.69		749,340.82
Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and taxes	91		173,982.39		107,890.19
Exceptional items					-
Profit before extraordinary items and taxes			173,982.39		107,890.19
Extraordinary items					-
Profit before tax			173,982.39		107,890.19
Tax expense:					
Current tax		51,846.99		39,923.15	
MAT credit entitlement		(1,214.67)		(2,183.30)	
Deferred tax		(24,346.54)		(34,096.18)	
Short provision relating to earlier years		1,197.52		5	
Tax expense			27,483.30		3,643.67
Profit after tax			146,499.09		104,246.52
Add: share in profit of associate company			83.39		574.73
Less: share of minority interest			633.68		602.58
Profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of the company			145,948.80	0	104,218.67
Earnings per equity share:					
Basic earnings per equity share before and after extraordinary items (₹)			7.49		5.21
Diluted earnings per equity share before and after extraordinary items (₹)			7.42		5.14
Face value per equity share (₹)			10.00		10.00
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements	1 to 31				
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP For B. I Chartered Accountants Charter Firm's n	ed Account	CO. L	or and on behal &T Finance Hold		ne Directors o

Sanjiv V. Pilgaonkar Partner **Ravi Kapoor** Partner Membership no.040404 S. V. Haribhakti Non-Executive Chairman (DIN: 00007347)

Place : Mumbai Date : May 3, 2018 Place : Mumbai Date : May 3, 2018 Apurva Rathod Company Secretary

Company Secretary C Place : Mumbai Date : May 3, 2018

Dinanath Dubhashi Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer (DIN :03545900)

Sachinn Joshi Chief Financial Officer 144

L&T Finance Holdings Limited

# Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2018

			(₹ in lakh
		Year ended March 31, 2018	Year ended March 31, 2017
A.	Cash flow from operating activities		
	Profit before tax	173,982.39	107,890.19
	Adjustments for:		
	Depreciation and amortisation	5,192.65	6,729.98
	(Profit)/ Loss on sale of investments (net)	(20,813.52)	(8,732.88
	(Profit)/ Loss on sale of property, plant and equipments (net)	207.96	1,311.89
	Provision for diminution in value of investments	6,107.22	3,936.4
	Loss on foreclosure of loans and bad debts write offs	108,273.21	40,003.32
	Provision for non-performing assets	67,905.08	76,282.3
	Provision for advances and receivables	(37.65)	85.3
	Provision for standard assets	9,666.02	39,670.86
	Provision for restructured assets	(2,238.99)	(988.55
	Expense on employee stock option scheme	1,036.81	72.5
	Operating profit before working capital changes	349,281.18	266,261.4
	Changes in working capital		
	(Increase)/ Decrease in trade and other receivables and advances	(44,585.01)	(41,600.33
	Increase/ (Decrease) in trade and other payables	40,028.59	(7,336.27
	Cash generated from operations	344,724.76	217,324.8
	Direct taxes paid	(64,914.17)	(53,167.17
	Loans disbursed (net of repayments)	(1,838,896.40)	(742,098.89
	Net cash used in operating activities (A)	(1,559,085.81)	(577,941.20
3.	Cash flow from investing activities		
	Add : Inflow from investing activities		
	Proceeds from sale of property, plants and equipment	10,898.95	3,194.8
	Sale of current investments	176,447.46	
		187,346.41	3,194.8
	Less : Outflow from investing activities		
	Purchase of property, plants and equipment (including capital work in progress)	8,325.45	3,328.5
	Purchase of non current investments	24,139.99	126,652.6
	Purchase of current investments	1.00	84,968.0
		32,465.44	214,949.1
	Net cash from/(used in) investing activities (B)	154,880.97	(211,754.36

145

# Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2018

				(₹ in lakh)
			Year ended March 31, 2018	Year ended March 31, 2017
c.	Cash flow from financing act	ivities		
	Add : Inflow from financing a	activities		
	Proceeds from issue of share cap	pital including securities premiur	m 338,597.44	1,149.74
	Proceeds from issue of preference	ce share capital (Minority Interes	st) -	500.00
	Net proceeds from long term bo	rrowings	1,272,754.36	317,030.37
	Net proceeds from short term be	-	506,857.03	
		1,611,351.80	825,537.14	
	Less : Outflow from financing			
	Shares / Debenture issue expens	es	3,234.20	743.94
	Dividend paid (including dividen Minority Interest	d distribution tax) including	30,428.77	29,583.09
	Redemption of Preference share	s	17,900.00	×
	Net repayments towards short to	erm borrowings	96,114.42	-
			147,677.39	30,327.03
	Net cash from financing activ	ities (C)	1,463,674.41	795,210.11
	Net cash increase in cash and	cash equivalents (A+B+C)	59,469.57	5,514.55
	Cash and cash equivalents as at	beginning of the year	45,331.29	39,816.74
	Cash and cash equivalents as	at end of the year	104,800.86	45,331.29
	Reconciliation of Cash and Ca	sh Equivalents		
	Closing Balance as per Balance S	Sheet	106,330.61	59,438.28
	Less : Deposits with original mat	urity for more than 3 months	5.29	12,779.70
	Less : Earmarked balances		1,524.46	1,327.29
	Cash and cash equivalents as	at end of the year	104,800.86	45,331.29
No	tes:			
1.	Net cash used in operating activ	ities includes:		
	Interest received		856,140.18	742,366.37
	Dividend received		66.33	9
	Interest paid		475,113.63	428,915.33
For	erms of our report attached DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP Irtered Accountants	In terms of our report attached For B. K. KHARE & CO. Chartered Accountants Firm's registration no. 105102W by the hand of	For and on behalf of Boar L&T Finance Holdings Limi	d of the Directors of ited
San Part	<b>jiv V. Pilgaonkar</b> ner	Ravi Kapoor Partner Membership no.040404	Non-Executive Chairman M	inanath Dubhashi anaging Director & hief Executive Officer

Place : Mumbai Date : May 3, 2018

Place : Mumbai Date : May 3, 2018

# Apurva Rathod Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai Date : May 3, 2018

(DIN :03545900)

Sachinn Joshi Chief Financial Officer

# Independent Auditors' Report

92

# To the Members of L&T Finance Holdings Limited

### Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of **L&T FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED** ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

#### Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

#### Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit.

In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the standalone financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the branch auditors and other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

#### Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2017, and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

#### **Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements**

- As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit,we report, to the extent applicable that:
  - We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
  - b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

- c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.
- In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act.
- e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
- f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting.
- g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our

### For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

# Sanjiv V. Pilgaonkar

Partner (Membership No. 39826) Mumbai, May 4, 2017 opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

- The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.
- The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.
- There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
- iv. The Company did not have any holdings or dealings in Specified Bank Notes as defined in the Notification 5.O. 3407(E) dated the 8th November, 2016 of the Ministry of Finance, during the period from 8th November, 2016 to 30th December, 2016.
- As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the CARO 2016 Order") issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure B" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

# For B.K. KHARE & CO.

Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No. 105102W)

# Ravi Kapoor

Partner (Membership No. 040404) Mumbai, May 4, 2017 93

# Annexure 'A' to the Independent Auditors' Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of **L&T FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED** ("the Company") as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

#### Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

#### Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

#### Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

#### Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Opinion **Over Financial Reporting**

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

### For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Sanjiv V. Pilgaonkar Partner (Membership No. 39826) Mumbai, May 4, 2017

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

### For B.K. KHARE & CO.

Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No. 105102W)

#### Ravi Kapoor

Partner (Membership No. 040404) Mumbai, May 4, 2017

# Annexure 'B' to the Independent Auditors' Report

### (Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report of even date)

- (i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.
  - (b) The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.
  - (c) The Company does not have any immovable properties of freehold or leasehold land and building and hence reporting under clause (i)
     (c) of the CARO 2016 Order is not applicable.
- The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause (ii) of the CARO 2016 Order is not applicable.
- (iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.
- (iv) The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provide guarantees and hence reporting under clause (iv) of the CARO 2016 Order is not applicable.
- (v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no order has been passed by the Company Law Board or the National Company Law Tribunal or the Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal.
- (vi) Having regard to the nature of the Company's business / activities, reporting under clause (vi) the CARO 2016 Order is not applicable.
- (vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

- (a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Income-tax, Service Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Company was not required to deposit or pay any dues in respect of Employees' State Insurance, Sales Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax and corresponding cess.
- (b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Income-tax, Service Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2017 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
- (c) There are no dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty and Value Added Tax as on March 31, 2017 on account of disputes.
- (viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions, banks and government. The Company has not issued any debentures.
- (ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised by way of initial public offer/ further public offer (including debt instruments) and the term loans have been applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which they were raised.
- (x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.
- (xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

- (xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the CARO 2016 Order is not applicable.
- (xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is in compliance with Section 188 and 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.
- (xiv) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of

### For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

#### Sanjiv V. Pilgaonkar

Partner (Membership No. 39826) Mumbai, May 4, 2017 shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv) of CARO 2016 Order is not applicable to the Company.

- (xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with him and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.
- (xvi) The Company is required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and it has obtained the registration.

#### For B.K. KHARE & CO.

Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No. 105102W)

#### Ravi Kapoor

Partner (Membership No. 040404) Mumbai, May 4, 2017

# Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017

				Note No	As at Ma	ch 31, 2017	As at Marc	(₹ in lakh) h 31, 2016
EO	UITY	AND LIABILITIES:		note no	AS at ma		As at marci	1 3 1/ 2010
1		areholders' funds						
5		Share capital		2	296,912.1	9	296,679.86	
		Reserves and surplus		3	223,653.5		210,247.25	
	(c)		e warrants		11,806.8		11,806.88	
	1-1			0 9774 o		532,372.65		518,733.99
2	No	n current liabilities						
	(a)	Other long-term liabilities		5		-	13.58	
	(b)	Long term provisions		6		a .	0.96	
								14.54
3	1.1.1	rrent liabilities		822.1	1000000000			
		Short term borrowings		7	97,390.1		59,759.17	
		Other current liabilities		8	5,418.8		1,890.48	
	(C)	Short term-provisions		9	2,594.5		15,087.75	
						105,403.48		76,737.40
	TAL					637,776.13	a a <del>t</del>	595,485.93
45	SETS	n - Current assets						
		Fixed assets		10				
	(4)	(i) Tangible assets		10	1.0	n	21.39	
		(ii) Intangible assets			2.1		5.79	
		(ii) interigible disces			3.1	and the second se	27.18	
	(b)	Non-current investments		11	537,403.3		506,668.39	
	10000	Deferred tax assets (net)		12	935.4		903.61	
		Long term loans and advance	es	13	4,684.0	3	3,789.70	
						543,025.97		511,388.88
2	Cur	rrent assets						
	(a)	Current Investments		14	27,013.9	2	50,432.72	
	(b)	Cash and bank balances		15	221.5	7	4,027.68	
	(c)	Short term loans and advand	tes	16	58,367.4	0	29,188.36	
	(d)	Other current assets		17	9,147.2		448.29	
						94,750.16	( <del>-</del>	84,097.05
	TAL			1. S.		637,776.13		595,485.93
		ompanying Notes forming par I statements	t of the	1 to 24				
n t Fo	terms r DEL	of our report attached OITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP ed Accountants	For B. K. I Chartered	Accountants stration no. 1	. L&	and on behal I Finance Hold		directors of
	<b>njiv V</b> rtner	/. Pilgaonkar	Ravi Kapo Partner		Ch	1. Deosthalee airperson N :00001698)	Managing	<b>Dubhashi</b> g Director & cutive Office 45900)
						<b>urva Rathod</b> mpany Secretar	Sachinn Chief Fina	<b>Joshi</b> ancial Officer
		1umbai Iay 4, 2017	Place : Mu Date : May	2020-2020-2020-2020-2020-2020-2020-202		ce : Mumbai ce : May 4, 2013	7	

99

		No. 1	¥-	an a		(₹ in lakh
		Note No		ar ended h 31, 2017	Year ei March 3	
REV	ENUE					
1.	Revenue from operations	18	27,757	.57	34,850.26	
2.	Other income	19	3,731	.42	7,894.84	
3.	Total Revenue (1+2)			31,488.99		42,745.10
EXP	ENSES					
4.	Employee benefits expense	20	1,156	.99	2,032.63	
5.	Finance costs	21	4,591	.56	2,707.87	
5.	Depreciation and amortisation		5	.13	13.26	
7.	Administration and other expense	es <b>22</b>	1,090	.33	1,202.37	
8.	Provisions and contingencies	23	134	.25	(20.32)	
9.	Total Expenses (4+5+6+7+8)		0	6,978.26		5,935.8
10.	Profit before tax (3-9)			24,510.73	5	36,809.2
11.	Tax expense:					
	- Current tax		512	.25	2,249.12	
	- MAT credit entitlement		(835.	87)	(2,492.67)	
	- Deferred tax		(31.	82)	(750.82)	
Tota	l provision for tax			(355.44)		(994.37
12.	Profit after tax (10-11)			24,866.17		37,803.6
Earr	nings Per Equity Share:	24.5		-		
Basi	c earnings per equity share (₹)			0.71		1.2
Dilu	ted earnings per equity share (₹)			0.70		1.25
Face	value per equity share (₹)			10.00		10.00
	accompanying Notes forming par ncial statements	t of the 1 to 24				ŕ
For	rms of our report attached DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP tered Accountants	In terms of our report a For B. K. KHARE & CO Chartered Accountants Firm's registration no. 1 by the hand of	). L	or and on behalt &T Finance Hold		directors of
Sanj Parti	<b>iv V. Pilgaon<mark>kar</mark> ner</b>	<b>Ravi Kapoor</b> Partner Membership no. 04040	C	.M. Deosthalee hairperson DIN :00001698)	Managing	Dubhashi Director & cutive Office 45900)
			1716	And the second second second	Contraction of	100000
				purva Rathod	Sachinn J Chief Fina	ncial Officer

# Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

100

L&T Finance Holdings Limited

# Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

		Year ended	(₹ in lakh) Year ended
		March 31, 2017	
Α.	Cash flow from operating activities		
	Profit/(loss) before tax as per statement of profit and loss	24,510.73	36,809.29
	Adjustment for:		
	Provision on standard assets	115.64	(20.32
	Provision and MTM loss on Current Investments	18.61	
	Provision for Leave Encashment	130.62	299.30
	Provision for Gratuity	39.07	415.04
	Provision for Superannuation	65.56	65.56
	Depreciation and amortisation	5.13	13.26
	Profit on sale of Fixed Assets	(2.00)	2
	Profit on sale of Mutual Fund	(1,712.38)	(6,498.55
	Expense on employee stock option scheme	63.63	36.72
	Operating profit before working capital changes	23,234.61	31,120.30
	Changes in working capital		
	(Increase)/ Decrease in current and non current assets	(37,549.74)	15,542.98
	Increase/ (Decrease) in current and non current liabilities and provisions	2,592.42	449.25
	Cash generated from operations	(11,722.71)	47,112.5
	Direct taxes paid	(890.71)	(1,484.99
	Net cash generated/ (used) in operating activities (A)	(12,613.42)	45,627.58
B.	Cash flows from investing activities	-a	
	Add : Inflows from investing activities		
	Sale of current investments (net)	398,487.57	11,425,150.66
	Sale of Fixed Assets	21.36	0.0
	Sale of long term investment	500.00	18,175.09
		399,008.93	11,443,325.82
	Less : Outflow for investing activities		
	Investment in subsidiary companies	31,235.00	41,255.40
	Purchase of current investments (net)	373,375.00	11,442,086.00
	Purchases of fixed assets	0.43	0.0
		404,610.43	11,483,341.53
	Net cash from/(used in) investing activities (B)	(5,601.50)	(40,015.71)

101

# Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

			(₹ in lakh)
		Year ended March 31, 2017	Year ended March 31, 2016
C.	Cash flows from financing activities		
	Add : Inflows from financing activities		
	Proceeds from issue of share capital including securities premium	1,149.76	59,246.61
	Proceeds from issue of share warrants	-	11,806.88
	Proceeds from short term borrowings (net)	37,630.97	5,052.34
		38,780.73	76,105.83
	Less : Outflows for financing activities		
	Share/Debenture issue expenses	-	826.21
	Dividend paid (including dividend distribution tax)	24,371.92	29,975.80
	Redemption of Preference Shares	-	50,000.00
		24,371.92	80,802.01
	Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities (C)	14,408.81	(4,696.18)
	Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)	(3,806.11)	915.69
	Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the year	4,027.68	3,111.99
	Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the year*	221.57	4,027.68
	See accompanying Notes forming part of the financial statements		
No	tes:	1	(₹ in lakh
1.	Net cash used in operating activities is determined after adjusting the following:	2	
	Interest received	4,962.68	4,323.31
	Dividend received	22,633.20	30,197.85
	Interest paid	1,533.78	2,861.92
2.	Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever applicable		
* ir	ncludes balances in earmarked accounts ₹ 168.68 lakhs (Previous balance ₹ 6	599.33 lakhs)	

In terms of our report attached For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP Chartered Accountants	In terms of our report attached For B. K. KHARE & CO. Chartered Accountants Firm's registration no. 105102W by the hand of	For and on behalf of board of directors of L&T Finance Holdings Limited	
<b>Sanjiv V. Pilgaonkar</b> Partner	Ravi Kapoor Partner Membership no. 040404	Y.M. Deosthalee Chairperson (DIN :00001698)	Dinanath Dubhashi Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer (DIN :03545900)
		Apurva Rathod Company Secretary	Sachinn Joshi Chief Financial Officer
Place : Mumbai Date : May 4, 2017	Place : Mumbai Date : May 4, 2017	Place : Mumbai Date : May 4, 2017	

133

# Independent Auditors' Report

# To the Members of L&T Finance Holdings Limited

### Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of **L&T FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED** (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company") and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group") and its associate, comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the consolidated financial statements").

### Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as "the Act") that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its Associate in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and its associate and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

### Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding Company's preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding Company's Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in sub-paragraphs (a) and (b) of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

### Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries and associate referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its associate as at 31st March, 2017, and their consolidated profit and their consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

#### **Other Matters**

(a) We did not audit the financial statements of 8 subsidiaries whose financial statements/ financial information reflect total assets of ₹ 111,513.12 lakh as at March 31, 2017, total revenues of ₹ 45,176.86 lakh and net cash inflows amounting to ₹ 3,113.61 lakh for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements also include the Group's share of net profit of ₹ 574.64 lakh for the year ended March 31, 2017, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of an associate, whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements. in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and associate, and our report in terms of subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and associate is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

#### Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries and associate referred in the Other Matters paragraph above we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

- (b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.
- (c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
- (d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.
- (e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31, 2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies and associate company, none of the directors of the Group companies and its associate company is disqualified as on March 31, 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
- (f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A", which is based on the auditors' reports of the Holding company, subsidiary companies and associate company. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Holding company's, subsidiary company's and associate company's internal financial controls over financial reporting.
- (g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
  - The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated financial position of the Group and its associate.

- The Group and its associate did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.
- There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies and associate company.
- iv. To the best of our information and according to the information and explanations given to us, we report that, except where, for reasons explained in note no. 31.17 to the consolidated financial statements, the disclosures by certain subsidiaries of the Group with regard to the Specified Bank Notes ("SBNs") were restricted to readily available information and also considering that certain amounts directly deposited into the bank accounts of those entities by their customers for which information

# For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

# Sanjiv V. Pilgaonkar

Partner (Membership No. 39826) Mumbai, May 4, 2017 relating to SBNs was not available with those entities were classified as "Permitted receipts/ Other Denomination Notes", the Parent Company has provided requisite disclosures in the consolidated financial statements as regards the Group entities' holding and dealings in SBNs , as defined in the Notification 5.O. 3407(E) dated 8th November, 2016, of the Ministry of Finance, during the period from November 9, 2016 to December 30, 2016. Based on audit procedures performed by us and the representations provided to us by the management, we report that the disclosures are in accordance with the relevant books of accounts maintained by those entities for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements, which, as the case may be, were produced before us and the other auditors by the managements of the respective Group entities.

### For B.K. KHARE & CO.

Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No. 105102W)

#### Ravi Kapoor

Partner (Membership No. 040404) Mumbai, May 4, 2017

# Annexure 'A' To the Independent Auditors' Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f)under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of **L&T FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED** (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company") and its subsidiary companies and its associate company as of that date.

#### Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, its subsidiary companies and its associate company, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

### Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal

financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by other auditors of the subsidiary companies and associate company, in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Holding Company, its subsidiary company and its associate company.

#### Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;

and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

#### Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

#### Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of other auditors

#### For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

### Sanjiv V. Pilgaonkar

Partner (Membership No. 39826) Mumbai, May 4, 2017 referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate company, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

### **Other Matters**

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to 8 subsidiary companies and an associate company is based solely on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

### For B.K. KHARE & CO.

Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No. 105102W)

### **Ravi Kapoor**

Partner (Membership No. 040404) Mumbai, May 4, 2017 138

# Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017

	Note N	o As at Man	ch 31, 2017	As at Marc	h 31, 2016
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES:	noten	s rus at mar		ris at marc	
Shareholders' funds					
Share capital	2	296,912.20	8	296,679.86	
	3				
Reserves and surplus		602,014.70		532,368.43	
Money received against share warrants	4	11,806.88		11,806.88	
			910,733.78		840,855.17
Minority interest			11,856.64		10,030.00
Non-current liabilities					
.ong-term borrowings	5	4,323,034.62	6	3,703,112.74	
Deferred tax liabilities	6	238.87		171.06	
Other long term liabilities	7	73,205.64		58,297.93	
	8				
ong-term provisions	0	26,382.84		34,620.05	2 706 201 76
			4,422,861.97		3,796,201.78
Current liabilities	11-11				
Short-term borrowings	9	1,176,409.93		669,552.90	
Current maturities of long term borrowii	ngs 5	481,660.93	E.	788,900.16	
Trade payables:	10	- 19 C			
Total outstanding dues of micro ente	provises and small		8		
	cronaca and anan				
enterprises Total outstanding dues of creditors	other than mine	7 363 67	13 C	6 970 97	
Total outstanding dues of creditors	other than micro	7,263.62		6,870.97	
enterprises and small enterprises					
Other current liabilities	11	230,278.04	R.	237,838.30	
Short-term provisions	12	10,294.29		29,856.65	
			1,905,906.81		1,733,018.98
TOTAL			7,251,359.20		6,380,105.93
ASSETS:				n 4	
Non-current assets					
Fixed assets	13				
	13	E0.046.30	8	CC TAD CC	
Tangible assets		58,046.39		66,549.66	
Intangible assets		1,049.31		826.30	
Capital work-in-progress		2,596.75	i i	2,218.74	
Intangible assets under development		192.42	<u>6</u>	23.14	
Goodwill on consolidation		63,891.06		63,891.06	
Non-current investments	14	267,601.95		134,000.64	
Deferred tax assets	15	74,262.65		40,098.74	
	16				
Long-term loans and advances		58,966.95		57,121.89	
Long-term loans and advances towards f		4,933,479.05		4,388,120.40	
Other non-current assets	18	36,435.21		31,970.09	
			5,496,521.74		4,784,820.66
Current assets					
Current investments	19	333,551.16	E.	222,326.72	
Trade receivables	20	7,884.92		2,669.12	
Cash and bank balances	21	59,438.28		40,153.43	
	22				
Short-term loans and advances		7,631.21		7,506.58	
Short-term loans and advances towards f		217,124.52		311,468.07	
Current maturities of long term loar	is and advances 17	1,014,246.42	5	906,949.55	
towards financing activities					
Other current assets	24	114,960.95		104,211.80	
	57(3)	10 00000000000000000000000000000000000	1,754,837.46		1,595,285.27
TOTAL			7,251,359.20		6,380,105.93
See accompanying Notes forming part of the	inancial statements 31		1120 11000.20	8 8	
see accompanying notes forming part of the					
n terms of our report attached	In terms of our report at	tached For	and on behalf	of board of dir	ectors of
or DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP	For B. K. KHARE & CO.		<b>Finance Holdin</b>	as Limited	
hartered Accountants	Chartered Accountants		The first state	-go Linnes	
indicated Procountants	Firm's registration no. 10	1510210/			
		13102.00			
	by the hand of				
anjiv V. Pilgaonkar	Ravi Kapoor	VA	Deosthalee	Dinanath	Dubhashi
	Partner				
Partner	<ul> <li>Constraints and the second se Second second s</li></ul>		rperson		Director &
	Membership no. 04040	4 (DIN	:00001698)		cutive Officer
				(DIN :035	45900)
		m2 158		(Based and and	
		Am	mun Pathon	Sachinn .	lochi
			rva Rathod		incial Officer

Place : Mumbai Date : May 4, 2017

Place : Mumbai Date : May 4, 2017

Company Secretary Place : Mumbai Date : May 4, 2017

Chief Financial Officer

Annual Report 2016-17

139

				and the state		(₹ in Lakh)
	No	ote No	States :	ended	Year er	1170 ToT
INCOME:			March	31, 2017	March 31	1, 2016
		25	034 050 00		730 070 03	
Revenue from operations		25	834,058.85		728,878.92	
Other income Total Income		20 -	23,172.16	857,231.01	18,190.04	747,068.96
EXPENSES:				857,251.01		/4/,008.90
		27	462 202 21		413 413 64	
Finance costs		27	462,703.21		412,413.64	
Employee benefits expense		28	49,352.10		48,768.77	
Administration and other expenses		29	71,565.74		74,236.51	
Allowances and write offs		30	158,989.73		78,102.13	
Depreciation and amortisation			6,729.98		8,281.38	
Total expenses				749,340.82		621,802.43
Profit before exceptional and					5	
extraordinary items and taxes				107,890.19	-	125,266.53
Exceptional items	201					
Profit before extraordinary items and	d taxes			107,890.19		125,266.53
Extraordinary items					-	
Profit before tax				107,890.19	-	125,266.53
Tax expense:						220000000
Current tax				39,923.15		53,339.24
MAT Credit				(2,183.30)		(2,492.67)
Deferred tax				(34,096.18)	-	(10,948.85)
Tax expense				3,643.67	_	39,897.72
Profit after tax				104,246.52	_	85,368.81
Add : Share in profit of associate comp	any			574.73		300.45
Less : Share of minority interest				(602.58)	-	
Profit for the year attributable	to the					
shareholder of the Company				104,218.67	-	85,669.26
Earnings per equity share:	The second	31.2				
Basic earnings per equity share before a	and after			5.21		3.79
extraordinary items (₹)						
Diluted earnings per equity share be	fore and			5.14		3.79
after extraordinary items (₹)						
Face value per equity share (₹)				10.00		10.00
See accompanying Notes forming par	rt of the	31				
financial statements						
In terms of our report attached	In terms of	our repo	ort attached	For and on beha	If of board of o	directors of
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP	For B. K. K			L&T Finance Hol	dings Limited	
Chartered Accountants	Chartered /					
			o. 105102W			
	by the hand	10 1				
Sanjiv V. Pilgaonkar	Ravi Kapo	or		Y.M. Deosthalee		h Dubhashi
Partner	Partner		0404	Chairperson		g Director &
	Membershi	ip no. 04	0404	(DIN :00001698)	Contraction in the second	cutive Officer
					(DIN :035	9459001

## Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

Place : Mumbai Date : May 4, 2017 Place : Mumbai Date : May 4, 2017 Sachinn Joshi Chief Financial Officer

Apurva Rathod Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai Date : May 4, 2017 140

# Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

		Year ended March 31, 2017	(₹ in Lakh Year ended March 31, 2016
Α.	Cash flow from operating activities		
	Profit before tax	107,890,19	125,266.53
	Adjustments for:		
	Depreciation and amortisation	6,729.98	8,281.38
	(Profit)/ Loss on sale of investments (net)	(8,732.88)	and the second second
	(Profit)/ Loss on sale of fixed assets (net)	1,311.89	2,295.9
	Provision for compensated absences/leave encashment	605.79	
	Provision for Gratuity	213.86	310.9
	Cumulative interest on long term NCDs, payable at maturity	10,308.75	10,308.7
	Provision for diminution in value of investments	3,936.41	
	Loss on foreclosure of loans and bad debts write offs	40,003.32	
	Provision for non-performing assets	76,282.32	
	Provision for advances and receivables	85.37	
	Provision for standard assets	39,670.86	
	Provision for restructured assets	(988.55)	326.2
	Operating profit before working capital changes	277,317.31	216,186.3
	Changes in working capital		
	(Increase)/ Decrease in trade and other receivables and advances	(41,527.78)	(14,657.67
	Increase/ (Decrease) in trade and other payables	(17,137.38)	68,860.2
	Cash generated from operations	218,652.15	270,389.0
	Direct taxes paid	(53,167.17)	(61,078.18
	Loans disbursed (net of repayments)	(742,098.89)	(1,130,576.05
	Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities (A)	(576,613.91)	(921,265.23
	Cash flow from investing activities		
	Add : Inflow from investing activities		
	Proceeds from sale of fixed assets	3,194.83	1,299.84
	Sale of current investments	6,329,472.18	15,942,887.1
	Sale of non current investments	7,060.15	22,665.5
		6,339,727.16	15,966,852.5
	Less : Outflow from investing activities		
	Purchase of fixed assets (including capital work in progress)	3,328.50	9,220.0
	Purchase of non current investments	133,712.84	57,536.5
	Purchase of current investments	6,414,440.18	15,967,557.6
		6,551,481.52	16,034,314.2
	Net cash from/(used in) investing activities (B)	(211,754.36)	(67,461.73

Annual Report 2016-17

141

a serence

## Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

			(₹ in Lakh)
		Year ended March 31, 2017	Year ended March 31, 2016
C.	Cash flow from financing activities		
	Add : Inflow from financing activities		
	Proceeds from issue of share capital including securities premium	1,149.74	9,246.59
	Proceeds from issue of preference share capital (Minority Interest)	500.00	-
	Proceeds from issue of share warrants	-	11,806.88
	Net proceeds from long term borrowings	317,030.37	884,116.56
	Net proceeds from short term borrowings	506,857.03	77,133.33
		825,537.14	982,303.36
	Less : Outflow from financing activities		
	Shares / Debenture issue expenses	743.94	2,947.44
	Dividend paid (including dividend distribution tax)	29,583.09	36,715.55
		30,327.03	39,662.99
	Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities (C)	795,210.11	942,640.37
	Net cash increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)	6,841.84	(46,086.59)
	Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the year	39,816.74	85,903.33
	Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the year	46,658.58	39,816.74
	Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents		
	Closing Balance as per Balance Sheet	59,438.28	40,153.43
	Less : Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months	12,779.70	336,69
No	Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the year* tes:	46,658.58	39,816.74

1. Purchase of fixed assets includes movements of capital work in progress during the year.

 Net cash used in investing activities excludes investment aggregating ₹ 28,818.97 lakh (previous period ₹ 27,688.76 lakh) acquired against claims.

3. Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever applicable.

4. Net cash used in operating activities is determined after adjusting the following:

Interest received	742,366.37	646,921.68
Dividend received		766.26
Interest paid	428,915.33	403,018.70

\* Includes balances in earmarked accounts ₹ 1,327.29 lakh (Previous period balance ₹ 2,439.73 lakh)

In terms of our report attached For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP Chartered Accountants	In terms of our report attached For B. K. KHARE & CO. Chartered Accountants Firm's registration no. 105102W by the hand of	L&T Finance Holdin	of board of directors of gs Limited
Sanjiv V. Pilgaonkar Partner	<b>Ravi Kapoor</b> Partner Membership no. 040404	Y.M. Deosthalee Chairperson (DIN :00001698)	Dinanath Dubhashi Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer (DIN :03545900)
		Apurva Rathod Company Secretary	Sachinn Joshi Chief Financial Officer
Place : Mumbai Date : May 4, 2017	Place : Mumbai Date : May 4, 2017	Place : Mumbai Date : May 4, 2017	

#### ANNEXURE C

Abridged version of Latest Audited / Limited reviewed Half Yearly Consolidated (wherever available) and Standalone Financial Information (like Profit & Loss Statement, and Balance Sheet) and auditors qualification for the last the last three years and summary of auditor qualifications for the last three years, if any.

DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP Chartered Accountants Indiabulls Finance Centre, Tower 3 27th – 32nd Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg Elphinstone Road (West) Mumbai 400013. B. K. KHARE & CO. Chartered Accountants 706/708, Sharda Chambers New Marine Lines Mumbai 400004.

## INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT ON REVIEW OF INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS

#### TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF L&T FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED

- 1. We have reviewed the accompanying Statement of Consolidated Unaudited Financial Results of L&T FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED (the "Parent") and its subsidiaries (the Parent and its subsidiaries together referred to as the "Group"), for the quarter and six months ended September 30, 2019 (the "Statement") being submitted by the Parent pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended.
- 2. This Statement, which is the responsibility of the Parent's Management and approved by the Parent's Board of Directors, has been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in the Indian Accounting Standard 34 "Interim Financial Reporting" ("Ind AS 34"), prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the Statement based on our review.
- 3. We conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410 "Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity", issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). A review of interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of Parent's personnel responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

ren

We also performed procedures in accordance with the circular issued by the SEBI under Regulation 33(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, to the extent applicable.

<sup>4.</sup> The Statement includes the results of the following entities:

Sr. No.	Name of the Company	Nature of relationship
1	L&T Finance Limited	Subsidiary
2	L&T Infrastructure Finance Company Limited	Subsidiary
3	L&T Housing Finance Limited	Subsidiary
4	L&T Infra Debt Fund Limited	Subsidiary
5	L&T Infra Investment Partners Advisory Private Limited	Subsidiary
6	L&T Infra Investment Partners Trustee Private Limited	Subsidiary
7	L&T Investment Management Limited	Subsidiary
8	L&T Mutual Fund Trustee Limited	Subsidiary
9	L&T Capital Markets Limited	Subsidiary
10	L&T Financial Consultants Limited	Subsidiary
11	Mudit Cement Private Limited	Subsidiary
12	L&T Infra Investment Partners Fund	Subsidiary
13	L&T Capital Market (Middle East) Limited	Subsidiary

- 5. Based on our review conducted and procedures performed as stated in paragraph 3 above and based on the consideration of the review reports of the other auditors referred to in paragraph 6 below, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying Statement, prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in the aforesaid Indian Accounting Standard and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed in terms of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains any material misstatement.
- 6. We did not review the interim financial results of six subsidiaries included in the consolidated unaudited financial results, whose interim financial results reflect total assets of ₹1,322.79 crore as at September 30, 2019, total revenues of ₹137.37 crore and ₹265.37 crore for the quarter and six months ended September 30, 2019 respectively, total net profit after tax of ₹59.50 crore and ₹118.41 crore for the quarter and six months ended September 30, 2019 respectively, total comprehensive income of ₹59.83 crore and ₹118.74 crore for the quarter and six months ended September 30, 2019 respectively, total comprehensive income of ₹59.83 crore and ₹118.74 crore for the quarter and six months ended September 30, 2019 respectively and net cash flows of ₹0.35 crore for the six months ended September 30,



2019, as considered in the Statement These interim financial results have been reviewed by the other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management, and our conclusion on the Statement, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, is based solely on the report of the other auditors and the procedures performed by us as stated in paragraph 3 above.

Our conclusion on the Statement is not modified in respect of these matters.

#### For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

nn N ſ

Rupen K. Bhatt (Partner) (Membership No. 046930) UDIN: 19046930AAAAEC5660 Mumbai, October 18, 2019 For B. K. KHARE & CO. Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No. 105102W)

ene

Padmini Khare Kaicker (Partner) (Membership No. 044784) UDIN: <u>19044784AAAADC7360</u> Mumbai, October 18, 2019

	Regd. Office : Heindavan, Flot No. Website; www.iftx.com		008PLC181833 Santaernz (East), M	umbai - 400 098, Maha			
15	STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED FINAN	CIAL RESULTS FOR 11	IF OF ARTER AND	SIX MONTHS ENDER	SEPTEMBER 30, 281		(C in Cros
		T	Quarter ended		Six month		Year ended
Sr. No.	Particulars	September 30, 2019	June 30, 2019	L Part - 10 2018	September 30, 2019		March 31, 2019
		(Unsudited)	(Unaudited)	(Unsudited)	(Unsudited)	(Unsudited)	(Audited)
_	Revenue from operations			and the second dates and			
60	Interest income	3.294.38	3.312.77	2,822.34	6.607.15	5,492.24	11,641
(6)	Dividend income	0.05	0.03	0.18	0.08	0.19	0.
(10)	Rental income	2.51	3.77	3.57	6.28	10.54	18.
(iv)	Fees and commission income	210.36	225.03	393.80	435.39	795.50	1.274.3
	Net gain on fair value changes	89.52	52.94	313.84	142.46	27.52	55.0
(0)			52.94			27.32	- 25.0
(15)	Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost	14.49			14.49		
(1)	Total revenue from operations	3,611,31	3,594,54	3,219,89	7,205.85	6,325.99	12,989.3
(11)	Other income	100.54	94.96	82.46	195.50	146,78	311.5
(III)	Total income (1+11)	3,711.85	3.689.50	3,302,35	7,401.35	6,472.77	13,301.
1204	Expenses					CONTRACTOR OF STREET	
0	Finance costs	1.877.95	1,922.94	1,642,48	3,820,89	3,161.68	6,860.0
(0)	Fees and commission expenses		3.22	134.80	3.22	283.96	325.
(11)	Net loss on fair value changes	67.81		129.49	67.81	230.46	181.
	Net loss on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category	30.19	49.91	74.45	80.10	243.90	384.
(iv)							
(1)	Inspairment on financial instruments	480.55	530.52	127.71	1,011,08	281.57	700.8
(vi)	Employee benefits expense	263.53	245,77	213.96	509.30	379.07	\$24.5
(sii)	Depreciation, amortisation and impairment	15.89	15,77	11.75	31,66	23.41	49.6
(viii)	Other expenses	199.63	178.74	163.07	378.37	341.90	721.4
(IV)	Total expenses	2,955,56	2,946.87	2,504,71	5,902,43	4,945,95	10,249.
(V)	Profit before exceptional items and tax (III-IV)	756.29	742.63	797.64	1,498,92	1.526.82	3.051.5
OD	Excertional items						
(VID	Profit before tax (V-VI)	756.29	742.63	797.64	1,498.92	1.526.82	3,051.5
	Tax expense:	130.49	142,03	191,04	1,478,75	1.240.84	3,951.3
(VIII)			The second second	and the second second		The second	1010
	(1) Current tax	240.59	137.11	102.32	377,70	244.89	749.
	(2) Deferted tax	(132.19)	56,10	136.20	(76.09)	182.58	70.
(IX)	Net profit before impact of rate change on opening deferred tax (VII-VIII)	647.89	549.42	559,12	1.197.31	1,098,95	2,232,6
(X)	lupact of change in the rate on opening deferred tax (Refer note 6)	473.38		1000	473.38		
COL	Net profit after tax (IX-X)	174.51	549.42	559.12	723.93	1,098,95	2,232.0
(XIII)	Add: Share in profit of associate company						
	Net profit after tax and share in profit of associate company (XI+XII)	174.51	\$49,42	\$\$9,12	723.93	1,098,95	2,232/
trand	Profit/(loss) for the period attributable to;	114.51	247.44	1	140.00	1,070.72	
	Owners of the company		Contract of the second	560.41	722.99	1,098.79	2.226.
		174.20	548,79				
17Section	Non-controlling interest	0.31	0.63	(1.29)	0.94	0.16	5
(XIV)	Other comprehensive income	(14.34)	(29.69)	(28.19)	(44.03)	(29.92)	(2)
	A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss			EC STALL	1.74 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		
	(a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (net of tax)	(1.70)	(0.32)	0.83	(2.02)	0.61	6.5
	B (i) Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss				NACE MARK	OC ALC: NOT	
	(a) Debt instruments through other comprehensive income (net of tax)	12.93	(20.03)	(29.02)	(7.10)	(30.53)	(0.0
	(b) The effective portion of gains and loss on hedging instruments in a cash	(25.71)	(9.29)		(35.00)		100
	for helge (net of tax)	1.1.1.1	(27)		(200)	Contra Links	
						61501101010	12.2
	(c) Exchange differences in translating the financial statements of foreign	0.14	(0.05)		0.09		(0.
	operations, net	10 10 10 10 10				and the second states	
	Other comprehensive income for the period attributable to:	and the second second		1		1. Sector	
	Owners of the company	(14.34)	(29.69)	(28.19)	(44,03)	(29.92)	(2)
	Non-controlling interest						
(XV)	Total comprehensive income (XIII+XIV)	160.17	519,73	530.93	679.90	1,069.03	2,229,4
	Total comprehensive income for the period attributable to:		- there	1			
	Owners of the company	159.86	519.10	\$12.22	673.96	1.058.87	2.331.1
	Non-controlling interest	0.31	0.63	(1.29)		0.16	5.
Sec. 1							
	Paid-up equity share capital (face value of ₹ 10 each) (Refer note 7)	2,000.48	1,999.53	1,997.05	2,000,48	1,997.05	1,998
	Other equity attributable to owners of the Company	10111201701		State Ball Pr	100000000000		11,449
(XVIII)	Earnings per share ("not annualised): (Refer note 7)	Territor and		and the second second	CONTRACTOR STORE		
	(a) Basic (₹)	*0.87	*2.74	*2.81	*3.62	*5.50	11.
	(b) Diluted (C)	*0.87	*2.74			*5.48	11.

Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities as at September 30, 2019

			(? in Crore
	Particulars	Asat	As at March 31, 2019
20		September 30, 2019 (Unaudited)	(Audited)
	SS(T):	(CBrookes)	Creating
	SSE IN: monorial assets		
		2,784,83	1.826.6
	ish and cash equivalents	2,754,85	47.50
	ink balance other than (a) above		
	erivative financial instruments	24.26	7.3
	neivables	Ric - mutan	
	Trade Receivables	104.33	105.3
	0 Other Receivables	31.60	10.6
	NUNS	93,374.24	91,324.6
	vestments	3,903.71	8,540.8
	her financial assets	704,43	126.2
(2) No	on-financial assets	and Person and St	
(2) (3)	attent tax assets (net)	\$72.34	642.9
(0) (0)	clerred tax Assets (net)	1,392.38	1,777.1
	veilmont property	346.08	367.64
	operty, plant and equipment	56.95	67.6
	operty, plan and equipment apital work-in-progress	2.61	0.0
		45.26	38.6
	langible assets under development		
	axheill	638.91	638.9
	ther intangible assets	45.49	53.0
0 0	ther non-financial assets	369.27	378.9
T	DTAL - ASSETS	105,006,16	106,055,1
	IABILITIES AND EOUTTY:	CIPTOR SCUSI	1.00
	ABILITIES	St. 1972. (****.21)	
	anneial Nabilities		
	rivative financial instruments	1 2 2 2 2 2	
	reality		
	Trade pasables		
100	(i) Total outstanding daes of micro enterprises and small enterprises		
	<ul> <li>(ii) Total existancing dues of metro conceptives and small enterprises</li> <li>(iii) Total existancing dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises</li> </ul>	54.22	120.0
a	D Ober payables	~~~	100.00
100	(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises		
	(ii) Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises	16.79	16.1
(c) D	the securities	43,521,07	51,268,3
	provines (Other than debt securities)	41,491,24	35,785.1
	Availated liabilities	5,037,57	4,453,5
	ther financial liabilities	560.38	\$69.2
	on financial liabilities		201.2
	arrent tax habilities (net)	26.64	33.5
	arten an approjes (net)	56.88	42.0
	clered tax liabilities (net)	\$ 20	5.1
	ther non-financial liabilities	34.28	91.1
AS 18	OUTTY	10.000	
	guiry share capital	2,000.45	1,998.8
	auty share capital	11.950.36	11,449,7
103 0	met of mix	11390.06	
(4) N	co-controlling interest	221.05	222.2
	OTAL - LIABILITIES AND EQUITY	105,006.16	106.055.1

Am

٩.

by by by by both the stand by				[	Particulars			As at September 30, 2019	(C in Crore) Av at September 30, 2018			
								(Unsudited)	(Unsudited)			
bit		\[         \[         \[			-Operating profit before working cr	spital changes		2,599.25	2,321,49			
by the mean by the first by the description of the mean by the des												
Decide and applications are beginned to be provided a second and applications         Decide a second applications           1         The final second applications with the propriod a second applications. The final second applications are been applicated and applications. The final second applications are been applicated applications. The final second applications are associated applications. The final second applications are been applicated applications. The final second applications are been applications. The final second applications are been applications. The final second applications are been applicated applications. The final second applications are been applications. The final second appli				- 1			1012					
<text><list-item></list-item></text>	<text></text>	<text></text>			Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of Exchange difference on translation of foreig	of the period pr currency cash and cash equivale	nts	1.826.65 (0.05)	1,049,39			
<list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item>	<list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item>	<list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><form></form></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item></list-item>						of Indian Accounting S	Standards ("Ind AS") preser	ibed under Section 133 of	the Companies Act, 25	13 read with the
<ul> <li></li></ul>	<text></text>	<text></text>		4	The results have been reviewed by the Au			ting held on October 1	18, 2019. The Joint Statutor	y Auditors of the Compar	y have carried out limi	ted review of the
bill Linke(NS) <sup>2</sup> is very sejolation. The qualified ison of the standard result, flow paper is a standard standard flow of the standard ison of the standard result.       If the standard ison of the standard ison of the standard result.         Image: Standard ison of the standard ison of the standard result.       Image: Standard ison of the standard	<text>         bit label (bit) was walch on it, bit decide flow (bit decide) flow (b</text>	<text></text>		5	The Company reports quarterly financial re	esults of the group on a consolidate	d basis, pursuant to Regulation	33 of the SEBI (Listing	g Obligations and Disclosur	e Requirements) Regulati	ons, 2015 as amended r	ead with circula
Image: The state of t	Image: Description of the set of	Image: Description of the set of the s			and Jury 5, 2015. The standalone branci- lidia Limited ("NSE") at www.nseindia.co	at results are available on the web m. The specified items of the stand	site of the Company at www.itts lalone financial results of the Co	com, the website of B nepany for the quarter a	ISE Limited ("IISE") at we and six months ended Septer	w.bscindia.com and on th nber 30, 2019 are given b	e website of National S elow.	tock Exchange of
Image: State of the specific state of the specific state of the specific state of the specific state st				١	Partie	ulara	Entrel a Name					Year ended
$\frac{1}{10} \log_{10} \log_{10} \log_{10} \log_{10} \log_{10} \log_{10} (12 \otimes_{10} (1$	<ul> <li></li></ul>			-	12.3/16		(Unsudited) 41.51	(Unwedited) 25.18	(Unsudited) 100.02	(Unsudited) 66.69	(Unsudited)	(Audited)
<ul> <li>Incomparing the process of the exercise of the process of the proces of the process of the process of the process of the proces</li></ul>	<text><text><text><list-item></list-item></text></text></text>	<text><text><text><text><text></text></text></text></text></text>			Profit (loss) after tax		(17,62)	(29.95)	33.69	(47.57)	44.04	267.06
where noted 19(1) of the former tar. Act. 19(4). (if accesses are grants of the Shafter watch of the former set or the scale and respective the scale of the respective term of the scale of the sc	<text><text><list-item><list-item></list-item></list-item></text></text>	<text><text><text><list-item></list-item></text></text></text>		6	The recently promulgated Taxation Laws (/	Amendment) Ordinance 2019, has should tax rates come with the con-	inserted section 115BAA in the I	beome Tax Act. 1961.	providing existing denostic	companies with an option	to pay lax at a concess	ional rate of 22%
(n) No texts manufal the lipst rate with a section corresponding darge of 4 173.34 wave sink is summers of Polit and Lass.         9. The Company, darig the gamer and sin moths ended September 30, 2019 has allored 94.660 and LassA100 equity shares of € 10 each, fully pid ge, extension of reprints thy mephages, its acceltance with the Company information of the gamer and sin moths ended September 30, 2019 has allored 94.660 and LassA100 equity shares of € 10 each, fully pid ge, extension of reprints thy mephages, its acceltance with the Company information of the gamer and sin moths ended September 30, 2019 has allored 94.660 and 164.575 (additional data)         • The company, daring the gamer and sin moths ended September 30, 2019 has allored 94.660 and 164.585 (additional data)       Extension of the section of the	(e) take the numeral at the lower ativ, with a working encompanying days, of 4 (17). More we take showed on the data showed at 1, 24(3), 10) yiel, show and at the data showed at 1, 24(3), 10) yiel, show and at the data showed at 1, 24(3), 10) yiel, show and at the data showed at 1, 24(3), 10) yiel, show and at the data showed at 1, 24(3), 10) yiel, show and at 1, 24(3), 10) yiel, and 10)	<text></text>		1119	under section 139(1) of the Income Tax Act	1, 1961, for assessment year (AY) :	2020-21 or subsequent AYs. One	e exercised, such an op	ption cannot be withdrawn I	or the same or subsequent	AYs.	
Impose that Quies Adapting       Participate state and is months endod September 30, 3019, 846wing Canadisins Comparing Rockenade Preference Shares (TRN) have been readomed issue:         Impose Comparing Comparing Comparing Comparing Rockenade Preference Shares (TRN) have been readomed issue:       Description         Impose Comparing Compari	<text>         Interpretational streamed and between the streamed of the streamed by the term of the streamed of the streamed</text>	<text></text>	10115	1	These financial results are prepared on the (net) has been measured at the lower rate, -	basis that the parent company and with a one-time corresponding char	some of its Subsidiaries would a tpe of ₹ 473.38 crore to the State	real the option to pay it ment of Profit and Loo	income tax at the lower rate. x.	Consequently, wherever a	applicable, the opening-	deferred tax asse
9         Brins for quarter and iss months outed September 20, 2019, Septe	1       Description of the state of the sta	<text>           1         18 degree and extended about \$1, 215, 2010 (and about \$1, 2010) (about \$1, 2010) (ab</text>		7	The Company, during the quarter and six r	nonths ended September 30, 2019	has allotted 945,600 and 1,668.1	100 equity shares of ₹	10 each, faily paid up, on e	sercise of options by empl	loyees, in accordance wi	th the Company'
St. b         Data         Data         Data         Data         District (Strip)         Assort         Book         Book </td <td>S. MS       Initialization       Data       <thdata< th=""> <thdata< th=""> <thdata< th="">       Data<td>No.       Date       Ansatz       No.       Ansatz       No.       No.       No.         10       Actional       11 Acciding       11 Acciding<!--</td--><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>eptember 30, 2019, following Cum</td><td>ulative Compulsorily Redeenab</td><td>le Preference Shares (C</td><td></td><td>issued:</td><td></td><td></td></td></thdata<></thdata<></thdata<></td>	S. MS       Initialization       Data       Data <thdata< th=""> <thdata< th=""> <thdata< th="">       Data<td>No.       Date       Ansatz       No.       Ansatz       No.       No.       No.         10       Actional       11 Acciding       11 Acciding<!--</td--><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>eptember 30, 2019, following Cum</td><td>ulative Compulsorily Redeenab</td><td>le Preference Shares (C</td><td></td><td>issued:</td><td></td><td></td></td></thdata<></thdata<></thdata<>	No.       Date       Ansatz       No.       Ansatz       No.       No.       No.         10       Actional       11 Acciding       11 Acciding </td <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>eptember 30, 2019, following Cum</td> <td>ulative Compulsorily Redeenab</td> <td>le Preference Shares (C</td> <td></td> <td>issued:</td> <td></td> <td></td>				eptember 30, 2019, following Cum	ulative Compulsorily Redeenab	le Preference Shares (C		issued:		
Biology         Display         Display <t< td=""><td>1       10 Acc 2019       10 Acc 2019</td><td><ul> <li></li></ul></td><td></td><td>F</td><td>S. No Particulars</td><td>Date 17 May 2019</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t<>	1       10 Acc 2019	<ul> <li></li></ul>		F	S. No Particulars	Date 17 May 2019						
Spaced         15-sectionber 2019         100.00         7.99%            1 based         17-Sectionber 2019         100.00         7.99%            2         Centrolitated segment visc reveals, result, total assets and total liabilities in terms offlequation 33 of the XEIR (Lating Diligations and Dicelosure Registerons) Regulations, 2015 as amended.         Can Centrolitated Segment PM, 2019         Segment PM, 2019 </td <td>1 stud       1 studies 2013       10000       7.8%         2 studies 2013       10000       7.8%         3 studies 2013       10000       7.8%         4 studies 2013       10000       7.8%         5 studies 2014       10000       10000       7.8%         6 studies 2014       10000       10000       10000       10000         7 studies 2014       10000       10000       10000       10000       10000       10000         8 studies 2014       10000       10000       1000000       1000000       1000000       1000000       1000000       10000000       10000000       10000000000       1000000000000000000000000000000000000</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>3 Redeemed</td> <td>03 June 2019 28 June 2019</td> <td>63.70 124.40</td> <td>7.95% 8.50%</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	1 stud       1 studies 2013       10000       7.8%         2 studies 2013       10000       7.8%         3 studies 2013       10000       7.8%         4 studies 2013       10000       7.8%         5 studies 2014       10000       10000       7.8%         6 studies 2014       10000       10000       10000       10000         7 studies 2014       10000       10000       10000       10000       10000       10000         8 studies 2014       10000       10000       1000000       1000000       1000000       1000000       1000000       10000000       10000000       10000000000       1000000000000000000000000000000000000				3 Redeemed	03 June 2019 28 June 2019	63.70 124.40	7.95% 8.50%				
2         Considered expent wise reveals, used assets and solal liabilities in some of Regulation 33 of the XDHQ (Lasing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements). Repetitive 30, 2019         Specific assets           5x.10         Particulars         Constructional of Constructional Obligations and Disclosure Requirements 20, 2019         Specific assets	•         A consistence of the state of th	<text>           • Order dependence eventer werden and index in our offer dependence of the output of th</text>	B. 21		5 Issued	16 Sentember 2019 20 Sentember 2019	100.00	7.95% 7.95%				
Optimizer and discrete	St. Na         Performance         Quarter acted         Non-action and All Non-action and Non-action and All Non-action and Non-action and All Non-actio	Bit Nill         Description         Status         Status <tht< td=""><td></td><td>L</td><td>7lissed</td><td>and the state of the</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></tht<>		L	7lissed	and the state of the						
Sr. No.         Periodiar         September 20, 2019         Janue 20, 2015         September 20, 2019	Ser. So.         Performant 79, 2018         Janua 39, 2019         Janua 39, 2019 <thjanua 2019<="" 39,="" th="">         Janua 39,</thjanua>	Sp. So         Perioder 9, 30         Spectacler 9, 30	Г	-		, where a sees and where the busines in	when of regulation 35 of the se	A STATE COMPLEX STATE (JUNC		Six months e	aded	Year ended
60         Basing finance         1.272.22         1.273.28         975.21         2.512.10         1.310.66         4.066           61         Bisoing finance         1.175.60         1.172.72         1712.32         1.713.42         1.201.61         3.738           61         Information finance         1.175.60         1.112.75         917.01         2.283.81         1.201.61         3.738           61         Others         1.075.60         1.102.75         917.01         2.283.81         1.201.61         3.738           61         Decrements         3.485.12         3.335.45         7.291.87         6.493.14         3.356.85         7.291.87         6.493.14         3.356.85         7.291.87         6.493.14         3.356.85         7.291.87         6.493.14         3.356.85         6.632.91         (16.52)         (16.57)         (16.57)         (16.57)         (16.57)         (16.57)         (16.57)         (16.57)         (16.57)         (16.57)         (16.52)         (16.52)         (16.52)         (16.52)         (16.52)         (16.52)         (16.52)         (16.52)         (16.52)         (16.52)         (16.52)         (16.52)         (16.52)         (16.52)         (16.52)         (16.52)         (16.52)         (16.52) <t< td=""><td>00       Reaf Bases       1.272.22       1.2788       97.53       2.212.10       1.810.66       4.466.1         01       Reaf Bases       1.162.1       1.9772       1.9723       1.272.4.2       1.930.76         02       Reaf Bases       1.96.9       1.9723       1.973       1.272.4.2       1.930.76       3.384.3         03       Reaf Bases       1.96.9       1.975.9       1.973.7       1.272.4.2       1.930.76       3.384.3         04       Reaf Reaf Terms for containing operations       1.456.97       3.355.85       7.255.85       6.252.97       6.423.21       1.230.00         10       Segment result of profit and loss       3.458.75       3.452.12       3.358.85       7.258.85       6.252.97       1.239.92       7.258.85       6.252.97       1.239.92       7.258.85       6.252.97       1.239.92       7.258.85       6.252.97       1.239.92       7.258.85       6.252.97       1.239.92       7.258.85       6.252.97       1.239.92       7.258.85       6.252.97       1.239.92       7.258.85       6.252.97       1.239.92       7.258.85       6.252.97       1.239.92       7.258.85       7.258.85       7.258.95       7.258.95       7.258.95       7.258.95       7.258.95       7.258.95       7.258.95</td><td>0.9         Read finance         1.272.22         1.239.88         77.31         2.237.24         1.393.68           0.1         Read finance         1.15.40         1.172.22         1.193.88         1.732.42         1.139.76           0.1         Read finance         1.15.40         1.15.97         1.933.13         2.232.4         1.732.42</td><td>Sr.</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>March 31, 2019</td></t<>	00       Reaf Bases       1.272.22       1.2788       97.53       2.212.10       1.810.66       4.466.1         01       Reaf Bases       1.162.1       1.9772       1.9723       1.272.4.2       1.930.76         02       Reaf Bases       1.96.9       1.9723       1.973       1.272.4.2       1.930.76       3.384.3         03       Reaf Bases       1.96.9       1.975.9       1.973.7       1.272.4.2       1.930.76       3.384.3         04       Reaf Reaf Terms for containing operations       1.456.97       3.355.85       7.255.85       6.252.97       6.423.21       1.230.00         10       Segment result of profit and loss       3.458.75       3.452.12       3.358.85       7.258.85       6.252.97       1.239.92       7.258.85       6.252.97       1.239.92       7.258.85       6.252.97       1.239.92       7.258.85       6.252.97       1.239.92       7.258.85       6.252.97       1.239.92       7.258.85       6.252.97       1.239.92       7.258.85       6.252.97       1.239.92       7.258.85       6.252.97       1.239.92       7.258.85       6.252.97       1.239.92       7.258.85       7.258.85       7.258.95       7.258.95       7.258.95       7.258.95       7.258.95       7.258.95       7.258.95	0.9         Read finance         1.272.22         1.239.88         77.31         2.237.24         1.393.68           0.1         Read finance         1.15.40         1.172.22         1.193.88         1.732.42         1.139.76           0.1         Read finance         1.15.40         1.15.97         1.933.13         2.232.4         1.732.42	Sr.									March 31, 2019
(a)         Intervature frame         1,175.60         1,175.60         1,175.40         917.01         2,285.14         1,00.08         5,374           (b)         Defended Values         166.90         24.07.7         46.23         744.22         1,353.64           (c)         Obern         176.74         148.92         3,596.6         332.37         64.73.2         1,303           (c)         Obern         176.74         148.92         3,596.6         332.37         64.73.2         1,303           (c)         Defended Segment evence         24.04         3.07.84         74.92.2         1,59.96           (c)         Defended Segment evence         24.04         3.07.94         24.95.8         72.95.8         64.32.59         12.389           (c)         Brain fance         25.27.3         24.2.3         24.93.7         53.96         53.56.8         252.52         466           (d)         Brain fance         25.91.7         24.4.01         35.74         1.04.99         1.04.99         1.04.99         1.04.99         1.04.99         1.04.99         1.04.99         1.04.99         1.04.99         1.04.99         1.04.99         1.04.99         1.04.99         1.04.99         1.04.99         1.04.99	60       Mannature finance       1,175.00       1,175.00       2,274       97.01       2,285.34       1,526.31       1,526.31         60       Defense busines       110.75       110.77       100.77	60       before the basis in the second sequence in		(a) 1	Raral finance	operations						
Segment revenue from containing operations         (489.75)	segment revenue from continuing operations         3,489.72         3,582.12         7,201.87         6,492.14         13,552.05           Lase, how again revenue         6(4,40)         6(75.35)         (15.59)         (66.52)         (157.25)           Segment revenue from containing operations         344.131         3594.54         321.99         7,205.85         6,325.97         12,399.72           (a)         Ratin fance         344.02         259.47.3         669.00         522.18         1,153.90           (b)         Basing fance         321.63         313.43         117.40         333.66         322.22         669.66         323.22         1,269.60         123.23         1,263.60           (c)         Basing fance         231.63         313.43         117.40         333.66         123.57.90         124.57.90         123.57.90         124.57.90         125.57.90 </td <td>Segment revenue from continuing apprelians         Add 37:2         Add 32:11         Add 32:11</td> <td></td> <td>(d)  1</td> <td>Defocused business</td> <td></td> <td>186.49</td> <td>249.79</td> <td>364.37</td> <td>2,288.34 436.28</td> <td>743.22</td> <td>3,784,24 1,395,72</td>	Segment revenue from continuing apprelians         Add 37:2         Add 32:11		(d)  1	Defocused business		186.49	249.79	364.37	2,288.34 436.28	743.22	3,784,24 1,395,72
Spectro tradit (Drift)(Job) before tax)         144.68         344.12         594.75         690.00         323.18         143.18           (a)         Indiansa         257.23         280.22         200.96         537.46         400.95         143.48           (b)         Indiansa         257.23         280.22         200.96         537.46         400.95         143.44           (c)         Information Ginace         201.01         331.43         117.40         533.66         252.95         66.00         200.95         207.87         93.99         197.41         200.95         207.87         93.99         107.41         200.95         207.87         93.99         107.41         200.95         207.87         93.99         107.41         200.95         207.87         93.99         107.41         108.017.02         20.007.99         25.41         20.07.99         27.61.16         20.07.99         27.61.16         20.07.99         27.61.16         20.07.99         27.61.16         20.07.99         27.61.16         20.07.99         27.61.16         20.07.99         27.61.16         20.07.99         27.61.16         20.07.99         27.61.16         20.07.99         27.61.16         20.07.99         27.61.16         20.07.99         27.61.16         20.07.	Segnet real (PrdU)(sol befree tas)         144.4         144.3         24.73         6000         723.13         133.19           (a)         Institution forme         257.33         250.22         250.96         537.44         207.97         40.90           (b)         Indirection forme         256.14         237.23         200.22         200.96         537.44         207.97         40.90         253.14         200.97         200.90         253.14         200.97         40.90         207.97         40.90         207.97         40.90         207.97         40.90         27.97         40.90         207.97         40.90         207.97         40.90         27.97         40.90         207.97         40.90         207.97         40.90         207.97         40.90         207.97         40.90         207.97         40.90         207.97         40.90         207.97         40.90         207.97         40.90         207.97         40.90         207.97         40.90         207.97         40.90         207.97         40.90         207.97         40.90         207.97         40.90         207.97         40.90         207.97         40.90         207.97         40.90         207.97         40.90         20.90         20.90         20.90	Separat real (Prifit/Loop before tas)         Image: Control (Prifit/Loop be			Segment revenue from continuing operat Less: Inter segment revenue		3,659.75 (48.44)	3,632.12 (37.58)	3,335,48 (115,59)	7,291,87 (86.02)	6,493.24 (167.25)	13,565.85 (576.13
(b)         Bosing finance         257-23         220-22         250-96         537.65         490.95         1.084           (c)         Infrastructure finance         301.63         331.43         117.40         533.66         252.52         46.60           (d)         Defensed busines         (95.75)         (258.43)         85.72         (33.418)         235.41         202.60           (d)         Obers         456.95         (450.90         20.77         63.99         9.99         147           (e)         Reard fanance         756.44         757.64         1.499.92         1.256.23         23.517           (h)         Reard fanance         25.803.65         24.413.04         23.007.90         27.941.86         23.007.90         25.517         (h)         1.501.65         24.163.10         23.537         (i)         Information fanance         23.903.41         23.173.41         23.413.05         23.433.03         23.537         (i)         Information fanance         23.903.41         23.173.41         39.403.41         23.173.41         39.404.41         35.173.51         39.203.41         35.173.51         39.203.41         35.173.51         39.203.41         35.173.51         39.203.41         35.173.51         39.203.41         35.17	(P)         Biologi funce         257.23         290.24         290.96         337.45         90.95         102.44           (a)         Binfarstation funce         201.01         331.43         117.40         533.66         252.95         463.03           (a)         Defension function         455.0         450.97         273.4         0.33.9         99.99         147.63           (a)         Read function         752.45         450.97         273.4         0.39.9         99.97         147.63           (b)         Read function         752.44         1.087.90         275.41.80         1.268.06         32.69.79         275.41.80         1.268.06         32.69.79         275.41.80         1.268.06         32.69.79         255.57         255	00         Woing funce         37:23         2022         309.06         37:45         499.95           01         Information funce         31:61         331.41         117.40         535.65         235.27           02         Other         43:52         43.05         337.45         337.27         123.39         239.97           03         Profit before var         754.57         72.64         207.97         123.58         207.97           03         Information formation         754.57         72.64         20.07.97         23.39         209.97           04         Information         735.39         123.58         23.59.05	S		Segment result (Profit/(loss) before tax)	ad loss						
(6)         Defensed basines         (95.75)         (258.45)         35.72         (34.18)         215.41         302           (6)         Others         45.62.79         (258.45)         45.07         (3.99         9.99         141           (6)         Others         766.27         762.63         797.64         1.699.27         1.536.52         3.681           Segment sects	(d)         Defense Maskes         (95.7b)         (234.45)         45.72         (034.15)         215.41         202.41           (e)         Others         45.50         45.09         237.84         0.39         999         147.63           (f)         Profit Infere tax         752.30         777.44         1.095.92         123.53.52         336.199           (h)         Rardi Gance         27.041.66         25.045.63         23.043.80         25.056.65         23.03.73         0.77.041.66         31.097.90         25.517.90         10.017.00         127.041.66         31.097.90         25.517.92         10.017.00         127.041.66         31.097.90         25.517.92         10.017.67         10.015.65         10.015.65         10.017.10         10.045.65         10.017.10         10.045.65         10.017.10         10.045.65         10.017.10         10.045.65         10.017.10         10.045.65         10.015.65         10.016.65         10.015.65         10.056.65         10.015.65         10.056.65         10.017.10         10.045.65         10.017.10         10.045.65         10.016.15         10.056.65         10.056.65         10.056.65         10.056.65         10.056.65         10.056.65         10.056.65         10.056.65         10.056.65         10.056.65 <t< td=""><td>(d)         Defense hankers         (95.75)         (95.77)         (95.75)         (95.77)         (95.75)         (95.75)         (95.75)         (95.75)         (95.75)         (95.77)         (95.75)</td><td></td><td>(1)</td><td>Housing finance</td><td></td><td>257.23</td><td>280.22</td><td>369.96</td><td>\$37.45</td><td>493.95</td><td>1,084,10</td></t<>	(d)         Defense hankers         (95.75)         (95.77)         (95.75)         (95.77)         (95.75)         (95.75)         (95.75)         (95.75)         (95.75)         (95.77)         (95.75)		(1)	Housing finance		257.23	280.22	369.96	\$37.45	493.95	1,084,10
Segment exects         27,041.05         25,464.45         21,007.09         27,041.85         21,830.65         25,430.45         22,830.65         25,430.45         22,830.65         25,430.45         22,830.65         25,430.45         22,830.65         25,430.45         22,830.65         25,430.45         22,830.65         25,430.45         22,132.55         22,132.55         22,132.55         22,132.55         22,132.55         22,132.55         22,132.55         22,132.55         22,132.55         22,132.55         22,132.55         22,132.55         22,132.55         22,132.55         22,132.55         22,132.55         22,132.55         24,132.55	Segment starts         TO ALS         School Schol School School School School Schol School School Sc	Specific mean         77,041.65         24,043.44         77,041.65         24,043.44         77,041.65         24,043.44         77,041.65         77,042.91         77,042.91         77,042.91         77,042.91         77,042.91		(d)   (c)	Deficused business Others		(95.75) 48.50	(258.43) 45.09	85.72	(354.18) 93.59	215.41 59.99	202.45 147.63
(b)         Moning finance         25,830.65         25,830.65         24,813.00         22,850.65         24,813.00         22,850.65         24,813.00         22,850.65         24,813.00         22,850.65         24,813.00         22,850.65         24,813.00         22,850.65         24,813.00         22,850.65         24,813.00         22,850.65         24,813.00         22,850.65         24,813.00         22,850.65         24,813.00         22,850.65         24,813.00         22,850.65         24,813.00         22,850.65         24,813.00         22,850.65         24,813.00         22,850.65         24,813.00         22,850.65         24,813.00         22,850.65         24,813.00         22,850.65         24,813.00         22,813.65         26,850.85 <th< td=""><td>0)         Ibsoling finance         25,880.65         110,252.94         113,612.03         111,512.65         111,525.45         113,512.64         1115,512.64         1115</td><td>(b)         Using finance         25,830.65         25,830.65         24,832.80         24,882.80           (c)         bitsprotung finance         7,966.24         338.66         15,270.43         7,966.24         338.66           (d)         Defensed basines         7,966.24         338.66         15,270.43         12,070.54         12,070.57         10,050.56         10,056.56         10,056.56         10,056.57         10,056.06         10,056.57         10,056.06         10,056.57         10,056.01         12,056.57         10,056.01         12,056.57         10,056.01         12,056.57         10,056.01         12,057.57         10,056.01         12,057.57         10,056.01         12,057.57         10,056.01         12,057.57         10,056.01         12,057.57         10,056.01         12,057.57         10,056.01         12,057.57         10,056.01         12,057.57</td><td></td><td></td><td>Segment assets</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>BEARING THE</td><td></td><td>a straight</td><td></td></th<>	0)         Ibsoling finance         25,880.65         110,252.94         113,612.03         111,512.65         111,525.45         113,512.64         1115,512.64         1115	(b)         Using finance         25,830.65         25,830.65         24,832.80         24,882.80           (c)         bitsprotung finance         7,966.24         338.66         15,270.43         7,966.24         338.66           (d)         Defensed basines         7,966.24         338.66         15,270.43         12,070.54         12,070.57         10,050.56         10,056.56         10,056.56         10,056.57         10,056.06         10,056.57         10,056.06         10,056.57         10,056.01         12,056.57         10,056.01         12,056.57         10,056.01         12,056.57         10,056.01         12,057.57         10,056.01         12,057.57         10,056.01         12,057.57         10,056.01         12,057.57         10,056.01         12,057.57         10,056.01         12,057.57         10,056.01         12,057.57         10,056.01         12,057.57			Segment assets				BEARING THE		a straight	
(e)         Others         11,827.54         11,827.54         11,227.176         11.927.54         11.271.76         11.927.54         11.271.76         11.927.54         11.271.76         11.927.54         11.271.76         11.927.54         11.271.76         11.927.54         11.271.76         11.927.54         11.271.76         11.927.54         11.271.76         11.927.54         11.271.76         11.927.54         11.927	60         Ohens         11,257:24         11,257:34         11,271:76	(a)         Obers         11,327:54         11,327:54         11,227:16         11,227:16         11,227:16         11,227:16         11,227:16         11,227:16         11,227:16         11,227:16         11,227:16         11,227:16         11,227:16         11,227:16         11,227:16         11,227:16         11,227:16         11,227:16         11,227:16         11,227:16         11,227:17         11,227:1		(b)   (c)	Housing finance Infrastructure finance		28,580.65 39,300.41	28,403.91 39,721.61	24,183,80 36,171,32	28,580,65 39,300,41	24,183,80 36,171,32	27,575,72 38,232.98
Less: bitrs separat assis         (10,374.66)         (10,374.67)         (11,325.94)         (11,325.94)         (11,325.94)         (11,325.94)         (11,325.94)         (11,325.94)         (12,325.94)         (11,325.94)         (12,325.94)         (11,325.94)         (12,325.94)         (12,325.94)         (12,325.94)         (12,325.94)         (11,325.94)         (12,325.	Less, ther separat axis (10,371460)         (10,371460)         (11,32549)         (12,31,34)         (12,31,34)         (12,31,34)         (12,31,34)         (12,31,34)         (12,31,34)         (12,31,34)         (12,31,34)         (12,31,34)         (12,31,34)         (12,31,34)         (12,31,34)         (12,31,34)         (12,31,34)         (12,31,34)         (12,31,34)         (12,31,34)         (12,31,34)         (12,31,34	Lass: bit respect axis:         (10,074.66)         (10,074.66)         (11,025.94)         (11,025.94)           Suggest axis:         (10,074.66)         (10,074.66)         (11,025.94)         (11,025.94)         (11,025.94)           (1)         Unklasted         (13,044.92)         (23,43.53)         (24,45.3)         (10,074.66)         (11,025.94)           (2)         Unklasted         (13,04.92)         (23,43.53)         (24,45.3)         (10,074.66)         (10,074.66)           (3)         Unklasted         (10,074.66)         (24,67.57)         (10,074.66)         (24,67.57)         (10,074.66)         (24,67.57)         (10,074.66)         (24,67.57)         (26,07.57)         (26,07.57)         (26,07.57)         (26,07.57)         (26,07.57)         (26,07.57)         (26,07.57)         (26,07.57)         (26,07.57)         (26,07.57)         (26,07.57)         (26,07.57)         (26,07.57)         (26,07.57)         (26,07.57)		(c) (	Others		11,927.54	11,450.31	12,711.76	11.927.54	12,711.76	11,650.33
Trata sorts         195,095,16         197,288,03         190,664,37         190,664,57         190,664,57         190,664,57         190,664,57         190,664,57         190,664,57         190,664,57         190,664,57         190,664,57         190,664,57         190,664,57         190,664,57         190,664,57         190,664,57         190,660,01         22,181,07           (9)         Burst flansor         23,560,27         22,982,22         190,660,11         22,369,107         190,600,01         22,181,019         24,351,61,61         21,419,101         24,351,61,71         23,371,12         33,185,79         33,211,21         33,185,79         33,211,21         33,185,79         33,213,21         43,143,81         33,168,79         33,152,79         33,153,79         33,213,21         44,144         2300         44,144,81         2300         44,144,81         2300         44,144,81         2300         44,144,81         2300         44,144,81         2300         44,144,81         2300         44,144,81         2300         44,144,81         24,014,91         34,144,84         2300         44,144,81         2300,31         44,144,81         2300,31         44,144,81         2300,31         44,144,81         2300,31         44,144,81         2300,31         34,313,31         34,314,314,31         34,3	Tetra verts         165,006.16         197,238,43         100,064.57         165,006.16         100,064.57         106,006.16         100,064.57         106,006.16         100,064.57         106,006.16         100,064.57         106,006.16         100,064.57         106,006.16         100,064.57         106,006.16         100,064.57         106,006.16         100,00	Interview         195,095,16         197,283,03         190,064,57         190,064,57         1           Gegeent Enhibitis*         23,590,27         23,590,27         193,060,11         23,590,27         193,060,11         23,590,27         193,060,11         23,590,27         193,060,11         23,590,27         193,060,11         23,590,27         193,060,11         23,590,27         193,060,11         23,590,27         193,060,11         23,580,11	1.12		Less: Inter segment assets Segment assets		(10,874,66) 103,041,24	(9.937.26) 105,499.08	) (11,026.94) 97,618,27	(10,874.66) 103,041.24	(11,026.94) 97,618.27	(9,909.91 103,634.98
(a)         Rural Hanse         23.590.27         22.98.22         19.060.01         22.381           (b)         Bosing finance         24.586.17         24.986.16         21.01.91         24.286.16         24.01.91         24.21.81         24.01.91         24.286.16         24.01.91         24.21.81         24.01.91         24.21.91         24.21.81         24.01.91         24.21.91         24.21.91         24.21.81         24.21.81         24.21.81         24.21.81         24.21.81         24.21.81         24.21.81         24.21.81         24.	(a)         Rest flamme         23,502.72         22,028.22         19,060.01         23,502.72         19,060.01         22,181.22           (b)         Busing finance         23,856.16         22,028.22         19,060.01         22,181.29         19,060.01         22,181.29           (c)         Busing finance         23,577.12         33,518.79         35,771.12         33,518.79         35,771.12         33,518.79         35,771.12         33,518.79         35,771.12         33,518.79         35,771.12         33,518.79         35,771.12         33,518.79         35,771.12         33,518.79         35,771.12         33,518.79         35,771.12         33,518.79         35,771.12         33,518.79         35,771.12         33,518.79         35,771.12         33,518.79         35,771.12         33,518.79         35,771.12         33,529.71         35,771.25         32,520.27         35,771.25         35,771.25         32,572.27         35,771.55         31,618.56         32,772.29         7,922.27         31,415.46         46,60         56,60         31,81.4         56,60         35,373.75         31,415.46         56,50         32,772.29         7,922.27         7,925.27         32,925.25         87,795.20         32,466,59         37,795.20         32,466,50         33,774.50         31,245.46	(a)     profit fances     23,560,27     23,560,27     23,560,27     23,560,27       (b)     biologing finance     23,560,27     24,565,16     24,513,11       (c)     biologing finance     23,550,27     24,555,17     24,555,17       (d)     biologing finance     23,550,27     24,555,17     24,555,18     24,513,19       (e)     biologing finance     23,577,12     35,571,12     35,371,12     33,165,79       (e)     Decisions     6,00,255,4     54,571,12     35,168,79     13,372,14       (f)     Obers     3,161,88     24,973,91     4,141,48     3,165,88     4,141,48       (a)     biolistic     10,799,97     97,645,19     62,00,52,13     24,596,13       (f)     Datablacids     93,371,12     33,163,87     45,66,13       (f)     Datablacids     10,799,97     97,645,19     62,00,52,23     86,66,13       (f)     Datablacids     91,855,32     93,856,35     91,925,32     87,769,59     91,825,32       (f)     Datablacids     10,929,910     10,925,32     87,769,59     91,825,32     87,769,59       (f)     Datablacids     10,925,910     Execution and econocil and and econocil and and biol formace and biol formace and biol for thomace and biol for the loweil finance and the seq of thomace and e			Total assets							
(c)         Intrinstants feasore         35,371.12         35,371.12         33,188.79         35,371.12         35,371.12         33,188.79         35,371.12         35,371.12         33,188.79         35,371.12         35,371.12         35,371.12         33,188.79         35,371.12         35,371.12         35,371.12         33,188.79	(c)         Indiraction feasoe         53,771.12         33,108.79         33,238.69         31,232.69         43,103.88         4,114.48         2200.71         23,236.65         41,14.44         2200.71         53,277.12         33,108.79         10,325.20         22,379.71         33,108.79         10,325.21         23,237.21         33,108.79         10,325.21         23,237.21         33,108.79         10,325.21         23,237.21         33,108.79         10,325.21         23,237.21         33,108.79         10,325.21         23,237.21         23,237.21         23,237.21         23,236.55         10,725.21         23,237.21         23,236.55         23,723.21         23,237.21         23,236.55         24,237.21         23,236.55         24,237.21         23,236.55         24,237.21         23,236.55         24,237.21         24,237.21         24,237.21         24,237.21         24,237.21         24,237.21         24,237.21         24,237.21         24,237.21         24,237.21         2	(c)     Instructure funce     3,3,71,12     3,3,71,12     3,3,71,12     3,3,71,12       (d)     Decisions biosissics     6,00,754     8,198,50     11,77,704     6,00,754     11,177,704       (e)     Obris     3,0,0,88     2,2,47,31     4,141,48     3,10,88,71     4,141,48       (e)     Obris     3,0,0,88     2,2,47,31     4,141,48     3,10,88,87     4,141,48       (f)     Obris     3,0,0,88     2,2,47,31     4,141,48     3,10,88,87     4,141,48       (f)     Databased     0,30,0,88     2,2,47,31     4,141,48     3,10,88,77     49,563,01       (f)     Databased     0,30,0,88     9,20,2,87     9,29,2,88     9,29,2,88     9,29,2,88       (f)     Databased     9,39,3,48     9,29,2,88     9,29,2,88     9,29,2,88     9,29,2,88       (f)     Databased     9,39,3,53     97,749,50     91,025,32     87,39,5,90     11,72,94,50       (g)     Databased     0     7,69,50     91,025,32     87,39,5,90     91,025,32     87,39,5,90       (g)     Databased     0     5,01,01     The identification of operating segments is over profinance assessment and score allocation by the unangement.     10     Read fibrase corprice of Therit Equiptioner Finance, The Wapeeer and Miaro Lenns. Linearge finance accorpricis of Minet			Raral finance		23,269,27 24,886,16	22,928,22 24,956,73	19,060,01	23,269.27 24,886.16	19,060.01	22,181,29
Sub-tend         92,699.97         94,275.08         89,296,23         92,099.97         89,396,23         92,099.97         89,396,23         92,099.07         89,396,23         92,099.07         100,000         00	Sub-total         92,095,97         92,095,97         92,095,72         99,095,23         99,295,23 <t< td=""><td>Sub-band         22,099.21         92,099.23         92,099.27         99,096.23         99,096.23         99,096.23         99,099.24         99,096.23         99,099.24         99,099.24         99,099.24         97,092.27         99,099.24         97,092.27         99,099.24         97,092.27         99,099.24         97,092.27         99,099.24         97,092.27         99,099.24         97,092.27         99,099.24         97,092.27         99,099.24         97,092.27         99,099.24         97,092.27         99,099.24         97,092.27         99,099.24         97,092.27         99,099.24         97,092.26         <th< td=""><td></td><td>(c)   (d)  </td><td>Infrastructure finance Defocused business</td><td></td><td>35,371.12 6,009.54</td><td>35,944.12 8,198.50</td><td>33,108,79 11,972,04</td><td>35,371.12 6,009.54</td><td>33,108.79 11,972.04</td><td>34,757.97 9,238.06</td></th<></td></t<>	Sub-band         22,099.21         92,099.23         92,099.27         99,096.23         99,096.23         99,096.23         99,099.24         99,096.23         99,099.24         99,099.24         99,099.24         97,092.27         99,099.24         97,092.27         99,099.24         97,092.27         99,099.24         97,092.27         99,099.24         97,092.27         99,099.24         97,092.27         99,099.24         97,092.27         99,099.24         97,092.27         99,099.24         97,092.27         99,099.24         97,092.27         99,099.24         97,092.27         99,099.24         97,092.26 <th< td=""><td></td><td>(c)   (d)  </td><td>Infrastructure finance Defocused business</td><td></td><td>35,371.12 6,009.54</td><td>35,944.12 8,198.50</td><td>33,108,79 11,972,04</td><td>35,371.12 6,009.54</td><td>33,108.79 11,972.04</td><td>34,757.97 9,238.06</td></th<>		(c)   (d)	Infrastructure finance Defocused business		35,371.12 6,009.54	35,944.12 8,198.50	33,108,79 11,972,04	35,371.12 6,009.54	33,108.79 11,972.04	34,757.97 9,238.06
	Sugment likelities         90,993,48         91,992,87	Suggest landing     Suggest landing     Suggest landing     Suggest landing     Suggest landing     Suggest	1	2	Sub-total Less: Inter segment liabilities		92,699.97 (1,705.49)	94,575.08 (766.13)	89,896.23 (2,203.36)	92,699.97	89,896.23 (2.203.36)	93,299.20
(f) Unallocated 31.84 41.60 56.63 31.84 56.63 38	<ul> <li>*Rachaing uns controlling introset</li> <li>The Group Das reported approxed information as per Indian Accounting Standard 100<sup>4</sup> "Operating Segments" (Ind AS 108) read with SEBI circular dated July 5, 2016. The identification of operating segments is consistent with performance associated and excessioned and excessioned and excessioned and excession and excessi</li></ul>	************************************		0 1	Unaflocated		31.84	41.60	56.63	31.84	56.63	92,567.80 38,70
(f)         Unabled         33,84         44,60         56,63         33,84         56,63         38           Trad lishifier         94,025,32         93,850,55         97,769,50         91,025,32         97,769,50         92,664           *Ackding size controlling intervet         *         *         *         *         *	pofferance assessment and revorce allocation by the management. (ii) Segment composition : Reard finance comprises of Flatt Equipment Finance, Two Wheeler Finance and Misro Leons. Howing finance comprises of Flatt Equipment Finance, Two Wheeler Finance and Misro Leons. Howing finance comprises of Flatt Equipment Finance, Two Wheeler Finance, Italiance, Italianc	performance assessment and recource afficiation by the management.  (6) Segment composition :  Bard finance comprises of the information of the management.  For additional information of the management information of the management information of the management.  Information of the management information of the management information of the management information of the management information of the management.  Defense Blacks comprises of the Management Leans, Deb Capital Market, Commercial Vehicle Finance, Construction Equipment Finance, SME term loans and Leans,  Defense Blacks comprises of the Management etc.  Landseaster prepersis is a nest and and tabilities  10 Previous periods year Eigners have been regrouped/reclassified to make them comparable with these of current period.  10 Previous periods year Eigners have been regrouped/reclassified to make them comparable with these of current period.  10 Previous periods is the set and tabilities  10 Previous Periods & SML SLIP  10 Previous Periods & SML		(0)	Sub total Loss: Inter segment liabilities Segment liabilities (Inalicence Total liabilities *Including non controlling interest		92,699,97 (1,706,49) 90,993,48 31,84 91,025,32	94,575.08 (766.13) 93,808.95 41.60 93,850.55	89,896.23 (2,203.36) 87,692,87 56.63 87,749,50	92,699.97 (1,706.49) 90,993.48 31.84 91,025.32	89,896.23 (2,203.36) 87,692.87 56.63 87,749,30	93,299. (731. 92,567. 38. 92,606.
In terms of our report attached, For and on behalf of the Board of Directors For BELOWER ALL STATES TO A STATES TO A STATES AND A STAT	FOR B, N. NUMBER & CO. LAND MARKED FOR B. N. NUMBER & CO.	Charled Accountants Charled Accountants					Chartered Accountants	-	j	e i Finance Holdings Li	N a	
For DELOTITE HASKINS & SELLS LLP For B. K. KHARE & CO. L&T Finance Holdings Limited		Mun Di men man	For				A	/			NIL	A.
For DELOTTE ILASKINS & SELLS LLP For B. K. KILAR & GO. L&T Finance Holdings Limited Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants		WW Rapen K. Bhatt Parland Khare Kaleker Parland Khare Kaleker Parland Khare Kaleker Parland Khare Kaleker Parland Khare Kaleker Parland Khare Kaleker	For	N	with		1) .	en		NN	101	5

#### **DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP**

Chartered Accountants Indiabulls Finance Centre, Tower 3 27th – 32nd Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg Elphinstone Road (West) Mumbai 400013. **B. K. KHARE & CO.** Chartered Accountants 706/708, Sharda Chambers New Marine Lines Mumbai 400004.

## INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT ON REVIEW OF INTERIM STANDALONE FINANCIAL RESULTS

#### TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF L&T FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED

- We have reviewed the accompanying Statement of Standalone Unaudited Financial Results of L&T FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED (the "Company"), for the quarter and six months ended September 30, 2019 (the "Statement"), being submitted by the Company pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended.
- 2. This Statement, which is the responsibility of the Company's Management and approved by the Company's Board of Directors, has been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in the Indian Accounting Standard 34 "Interim Financial Reporting" ("Ind AS 34"), prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the Statement based on our review.
- 3. We conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410 'Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity', issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). A review of interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of the Company's personnel responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

per

4. Based on our review conducted as stated in paragraph 3 above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying Statement, prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in the aforesaid Indian Accounting Standard and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed in terms of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains any material misstatement.

#### For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

mes

Rupen K. Bhatt (Partner) (Membership No. 046930) UDIN: 19046930AAAAEB7096 WWW Mumbai, October 18, 2019 For B. K. KHARE & CO. Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No. 105102W)

pre

Padmini Khare Kaicker (Partner) (Membership No. 044784) UDIN:<u>1</u>9044784AAAAD&9599 Mumbai, October 18, 2019 . :

# L&T FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED CIN. L&T120M112008PLC181833 Regd. Office : Brindavan, Plot No. 177, C.S.T. Road, Kalina, Santasruz (Eastl), Mumbai - 400 098, Maharathtra, India Website: www.hfs.com Email: groß lft.com Phone: ~91 22 6212 5000 Fax: +91 22 6212 5553

-	STATEMENT OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL RES	100	Quarter ended		Six mont		Year ended
Sr.	antenen -	September 30.	June 30,	September 30.	September 30,	September 30,	March 31.
No.	Particulars	2019	2019	2018	2019	2018	2019
		(Unaudited)	(Unaudited)	(Unaudited)	(Unaudited)	(Unaudited)	(Audited)
- 1	Revenue from operations		Stern Store	Terrate and	1	Nethoda -	in the second
(i)	Interest income	18.72	16.56	43.59	35.28	75.97	137.94
(ii)	Dividend income	10.46	•)	53.74	10.46	53.74	343.79
(iii)	Net gain on fair value changes			0.38		0.38	0.35
(1)	Total revenue from operations	29.18	16.56	97.71	45.74	130.09	482.11
(11)	Other income	12.33	8.62	2.31	20.95	23.28	44.3
(111)	Total income (I+II)	41.51	25.18	100.02	66.69	153.37	526.41
	Expenses			12420-015	NO NO TO A	5558045255	
(i)	Finance costs	43.29	43.86	57.48	87.15	93.76	202.0
(ii)	Impairment on financial instruments	0.07	0.02	(3.58)	0.09	(3.58)	(3.91
(iii)	Employee benefits expenses	\$.45	3.63	4,79	12.08	9.15	15.05
(iv)	Depreciation, amortization and impairment	0.12	0.12	-	0.24		0.11
(v)	Other expenses	2.92	2.90	2.94	5.82	5.05	9.13
(IV)	Total expenses	54.85	50.53	61.63	105.38	104.38	222.45
(V)	Profit/(loss) before tax (III-IV)	(13.34)	(25.35)	38.39	(38.69)	48.99	.304.0
(VI)	Tax expense:	1000000000	200000101010		1	1.1	
	(1) Current tax			1.86		3.81	35.8
	(2) Deferred tax	4.04	4.60	2.84	8.64	1.14	1.10
(VII)	Net profit/ (loss) before impact of rate change on opening deferred tax (V-VI)	(17.38)	(29.95)	33.69	(47.33)	44.04	267.0
VIII)	Impact of change in the rate on opening deferred tax (Refer note 5)	0.24	+		0.24		
(IX)	Profit/(loss) for the period (VII-VIII)	(17.62)	(29.95)	33.69	(47.57)	44,04	267.00
(X)	Other comprehensive income	1000	1000000000				
	(A) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss						
	Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans	(0.05)	(0.03)	0.16	(0.08)	0.31	(0.32
(XI)	Total comprehensive income (IX+X)	(17.67)	(29.98)	33.85	(47.65)	44.35	266.74
(XII)	Paid-up equity share capital (Face value of ₹ 10/- each) (Refer note 6)	2.000.48	1.999.53	1.997.05	2.000.48	1,997.05	1,998.8
XIII)	Other equity	20000000			6		5,831.54
(XIV)	Earnings per equity share (*not annualised):	11/2000000					
	(a) Basic (?)	*(0.09)	*(0.15)	*0.17	*(0.24)	*0.22	1.3
	(b) Diluted (7)	*(0.09)	*(0.15)	*0.17	*(0.24)	*0.22	1.3

Statement of Assets and Liabilities as at September 30, 2019 1

-	and a standard of the second		(T in Crore
	Particulars	As at September 30, 2019	As at March 31, 2019
		(Unaudited)	(Audited)
- 3	ASSETS		
(1)	Financial assets		760010
(a)	Cash and cash equivalents	9.80	0.4
(b)	Bank balance other than (a) above	1,74	1.8
(c)	Receivables	10000	
	(I) Trade receivables	24.99	9.1
1.0	(II) Other receivables		550 <b>*</b> 5
(đ)	Loans	1.028.04	563.9
(c)	Investments	9.152.58	9,146.1
(f)	Other financial assets	6.45	290.6
(2)	Non-financial assets		
(3)	Current tax assets (net)		1.2
(b)	Deferred tax assets (net)	24.78	33.6
(c)	Property, plant and equipment	0.69	0.7
(d)	Other non-financial assets	1.92	0.9
1	TOTAL - ASSETS	10.250.99	10.048.8
	LIABILITIES AND EQUITY		
_ 11	LIABILITIES		
(1)	Financial liabilities		
	Pavables		
	(I) Trade payables	1 1	
15	(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises		
	(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises	0.01	0.0
	(II) Other payables	-	
	(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises	40	23
	(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises		
(b)	Debt securities	1.092.30	1,162.4
(c)	Borrowings (other than debt securities)	5.00	4.9
	Subordinated liabilities	1,495,56	1.032.2
	Other financial liabilities	10.41	5.5
(2)	Non financial Babilities		
	Current tax liabilities (net)	1.65	7.8
(b)	Provisions	2.30	2.0
(c)	Other non-financial liabilities	2.49	2.8
(3)	EQUITY		
(2)	Equity share capital	2,000.48	1.998.8
	Other equity	5.640.76	5.831.5

MUL

ent of Cash flows for the six months ended September 30, 2019

	1001	(? in Crore)
Particulars	As at September 30, 2019	As at September 30, 2018
	(Unaudited)	(Unaudited)
Cash flow from operating activities	at st	
- Profit/ (loss) before tax	(35.69)	48.99
- Operating profit before working capital changes	(32.07)	50.13
Net cash used in operating activities (A)	(350.03)	(940.04)
Net cash used in investing activities (B)	(6.39)	(904.01)
Net cash generated from financing activities (C)	165.73	1,832.92
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)	9.31	(11.13)
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of period	0.49	11.26
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period	9.80	0.13

These financial results have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles of Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant rules issued thereunder and the other accounting principles generally accepted in India. 3

The above results have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on October 18, 2019. The Joint Statutory Auditors of the Company have carried out limited review of the aforesaid results.

The recently promulgated Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019, has inserted section 115BAA in the Income Tax Act, 1961, providing existing domestic companies with an option to pay tax at a concessional rate of 22Vs plus applicable surcharge and cess. The reduced tax rates come with the consequential surender of specified deductions' incentives. The option needs to be exercised within the prescribed inter for filing the treatmont for nome under section 139(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, for assessment year (AY) 2020-21 or subsequent AYs. Once exercised, such an option cannot be withdrawn for the same or subsequent AYs. 5

These financial results are prepared on the basis that the Company would avail the option to pay income tax at the lower rate. Consequently, the opening deferred tax asset (net) has been measured at the lower rate, with a one-time corresponding charge of 0.24 crore to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

6 The Company, during the quarter and six months ended September 30, 2019 has allotted 945,600 and 1.668,100 equity shares respectively of ₹ 10 each. fully paid up, on exercise of options by employees. in accordance with the Company's Employee Stock Option Scheme(s).

7 During the quarter and six months ended September 30, 2019, following Cumulative Compulsorily Redeemable Preference Shares (CRPS) have been redeemed/ issued:

					IN IN CIUIC
S. No	Particulars	Date	Amount	Rate	Dividend Paid
1	Issued	17 May 2019	145.40	\$,00%	
2	Issued	03 June 2019	63.70	7.95%	
3	Redeemed	28 June 2019	124.40	8.50%	2,\$3
4	Redeemed	13 August 2019	60.00	8.35%	1.84
5	Issued	16 September 2019	100.00	7.95%	-
6	Issued	20 September 2019	150.00	7.95%	
7	leaved	27 Sentember 2010	150.00	7 94%	Q.

Information pursuant to Regulation 52(6)(a) and 52(6)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 2015 are given as below:
 (a) Loss for the six months ended September 30, 2019 is ₹ 47.57 crore.
 (b) Free reserves as on September 30, 2019 is ₹ (42.17) crore.

9 The main business of the Company is investment activity. As such, there are no separate reportable segments as per the Ind AS 108 on Operating Segment. 10 Previous period/year figures have been regrouped/reclassified to make them comparable with those of current period.

In terms of our report attached. For B. K. KHARE & CO.

In terms of our report attached, For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP Chartered Accountants

mur

Chartered Accountants FRN: 105102W non

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors L&T FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED

anath Dubhashi Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer (DIN: 03545900)

Place : Mumbai Date : October 15, 2019

Rupen K. Bh.

N

Place : Mumbai Date : October 18, 2019

Place : Mumbai Date : October 18, 2019

Padmini Khare Kaicker

Partner Partner Membership no. 044784

## ANNEXURE D

## PRE-ISSUE AND POST-ISSUE SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

SI.		Pre-	Issue	Post-issue					
No	Category	No of shares held	% of shareholding	No of shares held	% of shareholding				
А	Promoters' holding								
1	Indian								
	Individual	0	0	0	0				
	Bodies corporate	1,27,75,20,203	63.8607	1,27,75,20,203	63.8607				
	Sub-total	1,27,75,20,203	63.8607	1,27,75,20,203	63.8607				
2	Foreign promoters	0	0.0000	0	0.0000				
	Sub-total (A)	1,27,75,20,203	63.8607	1,27,75,20,203	63.8607				
В	Non-promoters' holding								
1	Institutional Investors	32,11,50,838	16.0537	32,11,50,838	16.0537				
2	Non-institutional investors								
	Private Corporate bodies	2,95,74,360	1.4784	2,95,74,360	1.4784				
	Directors and relatives	0	0.0000	0	0.0000				
	Indian public	24,49,72,905	12.2457	24,49,72,905	12.2457				
	Others (including non- resident Indians)	12,72,62,154	6.3616	12,72,62,154	6.3616				
	Sub-total (B)	72,29,60,257	36.1393	72,29,60,257	36.1393				
	GRAND TOTAL	2,00,04,80,460	100	2,00,04,80,460	100				

#### ANNEXURE E

#### CONSENT LETTER OF REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT



Link Intime India Pvt, Ltd. CIN: U67190MH1999PTC118368 C-101, 247 Park, L. B. S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai- 400 083. Tet.: +91 22 4918 6000 Fax: +91 22 4918 6060 E-mai: mumbai@iirikintime.co.in Website: www.linkintime.co.in

December 16, 2019

To.

L&T Finance Holding Limited, 6<sup>th</sup> Floor Brindaven, 177-C.S.T. Road Kaling Santacruz (East) Mumbal – 400 098

Dear Sir,

Kind Attention: - Mr. Nagarajan lyer.

Sub: Consent to Act as Registrar for privately placed NCRPS issue.

With reference to the above subject, we give our consent to Act as Registrar for the above forthcoming issue.

Issue Size: Rs. 300 Crores Issue Period: During December 2019

Thanking You,

For Link Intime India Pvt Ltd

<1 Authorised Signatory

Part of Link Group | Corporate Markets

## ANNEXURE F

#### **BRIEF PARTICULARS OF OUR MANAGEMENT**

#### 1. Mr. S V Haribhakti - Non - Executive Chairman

Mr. Shailesh Haribhakti is a chartered accountant, with over four decades of experience in developing and leading one of India's most respected and diversified chartered accounting firm – Haribhakti & Co. LLP.

He is currently the Non-Executive Chairman of L&T Mutual Fund Trustee Limited, Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited, Blue Star Limited and NSDL e-Governance Infrastructure Limited. He serves as an Independent Director of several other public and private limited companies. He is also pursuing advisory work through his proprietary firm, Shailesh Haribhakti & Associates.

He actively promotes "shared value" creation and a green environment through his own enterprise Planet People & Profit Consulting Private Limited and his leadership roles as chairman of United Way, and chairman/member of the CSR committees of some of the boards that he serves on.

He was associated with Indian Institute of Management Ahmedabad (IIMA), BMA, IIA (Mumbai), ICAI (WIRC), IMC, FPSB and Rotary Club of Bombay over the last several decades. For two years he served on the Standards Advisory Council of the IASB in London, and was the chairman of NPS (National Pension Scheme) Trust from 2015-2017.

#### 2. Mr. Dinanath Dubhashi - Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Dinanath Dubhashi is the Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer of L&T Finance Holdings Ltd. With a rich experience of over two decades, he has worked in multiple domains of financial services such as corporate banking, cash management, credit rating, retail lending and rural finance. He has been with L&T Financial Services since 2007 and has been instrumental in scaling up the retail business operations manifold, across customer segments and geographies.

The strategy roadmap defined under his leadership, has transformed LTFHL into an organization focused on creating sustainable value for shareholders through an increase in retailisation of the loan book, robust risk management framework, doubling of in return on equity, and decisive strategic choices in businesses. Providing 'Assurance' to all stakeholders, his focus has been to align LTFH's intent, execution and culture, towards making a stable and sustainable organisation. Prior to L&T Financial Services , he was associated with organisations such as BNP Paribas, CARE Ratings and SBI Capital Markets in various capacities.

He is a Post Graduate from IIM Bangalore and also holds a B.E. (Mechanical) degree.

#### 3. Mr. R Shankar Raman - Non-Executive Director

Mr. R Shankar Raman is serving as the Whole Time Director and the Chief Financial Officer at Larsen & Toubro Limited ("**L&T**"). He is also on the board of several companies within the L&T Group. He joined the L&T Group in 1994 to set up L&T Finance Limited. Over the past 35 years, he has worked for leading listed corporates in varied capacities in the field of finance and general management.

He is a qualified Chartered Accountant and a Cost Accountant with a degree in Commerce from Madras University.

#### 4. Mr. P V Bhide - Independent Director

Mr. P. V. Bhide is a retired IAS Officer of the Andhra Pradesh Cadre (1973 Batch). He has worked in several government positions during a career spanning nearly four decades. In the state government he worked as Deputy Secretary in Medical & Health Department and also as Commissioner Relief (Department of Revenue). He also was Finance Secretary and Secretary Energy for Andhra Pradesh. He also worked as Managing Director of A.P. State Handloom Weavers Co-operative Society Limited (APCO) and Chief Executive & Managing Director of Godavari Fertilisers and Chemicals Limited.

With the Government of India his roles include Deputy Secretary - Department of Economic Affairs, Ministry of Finance, Executive Advisor to India's Executive Director to the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (IBRD/World Bank), Joint Secretary and later as Secretary - Department of Disinvestment, Ministry of Finance, Additional Secretary/Spl. Secretary - Ministry of Home Affairs. He retired as Revenue Secretary - Ministry of Finance, Govt. of India. He is an MBA and has LLB and B.Sc. (Hons. Chemistry) degrees.

#### 5. Mr. Thomas Mathew T - Independent Director

Mr. Thomas Mathew T. has over four decades of strategic leadership and operational experience in the Life Insurance & Reinsurance industry. He was the Managing Director and Interim Chairman of L.I.C. He was also India MD & CEO of 'Reinsurance Group of America'. He was nominated by SEBI as the Chairman of the Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India. He has served as Director on the Boards of Mahindra & Mahindra Limited., Tata Power Co. Limited, Voltas Limited, IFCI Limited and Corporation Bank. He was a member on the Governing Council of the MDI, Gurgaon, Actuarial Institute of India & Chairman of The National Insurance Academy, Pune.

He is a Director on the Boards of Larsen & Toubro Limited, Canara HSBC OBC Life Insurance Company, LIC (International) B.S.C.(c), Bahrain and subsidiaries of the Company. He is also member of the 'Take Over Panel' of SEBI. He is PGDM – Marketing, Post Graduate in Economics, Law Graduate, and Associate of the Insurance Institute of India.

#### 6. Ms. Nishi Vasudeva - Independent Director

Ms. Nishi Vasudeva with over 38 years of experience in the petroleum industry is an internationally acclaimed leader and the first woman to chair an oil and gas company in India. As Chairman and Managing Director of Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited ("**HPCL**"), she was responsible for developing the vision and long term objectives, improving growth and profitability, driving a high performance culture geared towards operational excellence and consistent value creation for all stakeholders.

She is the first Indian to be awarded the Global CEO of the year at Platt's Global Energy Awards 2015. She received the SCOPE Award for excellence and outstanding contribution to public sector management from the Hon'ble President of India. She was awarded Best CEO (Super Large Companies) and Best CEO (Oil & Gas) at Business Today Best CEO Awards 2016. She is BA (Economic Honors) from Delhi University and an MBA from IIM Calcutta.

#### 7. Mr. Pavninder Singh - Nominee Director

Mr. Pavninder Singh serves as a Managing Director at Bain Capital Private Equity, LP, as part of the Asia Pacific Private Equity team. He leads their efforts in India and South East Asia with a focus on Financial & Business Services and Industrial & Energy Verticals. Prior to that he was based in the New York Office as part of the North American Private Equity industrials team. He has been closely involved

with a number of Bain Capital's investments in the region, including Axis Bank, Hero MotoCorp, L&T Financial Services, Quest Engineering, Bridge Data Centres, Emcure Pharmaceuticals and Trans Maldivian Airways.

He currently serves on the boards of Quest, Bridge Data Centres, TMA and Brillio. Prior to Bain, he served as a Co-Chief Executive Officer of Medrishi.com.

He also served as a Consultant at Mercer Management Consulting, where he consulted in the ecommerce, retail and energy industries. He received an M.B.A. from Harvard Business School, where he was a Baker Scholar. He received a B.A. from Harvard College.

#### 8. Mr. Prabhakar B. – Non-Executive Director

Mr. Prabhakar B., retired as Chairman and Managing Director of Andhra Bank in August 2013 after serving various banks for about 37 years. Prior to that, he had served as the Executive Director of Bank of India for a period of over 3 years. Before that, he had served with Bank of Baroda having worked in all areas of banking with stints at Zambia and U.K. He was the Chief Executive of Bank of Baroda, UK operations.

He is a commerce graduate from the University of Mysore and a Chartered Accountant.

#### 9. Dr. Rajani R. Gupte - Independent Director

Dr. Rajani Gupte is the Vice Chancellor of the Symbiosis International (Deemed University), Pune.

She joined Symbiosis as a founding member of the Symbiosis Institute of International Business in 1992. She was the Director of the Institute between 2004 and 2012. She has also earlier held the positions of Dean-Faculty of Management, Dean-Academics and ProVice Chancellor at the Symbiosis International (Deemed University).

She is an independent director on the governing board of NSDL and subsidiaries of the Company. She has been frequently invited on committees of important organizations, such as International Trade Panel - Confederation of Indian Industries ('CII'), World Trade Organization Committee, Government of Maharashtra, and Chemtech World Expo. She has also served on committees appointed by the university grants commission ('UGC') and on working groups on higher education.

She has received several awards for her outstanding contribution to education. A distinguished academic, she received her Doctorate degree in Economics from the prestigious Gokhale Institute of Economics and Politics, Pune.

#### ANNEXURE G

Certified True Copy of Resolution passed by the Board of Directors on March 19, 2019



#### CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE FIFTH MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY (FY 2018-19) HELD ON MARCH 19, 2019:

#### CONSIDERING AND APPROVING ISSUANCE OF PREFERENCE SHARES OF THE COMPANY:

"RESOLVED THAT subject to the approval of the Members of the Company and pursuant to the provisions of Sections 23, 42, 62 and 179 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'), the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, other relevant provisions of the Act (including any statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof for the time being in force), the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and such approvals as may be required from such regulatory authorities from time to time, approval of the Board of Directors be and is hereby accorded to the proposal for issuing 20 Crore (Twenty Crore) Cumulative Compulsorily Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares ("CRPS") of the face value of Rs. 100 (Rupees Hundred only) each, amounting to Rs. 2,000 Crore (Rupees Two Thousand Crore only), to various persons either through public offer or on a private placement basis, in one or more tranches to various entities / persons including Promoters / Promoter Group & Associates, whether or not they are Member(s) of the Company.

**RESOLVED FURTHER THAT** the Committee of Directors ("COD") be and is hereby authorised to finalise the timing of raising the funds, Information Memorandum / Private Placement Offer Letter, terms and conditions, allot CRPS to eligible allottees and perform all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary, desirable, proper or expedient for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto, either directly or through appropriate delegation of powers.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of issue of shares to the public, the COD be and is hereby further authorised to decide the terms and conditions of the issue such as tenor and redemption date, coupon rate and frequency, etc., and to give effect to such modifications, changes, variations, alterations, deletions, additions as regards the terms and conditions as may be necessary, finalise and appoint various intermediaries including Merchant Banker(s), allot the said CRPS, and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may in its absolute discretion deem necessary, proper or desirable and to settle all questions, differences, difficulties or doubts that may arise in regards to the offer / issue or allotment of said CRPS as it may, in its absolute discretion deem fit.

**RESOLVED FURTHER THAT** any one Director, Company Secretary, Mr. Yashesh Bhatt, Mr. Ankit Sheth and Mr. Gufran Ahmed Siddiqui, be and are hereby severally authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may deemed necessary or expedient to give effect to this Resolution and for matter connected therewith or incidental thereto."

**Certified True Copy** For L&T Finance Holdings Limited

Fghet

Ankit Sheth Authorised Signatory Date: April 12, 2019 Address: 6<sup>in</sup> Floor, Brindavan, Plot No.177, C.S.T Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East), Mumbai-400098

-L&T Finance Holdings Limited Registered Office Stindeven, Piot No. 177, C.S.T Road Kalina, Santacruz (Ess) Mumbal 400 088, Maharahtra, India CH: L67120MH2008PLC181833

T +91 22 6212 5000 F +91 22 6621 7509 E igrc@htfs.com

www.itris.com

L&T Financial Services

#### ANNEXURE H

Certified True Copy of the Resolution passed by the Committee of Directors at its Meeting held on December 18, 2019

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION DATED DECEMBER 18, 2019 PASSED BY THE COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS OF L&T FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED THROUGH CIRCULAR

APPROVING THE OFFER AND ISSUANCE OF CUMULATIVE COMPULSORILY REDEEMABLE NON-CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES ON A PRIVATE PLACEMENT BASIS:

"RESOLVED THAT the Committee of Directors be and hereby gives its consent to offer and issue Cumulative Compulsorily Redeemable Non-Convertible Preference Shares ("CRPS") at par up to 300,00,000 CRPS of face value of Rs. 100 each at par aggregating to an amount not exceeding Rs.300,00,000 (Rupees Three hundred crore) with dividend rate of 7.50% p.a. for cash on a private placement basis, in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (the "Act"), the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013, as amended ("SEBI Regulations"), if applicable, and other applicable laws (the "Issue").

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer of the Company be and is hereby authorized to finalise the terms and conditions of the Issue basis the prevalent market conditions, to finalize, execute and/or issue various documents in connection with the Issue including but not limited to the Private Placement Offer cum Application letter ("PPOAL") and/or Information Memorandum ("IM") on behalf of the Company, decide the opening and closing date of issue, appoint and finalize the scope of the intermediaries, provide such confirmations and declarations on behalf of the Company as may be required in relation to the Issue and to take all such actions that may be necessary in this connection and do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as may be required, to give effect to the resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby authorized to execute PPOAL and/or IM and provide any declaration on behalf of the Company and/or the Board, as may be required in accordance with the requirements of the Act and/or SEBI Regulations in connection with PPOAL and IM.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby severally authorized to:

- 1. Open bank account, if required, with a scheduled bank for receipt of the application monies;
- File and upload any IMs for inviting offers on the electronic book process mechanism ("EBP") and carry out such acts, deeds, matters and things as necessary in connection with the EBP;
- 3. File the PPOAL and IM along with other necessary documents, forms, letters, notices or records as required under applicable law including the filing of records with the Registrar of Companies or stock exchanges or other applicable statutory authorities in relation to any CRPS, intimating the stock exchanges in relation to the above, if required, taking on record the details of the identified investors and making other statutory and regulatory filings, as required, under all applicable laws;

L&T Finance Holdings Limited Registered Office Brindeven, Pitt No. 177, C.S.T Road Kalina, Santacruz (East) Mumbai 400.018, Maharoshtra, India Chi: Lof 2100Mi2000PLC181833

T +91 22 6212 5000 F +91 22 6212 5553 E igrc@tth.com

www.itfs.com



- 4. Apply for admission of the CRPS on the depository system and to do various acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary including but not limited to submission of Master Creation Form for creation of ISIN, submission of Corporate Action Form for allotment to depositories and taking all actions that may be necessary in this regard for allotment of CRPS in demat form;
- Apply for and obtain the listing of any CRPS on any stock exchange in India and provide, execute and file all information, letters, agreements, notices or documents and to do various acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary in this regard;
- 6. Sign and submit all necessary papers, certificates, undertakings, agreements, declarations, letters, signal forms, other deeds and such other papers including and in relation to the IM and PPOAL as may be necessary and desirable and take all necessary steps in this regard including the payment of applicable stamp duty and other taxes, fees and costs as required in connection with the Issue; and
- Do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed fit and proper and give such directions as may be necessary to settle any question or difficulty that may arise in regard to the issue and allotment of the CRPS.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one Director, Company Secretary of the Company, Mr. Yashesh Bhatt, Mr. Ankit Sheth and Mr. Gufran Ahmed Siddiqui be and are hereby severally authorized to certify the true copy of the aforesaid resolution or any other Board of Directors or Committee of Directors resolutions in connection with the Issue and provide any of them to the stock exchange, depositories or any other authorities concerned for their record and necessary action."

Certified True Copy For L&T Finance Holdings Limited

Ánkit Sheth Authorized Signatory Date: December 18, 2019 Address: 6th Floor, Brindavan, Plot No. 177, C.S.T Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East), Mumbai - 400 098

L&T Finance Holdings Limited Registered Office Brindevan, Plot No. 177, C.S.T Road Kalina, Santacruz (East) Mumbai 400 098, Maharashtre, India DN: 167320MH2008PLC181833

¥ +91 22 6212 5000 ₽ +91 22 6212 5953 E igrc@itfs.com

www.ht#j.com

Ξ

#### ANNEXURE I

Certified True Copy of the Shareholder's Resolution passed in the eleventh annual general meeting held on July 29, 2019

L&T Financial Services CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE ELEVENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF THE COMPANY HELD ON JULY 29, 2019 AT SWATANTRYAVEER SAVARKAR RASHTRIYA SMARAK, 252 SWATANTRYAVEER SAVARKAR MARG, SHIVAJI PARK, DADAR, MUMBAI ~ 400 028 AT 3:00 P.M. ISSUANCE OF CUMULATIVE COMPULSORILY REDEEMABLE NON-CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES BY WAY OF PUBLIC OFFER OR ON A PRIVATE PLACEMENT BASIS: "RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 23, 40, 42, 55, 62 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 (including any amendment(s), statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof) and in accordance with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Rules, Regulations, Guidelines and Circulars issued by the Reserve Bank of India, as amended from time to time, the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, any other applicable laws for the time being in force and subject to such other approvals as may be required from regulatory authorities from time to time, consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors ("Board", which term shall include any committee thereof which the Board may have constituted or may hereinafter constitute to exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this resolution) to create, offer, issue and allot, in one or more tranches 20,00,00,000 (Twenty Crore) Cumulative Computsorily Redoemable Non-Convertible Preference Shares ('Preference Shares') of the face value of Rs. 100 each for cash at par or at a premium aggregating to a nominal value of Rs. 2,000 Crore (Rupees Two Thousand Crore only) to various persons either through public offer or on a private placement basis, in one or more tranches to various institutions / entities viz. companies / bodies corporate / persons including Promoters / Promoter Group & Associates, whether or not they are the Member(s) of the Company on such terms and conditions as may be decided by the Board and subject to the following rights: The Preference Shares shall carry a fixed cumulative preference dividend to be determined by the Board at the time of issue of the Preference Shares, on the capital for the time being paid-up thereon and shall be redeemable not later than the date determined by the Board at the time of issue or such other date as may be determined by the Board but not later than a period exceeding 7 (Seven) years. The Preference Shares shall rank for dividend in priority to the Equity Shares for the time being of the Company. In the case of winding up of the Company, the Preference Shares shall be entitled to. rank, as regards repayment of capital and arrears of dividend, whether declared or not, up to the commencement of the winding up, in priority to the Equity Shares but shall not be entitled to any further participation in profits or assets. R **LET Finance Holdings Limited** Registered Office Briedgeon, Piot No. 171, C.S.1 Road T+912260125008 Kales, Santanue (East) Munical \$20,056, Maturatora, India F +91 22 6210 5553 ware, life core ON LETTIMANOCOPIC (STEEL) E growth com

7



 Voting rights of the persons holding the Preference Shares shall be in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Act.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to make arrangements with any financial institution / bank or any other body or person(s) to underwrite the whole or any part of the issue of the Preference Shares, subject to the provisions of Section 40(5) of the Act.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem necessary or desirable, including without limitation to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in this regard."

Certified True Copy For L&T Finance Holdings Limited

par 1251 2+1 ñ

Ankit Sheth Authorized Signatory Date: August 5, 2019 Address: 6<sup>th</sup> Floor, Brindavan, Plot No. 177, C.S.T Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East), Mumbai - 400 098

L&T Finance Holdings Limited Registered Office Brindson, Pice Ito, 177, C.S.3 Rood Ealers, Sentarus (Earl) Manbai 400 555, Malsonatora, India (19. LS7120481200874 (1916))

T 451 27 6212 5008 F 451 22 6212 5513 E iguté blucom

101030-25% COM

#### **ANNEXURE J**

#### SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF THE COMPANY AS ON SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

#### Shareholding Pattern under Regulation 31 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

1.	Name	Name of Listed Entity: L&T Finance Holdings Limited
2.	Scrip Co	ode/Name of Scrip/Class of Security: 533519 / L&TFH
3.	Share H	lolding Pattern Filed under: Reg <del>. 31(1)(a)/R</del> eg. 31(1)(b)/Reg.3 <del>1(1)(c)</del>
	а,	If under 31(1)(b) then indicate the report for Quarter ending September 30, 2019
	b.	If under 31(1)(c) then indicate date of allotment/extinguishment
4	Declara	tion: The Listed entity is required to submit the following declaration to the extent of submission of information:-

÷	Particulars	Yes*	No*
1	Whether the Listed Entity has issued any partly paid up shares?		No
2	Whether the Listed Entity has issued any Convertible Securities or Warrants?		No
3	Whether the Listed Entity has any shares against which depository receipts are issued?		No
4	Whether the Listed Entity has any shares in locked-in?	Yes	-
5	Whether any shares held by promoters are pledge or otherwise encumbered?		No

\* If the Listed Entity selects the option 'No' for the questions above, the columns for the partly paid up shares, Outstanding Convertible Securities/Warrants, depository receipts, locked-in shares, No of shares pledged or otherwise encumbered by promoters, as applicable, shall not be displayed at the time of dissemination on the Stock Exchange website. Also wherever there is 'No' declared by Listed Entity in above table the values will be considered as 'Zero' by default on submission of the format of holding of specified securities.

5 The tabular format for disclosure of holding of specified securities is as follows :-

Tuble I.	Summary Statement holding of specified securit	es				_			1.00		12	_						~
	+ r <sup>d</sup>						Shareholdi ng as a Xi of total no.	Number of Vosing Rig	Voting Rights hold in each dass of securities					Number of Locked		Number o pledged o encumber	e otherwise	
			No. of fully	No. of Partly paid-		Total nos. shares	of shares	No of Veting Rights		9	Total as a W	securities	convertible securities ( as a percentage		As a % of total Shares		As a N of total Shares	Number of equity
Caregory	Category of shareholder		shares held			held		Class eg: X	Cuss of y	Total			of diuted	No. Ini		No. (a)	held(b)	demoterialised fo
(1)	[9]	(111)	(14)	(V)		[VII] = (IV)-(V)- (VI)				(8)		(20)	(Hilim	[X0]			(XIII)	(20)
(4)	Promoter & Promoter Group	1	1277520,00	5	Ċ.	1377520,01	63.8607	1277520233		177752020	5 65 4007	Ģ	43.0607	10783089	8.439	1	0	0 127752
(8)	Puble	\$23718	722960257	0		722960252	38.1594	722960257		72295025	7 36 1 39 1	9	16.1893	0	0 0	NA	NA	72395
IQ.	Non Promoter - Non Public		s <u> — Contracija</u>	2 546s	0	S	N	G		0	1000000	9	- 2000 S			NA	14	
	Shares Underlying Dila	0	6	0	6	9	C	0		0	2 4	9	0		0	NA	NA	1
	Shares Held by Employee Trust	0		0	0		C	0			0 0	0	0	9		NA	14	10 - E
	Total	523714	2000480440	0	0	2000480460	100	2000430460		200648046	0 ±00	0 0	100	107610691	5.1892		0	0 200

3

8

					8		Shareholding % calculated as per SCRA,	I No of Voting Rights				Shares Underlying		Number of Locked in chares		Number of Shares product or otherwhe enclumbered		
		Nos of		and the sector	na. of shares underlying	8						Convertible securities	conversion of conversible securities ( as a percentage		As a % of total		As a % of total	Number of equity
Category & Namo of the phareholders	PAN	shareholde		up squity	Depository	Total nos. shares	1957 At + 16	Class eg: X	dan er r	Total	Total es a X	Including	of diluted	No. (a)	Shares Neld(b)	No. (a)	Shares	shares held in demateriolised for
(1)	(19)	0.0	(1V)	(M)	(M)	(vi) + (iv)-(v)+ (vi)	(VIII) AL AN		A Solution and the	(ut)	Contra Contra	[74]	000+ (vii)+(x)				(819)	(KIV)
Indian	12	-		1		1.					1.1				10	-	20 C	
Individuals / Hindu Undivided Family			5		<u> </u>				ç.	0		2			0	6	0	<u>ø</u>
Central Government / State Government(s)	S	0		2	c c		Ó Ó		¢.	¢ (		2		201	0	ø	0	6
Financial Institutions / Banks	28				4 e		0 0		Q	0					9	0	0	6
Any Other (Spochy)	3		1277520201		9	1777520201				6 1277530203			61.8601				0	e 127757
Bodies Corporate	2 - CONCTANT	- 10 - E	1277520201		0	127752020	6.8.8402	127752020		01 1277520201	8.8.8603		63.8607				0	0 1177110
Larana And Toxbro Limited	AAAGLOL40P		1777520203			1277520201	61.8607			0 1277520203	63,890		67,8607				0	e \$277520
Svib Telni (A)(U	(b) A Solution and the second s second second s second second se second second sec		1377520201	1 9	e	127752020	63.8607	177732020	1	a 12775303C	£3.860	7	63.8607	10781669	3.411	2	0	0 1277520
Finelin			1.			100 C 100	1000 M			Contraction (Contraction)			0.000	(5) 253305333		1.1	2	(%) A9180386
(individuals (Non-Resident Individuals / Foreign Individuals)				2 4	5	S	0 0		인	9		P		1	9	0	0	0
Government	5 g	0		2 3		S (i	0 0		0	e (					0	p	n	0
Institutions	2.			0	S		0 0		¢]	0		0			0	6	0	6
Foreign Partfolia Investor			·	4	· · · ·		0 0		0	0		P			0	9	0	9
Any Other (Specify)	2	0		2	4	S 20	0 0		0	6		0			9	0	Ū.	<u>\$</u>
Sub Total (A)(2)	2	0	2	0 4		2 2.	0 0		8	e (	1 A	0			2	0	0	0
Total Shareholding Of Promotor and Promoter Group (A)s (A)(3)-(A)(2)	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1 4	127753020			127752020	63 8607	127752020		0 1277520200	63.860		69.9607	10791009	1.419		0	0 1377520

-

Details of Geans which remain unclaimed may be given hear along with details such as number of shareholders, outstanding sharehold in dematy unclaimed suspense account, voirig rights which are frozen etc. No. of shareholdens 1 0 Mos of shares outstanding 10 (1) PAN would not be displayed an website of Stock Exchangets) (2) That would not be displayed an website of Stock Exchangets) (2) That would not be displayed an website of Stock Exchangets)



-

Table III -	Statement showing shareholding pattern	of the Public s	hareholder																
									Number of Voting Ri	ghts held <u>in</u> 1	each class of securities		No. of. Shares Underlying	assuming full	Number of Locked in shares		Number of pledged or encumber		
						No. of shares		Shareholding % calculated	No of Voting Rights				Outstandin # convertible			As a % of total			Number of equity
	•••••••	PAN	Nes. of		Partly paid- up equity shares held	Depository	Total nos. shares held	as per SCRR, 1957 As a % of (A+B+C2)	Class eg: X	Class eg: y	Tabal	Total as a % of (A+B+C)	securities (including Warrants)	a percentage of diluted share capital)	No (a)	Shares held(b)	No. (a)	totai Shares heid(b)	shares held in dematerialised form
	Category & Name of the shareholders	(11)	(III)	(IV)	(V)	(VI)	(VII) = (IV) + [V] + [VI)	(VIII) As a %	CANS CE A		100	ici producy	IX)	(XI)= (VII)+(K)		10		XB()	(X/V)
	Institutions	149	1 100		- 19/	1.40		(vinj ka a se				1	- 10	189-1907-199			+ `	1	1000
(a)	Mutual Fund		18	32488786			32488786	1.624	32488786		32488786	1.624	0	1.624	0		NA	NA	3248878
	Venture Capital Funds						0.00700	100	0		0	0	- i	0	0		NA	NA	1
(b) (c)	Alternate Investment Funds		1 4	1732831			1732831	0.0866	1732831	1 2	1732831	0,0866		0.0866	0		NA	NA	173283
(d)	Foreign Venture Capital Investors					0		0.000				0.0000		0	0		NA	NA	
	Foreign Venture Capital Investor		108	215793936			215793936	10.7871	215793936		215793936	10.7871		10,7871	0		NA	NA	21579393
e	Foreign Portfolio Investor		100	213/33556	°		213/33330	10.7871	113/35550	<u> </u>		10.1071		20.7072		· · · · · ·			
	Citigroup Global Markets Mauritius Private Limited	AAFC53274C	1	57869992	0		57869992	2.8928	57869992		57869992	2.8928	0	2.8928	0		NA	NA	57860992
	Smallcap World Fund, Inc	AABCS3581L	1					1.396				1.396	0				NA	NA	27926500
(1)	Financial Institutions / Banks		9	9199105		0	9199105	0.4598				0.4598	0				NA	NA	9199105
(e)	Insurance Companies		3	61936180	c	0	61936180	3.0961			61936180	3.0961	ļ °	3.0961	0		NA	NA	61936180
	toici Prudential Life Insurance Company Limited	AAACI7351P	1 1	60088513		0	60088513	3.0037				3.0037	0	3.0037	0		NA	NA	60088513
(h)	Provident Funds/ Pension Funds		1 0	0		0	0	0	0		0 0	0	0	0	0		NA	NA.	
(0)	Any Other (Specify)		0	0	<u> </u>	0	0	<u> </u>	0	· · · · ·	0	0		0	0		NA.	NA.	0
	Sub Total (B)(1)		142	321150838		0	321150838	16.0537	321150838		321150838	16.0537	0	16.0537	0		NA	NA	321150638
	Central Government/ State Government(s)/								1										
2	President of India		<u> </u>		<u> </u>	<u> </u>				<u> </u>						· · · · ·	INA	NA	+,
	Sub Total (B)(2)		1 0			0 0										<u> </u>	J NA	NA.	·
3	Non-Institutions							<u> </u>							<u> </u>		NA	NA	+
(4)	Individuals			<sup>0</sup>		<u> </u>		<u> </u>		<u> </u>			L				INA.	INDA.	
	<ol> <li>Individual shareholders holding nominal share capital up to Rs. 2 lakhs.</li> </ol>		500933	199052294		0 0	199052294	9.9502	199052294		199052294	9.9502		9.9502			NA	NA	19904449
	ii. Individual shareholders holding nominal share															Ι.		<b>.</b>	
	capital In excess of Rs. 2 lakhs.	-	749				45920611	2.2955			45920611	2.2955		2.2955	0		NA	NA	4592061
(6)	NBFCs registered with RBI		9	45621		<u> </u>	45621				45621			0.0023	. 0		NA	NA	4562
ω.	Trust Employee		1	1000	<u> </u>	· · · · ·	1000		1000	1	1000	- ·		0	0		NA.	NA	1000
	Overseas Depositories[holding DRs] [balancing																	I	
(d)	figure)			o c	4	1 0	0 0		(			0		0	0		NA	NA	+
{e}	Any Other (Specify)		21879			1 0	156789893	7.8370			156789893			7.8376			NA	NA	156789893
	Trusts		11			y	7567224				7567224			0.3783			NA	NA	7567224
	Hindu Undivided Family		12955		0		9378355	0.4688			9378355			0.4688			NA	NA	937835
	Foreign Companies		1	95657961			95657961	4.7817		· · · ·	95657963	4.7817		4.7817			I NA	NA	95657963
	Bc Asia Growth Investments	AADCB6851C	1 1	63820990		] 0		3.1905			63820990	3.1903		3.1903	0		NA.	NA	63820990
	Bc Investments VI Limited	AAGCB3659R	1 1	31836971	0		31836971	1.5915			31836971	1.5915	6	1.5915	0		) NA	NA	31836971
	Non Resident Indians (Non Repat)		2321				2802509	0.1401			2802505		(	0.1401	0		) NA	NA	290250
	Non Resident Indians (Repat)		4764				B265921	0.4132			8265921	0.4132		0.4132			NA	NA	826592
	Clearing Member		310				3543563				3543563			0.1771			NA	NA	354356
	Bodies Corporate		1510				29574360	1.4784			29574360		L(	1.4784			NA	NA	2957436
	Sub Total (8)(3)		523573				401809419	20.0856				20.0856	(	20.0656			) NA	NA	401801618
	Total Public Shareholding (8)= (8)(1)+(8)(2)+(8)(3)		52371	722960257		0 0	722960257	36.1393	722960253		722960257	36.1393		36.1393	0	1	NA	NA	722952450

689

-

Details of the shareholders acting as person in concert including their shareholding { Number and %} : NIL

Details of shares which remain unclaimed may be given here along with details such as Number of shareholders, outstanding shares held in demat/unclaimed suspense account, voting rights which are frozen etc. No. of shareholders : 6 Voting rights frozen : 689 Voting rights frozen :

#### Note :

(1) PAN would not be displayed on website of Stock Exchange(s)

(2) The above format needs to be disclosed along with the name of following persons: Institutions/Non Institutions holding more than 1% of total number of shares.

(3) W.r.t. the information pertaining to Depository Receipts, the same may be disclosed in the respective columns to the extent information available and the balance to be disclosed as held by custodian.

ď

205

F	able IV -	Statement showing shareholding pattern of the Nor	n Prom	oter-Nor	Public sh	areholde	r														
											Number of 1	Votine Diabt	hald in and		No. of Shares	ng , as a % assuming full	Number of		Number of		
		• .								Shareholdi		roting regine			Underlying	conversion			encumbere		
								No. of		ng % calculated					Outstandin 8	on convertible					Number of equity
						No. of fully paid up	Partly paid-	shares		as per SCRR, 1957	No of Vatin	Rights		Total as a	convertible securities			As a % of total		As a % of total	shares held
					shareholde	equity	up equity	Depository	Total nos.	As a % of				% of	lincluding	percentage		Shares		Shares	demateriali
L		Category & Name of the shareholders	PAN		rs	shares held	shares held	Receipts	shares held		Class eg: X	Class eg: y	Total	(A+B+C)	Warrants)	of diluted	No. (a)	held(b)	No. (a)	held(b)	sed form
E		()	1	(III)	(89)	(IV)	(V)_	(VI)	(VII) =	(VIII) As a		. 0	K)	_	(X)	(XI)+	0	KII)		(111)	(XIV)
1		Custodian/DR Holder			0	- 0	0	0		0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0 0	NA	MA	0
Г		Employee Benefit Trust (under SEBI (Share based Employee				1 -							1			_					
2		Benefit) Regulations, 2014)			0	0	0	0						1 (	0	0		0	NA	NA	0
Γ		Total Non-Promoter- Non Public Shareholding (C)= [C)[1)+(C)[2]				0	0	0		) 0	0	C	0	) (				0	NA	NA	0

1



Sr. No	De	tails of the S (I)	SBO	Details of	the register (II)	red owner	Details of holdi right of the SBO company, whe indire (II	in the reporting ther direct or ect*:	Date of creation / acquisition of significant beneficial interest# (IV)
	Name	PAN/	Nationalit	Name	PAN/	Nationalit	Whether by	virtue of:	
		Passport	y V		Passport	V V	Shares	%	
		No. in			No. in		Voting rights	%	
		case of a			case of a		Rights on		
		foreign			foreign		distributable		
		national			national		dividend or any		
							other		
							distribution	%	
							Exercise of		
							control	%	
		1					Exercise of		
							significant		
							influence	%	
									_

\* In case the nature of the holding/ exercise of the right of a SBO falls under multiple categories specified under (a) to (e) under Column III, multiple

# This column shall have the details as specified by the listed entity under Form No. BEN-2 as submitted to the Registrar.



#### ANNEXURE K

#### DETAILS OF ANY LITIGATION OR LEGAL ACTION PENDING OR TAKEN BY ANY MINISTRY OR DEPARTMENT OF THE GOVERNMENT OR A STATUTORY AUTHORITY AGAINST ANY PROMOTER OF THE ISSUER DURING THE LAST THREE YEARS IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING THE YEAR OF THE CIRCULATION OF THIS IM AND ANY DIRECTION ISSUED BY SUCH MINISTRY OR DEPARTMENT OR STATUTORY AUTHORITY UPON CONCLUSION OF SUCH LITIGATION OR LEGAL ACTION

#### **Litigations involving Promoter**

#### A. Larsen & Toubro Limited

Larsen & Toubro Limited ("L&T") has taken the threshold of  $\gtrless$  100 crores for civil matters in accordance with the internal policy of L&T. Further, no threshold has been applied for other matters disclosed below.

#### a. Civil Proceedings

- 1. Northwest Redwater Partnership ("NWR") and L&T had entered into contract where L&T was to provide carbon steel, stainless steel and alloy pipe spools, piping materials and other materials to NWR, Canada. In March 2017, NWR issued a notice to L&T under the Arbitration Act of Alberta, inter-alia, claiming an amount of CAD 121 million (₹ 625.5 crores) on account of damages due to breach of contract and negligence. Simultaneously, with issue of arbitration notice NWR also filed civil claim before Court of Queen's Bench, Alberta. L&T filed its reply to claims before the Court of Queen's Bench, Alberta and subsequently parties by consent agreed to withdraw the proceedings from the Court. NWR submitted an overview of claim to L&T in September 2017 revising claim to CAD ₹ 819.3 crores, L&T submitted its reply on December 22, 2017 reiterating its counterclaim of about CAD 16 million (₹ 830.08 crores). Subsequently, the parties met at Houston in February 2018 for engaging in negotiations without prejudice. Consequent to the meeting, parties signed the ADR Agreement in June 2018. The first stage of ADR process is information exchange, without prejudice meeting between parties and formal mediation. In the position papers exchanged for mediation NWR has revised its claim to CAD 148 million (₹ 767.4 crores). The mediation concluded in June 2019 without a resolution. The matter has now proceeded to arbitration. NWR has filed its Statement of Claim, our Company has filed its Statement of Defence and Counterclaim. Matter is currently pending.
- 2. L&T had applied for de-notification from SEZ of certain units situated at Vadodara and accordingly was required to obtain no objection certificates ("NOCs") from various authorities including the stamp duty department (the "Department") of Gandhinagar. Accordingly, L&T had filed an application with the Department for obtaining a NOC. However, the Collector and Additional Superintendent of Stamps, Gandhinagar (the "Collector") passed an order against L&T (the "Order") demanding L&T to pay stamp duty aggregating to ₹ 33.5 crores. L&T then filed a writ petition before the Gujarat High Court against the Order. The writ petition was disposed of by the Gujarat High Court and L&T was directed to file an appeal before the Chief Controlling Revenue Authority ("CCRA"). The Gujarat High Court directed CCRA to issue the NOC during the pendency of the appeal, subject to L&T depositing a percentage of stamp duty amount and furnishing a corporate guarantee. L&T filed a revision application before the CCRA pursuant to the Gujarat High Court order. CCRA rejected the revision application and ordered payment of stamp duty along with a penalty. L&T filed a special civil application bearing number 15654 of 2016 before the Gujarat High Court for, *inter-alia* setting aside the orders passed by the Collector and CCRA, stay on recovery of penalty and refund of amount deposited

with Industries commissioner and CCRA. The Gujarat High Court has admitted the matter. The matter is currently pending.

- 3. The Additional Director of Mines, Kota, passed order against L&T for deposit of approximately ₹ 20 crores towards royalty payment in connection with a supercritical thermal power project executed for Rajasthan Rajya Vidyut Utpadan Nigam Limited ("**RRVUNL**"), which was thereafter confirmed by the Appellate Authority for Mining. RRVUNL withheld such deposit amount from L&T's running bills. Thus, L&T filed a writ petition numbered CW 119 of 2017 before the Rajasthan High Court against the withholding of deposit amount. The Rajasthan High Court admitted the petition, directing 50% of the demanded amount to be released by RRVUNL in favour of L&T and Department of Mining. The matter is currently pending.
- 4. L&T initiated arbitration proceedings against Visa Power Limited ("Visa Power") in relation to the disputes arising out of contract entered into between Visa Power and L&T. Visa Power had awarded a contract to L&T for balance of plant package for setting up of a 2x600 MW Visa Raigarh Super Thermal Power Project at Devari and Dumarpali villages in the Raigarh District of Chhattisgarh. In terms of the contract, Visa Power was required to make payments to L&T and L&T was required to furnish a bank guarantee in favour of Visa Power. The alleged failure of Visa Power to make timely payments to L&T, resulted in termination of the contract. Subsequently, Visa Power invoked the bank guarantee furnished by L&T. Therefore, L&T initiated arbitration proceedings against Visa Power and filed a statement of claim seeking for a total claim amount of ₹ 602.975 crores along with interest of 18% per annum till realisation of the same. Visa Power filed a counter claim of ₹ 182.987 crores consisting mainly consequential damages which was dismissed on December 5, 2017. An application before the National Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT") was filed for initiation of corporate insolvency proceedings against Visa Power filed by Bank of Maharashtra as one of the creditors of Visa Power (the "Proceedings"). Pursuant to the Proceedings, a resolution professional was appointed, and arbitration proceedings were suspended during the moratorium period. As the bank guarantee was encashed, L&T has filed applications before the NCLT, Kolkata for depositing the amount in a fixed deposit. This amount is already part of the statement of claims filed by L&T before the NCLT, Kolkata. NCLT, Kolkata vide order dated September 7, 2018 dismissed both the applications filed by L&T. L&T has preferred an appeal before NCLAT, New Delhi with respect to the dismissed applications. Further, vide an order dated December 3, 2018 passed by the Hon'ble NCLAT, Delhi, the appeal filed by L&T was dismissed against which L&T has preferred an appeal before the Supreme Court which was dismissed vide order dated March 15, 2019. The Corporate Insolvency resolution proceedings have come to an end and Visa Power has gone into liquidation. L&T has filed its claim before the Official Liquidator at present. Further, L&T had written to the arbitrators to revive the arbitration proceedings against Visa Power Limited which was accepted by the Arbitral Tribunal. The matter was finally heard and reserved for award.
- 5. Indian Oil Corporation Limited ("IOCL") has filed an appeal under Section 34 of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996, before the Delhi High Court against the award dated May 18, 2017, passed in favour of L&T for ₹ 172.00 crores. L&T has filed an execution application against IOCL for the aforesaid award which is heard along with the aforesaid appeal. The appeal under Section 34 of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 was decided in L&T's favour *vide* an order dated June 1, 2018. IOCL has filed a second appeal number F.A.O. (O.S.) (Comm) No. 171 of 2018, before the division bench of Delhi High Court. The matter is currently pending.
- 6. L&T has filed an arbitration against NTPC to the tune of ₹116 Crore (approx) before the Arbitral Tribunal for reimbursement of minimum wages which have been revised pursuant to notification of January 2017. All pleadings were filed, and matter was finally heard. L&T has filed an

application for leading expert evidence which is admitted by the Arbitral Tribunal. Expert evidence was led, written submissions were filed by both parties and the matter is reserved for award.

- 7. L&T has filed Writ Petition No. 1541/2017 challenging, *inter-alia*, property tax levied from April 1, 2010 till date, on the open and scattered lands within the property in Powai (West) and the incorrect method of computation of the Capital Value ("**CV**") on the undeveloped and open land, which was not assessed under the Rateable Value method. L&T, *inter-alia*, prayed that (i) notices issued by Municipal Corporation of Greater Mumbai ("**MCGM**") be quashed and set aside; (ii) restrain Respondents from passing any order in respect of fixing rateable value without following statutory procedure of MCGM Act & MMRDA Act; (iii) call for records from MCGM; and (iv) restrain Respondents from passing any order unless instructions have been given by State of Maharashtra. The matter has been admitted before the Bombay High Court. The Court passed an order dated April 11, 2017 directing L&T to pay 50% differential property tax demanded in the property tax bills amounting to ₹ 32.30 crores. The matter is currently pending for hearing and final disposal.
- L&T has filed Writ Petition No.1742 of 2002 before the Bombay High Court against the action 8. taken by the MCGM of preventing L&T's trucks from entering the municipal limits of Mumbai. L&T had entered into an agreement with Systems Application and Products in Data Processing Private Limited ("SAP India") for obtaining license to use proprietary software (the "Software") of SAP India. The MCGM had required L&T to furnish certain documents for the purposes of investigating the use of the Software in Mumbai. Subsequently, the MCGM demanded an octroi of ₹ 0.236 crores from L&T. L&T raised objection to the same and paid an amount of ₹ 0.045 crores under protest. Due to non-payment of the entire octroi amount, MCGM had prevented L&T's trucks containing ready-mix cement from entering the municipal limits of Mumbai. Due to the short life of ready-mix cement, the consignment of cement had to be returned. The amount involved in the matter is ₹ 0.236 crores. The Bombay High Court vide an order dated June 28, 2002 directed MCGM to permit the trucks, which were detained on June 25, 2002 and all subsequent trucks and goods of L&T to enter into the municipal limit of greater Mumbai subject to payment of  $\gtrless$  0.19 crores, which was deposited by L&T on June 28, 2002. The writ petition was admitted on November 18, 2002. The matter is currently pending.
- 9. MCGM had issued notices to L&T under the Mumbai Municipal Corporation Act, 1888 for fixation of the ratable value of amenity with respect to a parcel of land held by L&T. The Small Causes Court passed an order in favour of L&T. MCGM then filed First Appeal No. 270 of 2006, First Appeal No. 287 of 2006 and First Appeal No. 269 of 2006, before the Bombay High Court against the order passed by the Small Causes Court, Mumbai against the rateable value fixed by MCGM. The amount involved in the matter is ₹ 0.112 crores. The first appeal has been admitted and no interim relief has been granted in favour of MCGM. The matter is currently pending.
- 10. MCGM has filed First Appeal No. 2207 of 2006 before the Bombay High Court against the order passed by the Small Causes Court, Mumbai tax in favour of L&T pertaining to assessment of property. The first appeal has been admitted by the Bombay High Court and will come up for final hearing in due course. The first appeal has been admitted and no interim relief has been granted in favour of MCGM. The amount involved in the matter is ₹ 3.657 crores. The matter is currently pending.
- 11. L&T had filed several applications before MCGM seeking their approval for commencement of various construction works. L&T had paid an amount of ₹ 0.307 crores under protest as directed by MCGM and thereafter filed a claim before it for refund of certain charges. MCGM rejected the claim of L&T. For refund of these sewerage charges, a Writ Petition No. 1601 of 2005 has

been filed which is admitted and pending hearing and final disposal.

- 12. EMTA Coals Limited ("EMTA") had purchased a total of 128 Komatsu HD785 Dump Trucks and other mining equipment from L&T for which EMTA had entered into 18 Full Maintenance Contracts ("FMC") with L&T between January 2006 and August 2013. The FMCs were renewed from time to time. L&T approached EMTA for release of payments under FMC but the same was consistently delayed. A winding up notice bearing no. VBT/RDB/ADK 1049 dated March 4, 2015 was issued by L&T to EMTA under Sections 433 and 434 of the Companies Act, 1956 calling upon EMTA to pay a sum of ₹ 89.3 crores, together with interest at the rate of 20% per annum and other charges. Despite receipt of the notice, no payment was made accordingly after subsequent correspondence exchanged between the parties. A total sum of ₹ 130 crores is due from EMTA for which a winding up petition numbered AP 476 of 2016 is filed before the Kolkata High Court. EMTA has filed a petition under Sections 11, 14 and 15 of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 for ₹ 142 crores. The aggregate amount involved in this matter is ₹ 129.5697 crores as on March 31, 2015 plus interest at the rate of 20% per annum till realization. The matter is pending.
- 13. G V Bapat, a food inspector filed a complaint against L&T Grahak Sahakari Sanstha Maryadit, the supplier and buyer of food items used in the canteen of L&T, before the Additional Chief Metropolitan Magistrate, Mazgaon under Section 2 of the Prevention of Food Adulteration Act, 1954 in relation to adulterated food being supplied. An exemption application numbered CC No. 465/S of 2003 has been filed, which was allowed by the Additional Chief Metropolitan Magistrate, Mazgaon. The Ld. Magistrate has framed the charges against both the accused. Matter is currently pending for recording of further evidence on prosecution side.
- 14. L&T in a joint venture with M/s. Alpine Mayreder Bau GmbH, were the contractors for the construction of a 12-kilometre-long underground tunnel and HRT for Tapovan Vishnugad Hydro Electric Power Project of National Thermal Power Corporation ("NTPC") (Project Lot 1). Disputes arose pertaining to the works under different heads with claims being made for various additional works. The arbitration hearings have been concluded and the parties have filed their written submissions, in compliance with the order of the Arbitral Tribunal. The amount involved is ₹ 251 crores. The Arbitrators (by majority) have published an arbitral award dated December 26, 2018 for ₹ 62.88 crores which would be payable by NTPC. Further, future interest at the rate of 18% per annum, shall be payable on the awarded sum from the date of the said award till the date of payment. Further, NTPC filed a petition before the Delhi High Court challenging the majority Arbitral Award dated December 26, 2018. The hearing for the admission of the petition is dated February 02, 2020.

L&T in joint venture with M/s. Alpine Mayreder Bau GmbH were the contractors for the construction of 12 kilometre long underground tunnel and HRT for Tapovan Vishnugad Hydro Electric Power Project of NTPC Project Lot-2. NPTC have commenced their arguments in defence which will be continued on January 27, 2020 and January 28, 2020.

L&T in joint venture with M/s. Alpine Mayreder Bau GmbH, were the contractors for the construction of 12 kilometre long underground tunnel and HRT for Tapovan Vishnugad Hydro Electric Power Project of NTPC (Project Lot -3). There have been claims for declaration regarding the impossibility of performance due to adverse geological conditions at the project site. By way of an amendment to the Statement of Claim, L&T has included monetary claim of  $\gtrless$  867 crores towards reimbursement of costs, payment of balance amounts and claims. Pursuant to which, NTPC has raised counter claim of  $\gtrless$  3150.7 crores. Matter is now fixed for further recording of the evidence on February 26, 2020 (RW2) and March 13, 2020 (RW1). The arbitration is in progress.

- 15. L&T has raised claims of ₹ 165.67 crores in an arbitration against Rail Vikas Nigam Limited ("**RVNL**") pertaining to the Kolkata Metro Railway Line Project (ANV IV Package) due to various delays of RVNL, revision of the rate on account of change in quantity of pile, execution of works outside the original scope of work and seeking for the declaration of entitlement of taking over certificate. The arbitration is in progress and has been posted for further hearing on January 07, 2020.
- 16. L&T-SCOMI Engg. Bhd Consortium ("LTSE") initiated two separate arbitration proceedings against Mumbai Metropolitan Region Development Authority ("MMRDA"), one with respect to claims of interest on delayed payment of the certified bills amounting to ₹ 108.55 croresand ₹ 52 crores, on escalation on uncovered price adjustment during extended period. With respect to first dispute, the arbitral tribunal on January 31, 2019 passed an award in favour of LTSE for an amount of ₹ 37.48 crores. MMRDA had moved a Notice of Motion along with Sec. 34 Application. The Bombay High Court *vide its* order dated September 19, 2019 directed MMRDA to deposit 50% of the award amount. LTSE can withdraw the same by tendering the BG of the equal amount. MMRDA deposited an Amount of ₹20,53,80,300/- on 07/10/2019. With respect to 2<sup>nd</sup> dispute i.e. claims on escalation on uncovered price adjustment during extended period, due to non-payment of fees to the Arbitrators by MMRDA, the arbitration proceedings stood suspended. L&T paid the Arbitrators fee on behalf of MMRDA and the Arbitration proceedings resumed. The hearing took place on November 18, 2019. The Tribunal directed to commence the cross examination of witness on January 16, 2020 and to complete the same on January 17, 2020.
- 17. L&T had referred its disputes to arbitration against National Hydroelectric Power Corporation Limited ("NHPCL") pertaining to Subansiri Lower Hydro Electric Project. L&T has raised contractual claims under various head to the tune of ₹ 1908.83 crores. NHPCL has made a counter claim of ₹ 54.59 crores plus 14% interest. L&T filed its defence to the counter claim pursuant to which the parties were directed to file admission-denial of documents and issues were framed. The matter is currently pending.
- 18. L&T has initiated arbitration and filed a claim of ₹ 221.25 crores against Bhabha Atomic Research Centre, Trombay ("BARC") towards pending final bills, claims and other charges. BARC has filed their counter claim of ₹ 249.76 crores and L&T has filed its reply to the defence cum counter claim and is further in the process of finalising further documents for filing. Arbitration is in progress and posted for further proceedings on December 16, 2019, December 17, 2019 and December 18, 2019.
- 19. L&T has a claim of ₹ 40.5 crores against Bangalore Metro Rail Corporation Limited ("**BMRCL**") pertaining to Reach 3A project. In respect of certain variation claims that fructified into a dispute, L&T has invoked additionally as a second reference in the same package, R3A package. BMRCL has made a counter claim of ₹ 20.50 crores. On June 20, 2019, Hon'ble Arbitral Tribunal pronounced the Award directing BMRCL to pay L&T ₹10.71 crores including interest and arbitration cost and disallowed all the counter claim of BMRCL.
- 20. L&T invoked arbitration with a claim of ₹ 52.97 crores against BMRCL with respect to certain disputes arising out of the Reach 4P2 project. The claim is towards, *inter-alia*, extended stay costs and costs incurred towards variations. BMRCL has made a counter claim of ₹ 16.68 crores. Favourable award for ₹0.87 crores plus 12% interest towards claims on variation in granite works, electrical panel work, chemical anchor fastener and rebar works and ₹ 0.06 crores towards arbitration cost. Counter claim of BMRCL totally rejected.
- 21. In respect of prolongation cost claims and variation in R3P1 project, L&T has invoked arbitration against BMRCL for a claim amount of ₹ 119.5 crores. BMRCL made a counter claim

of ₹ 28.57 crores. The arbitral tribunal in its Award on April 30, 2018 order for payment of ₹ 36.51 crores plus the arbitrator's fee of ₹ 0.1512 crores in favour of L&T and the bank guarantees of L&T were released. BMRCL have challenged the award ("**Award**") vide Suit No. A.S. No. 141/2018 before the City Civil Court, Bengaluru and has filed an interim application seeking interim relief of stay of operation of the Award. Case is now registered as Commercial Disputes case in Com. A.S. No.141/2018 and transferred to Commercial Court, Bangalore. The matter is currently pending.

- 22. In respect of certain claims relating to Viaduct and Elevated stations Reach 3 package, L&T had initiated arbitration against BMRCL. L&T had also filed their counter claim of ₹ 162.83 crores. On August 4, 2018, the arbitral tribunal awarded an amount of ₹ 1743.94 crores to L&T and allowed BMRCL's Counter Claim to an extent of ₹ 0.3121 crores. L&T filed an arbitration suit no AA 221/2018 before the City Civil Court, Bengaluru challenging the arbitral award wherein certain claims of L&T on the extended stay cost and others were rejected. Case is now transferred to Commercial Court and is pending for Arguments. BMRCL has also filed an arbitration suit no. AA 222/2018 before the City Civil Court, Bengaluru challenging the arbitral award passed in the arbitration proceedings between L&T and BMRCL and the same is also pending before Commercial Court, which is pending for Arguments.
- 23. The Collector and District Registrar, Hyderabad, issued a show cause notice No. G3/Sec-73/2013 dated March 3, 2013 ("Notice") to L&T Metro Rail (Hyderabad) Ltd. ("LTHMRL") and L&T alleging that in respect of an EPC contract executed between LTHMRL and L&T, L&T had paid less stamp duty. L&T had challenged the Notice vide a writ petition before the High Court, Andhra Pradesh ("Court"), wherein the Notice was suspended by the interim order of the Court dated April 7, 2014. The matter is pending, and interim stay has been extended until further orders. The amount involved in the matter is ₹ 619.75 crores.
- 24. Sugruha, an association, had filed a complaint before the District Consumer Forum, Bangalore, alleging deficiency in services in respect of the South City Project but the same was dismissed. Sugruha then filed an appeal before the State Consumer Forum which was later on withdrawn by Sugruha with a liberty to approach the National Consumer Disputes Redressal Commission, New Delhi ("NCDRC"). Sugruha has now filed a complaint numbered 386 of 2014 before the NCDRC seeking the transfer of management and supervision of south city complex to Sugruha and to provide amenities like club house, restaurant, cycle track, library, jogging track, restaurant etc. detailed in the development agreement, brochures, sale deed, agreement to sell and have claimed a sum of ₹442 croreson various accounts. The matter is adjourned to January 13, 2020 for further hearing on the maintainability issue.
- 25. The Joint Commissioner of Labour and Assessing officer, Government of Telengana, Ranga Reddy Zone, Hyderabad ("Authority") issued a demand notice No. A/BOCW-27/2014 dated September 29, 2014 directing LTHMRL to pay cess of 1% under the Building & Other Construction Workers Act, 1996 ("BOCW") on the cost of construction carried out up to end of February 2014, failing which the Authority has stated that he will assess the amount of cess and recover the arrears along with one time penalty. LTHMRL filed a case numbered W.P. No. 35582 of 2014 against the Authority before the High Court, Hyderabad. The court granted interim stay on the demand of 1% on cost of construction on November 24, 2014 for a period of 3 weeks. The High Court on December 09, 2014 extended the stay until further orders and directed the Respondents to file their counter. The date of next date of hearing has not been notified. The amount involved in the matter is ₹ 140 crores.
- 26. Sojitz-L&T(Consortium) India invoked two separate arbitrations against Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation of India Ltd., ("**DFCCIL**") with respect to two separate disputes under the International Chamber of Commerce ("**ICC**") Arbitration Rules for CTP 1 and 2 packages

for  $\gtrless$  135 crores and  $\gtrless$  254.91 crores. The first dispute is with regard to the interpretation on the provision about stage payments. On November 15, 2019, ICC Arbitral Tribunal held the conduct of DFCCIL in denying the payment to the contractor is wrong and had ordered to pay the interest on these delayed payments of  $\gtrless$  115.59 crores and also the entire cost of arbitration. The second dispute is regarding the cost associated with extended stay during achievement of milestone 1 for the project making a claim of  $\gtrless$ . 254.91 crores, currently the order is reserved.

- 27. L&T invoked arbitration against Department of Atomic Energy, Mumbai ("DAE") in relation to construction of academic township, sports complex and residential township along with necessary infrastructural facilities for National Institute of Science Education and Research at Jatni, Khurda, raising claims towards outstanding payments, final bill, release of bank guarantee to the tune of ₹ 133.79 crores with an interest of ₹ 77.09 crores. The arbitration has begun, and the matter is currently pending. Further, DAE has made a total counter claim of ₹2.0735 crores. The Arbitration proceeding in progress and is posted for continuation of arguments on January 9, 2020 and January 10, 2020.
- 28. A consortium comprising of M/s. Patel Engineering and L&T ("**Patel-L&T Consortium**") initiated arbitration against NHPC Limited in relation to Parbati Hydroelectric Project, Stage III-520 MW at Himachal Pradesh towards claims raised by Patel-L&T Consortium for outstanding payments, final bill, release of bank guarantee to the tune of ₹ 492.11 crores. NHPC filed an Application under Section 13 read with Section 12 of Arbitration Act before the Tribunal praying for setting aside the appointment of Presiding Arbitrator which was set aside by the Tribunal. NHPC further filed another application seeking for stay of the proceedings before the Tribunal which was also rejected. Presently, NHPC has approached the District Court, Faridabad filing an application under Section 14 of the Arbitration Act challenging the appointment of the Presiding Arbitrator. During the pendency of the said application, the court has directed stay of the arbitral proceedings.
- 29. Mr. Uday Dixit ("Petitioner 1"), who retired on April 30, 2016, had challenged his transfer from Mahape to Mysore in 2012. Mr. Dinesh H. Sawant ("Petitioner 2") was terminated on May 19, 2010 as he had failed to report to duty from May 5, 2010 continuously, till terminated. Both Petitioners have been filing series of complaints against L&T before various authorities on the ground that L&T is illegally developing its land in Powai but their complaints have been consistently dismissed. Finally, the Petitioners filed a writ petition bearing Writ Petition No. 1578 of 2016 against, *inter-alia*, L&T before the Bombay High Court. The Petitioners have prayed for, *inter-alia*, confiscation of the land in Powai; appointment of a receiver for the land and withdrawal or change the user permission. L&T is yet to reply to the amendment made to the petition. The Petitioners have withdrawn the petition and filed and a fresh petition on the same grounds has been filed by Loyal Tigers Welfare Association, being Civil Writ Petition No.9486 of 2019 against State of Maharashtra & Ors. before the Bombay High Court. Loyal Tigers Welfare Association is a registered society whose Secretary is Mr. Uday Dixit. The matter is at pre-admission stage.
- 30. Mr. Surendra Sharma ("Petitioner") filed a suit bearing Suit No. 2755/ 2011 before the Bombay High Court. The suit arises from a family dispute with respect to non-payment of money as agreed in a settlement deed executed between the Petitioner and Smit Properties Pvt. Ltd. ("Smit Properties"), being L&T's predecessor regarding the property. The property was bought by L&T from Lt. Durgadevi Sharma who had made a will and all defendants in the matter are family members and beneficiaries to the will. L&T was made defendant no. 20 since one of the prayers in the suit challenges the conveyance between L&T and Smit Properties. The chamber application was filed by Smit Properties to bring on record its written statement after a delay of 5 years. The matter is kept for Direction and next date is yet to be notified.

- 31. Mr. Rajendra Sharma filed an identical suit bearing Suit No. 2593 /2012 before the Bombay High Court against his family members, Smit Properties & L&T in 2012 for non- receipt of the amount due to him from Smit Properties thereby praying for the cancellation of the deed of conveyance between Chittaranjan Sharma & Smit Properties and the further sale between Smit Properties & L&T. The matter is currently pending. The matter is listed for framing of issues on December 16, 2019
- 32. L&T had leased plot no. 4D and 4E of the Marve Bungalow which is situated on a composite piece of land comprising of three sub plots bearing Nos.4C, 4D and 4E at Aksa Village, Madh Marve Road, Malad West, Mumbai. The lease of Plot no. 4D expired on January 31, 2016. The legal heirs of the lessors have filed a T.E.R Suit for eviction against L&T in the Bandra Small Causes Court. L&T filed an application to deposit rent for the period subsequent to April 1, 2017. As per the order dated November 10, 2017, the rent for the period between April 01, 2017 to March 31, 2018 has been deposited in the Court. The matter is currently pending. The matter is adjourned to December 19, 2019 for hearing on the amendment application and Inspection Application.
- 33. A criminal complaint numbered 359/18 has been filed against L&T Ltd. and Mr. S.C. Bhargava, before the Presiding Officer & Judicial Magistrate First Class, Labour Court, Surat, for the alleged breach of provisions under Inter State Migrant Workmen (Regulation of Employment and condition of Service) Act 1979 and the Interstate Migrant Workmen (Regulation of Employment and condition of Service) Central Rule, 1980. The matter is currently pending.
- 34. A criminal complaint under Section 420 of IPC, has been filed by L&T through its Electrical and Systems Equipment Division ('**Company**'), before the Police Station, Delhi Cantt. against Ravindra Brothers, a Proprietorship Firm. Ravindra Brothers had raised a Purchase Order No. RB/L&T/01 dated June 15, 2016 on the Company for "Supply of HT 11 KV VCB Panel Board as per specifications A/C MES Vasco Work with relay Numerical Type Siemens (7SJ62) / Schneider (P127)" ("**Material**") for a sum of ₹ 0.23 crores Ex-works, exclusive of taxes and duties. The said Material was duly delivered to MES, Goa and accordingly, the Company raised an invoice dated October 07, 2016 on Ravindra Brothers for a sum of ₹0.24 crores, being the amount payable to the Company. However, Ravindra Brothers failed to make the said payment. Since no effort was taken by the IO, the issue has been raised before the DCP, office. The matter is pending.
- 35. A Criminal Complaint numbered 187/11 has been filed by L&T Limited against Anjali Electricals & Pumps before the Civil Court at Morwadi, Pimpri, Pune under Sections 403, 406, 417 and 420 of the IPC pursuant to the failure by the accused to reply to legal notices dated 25.11.2010 and 20.12.2010 issued by L&T Limited demanding payment of ₹ 0.53 crores against fraud by the accused. Subsequently, a Criminal Revision Application numbered 188/14 has been filed by Anjali Electricals & Pumps through its representative, Sagar Gulavani against L&T Limited before the District and Sessions Court, Shivaji Nagar, Pune. The matters are currently pending.
- 36. A Criminal Complaint being No. CC No. 6103/SS/2015 u/s 138 of Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881, has been filed before the Metropolitan Magistrate, 33<sup>rd</sup> Court at Ballard Pier, B.P.T, Ballard Estate, Mumbai by L&T against Insys India Solutions in relation to the cheque issued by Insys India Solutions amounting to ₹ 0.92 crores. The parties have settled the matter and the payment has been received. Disposal order is awaited from the Court.
- 37. A Criminal Complaint being No. CC No. 418/13/2013 under Section 138 of Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881, has been filed before the Patiala House Court, Delhi by L&T against Global Switchgear in relation to the dishonor of the cheque issued by Global Switchgear

amounting to ₹ 2.82 crores. The accused has been declared as a Proclaimed Offender under Section 82 of the Criminal Procedure Code, 1908.

- 38. A Criminal Complaint being No. CC No. 1528/SS/2019 u/s 138 of Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881, has been filed before the Additional Chief Metropolitan Magistrate, 23<sup>rd</sup> Court at Esplanade by L&T against Square Automation Private Limited in relation to the dishonor of the cheque issued amounting to ₹ 0.40 crores issued by the accused. The matter is currently pending.
- 39. L&T initiated an arbitration proceeding against Ministry of Health and Family Welfare (MOH&FW) relating to the construction of the AIIMS Bhubaneshwar Project. Disputes pertaining to non-release of outstanding, delay claims, escalation etc. to the tune of ₹ 215.42 crores. Earlier, we also moved an interim application under Section 17 of the Act seeking interim protection against our bank guarantees. The matter is posted on December 15, 2019, for arguments under Section 17 application reserved for orders.
- 40. Experion Developers Private Limited ("EDPL"/ "Respondent") invoked the bank guarantees citing non-performance causing delay in execution of Design & Build Contract for Group Housing Project at Gurgaon and defects. L&T challenged the invocation of the bank guarantees and initiated arbitration raising claims towards non-payment of outstanding payments and other dues for an amount of ₹ 208.54 crores. Respondent to file its written statement and counter claim. Fixed for a meeting of the Tribunal on December 16,2019 for discussion on Points for Determination/Issues. Respondent have sought further time to file Statement of Defence and Counter claim. The Arbitration proceedings are in progress.
- 41. As the Dispute resolution process initiated against HLL in respect of our claims in ESIC, Kollam Project failed, we invoked arbitration with regard to non-release of outstanding, delay claims, escalation, tax reimbursements etc. to the tune of ₹ 527.03 crores. Statement of Defence to be filed on or before November 30, 2019, by Respondent. Extension sought by the Respondent to file their Statement of Defence by December 24, 2019. We are filing objections to the extension sought by the Respondent. The Arbitration proceedings are in progress.
- 42. L&T Scomi Engg Bhd. Consortium invoked arbitration against MMRDA with respect to claims for prolongation costs relating to extension of time. Statement of Claim filed praying for a sum of ₹ 1,659.20 crores (L&Ts portion ₹ 744.84 crores) along with interest. The preliminary hearing took place on November 11, 2019. MMRDA was directed to file the SOD and counter claim, if any, on or before December 24, 2020 and LTSE to file its rejoinder and reply to counter claim on or before January 31, 2020. The proceedings are adjourned to February 14, 2020.

## **b.** Criminal Proceedings

- 1. Central Bureau of Investigation ("**CBI**") has registered a FIR with Case No. RC. 8A/2017-D on September 8, 2017 in Dhanbad, Jharkhand against certain officials of Bharat Coking Coal Limited, L&T Ltd and unknown others in relation to alleged criminal conspiracy, cheating and criminal misconduct with regard to award of contract to L&T Ltd against notice inviting tender dated March 25, 2013 for supply of 100 numbers of 35 Te Tippers with Maintenance & Annual Repair Contract ("MARC") for 6 years for estimated cost of ₹ 383.92 crores. Investigation is pending.
- Manoj Mendon was an employee of a clearing house agent appointed by L&T for clearing payorders and customs duties for goods and components imported by L&T. While performing his duties, Manoj Mendon fraudulently claimed ₹ 0.29 crores from L&T's bank account in 2004. To recover this amount, L&T filed a criminal complaint numbered CC NO. 2269 / PW / 2005

in 2005 against Manoj Mendon and others. The case is pending in the Additional Chief Metropolitan Magistrate, Ballard Pier Court, Mumbai at the stage of hearing.

- 3. Ramesh Bhatt ("Accused") was working with L&T in accounts department at Powai Works. He was handling and was familiar with procedure for passing bills and releasing payments to the vendors. He indulged in preparing forged documents during the period of June 9,1986 to June 16, 1992. He duped L&T to the tune of ₹ 1.25 crores by following different modus operandi. A criminal complaint numbered CC NO.PW / 2201897 / 1994 was filed to recover the amount from the Accused and now the matter is still pending in Magistrate Court, Andheri, Mumbai at the stage of hearing.
- 4. Kamaljeet Singh Shekhawat, a customer of L&T, filed a criminal case numbered CRLMP/2388/2014 against L&T and Komatsu India Private Limited before the Thana Mandan, District Alwar, Rajasthan alleging that Komatsu failed to return the equipment belonging to the Complainant. The matter is currently pending.
- 5. Mr. Uday Dixit is a disgruntled ex-employee of L&T Ltd. He had circulated various defamatory messages against L&T and its senior management in its Kolkata office. In relation to the same, criminal complaint numbered CS/0045822/2017 has been filed before the Court of 18th Metropolitan Magistrate, Calcutta under relevant provisions of Indian Penal Code, 1860 ("IPC") for defamation and extortion. Summons have been issued on the basis of police report. Further criminal complaints numbered 2473/2017 and 2126/2017 have been filed before the judicial magistrate, Patna under the relevant provisions of the IPC and the Information Technology Act for defamation and extrant, non bailable warrants were issued and accused was arrested and produced before the Hon'ble Court. Bail has been granted to accused and matter is proceeding as per due course.
- 6. A Criminal Complaint being No. CS No. 4291 of 2019 u/s 138 of Negotiable Instruments Act, has been filed before the Learned 14<sup>th</sup> Metropolitan Magistrate, Kolkata by L&T through its E&A Division against Messrs Arun Electricals acting through its Proprietor Mr. Avinash Singh in relation to the cheque issued by Messrs Arun Electrical towards its partial discharge of legal debt. The balance outstanding amount of ₹ 0.21 crores is still due and payable by Messrs Arun Electricals. The matter is currently pending. Similarly, criminal complaint being Case No. 17235/19 u/s 138 of the Negotiable Instruments Act has been filed by L&T before the Learned 14<sup>th</sup> Metropolitan Magistrate, against M/s. Arun Electricals for ₹0.20 crores which is also pending.
- A criminal case No. TR No.153/2015 had been initiated by Labour Enforcement Officer (Central) before the Sub-Divisional Judicial Magistrate, Sherghati against the L&T and Mr. M.P. Sharma for alleged non-compliance under Building & Other Construction Workers (RE &CS) Act, 1996 ("BOCW") read with the rules. A criminal revision application No. 52 of 2018 arising out of G.O. Case No.07/2005 is pending before District Judge, Gaya. The matter is currently pending.
- 8. A criminal case numbered Special Case No. 28/ 2004 has been initiated by the CBI before the Court of Special Judge CBI Court No. 2, South Bihar Patna against S.K. Soni, Project Director of National Highway Authority of India ("NHAI"), Brig Kapoor, Engineer appointed by NHAI, J. Ganguly, EVP, L&T under Sections 420 and 120B of Indian Penal Code, 1860 and Sections 13(2) and 13(1)(d) of the Prevention of Corruption Act due to the execution of Golden Quadrilateral project in Delhi Kolkata leg which was awarded by NHAI to L&T-HCC JV. The case relates to the alleged sub-contracting of more than 10% of the total value of the project in contravention of the contract conditions and causing alleged pecuniary loss of ₹ 22 crores to

NHAI. While the case is pending before the special court, the same dispute was raised by NHAI before the Dispute Review Board ("**DRB**") as well as the arbitral tribunal. Both DRB and the arbitral tribunal have totally dismissed the claims of NHAI and held that there was no subcontracting of more than 10% as alleged by NHAI and there was no pecuniary loss as alleged by NHAI. No appeal was filed and NHAI entered into a settlement as well. L&T filed a criminal revision petition seeking quashing of the criminal case and the High Court of Patna was pleased to hold that CBI had to conduct a fresh investigation in light of the DRB and arbitral awards rendered in favour of L&T. As per the direction of the Patna High Court, CBI had investigated the issue again and submitted the final report before them. The discharge petition would be filed as and when the matter is taken up for framing of charges. Last hearing held on December 05, 2019. The matter is currently pending.

- 9. The matter with FIR No.RC0042010 A0003 where L&T is a party has been filed before Special Judge, Anti-corruption, Jammu and is pertaining to alleged irregularities in execution of the contract for executing the rural electrification works in Udhampur district and contract for supply of materials. The allegations are for procuring material from unapproved vendors. Last posted on December 14, 2019 for evidence. The matter is currently pending.
- 10. There has been prosecution with suit numbered CC No.10 FI/2014 against L&T for alleged violation of the provisions of BOCW at the DLF Capital Green Project site. The directors of L&T on behalf of L&T filed a quash petition which was disposed of with an observation to seek relief before the lower court where such discharge petition is pending. The matter is currently pending and posted on February 20, 2020 for further proceedings.
- 11. CBI has filed a criminal case CC No.70/2004 against the officials of L&T alleging conspiracy with the officials of Oriental Insurance in respect of NTPC Simhadri job claims settled by them. Separate appeals have been filed for the convicted individuals and our Company. The matter has been posted for next appearance on March 02, 2020.
- 12. There has been prosecution with suit numbered CC No.55F1/2014 before Karkardooma Court, Delhi for alleged violation of the provisions of BOCW at the DLF Capital Green Project site. L&T filed quash petitions in the High Court against the criminal complaint, which has been allowed in respect of all save and except for two petitioners for which necessary action is being taken up. The matter is currently posted on February 20, 2020 for further proceedings.
- 13. A complaint has been filed by Labour Enforcement Officer against L&T before Metropolitan Magistrate, Patiala House, New Delhi for alleged violation of certain provisions of Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970 ("CLRA") at the construction site for elevated viaduct and ramp at Punjabi Bagh, ESI Hospital and Mayapuri, New Delhi. The crossexamination of the defendant's witness No.3 was held on March 15, 2019. The matter has now been concluded and order is awaited.
- 14. During the execution of a bridge project (minor bridge location CH 429), a police head constable travelling on a motorcycle passing through L&T's construction site met with a fatal accident on March 24, 2016. His brother, Mr. Govind Bapurao Gaikwad("Complainant"), filed a FIR against L&T and its employees before the Manwath police station under Sections 304A, 279 and 34 of the Indian Penal Code, 1860. Subsequently, an anticipatory bail with suit No. SCC 99 of 2016 had been granted to the staff members of L&T against whom the FIR was filed. The matter is currently pending, and the next date of hearing is December 16, 2019 for evidence.
- 15. The State represented by the Labour Enforcement Officer, Ponda and Vasco, Goa ("Complainant") has alleged that L&T had commenced its contract works from March 18, 2014 by engaging about 395 contract workmen without obtaining the requisite license and violating

Section 12(1) of CLRA and the Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Central Rules, 1971. Two criminal petitions have been filed by the Complainant against L&T and its officials before the Judicial Magistrate First Class, Panaji, Goa pertaining to non-compliance of the provisions of Inter-state Migrant Workmen Act and Contract Labour Act, relating to Goa-Mandovi Bridge project. The matter is currently pending.

- 16. The State represented by the Labour Enforcement Officer, Ponda and Vasco, Goa ("Complainant") has alleged L&T had employed Inter State Migrant Workmen numbering 395 workmen without obtaining the requisite license thus violating Section 8(1) (b) of the Inter-State Migrant Workmen (Regulation of Employment and Conditions of Service) Act, 1979 and non-maintenance of Register of Migrant Workmen in Form XIII, thus breaching Rule 49 of the Inter-State Migrant Workmen (Regulation of Employment and Conditions of Service) & Central Rules, 1980. The matter is before Judicial Magistrate First Class, Panaji, Goa. The matter is currently pending.
- 17. Sandhya engineering, a sub-contractor in Techno park project filed a criminal complaint bearing C.C. No.124/2017 in J.M.F.C. Paravur, Kollam before Judicial Magistrate, Paravur, Kerala alleging cheating and criminal breach of trust relating to his sub contract payments and under the Orders of the Court, police conducted investigation and filed final report. L&T filed a quash petition before the High Court and secured stay of proceedings. L&T has filed a discharge petition before the lower court. The arguments on discharge petition concluded and the Court dismissed discharge petition filed by L&T. The certified copy of the order is awaited.
- 18. A complaint has been filed by a Mittal, a sub-contractor alleging offences of cheating, forgery against the officials of L&T, in respect of work done at Perto Project. L&T preferred a petition bearing Miscellaneous Petition No. 6702/2017 under Section 482 of Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 before the Judicial Magistrate, Jaipur which stayed the investigation of the FIR registered at P.S. Vaishali Nagar, Jaipur (West). The matter is pending. The court had referred the matter to the High Court mediation Centre to explore settlement. However, the mediation failed. Mittal has filed a miscellaneous petition seeking vacation of stay order. The matter is posted after four weeks from November 28, 2019 for admission before the High Court Bench at Jaipur.
- 19. A complaint bearing case No. 3060/04 was filed before the 11th Chief Metropolitan Magistrate, Kolkata under Section 420 of the Indian Penal Code, 1860 by S. K. Poddar of Kiran Properties against L&T alleging non-payment of brokerage relating to leasing out of office space on the 5th floor to British Airways. A summons was issued and subsequently Sadhana Mishra was produced in Court on October 14, 2004 and released on bail on a surety of ₹ 0.001 crores. L&T filed an application under Section 205 which has been allowed. The matter has been posted to January 04, 2020 and is currently pending.
- 20. On September 02, 2015, Anil Baxla who was working in Fabrication shop sustained minor injuries. This was reported to the Factory Inspector, Rourkela. The Factory Inspector filed this case bearing Case No. 2 (C) CC 96/15 in the court of JMFC, Rajgangpur against SNS (the then occupier) and Mr. Sandip Choudhuri (the then manager) of the factory on the allegation of the lacuna on the part of the management. The matter was not taken up for hearing on November 08, 2019. The matter is posted for January 2, 2020.
- 21. A complaint bearing CC No.3308662 has been filed against L&T by the Labour Enforcement Officer, BOCW, before the Lucknow Magistrate Court regarding non-compliance of provisions of Building & Other Construction Workers Act, 1996 ("BOCW") pertaining to River View Apartment Project at Lucknow for the Lucknow Development Authority. The matter is pending.

- 22. A criminal complaint bearing A.B.A No. 4663 of 2018 and A.B.P. No. 367 of 2018 was filed by one of L&T's vendors Sharma Construction Services in connection with non-payment of dues for the services provided by them at L&T's Bokaro Steel City Project. The summons was received from the Court of SDJM, Bokaro against L&T's staff, Mr. Tanmoy Boxi and Mr. Srinivas Pabolu under Section 323, 385, 379 and 34, Indian Penal Code, 1860. Anticipatory bail was applied for both the employees before the High Court of Jharkhand at Ranchi. The Hon'ble Court was pleased to stay the proceedings until further orders. Anticipatory bail has been granted for both employees. Interim order continues and is posted on December 18, 2019 for evidence before charge.
- 23. Police registered a FIR in a hit and run case and a complaint was lodged with NHAI alleging that poor road condition was the cause of accident. Due to non-action from NHAI the aggrieved party moved the High Court of Punjab and Haryana (P&H). The case was re-investigated, and challan was filed against six accused viz. L&T, Director of L&T, RK Jha (Project Manager of L&T), DA Tollway Limited, Director of DA Tollway Ltd), Rajesh M (Project Manager, DA Tollway). Further pursuant to an order of the Judicial Magistrate a supplementary charge sheet has been filed impleading all the Board of Directors of L&T. We moved the High Court, Punjab and Haryana seeking quashing of the criminal complaint for the Directors. High Court has stayed the proceedings against all the Directors named in the Supplementary charge sheet. Matter posted before the High Court on November 11, 2019 for further proceeding and filing of pleadings. Lower Court has been appraised of the stay granted by the High Court and the matter is posted to January 30, 2020 for appearance.
- 24. State represented through the Labour Enforcement Officer (Central), Chandigarh, filed a complaint under Section 24 C.L. (R&A) Act, 1970 against the company through its MD. It is alleged in the complaint that during the site visit, LEO (Central), Chandigarh, observed certain non-compliances and issued a Summon dt. July 21, 2019 to appear before the Court. The hearing is posted to January 15, 2020 for appearance.
- 25. Sankalp Mishra (former employee) whose services were terminated for misconduct, filed a frivolous criminal complaint No. 1998 of 2017 against the directors of L&T and others before Chief Judicial Magistrate, Lucknow. Quash Petition under Section 482 Cr.P.C was filed before the Allahabad High Court (Lucknow Bench) and the High Court was pleased to grant stay against any coercive action. Last hearing held on November 15, 2019 and posted for further proceedings on February 10, 2020.

## c. Regulatory Proceedings

- 1. Mr. Mayank Agrawal ("Complainant") has filed a complaint bearing Complaint No. CC00600000056800 before the Maharashtra Real Estate Regulatory Authority. The Complainant had booked flat no. 403 in Tower T8, Emerald Isle, Powai but wants to withdraw the booking due to delay in handing over the possession. The Complainant further claims refund with interest and bank processing fees, legal charges, service tax, TDS, stamp duty, registration fees and other out of pocket expenditures aggregating to around ₹ 4.04 crores. The complainant has been disposed of *vide* an order dated January 31, 2019 wherein the Maharashtra Real Estate Regulatory Authority has directed L&T to *inter alia* refund the amount paid by Complainant together with interest recorded therein. L&T has filed an appeal being No.AT00600000021232 before the Maharashtra Real Estate Appellate Tribunal challenging the said order. The next date of hearing in the appeal is January 22, 2019.
- 2. Mr. Ankesh Agrawal ("Complainant") has filed a complaint bearing Complaint No. CC006000000056809 before the Maharashtra Real Estate Regulatory Authority. The

Complainant had booked flat no. 503 in Tower T8, Emerald Isle, Powai but wants to withdraw the booking due to delay in handing over the possession. The Complainant further claims refund with interest and bank processing fees, legal charges, service tax, TDS, stamp duty, registration fees and other out of pocket expenditures aggregating to around ₹ 4.06 crores. The complaint has been disposed of *vide* an order dated January 31, 2019 wherein the Maharashtra Real Estate Regulatory Authority has directed L&T to *inter alia* refund the amount paid by Complainant together with interest recorded therein. L&T has filed an appeal bearing number AT00600000021231 before the Maharashtra Real Estate Appellate Tribunal challenging the said order. The next date of hearing in the appeal is January 22, 2019.

- 3. Mr. Mittal Anil Padia ("Complainant") has filed a complaint bearing Complaint No. CC00600000056757 before the Maharashtra Real Estate Regulatory Authority. The Complainant had booked flat no. 601 in Tower T8, Emerald Isle, Powai but wants to withdraw the booking due to delay in handing over the possession. The Complainant further claims refund with interest and bank processing fees, legal charges, service tax, TDS, stamp duty, registration fees and other out of pocket expenditures aggregating to ₹ 5.04 crores. The complaint has been disposed of *vide* an order dated January 31, 2019 wherein the Maharashtra Real Estate Regulatory Authority has directed L&T to *inter alia* refund the amount paid by Complainant together with interest recorded therein. L&T has filed an appeal bearing number AT00600000021230 before the Maharashtra Real Estate Appellate Tribunal challenging the said order. The next date of hearing in the appeal is January 22, 2019.
- 4. Mr. Banmali Tandon ("Complainant") has filed a complaint bearing Complaint No. CC00600000057215 before the Maharashtra Real Estate Regulatory Authority. The Complainant had booked flat no. 305 in Tower T04, Emerald Isle and had withdrawn his complaint vide order dated October 24, 2017. The Complainant has again filed this complaint alleging non-refund of TDS amount, service tax, and MVAT and interest due on the prepayment of the advance money. The said complaint was disposed of vide Order dated April 30, 2014 directing L & T to pay the Complainant the amount of Service tax and VAT together with interest at the rate of 10.75% from June 28, 2018 till payment. L&T has filed an appeal before the Maharashtra Real Estate Appellate Tribunal being No. AT00600000031569 of 2019 challenging the said order. The Appeal is listed for hearing on 14<sup>th</sup> January, 2020.
- 5. Mr. Suresh Swamy ("Complainant") has filed a complaint bearing Complaint No. CC00600000057656 before the Maharashtra Real Estate Regulatory Authority. The Complainant had booked a flat bearing number 301 in Tower T08, Emerald Isle. The Complainant wants to proceed with the project but is seeking compensation for delay in handing over of possession of his flat. The Complaint was disposed of vide order dated April 22, 2019, which was rectified on June 19, 2019directing L & T to pay interest to the Complainant for the delayed period. L&T has filed an appeal being No. AT00600000031647 before the Appellate Tribunal challenging the said Order dated April 22, 2019. Next date of hearing in the appeal isJanuary 22, 2019.
- 6. Mrs. Rekha Sinha ("Complainant") had filed a complaint before MahaRERA bearing Complaint No. 23296. The Complainant after taking possession of her flat filed complaint seeking compensation for delay in hand over of possession of her Flat. The said complaint was disposed of as dismissed vide order dated May 3, 2018. The Complainant had challenged the said order dated May 3, 2018 by filing First Appeal being Appeal No. AT00600000010425 before the Maharashtra Real Estate Appellate Tribunal. The appeal has been disposed off vide order dated May 03. 2018 passed by the Learned Member and Adjudicating Officer of RERA. It has further directed the Promoter to pay interest on delayed possession of six months on the amount of ₹1.66 crores to the allottees at the prescribed rate. L&T preferred a second appeal before the Hon. Bombay High

Court challenging the Order dated March 14, 2019 passed by the Maharashtra Real Estate Appellate Tribunal in Appeal No. AT00600000010425. The said Appeal has been disposed of by the Hon. Bombay High Court vide its order dated October 17, 2019 wherein the impugned Order dated March 14, 2019 was set aside and the matter was remitted back to the Tribunal for hearing the same afresh. The Appeal is listed on January 13, 2020.

- 7. Mr. Sudhir Gurtoo ("Complainant") has filed a Complaint before MahaRERA bearing complaint No.CC00600000078573. The Complainant has booked flat No. 2002 in Tower T08, Emerald Isle. The Complainant has taken possession of his Flat but is seeking compensation for delayed period in handing over of possession of his flat. The complainant has disposed of vide order dated June 21, 2019, directing L & T to pay interest to the Complainant for the delayed period in handing over possession. L&T has filed an appeal being No. AT00600000031693 before the Appellate Tribunal challenging the said Order dated June 21, 2019. The next date in the Appeal is December 18, 2019.
- 8. Mr. Atul Bhatia ("Complainant") has filed a Complaint before MahaRERA bearing complaint No.CC006000000078994. The Complainant had booked flat bearing No. 501 in Tower T08, Emerald Isle. The Complainant had filed complaint No. CC006000000078994 after taking possession of his flat, seeking compensation for delay in handing over of possession of his flat. The Complainant for the delayed period in handing over possession. L &T has filed an appeal being No. AT006000000031781 of 2019 before the Appellate Tribunal challenging the said Order dated July 12, 2019. The next date of hearing in the Appeal is January 3, 2019.
- 9. Mr. Amit Sharma ("Complainant") has filed a Complaint before MahaRERA bearing complaint No.CC006000000079515. The Complainant had booked flat bearing No. 903 in Tower T08, Emerald Isle. The Complainant had filed the complaint after taking possession of his flat, seeking compensation for delay in handing over of possession of his flat. The Complaint has been disposed of vide order dated October 10, 2019 directing L&T to pay interest to the Complainant for the delayed period in handing over possession.. L&T has filed an appeal being Appeal No. AT00600000042021 of 2019 challenging the said Order dated October 10, 2019. The next date in the appeal is awaited from the Appellate Tribunal.
- 10. Sukhi Traders Pvt. Ltd. ("Complainant") has filed a Complaint before MahaRERA bearing complaint No.CC00600000089576. The Complainant had booked flat bearing No. 1701 in Tower T08, Emerald Isle. The Complainant had filed the complaint after taking possession of the flat, inter alia seeking compensation for delay in handing over of possession of his flat. The Complaint has been disposed of vide order dated October 10, 2019directing L&T to pay interest to the Complainant for the delayed period in handing over possession. L&T has filed an appeal being Appeal No. AT00600000042020 of 2019 challenging the said Order dated October 10, 2019. The next date in the appeal is awaited from the Appellate Tribunal.
- 11. Mrs. Neera Gupta & 3 Ors. ("Complainants") have filed a Complaint before MahaRERA bearing complaint No.CC00600000089885. The Complainants have booked flat no. 701 in Tower T07, Emerald Isle. The Complainant have taken possession of the Flat but are inter alia seeking compensation for delayed period in handing over of possession of their flat. The matter is listed for hearing on January 3, 2019.
- 12. Mr. Ashish Arora & Anr. ("Complainants") have filed a Complaint before MahaRERA bearing complaint No.CC00600000089947. The Complainants have booked flat no. 502 in Tower T07, Emerald Isle. The Complainant have taken possession of the Flat but are inter alia seeking compensation for delayed period in handing over of possession of their flat. The matter is listed for hearing on January 3, 2019.

- 13. Mr. Ashwin Chandwani & 2 Ors. ("Complainants") have filed a Complaint before MahaRERA bearing complaint No.CC00600000090083. The Complainants have booked flat no. 2302 in Tower T07, Emerald Isle. The Complainant have taken possession of the Flat but are inter alia seeking compensation for delayed period in handing over of possession of their flat. The matter is listed for hearing on January 3, 2019.
- 14. Mr. Rameshchandra Mishra & Anr. ("Complainants") have filed a Complaint before MahaRERA bearing complaint No.CC00600000090083. The Complainants had filed a Complaint bearing No. CC006000000055437 against L & T Ltd. before Maharashtra Real Estate Authority in respect of their Flat No. 1204, in Tower T6, Emerald Isle, Powai. The Complainants were disputing the interest for delayed payment and were seeking compensation for delay in handing over possession of flat. The complaint has been disposed of vide order dated December 12, 2018. L&T Ltd. has filed an appeal being No. AT00600000010949 before the Appellate Tribunal challenging the dated December 12, 2018. The next date in the Appeal is December 23, 2019. The Complainant has filed a miscellaneous application before MahaRERA alleging that the order dated December 12, 2018 is not complied with and that there is no stay from appropriate authority. The next date in the matter is February 27, 2020.
- 15. Deepak Pande & Anr. ("Complainants") have filed a Complaint before MahaRERA bearing Complaint No.CC00600000100256. The Complainant has booked Flat No. 2302 in Tower T08, Emerald Isle. The Complainant has taken possession of the said Flat. However, the Complainant is disputing that the carpet area of the Flat is less than what has been committed to him. The Complainant is demanding compensation for the difference in area. The matter is listed on January 02, 2020.
- 16. Mr. Gulshan Taneja ("Complainant") has filed a Complaint before MahaRERA bearing Complaint No.CC00600000100393. Mr. Gulshan Taneja has booked Flat No. 201 in Tower T07, Emerald Isle and has filed the said Complaint before MahaRERA after taking possession of his Flat. The matter is listed on January 29, 2020.
- 17. Mr. Khetan Shivkumar ("Complainant") has filed a Complaint before MahaRERA bearing Complaint No.CC006000000100430. Mr. Khetan Shivkumar has booked Flat No. 2203 in Tower T07, Emerald Isle and has filed the said Complaint before MahaRERA after taking possession of his Flat. The matter is listed on January 29, 2020.
- 18. Mr. Sambasivarao Kotha ("Complainant") has filed a Complaint before MahaRERA bearing Complaint No.CC006000000100645. Mr. Sambasivarao Kotha has booked Flat No. 203 in Tower T07, Emerald Isle and has filed the said Complaint before MahaRERA after taking possession of his Flat. The matter is listed on January 29, 2020.
- 19. Mr. Domnic Thomas ("Complainant") has filed a Complaint before MahaRERA bearing Complaint No.CC006000000100894. Mr. Sambasivarao Kotha has booked Flat No. 1202 in Tower T07, Emerald Isle and has filed the said Complaint before MahaRERA after taking possession of his Flat. The matter is listed on January 29, 2020.
- 20. The Department of Mines & Geology, State of Andhra Pradesh has issued a Demand Notice No.6790-2/V&E-HR/2012 dated January 28, 2013in respect of alleged illegal quarrying and transportation of 55864.m of metal from Balapur quarry, Ranga Reddy District, pertaining to HIAL project. The department has raised a demand for Rs. 3,07,27,620/- for seionarage including penalty. L&T's lease was terminated in 2008 itself and the demand based on alleged inspection in 2011 is not attributable to L&T. L&T has filed a revision application before the Government of Andhra Pradesh with an application seeking condonation of delay. Matter is

pending.

- 21. Demand notices were issued to L&T by the Revenue Inspector, Mining Department, Sundargarh, Odisha as well as the Orissa public demand recovery notices issued by the Tehsildar, Sadar and Certificate Officer in relation to delay in royalty payments of ₹2.63 million by L&T pertaining to Sambalpur- Rourkela road project against which L&T has filed three appeals before the Additional District Magistrate, Sundargarh. The Additional District Magistrate, Sundargarh has granted a stay in favour of L&T against the aforesaid payment of royalty. The matter is currently pending.
- 22. L&T has filed a writ petition against the demand of royalty (the "**Demand**") made by the Tahsildar cum certificate officer, Sundergadh (the "**Authority**") before the Orissa High Court. The Authority had raised the Demand on alleged royalty to be paid on minor minerals under the Orissa Public Demand Recovery Act, 1963. The amount involved in the matter is ₹1.54 million. Case is no longer pending.
- 23. L&T has filed a writ petition against the demand made by the Tahsildar before the Jharkhand High Court for market price and interest on certain minerals with respect to Jharkhand road project. The amount involved in the matter is ₹ 3.88 million. The matter is currently pending.
- 24. L&T has filed a writ petition against a notification passed by the Sub-divisional Land and Land Reforms Officer (the "**Officer**") before the Calcutta High Court relating to levy of royalty and cess (the "Notification"). The Officer had levied cess and raised a demand of royalty (the "**Demand**") under the Notification on the basis of treatment of ordinary soil under minor mineral. The amount involved in the matter is ₹ 0.40 million. The matter is currently pending.
- 25. L&T has filed a writ petition against the fees demanded by the Government of Tamil Nadu before the Madras High Court relating to the cost of mineral and seigniorage in relation to Krishnagiri road project. The amount involved in the matter is ₹ 70.50 million and has been paid by L&T. The matter is currently pending.
- 26. L&T has filed a writ petition against the levy of property tax by the Municipal Corporation of Greater Mumbai before the Bombay High Court. MMRDA had let out a land to the consortium named L&T-SCOMI Consortium for the purpose of fabrication for the monorail project by L&T-SCOMI. The Municipal Corporation of Greater Mumbai issued a notice to L&T demanding an amount of ₹ 380.0 million (the "Demand"). The Bombay High Court granted a stay order in favour of L&T for recovery of the Demand. The amount involved in the matter is ₹ 380.0 million. Subsequent to the Bombay High Court not allowing the petition, L&T approached the Supreme Court of India in a special leave petition and the Supreme Court has been pleased to stay the action, if any, were to be taken by the MMRDA subsequent to the disposal of the Writ Petition. The matter is currently pending.
- 27. L&T has filed a writ petition against the demand made by the Sub-Registrar, Kodambakkam, Chennai (the "**Sub-Registrar**") before the Madras High Court relating to alleged deficiency of ₹ 44.92 million in the payment of stamp duty on a consortium agreement. L&T had entered into a consortium agreement with Alstom to form a consortium namely L&T Alstom and paid a stamp duty of ₹ 1,600 million for execution of the consortium agreement. The Sub-Registrar issued a show cause notice to L&T demanding payment of the aforesaid stamp duty. The amount involved in the matter is ₹ 44.92 million. The Madras High Court has granted stay against the demand of the Sub-Registrar and the matter is currently pending.

28. L&T has filed a special civil application against an order passed by the Special Revenue Secretary, Gujarat (the "Special Revenue Secretary") before the Gujarat High Court. L&T had entered into lease deeds with certain land owners for construction of units pertaining to the Kakrapar Atomic Power Project. The Collector, Tapi District (the "Collector") had passed an order (the "Order") (i) declaring the lease deeds to be void under Section 73(AA)(3)(a) of the Gujarat Land Revenue Code, 1879 (the "GLRC"), (ii) required restoration of possession of land leased by L&T and (iii) imposed a penalty of ₹ 20.7 million on L&T. Subsequently, L&T has filed a revision application under Section 203 read with Section 211 of the GLRC with the Special Revenue Secretary challenging the Order. The Special Revenue Secretary upheld the Order, and subsequently L&T filed the aforesaid special civil application before the Gujarat High Court. The amount involved in the matter is ₹ 20.7 million. The interim order stands extended. The matter is posted for further hearing on December 20, 2019.

## d. Proceedings pertaining to Tax

- 1. L&T has filed this appeal vide Case No. 7223/M/13 against the Income Tax Department before the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal in Mumbai, in relation to direct tax matters regarding, amongst others, ESOP expenses, provision for foreseeable losses, 80-IA deduction-infrastructure projects, 14A disallowance, TP adjustment, etc. The amount involved in this matter is ₹ 80.44 crores.
- 2. L&T has filed this appeal vide Case No. 9076/M/10 against the Income Tax Department before the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal in Mumbai, in relation to direct tax matters regarding, amongst others, ESOP expenses, provision for foreseeable losses, 80-IA deduction-infrastructure projects, 14A disallowance, TP adjustment, etc. The amount involved in this matter is ₹51.76 crores.
- 3. L&T has filed this appeal vide Case No. 8783/M/11 against the Income Tax Department before the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal in Mumbai, in relation to direct tax matters regarding, amongst others, taxing notional profit on construction work- in progress (WIP) valued at cost, ESOP expenses, provision for foreseeable losses, 80-IA deduction- infrastructure projects, provision for contractual rectification cost, 14A disallowance, TP adjustment, etc. The amount involved in this matter is ₹ 128.62 crores.
- 4. L&T has filed this appeal vide Case No. 609/Mum-2013 against the Income Tax Department before the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal in Mumbai, in relation to direct tax matters regarding, amongst others, taxing notional profit on construction work- in- progress (WIP) valued at cost, ESOP expenses, provision for foreseeable losses, 80-IA deduction- infrastructure projects, loss arising on valuation of outstanding derivative contracts (MTM) entered into as hedges, provision for contractual rectification cost, 14A disallowance, TP adjustment, etc. The amount involved in this matter is ₹ 213.59 crores.
- 5. L&T has filed this appeal vide Case No. 856/Mum/2014 against the Income Tax Department before the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal in Mumbai, in relation to direct tax matters regarding, amongst others, taxing notional profit on construction work- in- progress (WIP) valued at cost, ESOP expenses, provision for foreseeable losses, 80-IA deduction- infrastructure projects, provision for contractual rectification cost, 14A disallowance, TP adjustment, etc. The amount involved in this matter is ₹ 200.02 crores.
- 6. L&T has filed this appeal vide Case No. 2315/Mum-2015 against the Income Tax Department before the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal in Mumbai, in relation to direct tax matters regarding, amongst others, taxing notional profit on construction work- in- progress (WIP) valued at cost, ESOP expenses, provision for foreseeable losses, 80-IA deduction- infrastructure projects,

provision for warranty, TP adjustment, etc. The amount involved in this matter is  $\gtrless$  230.07 crores.

- 7. L&T has filed this appeal vide Case No. 1855/Mum- 2016 against the Income Tax Department before the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal in Mumbai, in relation to direct tax matters regarding, amongst others, taxing notional profit on construction work- in- progress (WIP) valued at cost, ESOP expenses, 80-IA deduction- infrastructure projects, loss arising on valuation of outstanding derivative contracts (MTM) entered into as hedges, provision for contractual rectification cost, TP adjustment, etc. The amount involved in this matter is ₹313.54 crores.
- 8. L&T has filed this appeal vide Case No. 2112/M/2017 against the Income Tax Department before the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal in Mumbai, in relation to direct tax matters regarding, amongst others, ESOP expenses, 80-IA deduction- infrastructure projects, provision for foreseeable losses, loss arising on valuation of outstanding derivative contracts (MTM) entered into as hedges, provision for contractual rectification cost, TP adjustment, etc. The amount involved in this matter is ₹ 180.85 crores.
- 9. L&T has filed this appeal against the Income Tax Department before the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal in Mumbai, in relation to direct tax matters regarding, amongst others, ESOP expenses, 80-IA deduction- infrastructure projects, loss arising on valuation of outstanding derivative contracts (MTM) entered into as hedges, TP adjustment, etc. The amount involved in this matter is ₹ 32.73 crores.
- 10. L&T has filed this appeal vide Case No.297/2014-15 against the Income Tax Department before the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal in Mumbai, in relation to direct tax matters regarding, amongst others, taxing notional profit on construction work- in- progress (WIP) valued at cost, ESOP expenses, 80-IA deduction- infrastructure projects, TP adjustment, etc. The amount involved in this matter is ₹ 13.2 crores.
- 11. L&T has filed a Special Leave Petition bearing numbers SLP-11038 of 2018 and SLP-11039 of 2018 dated April 23, 2018 in the Supreme Court of India against orders given by the Punjab & Haryana High Court for the period 2011-12 and 2012-13 pertaining to, *inter-alia*, disallowance of exemption of interstate sale in transit, levy of tax on high sea sales, exemptions claimed for labour and like charges, input tax credit not allowed in full, consequential interest and penalty levied. The Supreme Court has issued notice to the tax department and the tax department has submitted the counter affidavit. The matter has been adjourned and the next date of hearing is awaited. The amount involved in this matter is ₹ 358.45 crores and ₹ 285.24 crores.
- 12. L&T has filed an appeal bearing CEXA/91/2016 in the Bombay High Court against an order bearing reference V (84/87)1575/2011/Adj/2012/C/3654 dated August 9, 2012 demanding excise duty on parts of the construction equipment for the period 2007 to 2012. The amount involved in the matter is ₹ 323.22 crores.
- 13. L&T has filed objections under matter number 150082267484/5757 dated March 28, 2017 against an order of the Special Commissioner, Appeals, Delhi, VAT, for the period 2008-09 disallowing exemption on sub-contractor turnover and on labour & like charges. The matter is pending with the objection hearing authority. The amount involved in the matter is ₹ 152.91 crores.
- 14. L&T has filed an appeal bearing reference JC/App-5/VAT/831/2015-16 dated January 29, 2016 against VAT assessment order for the period 2009-10 disallowing hire charges of plant & machinery, offshore services rendered to ONGC, tax on material portion on which VAT has been paid, ITC reversal. The appeal is pending for hearing. The amount of matter involved is ₹

127.64 crores.

- 15. L&T has filed an appeal bearing number C/852009, 852010, 852011-2014 before the CESTAT, Mumbai against an order passed by the Commissioner of Central Excise, Maharashtra demanding duty on difference between transaction value and duty on MRP (less abatement) on ESP Imported products (CETH 8536). The matter is pending for adjudication. The amount involved is ₹ 112.74 crores.
- 16. L&T has filed a writ petition bearing reference number WPST/34360/2018 in the Bombay High Court against a demand of pre-deposit for the period 2007-08 by disallowing the sale in the course of imports ONGC, high sea sales, sale in transit under Section 6(2) disallowed. The matter was heard, and the court has directed not to take any coercive measures till the matter is heard. The next hearing is scheduled on January 24, 2019. The amount involved is ₹ 184.87 crores.
- 17. L&T has filed an appeal bearing CA-//11-12 with the Joint Commissioner (Appeal-I) for the period 2003-04 against an order disallowing the non-submission of declarations, high sea sales, non- taxable charges, sales occasioning imports, purchases effected under Form H, insurance charges on material component of ONGC, import purchases of other states treated as branch transfers. The matter is at pending for hearing. The amount involved in the matter is ₹ 101.45 crores.
- 18. L&T has filed ten appeals before the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal ("**ITAT**") against the Deputy Commissioner of Income Tax at Mumbai in relation to direct tax matters regarding Section 80-IA deduction on infrastructure projects. The deduction claimed by L&T under Section 80-IA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 has been denied by the tax authorities treating L&T as the works contractor instead of the developer. L&T has contended that the conditions of Section 80-IA (4) have been fulfilled. L&T has submitted that the nature of activity performed by them is a development activity pursuant to an agreement with the central government, state government, local authority, statutory body. The jobs have not been received by L&T as subcontracts from third parties. L&T itself has made the investment and executed the development work to carry out civil construction work as against just execution of work. L&T has submitted extracts of the development agreements for various projects for which they have claimed deductions under Section 80-IA. The matter will have a tax effect of ₹ 440.91 crores. The matter is currently pending.
- 19. L&T has filed an appeal before the Commissioner of Income Tax- Appeals ("**CIT**(**A**)") against the Deputy Commissioner of Income Tax at Mumbai in relation to direct tax matters regarding short-term capital loss on sale of JM Arbitrage Fund units treated as business loss, disallowance of expenses due to failure of parties to provide transaction confirmations, disallowance of R&D expense (not reported by DSIR), imputed charge for use of L&T brand, ESOP expenses, 80-IA deduction- infrastructure projects, provision for foreseeable losses, etc. The amount involved in this matter is ₹ 521 crores.
- 20. L&T has filed ten appeals before the ITAT against the Deputy Commissioner of Income Tax at Mumbai in relation to direct tax matters regarding ESOP Expenses. ESOP discount has been treated as a contingent or notional in nature and therefore disallowed by the income tax authorities. The income tax authorities have regarded ESOP discount as capital in nature while L&T has contended that ESOP discount represents employee remuneration and thus, is a revenue expenditure which is not contingent in nature. The Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) has granted L&T relief for the ESOP expenses on the basis of actual exercise of options by employees in Assessment Year 2013-14. The matter will have a tax effect of

₹352.416 crores. The matter is currently pending.

21. L&T has filed ten appeals before the ITAT against the Deputy Commissioner of Income Tax at Mumbai, in relation to direct tax matters regarding taxing notional profit on construction workin- progress valued at cost. In accordance to the accounting standards (AS), L&T does not recognise profit for projects until it reaches 25% completion. However, the income tax authorities have added notional profit in case of contracts below 25% stage of completion. The matter will have a tax effect of ₹ 288.057 crores. The matter is currently pending.

ANY MATERIAL EVENT/ DEVELOPMENT OR CHANGE HAVING IMPLICATIONS ON THE FINANCIALS/CREDIT QUALITY (E.G. ANY MATERIAL REGULATORY PROCEEDINGS AGAINST THE ISSUER/PROMOTERS, TAX LITIGATIONS RESULTING IN MATERIAL LIABILITIES, CORPORATE RESTRUCTURING EVENT ETC) AT THE TIME OF ISSUE WHICH MAY AFFECT THE ISSUE OR THE INVESTOR'S DECISION TO INVEST / CONTINUE TO INVEST IN THE NON CONVERTIBLE REDEEMABLE PREFERENCE SHARES.

 L&T Infrastructure Finance Company Limited ("LTIFL") has filed intervention applications in the National Company Law Appellate Tribunal("NCLAT") under Rule 31 read with Rule 11 of the NCLAT Rules, 2016 to intervene, seek clarification and make appropriate submissions in Company Appeal (AT) No. 346 of 2018 filed by the Union of India ("UOI") pending before the NCLAT, in its capacity as the financial creditor of West Gujarat Expressway Limited ("WGEL") and Moradabad Bareily Expressway Limited ("MBEL"), all being subsidiaries of IL&FS Transportation Networks Limited ("ITNL"), which in turn is a subsidiary of Infrastructure Leasing and Financial Services Limited ("IL&FS"). The said intervention applications also seek a declaration from the NCLAT that the Interim Order dated October 15, 2018 does not affect the interests of LTIFL. MBEL and WGEL have now been classified as Green entities and have started servicing their debt obligations as per agreed terms. The matter is currently pending.

LTIFL has also preferred a Civil Appeal before the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India under Section 423 of the Companies Act, assailing the order dated February 11, 2019, passed by the NCLAT. The said Civil Appeal bearing number 2397-98 of 2019 is pending admission.

2. L&T Infra Debt Fund Limited ("L&T IDF") has filed intervention applications in the NCLAT under Rule 31 read with Rule 11 of the NCLAT Rules, 2016 to intervene, seek clarification and make appropriate submissions in Company Appeal (AT) No. 346 of 2018 filed by the UOI and Company Appeal (AT) No. 347of 2018 filed by IL&FS, pending before the NCLAT, in its capacity as the financial creditor of WGEL, Hazaribagh Ranchi Expressway Limited ("HREL"), Jharkhand Road Projects Implementation Company Limited ("JRPICL") and MBEL, all being subsidiaries of ITNL, which in turn is a subsidiary of IL&FS. The said intervention applications also seek a declaration from the NCLAT that the Interim Order dated October 15, 2018 does not affect the interests of L&T IDF. MBEL, WGEL and JRPICL have now been classified as Green entities and have started servicing their debt obligations as per agreed terms. The matter is currently pending.

L&T IDF has also preferred a Civil Appeal before the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India under Section 423 of the Companies Act, assailing the order dated February 11, 2019, passed by the NCLAT. The said Civil Appeal bearing number 2397-98 of 2019 is pending admission.

3. L&T Finance Limited ("LTF") has filed an intervention application in the NCLAT under Rule 31 read with Rule 11 of the NCLAT Rules, 2016 to intervene, seek clarification and make appropriate submissions in Company Appeal (AT) No. 346 of 2018 filed by the UOI pending

before the NCLAT, in its capacity as the financial creditor of MBEL, a subsidiary of ITNL, which in turn is a subsidiary of IL&FS. The said intervention application also seeks a declaration from the NCLAT that the Interim Order dated October 15, 2018 does not affect the interests of LTF. MBEL has now been classified as a Green entity from the Amber category and has started servicing its debt obligations as per agreed terms. The matter is currently pending.

LTF has also preferred a civil appeal bearing reference number 2397-98 of 2019 before the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India under Section 423 of the Companies Act, *inter alia* assailing the order dated February 11, 2019, passed by the NCLAT. This appeal is pending admission.

- L&T Finance Limited ("LTF") filed a petition (Petition/82/2019) ("Petition") before the 4. Telecom Disputes Settlement and Appellate Tribunal ("TDSAT"), New Delhi, inter-alia challenging the Department of Telecommunication's ("DoT") provisional assessment amounting to ₹ 1,600 crores, as license fee, plus interest and penalty for an internet service provider license ("ISP license") held by one L&T Netcom Ltd (an erstwhile Larsen and Toubro Limited group company). L&T Netcom Ltd merged with LTF in 2004. LTF paid the amounts due, towards license fees, calculated on the basis of percentage of adjusted gross revenue earned exclusively from the ISP business. The ISP License Agreement expired in January, 2015. The DoT, while undertaking assessment of their demand included all the revenue earned by the Company from financial services business of the Company in their computation instead of including the revenue only from ISP business. The DoT vide its provisional assessment notices dated December 24, 2018 and December 26, 2018 demanded the outstanding license fee (including interest, penalty and interest on penalty) for the financial years 2006-07, 2008-09, 2011-12. The aforesaid method of computation has been challenged vide the Petition. TDSAT while admitting the petition has vide its order dated October 21, 2019 inter-alia allowed LTF to seek interim relief if any coercive steps were taken by the DoT. LTF has not received any other demand, pursuant to the order dated October 21, 2019. The matter was listed for direction on December 9, 2019 and has been posted for hearing on January 22, 2020.
- 5. The Director General of GST Investigation ("**DGGI**") has issued a show cause notice ("**SCN**") dated October 18, 2018 to L&T Finance Limited ("**LTFL**"), inter-alia, alleging that additional interest, penal interest and default interest charged to customers is liable to service tax and goods and services tax ("**GST**") as applicable. The SCN will be adjudicated in due course before the Principal Commissioner of CGST.

The amount of tax involved in the SCN is Rs 197.29 crores for the period starting from April 2013 to June 2017. Based on the tax opinions, LTFL is of the view that such interest is not chargeable to service tax under Section 66D of the Finance, Act 1994. LTFL has filed detailed submissions for the SCN, and the matter was heard by the principal commissioner of CGST and reserved for orders thereafter. Further, the Central Board of Indirect taxes ("**CBIC**") vide its recent Circular 102/21/2019-GST dated June 28, 2019 clarified that the transaction of levy of additional/penal interest would not be subject to GST.

## LITIGATIONS INVOLVING THE ISSUER

There are no civil litigations initiated by and/or against the Issuer on the basis of the materiality policy adopted by the Issuer. Further, there are no criminal cases initiated by and/or against the Issuer.